

Stantec Consulting Services Inc. 30 Park Drive, Topsham ME 04086-1737

August 7, 2023 File: 195602046

Attention: Chip Stephens, Code Enforcement Officer Town of Readfield 8 Old Kents Hill Road Readfield, ME 04355

VIA: HAND DELIVERY

#### Reference: Site Review Application – Readfield Main Street Solar Project

Dear Chip and Planning Board Members,

On behalf of Readfield Main Street Solar, LLC (Applicant), Stantec Consulting Services Inc. (Stantec) is filing a Site Review Application for construction of the Readfield Main Street Solar Project (Project). Readfield Main Street Solar, LLC, is managed by Norwich Technologies Inc. with offices in Brunswick, Maine. The proposed Project is an approximately 975 kilowatt alternating current solar facility on the parcel found at Tax Map 143, Lot 14 located on the south side of Main Street (Route 17).

The Applicant attended a pre-application meeting with the Code Enforcement Officer on April 1, 2022 to discuss the proposed Project. In accordance with the Land Use Ordinance for the Town of Readfield, the enclosed Site Review Application includes the following:

- Narrative Submission requirements, review criteria, and solar ordinance requirements
- Attachment A Land Use Permit Application Form and Planning Board Review Criteria Questionnaire
- Attachment B Site Plans
- Attachment C Tax Maps
- Attachment D Title, Right, or Interest Documentation
- Attachment E Stormwater Management Report
- Attachment F Agency Correspondence
- Attachment G Wetland and Watercourse Delineation and Vernal Pool Survey Report
- Attachment H Financial Support Letter
- Attachment I Sound Assessment
- Attachment J NRCS Soil Resource Report
- Attachment K Interconnection Agreement
- Attachment L Equipment Specification Sheets
- Attachment M Operations and Maintenance Plan
- Attachment N Emergency Management Plan
- Attachment O Decommissioning Plan
- Attachment P Agent Authorization

This submittal includes 11 copies of the complete application package. A check in the amount of \$2,500 made payable to the Town of Readfield is enclosed.



We look forward to discussing this Project with the Planning Board during the meeting scheduled for August 22, 2023. Please let me know if you have any questions about the enclosed application materials.

Regards,

**Stantec Consulting Services Inc.** 

Kara Moody Senior Associate Phone: 207-406-5505 kara.moody@stantec.com

Attachments: Site Review Application Package and Site Plans

c. Martha Staskus, Readfield Main Street Solar, LLC





# Site Review Application

# **Readfield Main Street Solar Project**

Readfield, ME 04355

Tax Map 143, Lot 14

# CONTENTS

Projec	t Overview	. 1
Site Re	eview Submission Requirements (Section F)	. 1
Reviev	v Criteria (Section G)	. 7
1.	Aesthetic, Cultural, and Natural Values	. 7
2.	Conformity with Local Ordinances and Plans	. 8
3.	Erosion	. 8
4.	Financial Burden on the Town	. 8
5.	Financial and Technical Capacity	. 9
6.	Flood Areas	10
7.	Wetlands	10
8.	Groundwater	11
9.	Municipal Solid Waste Disposal	11
10.	Water Supply	11
11.	Adjacent Land Uses	11
12.	Pollution	12
13.	Waterbodies	13
14.	Wastewater Disposal	13
15.	Stormwater	13
16.	Sufficient Water	13
17.	Traffic	13
18.	Legal Access	14
19.	Impact on Adjoining Municipality	14
20.	Life and Fire Safety	14
21.	Violations	14
22.	Compliance with Timber Harvesting Standards	14
23.	Road Construction	14
Solar (	Ordinance Requirements	14
Spe	cific Application Requirements (Section 6)	14
Star	idard for Approval (Section 7)	17
1.	Lots	17
2.	Legal Responsibilities	17
3.	Deed Registration	17
4.	Setback	17
5.	Prohibited Locations	17
6.	Utility Notification	17
7.	Fence	18



8.	Signage	18
9.	Screening	18
10.	Glare	18
11.	Noise	18
12.	Lighting	19
13.	Impervious Assessment	19
14.	Utility Connections	19
15.	Emergency Services	19
16.	Maintenance Conditions	19
17.	Satisfaction with All Aspects of Capacity and Plans Submitted	19
18.	Removal	19
19.	Alternatives Assessment	20
20.	Preservation of Town's Character	20

# ATTACHMENT A: LAND USE PERMIT APPLICATION FORM AND PLANNING BOARD REVIEW CRITERIA QUESTIONNAIRE

ATTACHMENT B: SITE PLANS

ATTACHMENT C: TAX MAPS

ATTACHMENT D: TITLE, RIGHT, OR INTEREST DOCUMENTATION

ATTACHMENT E: STORMWATER MANAGEMENT REPORT

ATTACHMENT F: AGENCY CORRESPONDENCE

ATTACHMENT G: WETLAND AND WATERCOURSE DELIENATION AND VERNAL POOL SURVEY REPORT

ATTACHMENT H: FINANCIAL SUPPORT LETTER

ATTACHMENT I: SOUND ASSESSMENT

ATTACHMENT J: NRCS SOIL RESOURCE REPORT

ATTACHMENT K: INTERCONNECTION AGREEMENT

ATTACHMENT L: EQUIPMENT SPECIFICATION SHEETS

ATTACHMENT M: OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE PLAN

ATTACHMENT N: EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT PLAN

ATTACHMENT O: DECOMMISSIONING PLAN

ATTACHMENT P: AGENT AUTHORIZATION



# **PROJECT OVERVIEW**

Readfield Main Street Solar, LLC (the Applicant), proposes to construct the Readfield Main Street Solar Project (Project), a distributed generation solar energy facility on the south side of Main Street (Route 17) in Readfield. Norwich Technologies Inc. (Norwich) manages the Applicant. The proposed solar array is located on Tax Map 143, Lot 14 within the Rural Zoning District. The Project parcel is approximately 71.93 acres primarily comprised open fields with some interspersed forested land. The Project is predominantly sited within an open field portion of the parcel.

The Project is a ground-mounted solar facility comprised of photovoltaic modules (solar panels) installed on a fixed-tilt racking system supported by driven posts or ground screws. The racking system is designed to support the bottom of the solar panels approximately 3 feet above grade to the top of the panels at a maximum of 10 feet above grade. The array will be arranged in multiple rows running generally east-west with sufficient distance between the rows to minimize shading. The solar array will have an installed capacity of up to 975 kilowatts alternating current (kWac).

Other Project features will include two equipment pads to support the Project equipment, a temporary staging area, a gravel driveway off Main Street, and a medium voltage electrical collector line that will connect the solar array to the electrical grid at a point of interconnection (POI) with the utility distribution line on Main Street. The electrical collector line will be installed underground within the array footprint, with an overhead electrical line along the Project driveway to connect to the POI. Perimeter fencing with an access gate will be installed around the Project in compliance with the National Electrical Code (NEC). The gate will be secured with a Knox Box lock (or similar locking mechanism) to provide for public safety and allow emergency services access. The total fenced Project area will include approximately 9.59 acres; the total Project limits including the access road and vegetation clearing to prevent shading of the panels will include approximately 17.51 acres; and the total permanent impervious area associated with the Project will be approximately 0.25 acre. Following Project construction, the area in and around the array will be maintained as a meadow.

Based upon the Town of Readfield Solar Ordinance, the Project is considered a large-scale solar energy system. The Land Use Permit Application form and Planning Board Review Criteria Questionnaire are provided in Attachment A, and the Project Site Plans are provided in Attachment B.

# SITE REVIEW SUBMISSION REQUIREMENTS (SECTION F)

a. Copy of the portion of applicable tax map showing subject property and abutting properties.

Applicable tax maps showing the Project parcel and abutting properties are provided in Attachment C.

b. Names and addresses of all property abutters of the proposed development.

Tax Map & Lot	Name	Mailing Address
Map 143, Lot 13	Dennis Jackson	PO Box 378, Manchester, ME 04351
Map 143, Lots 1 & 2	Porcupine Trails, LLC	PO Box 188, Manchester, ME 04351
Map 143, Lot 15	Brittany Frailey & Timothy	10 Field Road, Fayette, ME 04349
	& Regian Frailey	
Map 143, Lot 16	John & Shirley Giacullo	21 Sylvester Lane, Readfield, ME 04355
Map 143, Lots 16-1 & 17	Matthew John Kelly	71 Googin Street, Lewiston, ME 04240
Map 137, Lot 7	Genie & Terry Gannett	PO Box 188, Manchester, ME 04351
Map 145, Lot 1	Small Woodlands Owners	8 Mulliken Court, PO Box 836, Augusta, ME

#### Table 1. Property Abutters



Tax Map & Lot	Name	Mailing Address
	Association of Maine	04332
Map 144, Lot 1	Dale Rice	198 Carlton Pond Road, Winthrop, ME 04364
Map 142, Lot 5	Augusta Water District	Attn: Water Division, 12 Williams Street, Augusta,
	_	ME 04339

c. Exact directions to the property from the Town Office, using a map if necessary.

From the Town Office, turn left onto Main Street (Routes 41 and 17). Continue on Route 17 for approximately 5 miles. The Project parcel is located on the right, approximately 0.5 mile beyond the intersection with Gorden Road (Route 135).

d. Map showing boundaries of all contiguous property under the control of the owner or applicant, regardless of whether all or part is being developed at this time.

There are no contiguous properties under the control of the owner or applicant. A boundary survey showing contiguous properties is included with the Site Plans in Attachment B.

e. The tax map and lot number of the parcel or parcels.

The Project is located on Tax Map 143, Lot 14.

f. A copy of the deed to the property or other documentation to demonstrate right, title, or interest in the property on the part of the applicant.

Sunny Acres, LLC, the land holding entity for Norwich, has signed a Purchase and Sale Agreement with the current landowner of the Project parcel. The Applicant has entered into a lease option agreement with Sunny Acres, LLC (see the referenced agreements in Attachment D).

g. The name, registration number, and seal of the land surveyor, architect, engineer, and/or similar professional who prepared any plan.

The name, registration number, and seal of the land surveyor and the civil engineer are included on the Site Plans in Attachment B.

h. Map showing the north bearing and lot dimensions of all property lines of the property to be developed and the source of this information.

A boundary survey plan is included with the Site Plans in Attachment B.

- *i.* Site plan(s) illustrating the following:
  - 1. The location and size of any existing and proposed sewer and water mains, culverts, and drains that will serve the development whether on or off the property along with the direction of existing and proposed surface water drainage across the site.

There are no existing or proposed sewer or water mains, culverts, or drains that will serve the Project. The direction of existing and proposed surface water drainage across the Project area is shown on sheets C-3.0 and C-3.1 of the Site Plans in Attachment B.

2. The location, names, and present and proposed widths of existing and proposed roads, driveways, streets, parking and loading areas, walkways and rights-of-way within or adjacent to the proposed development.



The existing and proposed driveway for the Project site and the temporary staging area to be used for parking and loading are shown on the Site Plans in Attachment B.

3. The location and dimensions of all existing and proposed buildings and structures on the site.

Not applicable. There are no existing buildings on the Project parcel and no buildings are proposed as part of the Project.

4. The location of intersecting roads or driveways within 200 feet of the site.

Intersecting roads and driveways within 200 feet of the Project site are shown on the Site Plans in Attachment B.

5. The location of existing and proposed open drainage courses, wetlands, vernal pools, waterbodies, streams, floodplains, stands of trees, vegetative cover type, and other important natural features, with a description of such features to be retained.

Existing wetlands, streams, stands of trees, and vegetative cover type are shown on the Site Plans in Attachment B. The Project will avoid wetlands and streams; therefore, these features will be retained. The solar array is predominantly sited within an open field portion of the parcel. A limited amount of tree clearing will be required along the western side of the array to prevent shading of solar panels. Tree clearing will also be required to install the temporary staging area. There are no existing or proposed open drainage courses and there are no existing vernal pools, floodplains, or other important natural features on the Project parcel.

6. The location and dimensions of any existing and proposed easements.

Not applicable. There are no existing or proposed easements.

7. The location of all existing and proposed provisions for water supply and wastewater disposal systems, including a design copy or letter of soils suitability for any proposed new or replacement wastewater disposal systems.

Not applicable. The Project does not include a water supply or a wastewater disposal system.

8. The location and dimensions of all existing and proposed signs.

A sign will be installed at the Project entrance off Main Street as shown on the Site Plans in Attachment B (or alternatively, on the fence gate at the perimeter of the array). The sign will be approximately 2 feet by 2 feet and will identify the owner/operator and include a 24-hour emergency contact phone number.

9. For any project which shall result in a change to exterior lighting, the location, height, and type of existing and proposed exterior lighting, and for commercial, industrial, and institutional projects, the foot-candle intensities of proposed lighting projecting on abutting properties.

Not applicable. The Project does not include exterior lighting.

10. The proposed landscaping and buffers/screening.

Not applicable. The Project does not include landscaping or proposed screening.

11. The location and amount of any earth moving.



Not applicable. The Project is not expected to require substantial grading.

12. A copy of all existing and proposed covenants or deed restrictions associated with the subject property.

Not applicable. There are no existing or proposed covenants or deed restrictions associated with the Project parcel.

j. A copy of any applicable federal, state, or town applications or permits which have been issued.

There are no federal, state, or town permits that have been issued for the Project at this time. State regulations applicable to the Project include Maine's Stormwater Management Law (38 M.R.S.A. § 420-D) and Maine's Solar Decommissioning Law (35-A M.R.S. §§ 3491-3496). In accordance with these regulations, the Applicant will submit a Stormwater Permit by Rule (PBR) application and a solar decommissioning permit application to the Maine Department of Environmental Protection (MDEP). Additionally, a Driveway/Entrance Permit application will be filed with the Maine Department of Transportation (MDOT) for the Project entrance off Main Street.

k. A narrative describing how the proposal meets all of the Planning Board's Review Criteria.

Review Criteria as described in Section 3.G of the Land Use Ordinance are addressed in the Review Criteria section below.

*I.* Evidence of receipt of application fee, payable to the Town of Readfield.

A check in the amount of \$2,500, made payable to the Town of Readfield, has been provided with this application package to cover the application fee for a large-scale solar energy system.

*m.* A schedule of construction, including anticipated beginning and completion dates.

Pending receipt of all local and state approvals and the Central Maine Power Company (CMP) interconnection schedule, construction of the Project is projected to begin in the fourth quarter of 2023 with the goal of Project completion set for the first quarter of 2024. The sequence of Project construction will generally adhere to the timeline detailed in Table 2, although adjustments may be necessary to accommodate seasonality, weather conditions, and the interconnecting utility.

	Table :	2. E	Estimated	Construction	Activity	Timeline
--	---------	------	-----------	--------------	----------	----------

Project Phase	Timeframe
Preliminary layout and staking of improved and new driveway segment and solar array/staging area	November 2023
Install erosion control; grubbing (as needed)	November 2023
Underground electrical work; racking posts and modules installation	December 2023 – January 2024
Substantial completion and commissioning	February 2024
Begin commercial operations	March 2024

*n.* A stormwater drainage and erosion control plan in compliance with Article 8, Sections 10 and 11.

The stormwater drainage and erosion control plan for the Project are included with the Site Plans in Attachment B. Additionally, the Stormwater Management Report for the Project is provided in Attachment E.



o. A description of the traffic movement to be generated by the development including types, peak hour and average daily vehicle trips, travel routes, and duration of traffic movement both during and following construction. A full traffic impact study shall be required under the conditions set forth in Article 8, Section 18.H, and shall include the components described therein.

Traffic during Project construction will include delivery and installation of Project materials and equipment and is anticipated to be approximately 25 to 30 vehicles per day at the peak of individual Project phases (see Table 2 above). The estimated peak hours of traffic during Project construction are between 7:00 am to 8:00 am and 5:00 pm to 6:00 pm. Forestry equipment needed for clearing at the commencement of site preparation may include delivery of a feller buncher and comparable equipment. Standard tractor trailers will be used to deliver the racking steel, solar panels, and electrical equipment at the commencement of Project installation.

Warning signs and flaggers will be used as appropriate during Project installation to provide temporary traffic controls for safe movement of traffic into and out of the Project site. Vegetation at the site entrance will be maintained to provide adequate visibility for vehicles entering and exiting the site. During operations, the Project will be accessed less than once per month unless additional maintenance is required.

*p.* An assessment of the solid or hazardous wastes to be generated by the proposed activity and a plan for its handling and disposal, along with evidence of disposal arrangements.

Solid waste during construction will consist of construction debris, packaging materials, and associated construction wastes that will be delivered to a landfill with adequate capacity to accept the Project's wastes (e.g., Crossroads Landfill in Norridgewock) by a licensed non-hazardous waste transporter. During operation, no solid waste is anticipated to be generated by the Project, and there will be no on-site waste collection or storage facilities.

The Project will not generate hazardous wastes during construction or operation and will not require disposal or storage of hazardous wastes. In the event of a hazardous spill, the MDEP would be notified. The material would be characterized, and the waste would be transported and disposed of at a licensed hazardous waste disposal facility in compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

q. The Planning Board may require existing and proposed topography of the site to be mapped at 10foot contour intervals, or such other intervals as the Planning Board may determine necessary for review.

A topographic survey plan of the Project site mapped at 2-foot contour intervals is included with the Site Plans in Attachment B.

*r.* A copy of any required dimensional calculations applicable to the standards being reviewed, for example, square footage of structures, percent of lot coverage, etc.

Per the requirements detailed in the Readfield Solar Ordinance (Section 7), solar energy systems shall not exceed 20% lot coverage. The total fenced area of the Project is 9.59 acres, and the Project parcel is approximately 71.93 acres, resulting in approximately 13.3% lot coverage.

s. Elevation drawings for new commercial, industrial, and institutional buildings.

Not applicable. The Project does not include any buildings.

t. Any additional information relevant to the project, for example, photographs, Cobbosee Watershed District recommendations, etc.





Photo 1. View from the north end of the solar array field looking south to where the solar array will be located.



Photo 2. View of existing farm road access between open fields.





Photo 3. View from south end of the northern field with Main Street (Route 17) in the background.

# **REVIEW CRITERIA (SECTION G)**

# 1. AESTHETIC, CULTURAL, AND NATURAL VALUES

The Project will not have an undue adverse effect on the scenic or natural beauty of the area, aesthetics, historic sites, archaeological sites, significant wildlife habitat identified or defined by the Maine Department of Inland Fisheries and Wildlife (MDIFW) or the Town of Readfield, or rare plant and animal species, critical habitat, significant or irreplaceable natural areas, or resources identified by the Department of Conservation, or any public rights for physical or visual access to the shoreline.

The Applicant consulted with the Maine Historic Preservation Commission (MHPC) to request information on significant cultural or historic resources associated with the proposed Project area. The MHPC concluded that there are no National Register listed or known eligible properties on or adjacent to the Project site, and the Project parcels are not considered sensitive for archaeological resources. Correspondence received from MHPC is provided in Attachment F.

There are no known unique natural features within the Project area. A wetland and watercourse delineation was conducted for the Project to identify wetlands, watercourses, and vernal pools within the Project area. Five wetlands and one stream were identified on the Project parcel during the delineation, and no vernal pools were identified. The Wetland and Watercourse Delineation and Vernal Pool Survey Report is



provided in Attachment G. The Project will not impact wetlands, the stream, or the area within 75 feet of the stream.

The Applicant consulted with the MDIFW regarding known locations of endangered, threatened, and special concern species; designated Essential and Significant Wildlife Habitats; and inland fisheries habitat concerns in the vicinity of the Project. According to MDIFW, there are no mapped Essential or Significant Wildlife Habitats or inland fisheries habitats that will be affected by the Project. Based on historical evidence, MDIFW believes that endangered, threatened, and special concern species of bats may occur within the Project area during fall/spring migration, summer breeding season, and/or overwintering. Based on the lack of known hibernacula or maternity roost trees in the vicinity of the Project area, along with the absence of other bat overwintering habitat (e.g., talus slopes, exposed rock faces) and limited amount of tree clearing proposed, impacts to bats are not expected as a result of the Project. Necessary tree clearing will adhere to the protection guidelines for bats within the MDIFW Endangered Species Rules.<sup>1</sup> Correspondence received from MDIFW is included in Attachment F.

The Applicant consulted with the Maine Natural Areas Program (MNAP) to request information on the presence of rare or unique botanical features documented in the vicinity of the proposed Project. Such rare and unique botanical features include the habitat of rare, threatened, or endangered plant species and unique or exemplary natural communities. According to MNAP's Biological and Conservation Data System files, there are no rare botanical features documented within the Project area. Correspondence received from MNAP is provided in Attachment F.

# 2. CONFORMITY WITH LOCAL ORDINANCES AND PLANS

The Project is in conformance with applicable local ordinances and the Readfield Comprehensive Plan.

# 3. EROSION

The Project will not cause soil erosion or a reduction in the land's capacity to hold water so that a dangerous or unhealthy condition results. An erosion and sedimentation control plan has been prepared for the Project (see Site Plans in Attachment B), and the Project contractor will implement BMPs as required by the *Maine Erosion and Sediment Control Best Management Practices (BMPs), Manual for Designers and Engineers*<sup>2</sup> (BMP Manual). The erosion and sedimentation control plan complies with Maine's Erosion and Sediment Control Law (38 M.R.S.A. § 420-C) and is based upon sound conservation practices, including as applicable, those outlined in the BMP Manual. Details of erosion and sedimentation control during Project construction are located in the Site Plans included as Attachment B. Erosion control measures will be installed prior to initiating Project construction and will remain in place and be maintained until the site is permanently stabilized. All erosion control and stabilization measures will comply with the BMP Manual.

# 4. FINANCIAL BURDEN ON THE TOWN

The Project will not cause financial burden on the Town for provisions of public services and facilities. The Project will not require a public water supply or sewage disposal. The Project may require water during construction for dust control purposes. If water is needed for dust control, the contractor will truck water to the Project site. The Project will not require a water supply for operations. During Project construction, temporary toilet facilities will be used, and service of the facilities will be provided by a licensed wastewater transporter. Sewage disposal will not be required during Project operations.

<sup>2</sup> Maine Department of Environmental Protection's *Maine Erosion and Sediment Control Best Management Practices* (*BMPs*), *Manual for Designers and Engineers*, dated October 2016 is available at

https://www.maine.gov/dep/land/erosion/escbmps/.



<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> MDIFW Endangered Species Rule, Chapter 8.06. Available online at:

<sup>&</sup>lt;http://www.maine.gov/sos/cec/rules/09/137/137c008.docx>. Accessed July 11, 2023.

# 5. FINANCIAL AND TECHNICAL CAPACITY

#### Financial Capacity

Norwich has financed and installed over \$75 million worth of renewable energy systems across New England. Working with their financial partners, Norwich Solar is building more than 15 solar projects this year and managing project costs of over \$20 million. Drawing upon project specific financing and the support of a stable line of credit with Mascoma Bank, Norwich Solar is more than capable of developing and installing projects of this size. Norwich Solar maintains a \$4 million line of credit with its principal banking institution, Mascoma Bank. With multiple offices across the region, Mascoma Bank services customers throughout Maine, New Hampshire, and Vermont. A reference letter from Mascoma Bank is provided in Attachment H.

#### Technical Capacity

Norwich is the managing member of Readfield Main Street Solar, LLC, (the Applicant). Founded in 2011, with the mission to continue advancing the integration and deployment of affordable solar power for regional organizations and communities, Norwich Solar has installed over 30 megawatts (MW) with another 63 plus MWs under development across Vermont, New Hampshire, and Maine. Norwich Solar is consistently recognized in national publications as a leading solar developer and was named one of the Top 50 Places to Work in Vermont in 2021 and 2022 by the Vermont Chamber of Commerce.

Norwich Solar works with utility companies servicing Maine, New Hampshire, and Vermont to facilitate the advancement of grid safety and stability with real time automation control, and professionally engineered system design, giving the utility finite control of the power systems at all scales, while improving efficiency. Norwich Solar's deployment of distributed generation solar systems across the region reduces reliance on fossil fuels in favor of local and renewable energy resources.

As a vertically integrated company, Norwich Technologies Inc. provides its clients with turnkey installations, 24/7/365 monitoring and system control, and long-term operations and maintenance services. Runtime Solar, the operation and maintenance division grown from within Norwich's expertise, provides asset management and optimization services to community and commercial installations across northern New England. Runtime Solar will also service and operate this Project.

The Norwich Solar team places priority on local job creation and retention, increased energy independence, and reduced pollution while following socially responsible business practices. Construction, engineering, management, and finance professionals, along with many local contractors have generated company growth of almost 30% in the last year, and Norwich Solar was awarded one of the Top Solar Contractors in the United States despite the COVID-19 challenges. Norwich Solar's commitment to northern New England communities is put into tangible practice by its support of local organizations. As active leaders and members of the Maine Renewable Energy Association, the Vermont Energy and Climate Action Network, Renewable Energy Vermont and Vermont Businesses for Social Responsibility, and the New Hampshire Clean Tech Council and Clean Energy NH, and Certified B-Corporation, Norwich Solar's employees' socially responsible participation has been recognized as one of Vermont's best places to work.

Norwich Solar professionals cover sales, development, permitting, engineering, finance, administration, operations and maintenance, and installation. The management team is led by:

#### Jim Merriam – Chief Executive Officer

- 25+ Years of experience in the renewable energy industry.
- Electrical Engineering, University of Vermont.
- Previously VP Operations at SunCommon, Director of Efficiency Vermont, and COO at groSolar.



# Joel Stettenheim – Co-Founder & President

- JD Stanford Law School, PhD Physics, Dartmouth College.
- PI on Norwich Solar's \$2.4M DoE SunShot grants.

#### Troy McBride – Co-Founder & Chief Technical Officer

- PhD, Thayer School of Engineering at Dartmouth College.
- Previously tenured engineering professor.

#### Spencer Newman – Chief Financial Officer

- MBA, Kellogg School of Management, Northwestern University.
- Strategic and financial specialist.
- 25+ years financial experience.

# Martha Staskus – Chief Development Officer

- 25+ years extensive project management and development expertise in regional renewable energy projects including responsibility for over 25 MW of Vermont group net metered solar projects and over 150 MW of New England utility-scale wind projects.
- Environmental Sciences, University of Vermont.
- 2019 Renewable Energy Vermont's Renewable Energy Champion Awardee.
- Board Director of Renewable Energy Vermont.

# Charlie Van Winkle – VP Operations

- MBA, Management & Finance, Harvard University.
- Previously COO at Northern Reliability working on energy storage and microgrid reliability.
- Extensive project management and development expertise in renewable energy projects.

# Dan Kinney – General Manager Runtime Solar

- Environmental Education, Unity College.
- 2017 Renewable Energy Vermont's Jim Grundy Award for bringing renewable energy to the community for 20 years.
- 2011 Cofounded Catamount Solar after 8 years as a groSolar field supervisor.

In addition to Norwich's internal expertise, the Project development team includes the following:

- Stantec (www.stantec.com) permitting support and natural resource assessments
- Krebs & Lansing Consulting Engineers, Inc. (krebsandlansing.com) civil engineering and stormwater design
- Horizons Engineering (www.horizonsengineering.com) land survey
- RLC Engineering (www.rlc-eng.com) electrical engineering

# 6. FLOOD AREAS

The Project is not located within a floodplain as designated by the Federal Emergency Management Agency Flood Insurance Rate Maps.

#### 7. WETLANDS

The Project will not result in wetland impacts.



#### 8. GROUNDWATER

The Project will not adversely impact either the quality or quantity of groundwater. No new groundwater extraction is anticipated as part of the Project; therefore, the Project will not affect the quantity of groundwater. Maine Geological Survey Significant Sand and Gravel Aquifer Maps<sup>3</sup> show the nearest mapped significant sand and gravel aquifer complex is approximately 1.8 miles west of the Project. Mapped aquifers do not intersect any of the Project site. The potential sources of groundwater contamination during construction will be fuel and hydraulic and lubricating oils used in the operation of vehicles and construction equipment. If a spill occurs, it would be small and of short duration. Spills that are properly cleaned up would not pose a risk to groundwater quality. Procedures for handling these materials and preventing spills will be in accordance with all applicable state and federal regulations.

The multiple methods, plans, and procedures to prevent groundwater degradation during construction of the proposed Project are incorporated in the Project erosion control requirements and the Site Plans (Attachment B). These procedures establish a set of minimum requirements for spill prevention and response during construction and have proven successful for preventing spills and for addressing spills if they occur. The procedures incorporate measures developed and fine-tuned from experience during other solar array construction projects, including input from other review agencies. All personnel working on the Project will follow these procedures. Construction and operation of the Project's erosion control measures.

# 9. MUNICIPAL SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL

The Project will not use municipal services for solid waste disposal.

#### **10. WATER SUPPLY**

The Project will not be served by public water. The Project may require water during construction for dust control purposes. If water is needed for dust control, the contractor will truck water to the Project site. The Project will not require a water supply for Project operations. Additionally, the Project is not expected to require a water supply for fire suppression, as it is not typical to practice fire suppression by means of water inundation within a solar array.

#### 11. ADJACENT LAND USES

The Project will not have a detrimental effect on adjacent land uses or other properties that might be affected by waste, noise, glare, fumes, smoke, dust, odors, or other effects.

#### <u>Waste</u>

Solid waste during construction will consist of construction debris, packaging materials, and associated construction wastes that will be delivered to a landfill with adequate capacity to accept the Project's wastes (e.g., Crossroads Landfill in Norridgewock) by a licensed non-hazardous waste transporter. During operation, no solid waste is anticipated to be generated by the Project, and there will be no on-site waste collection or storage facilities.

The Project will not generate hazardous wastes during construction or operation and will not require disposal or storage of hazardous wastes. In the event of a hazardous spill, the MDEP would be notified. The material would be characterized, and the waste would be transported and disposed of at a licensed hazardous waste disposal facility in compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>3</sup> Maine Geological Survey, Online Significant Sand and Gravel Aquifers Maps. Available at: https://www.maine.gov/dacf/mgs/pubs/digital/aquifers.htm.



# <u>Noise</u>

The anticipated sound level of the Project is based on two components: inverters (100-125 kilowatts) and transformers (up to 1,000 kilovolt-amperes). It is important to note that these Project components only generate noise when the sun is up and that sound levels are proportional to electric load. Based on the equipment specifications, noise levels at inverter locations are expected to be 65 A-weighted decibels (dBA) at a distance of 3.3 feet, 29.3 dBA at a distance of 200 feet, and 19.8 dBA at a distance of 600 feet. Noise levels at the 1,000-kilovolt-amperes transformer are expected to be 64 dBA at 3.3 feet, 28.3 dBA at 200 feet, and 18.8 dBA at 600 feet. The sound assessment conducted for the Project is based on the distance of the nearest property line in relation to inverters and transformers and demonstrates the combined sound level impact is anticipated to be approximately 32.8 dBA (see Attachment I). For comparison, the sound level of a quiet rural area is approximately 30 dBA and a library is approximately 40 dBA. The Project is incompliance with the most restrictive sound level limits set by MDEP for abutting parcels containing a residence, which are 55 dBA during daytime hours (7:00 am to 7:00 pm) and 45 dBA during nighttime hours (7:00 pm to 7:00 am).

# <u>Glare</u>

The Project has been sited to avoid concentrated glare onto adjacent properties. The array will be set back 200 feet from the nearest property line and approximately 720 feet from the nearest structure. In addition, a buffer of existing forested vegetation will surround the array, as shown on Sheet C-1.0 of the Site Plans in Attachment B. Based on the setback distance and the screening provided by existing forested vegetation surrounding the array, the Project is not expected to be visible from neighboring properties.

# Fumes and Odors

The Project will not generate any odors during operations. Only limited, short-term fumes or odors may be generated during construction by exhaust from equipment.

#### <u>Smoke</u>

The Project will not generate smoke.

#### <u>Dust</u>

Construction activities associated with Project installation may result in temporary dust generated by construction equipment. Dust that may be generated during construction is anticipated to be similar to that produced from similar scale construction projects. Treatment options may include calcium chloride, water, or other approved dust mitigating agents and will only occur when necessary.

# 12. POLLUTION

The Project will not result in undue water or air pollution. Adherence to the Project's erosion and sedimentation control plan provided in Attachment B will minimize potential impacts to surface water quality. No floodplains occur within the Project area. The Project area is comprised of relatively flat land suitable for development. Elevations within the Project area range from approximately 400 to 490 feet above sea level. The U.S. Department of Agriculture's Natural Resource Conservation Service web soils survey data was used to map the existing soil condition within the Project area (see Attachment J). Soil types within the Project area are rocky and sandy loams, which are suitable for construction of the solar array, racking, and associated driveway and equipment. Soils and subsoils will not need to support waste disposal.

Local regulations applicable to the Project are described in the Readfield Land Use Ordinance (specifically Section 3, Site Review) and the Readfield Solar Ordinance. This Site Review Application is being submitted in accordance with these regulations. A building permit application will be submitted prior to starting Project



construction. The Applicant believes the proposed Project is in conformance with Readfield ordinances, as well as the Readfield Comprehensive Plan.

State regulations applicable to the Project include Maine's Stormwater Management Law (38 M.R.S.A. § 420-D) and Maine's Solar Decommissioning Law (35-A M.R.S. §§ 3491-3496). In accordance with these regulations, the Applicant will submit a Stormwater PBR application and a solar decommissioning permit application to the MDEP.

#### 13. WATERBODIES

The Project will not have an undue impact on waterbodies, including lakes, ponds, and streams. One stream was identified on the Project parcel during the wetland and watercourse delineation. The Project will avoid this stream and the area within 75 feet of the stream.

#### 14. WASTEWATER DISPOSAL

The Project will not require permanent wastewater disposal. During Project construction, temporary toilet facilities will be used, and service of the facilities will be provided by a licensed wastewater transporter. Wastewater disposal will not be required during Project operations.

#### 15. STORMWATER

Stormwater permitting for the Project will be accomplished under the MDEP's Stormwater Management Law (Chapter 500). Projects creating less than 1 acre of new impervious surfaces qualify for a Stormwater PBR. The MDEP does not consider solar panels as impervious surfaces. The proposed Project will create approximately 0.25 acre of impervious surfaces and, therefore, qualifies for a Stormwater PBR. Following Project construction, the area under and around the solar array will be maintained as a meadow. This meadow will function as a vegetated buffer providing stormwater treatment. As such, ground cover within the array area will be mowed no more than twice per year. The Project will comply with Maine Stormwater Best Management Practices Manual.<sup>4</sup> The Stormwater Management Report for the Project is provided in Attachment E.

#### **16. SUFFICIENT WATER**

Not applicable. The Project will not require a water supply.

#### 17. TRAFFIC

The Project will not cause highway or road congestion or unsafe conditions with respect to the use of highways or roads. Traffic during Project construction will include delivery and installation of Project materials and equipment and is anticipated to be approximately 25 to 30 vehicles per day at the peak of individual Project phases (see Table 2 above). Warning signs and flaggers will be used as appropriate during Project construction to provide temporary traffic controls for safe movement of traffic into and out of the Project site. Vegetation at the site entrance will be maintained to provide adequate visibility for vehicles entering and exiting the site. During operations, the Project will be accessed less than once per month unless additional maintenance is required. A Driveway/Entrance Permit application will be filed with the MDOT for the Project entrance off Main Street.



<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>4</sup> https://www.maine.gov/dep/land/stormwater/stormwaterbmps/

#### 18. LEGAL ACCESS

The Applicant has legal and reasonable means of access for the Project (see title, right, or interest documentation in Attachment D). A driveway will be improved off Main Street to provide access to the Project.

#### **19. IMPACT ON ADJOINING MUNICIPALITY**

Not applicable. The Project does not cross Town boundaries.

#### **20. LIFE AND FIRE SAFETY**

A perimeter fence for public safety will surround the Project to prevent the public from accessing the site. A gate in the fence will be installed and secured with a Knox Box or similar locking mechanism to allow the Town First Responders to enter the site in the event of an emergency. The Project is not expected to require fire protection services, as it is not typical to practice fire suppression by means of water inundation within a solar array.

#### 21. VIOLATIONS

The Project is not located on property currently in violation of any requirements of the Readfield Land Use Ordinance.

#### 22. COMPLIANCE WITH TIMBER HARVESTING STANDARDS

Not applicable. The Project is not a subdivision.

#### 23. ROAD CONSTRUCTION

Not applicable. The Project does not include road construction.

#### SOLAR ORDINANCE REQUIREMENTS

#### SPECIFIC APPLICATION REQUIREMENTS (SECTION 6)

1) A description of the owner of the SES, the operator if different, and detail of qualifications and track record to run the facility.

The Applicant is managed by Norwich, and Norwich is the Project owner. Runtime Solar, a division of Norwich, will operate and maintain the Project. The qualifications of Norwich and Runtime Solar are described under the Review Criteria section above (Financial and Technical Capacity).

2) If the operator will be leasing the land, a copy of the agreement (minus financial compensation) clearly outlining the relationship inclusive of the rights and responsibilities of the operator, landowner, and any other responsible party with regard to the SES and the life of the agreement.

Sunny Acres, LLC, the land holding entity for Norwich, has signed a Purchase and Sale Agreement with the current landowner of the Project parcel. The Applicant has entered into a lease option agreement with Sunny Acres, LLC (see the referenced agreements in Attachment D).

3) A description of how and to whom the energy will be sold.



The solar array is under contract to participate in Maine's Net Energy Billing (NEB) program. Off-takers will receive monetary or energy credits applied to their utility bills at a discounted rate. The off-takers for the NEB credits are expected to be an assortment of small to medium-sized Maine businesses.

4) A copy of the agreement and schematic details of the connection arrangement with the transmission system (most likely Central Maine Power), clearly indicating which party is responsible for various requirements and how they will be operated and maintained.

A copy of the Interconnection Agreement between the Applicant and CMP is provided in Attachment K.

5) The layout, design and installation shall conform to applicable industry standards, such as those of the American National Standards (ANSI), Underwriters Laboratories (UL), the American Society for Testing and Materials (ASTM), Institute of Electrical and Electronics Engineers (IEEE), Solar Rating and Certification Corporation (SRCC), Electrical Testing Laboratory (ETL), Florida Solar Energy Center (FSEC), or other similar certifying organizations, and shall comply with local ordinances, and with all other applicable fire and life safety requirements. The manufacturer specifications for the key components of the system shall be submitted as part of the application.

The Project layout, design, and installation will comply with applicable industry standards, such as those described above, as well as other safety requirements and local ordinances. Based upon availability in the marketplace at the time of installation, the anticipated manufacturers of key Project components will be RBI Solar, CPS inverters, and Tallmax solar panels. Specification sheets, including manufacturer and model, of anticipated Project components are provided in Attachment L.

6) A description of the panels to be installed, including make and model, and associated major system components.

Major Project components will include a post supported racking system to which fixed-tilt solar panels will be attached. The panels will be electrically connected with string inverters to a combiner panel, an alternating current disconnect, and pad mounted transformer before interconnecting with the local CMP distribution system. Specification sheets, including manufacturer and model, of anticipated Project components are provided in Attachment L.

7) A construction plan and timeline, identifying known contractors, site control, and anticipated on-line date.

The anticipated construction timeline is provided in Table 2 above.

The Applicant has extensive experience constructing solar energy facilities in the Northeast, with numerous projects currently in construction and operation. The Applicant is committed to constructing facilities that minimize environmental impacts and comply with regulatory requirements and approval conditions.

Construction sequencing will proceed with initial site preparation work which includes delineating the construction limit of disturbance (LOD) area, installing erosion control measures and natural resource protections, clearing remaining vegetation within the LOD, and establishing the temporary staging area for equipment deliveries and parking. Temporary erosion and sedimentation control best management practices (BMPs) will be installed per regulatory requirements. The erosion and sedimentation control plan is described in the Site Plans in Attachment B. The Project site will be cleared and grubbed as necessary, and earthwork to trench the underground electric collection system and install the equipment pads will commence. Trenching and installation of the underground conduit which electrically connects the solar array rows will proceed, followed by panel support posts and racking. Attaching the panels to the racking support system will begin as racking installation progresses. Once panels are installed, they will be connected electrically to each other and the electric collector system. Simultaneously, coordination with



CMP will be occurring in preparation of interconnecting the array to the CMP distribution system. Final testing and commissioning will occur in accordance with NEC and CMP.

Construction contractors will be determined after receipt of all necessary Project permits. The Applicant's selected contractors will be experienced in Maine solar and civil construction. The contractors will be certified in Erosion and Sediment Control by the MDEP and will implement BMPs as required by the BMP Manual.

8) An operations and maintenance plan, including site control and the projected operating life of the system. Such a plan shall include measures for maintaining safe access to the installation, stormwater controls, as well as general procedures for operational maintenance of the installation. Additionally, such plans shall include efforts to promote beneficial flora and fauna (e.g., honeybees, butterflies, etc.) as well as a commitment to not using pest-control substances (e.g., pesticides, herbicides, fungicides, and or insecticides).

The Operations and Maintenance Plan for the Project is provided in Attachment M.

9) An emergency management plan for all anticipated hazards.

The Emergency Management Plan for the Project is provided in Attachment N.

10) A stormwater management plan, certified by a licensed Maine engineer, that demonstrates stormwater from the SES will infiltrate into the ground beneath the SES at a rate equal to that of the infiltration rate prior to the placement of the system.

The Project's Stormwater Management Report, certified by a Maine-licensed professional engineer, is provided in Attachment E. The Stormwater Management Report demonstrates that stormwater from the Project will infiltrate into the ground beneath the solar array at a rate equal to the pre-construction infiltration rate.

11) A background noise measurement for the site location as performed by a qualified professional.

The anticipated sound level of the Project is based on two components: inverters (100-125 kilowatts) and transformers (up to 1,000 kilovolt-amperes). It is important to note that these Project components only generate noise when the sun is up and that sound levels are proportional to electric load. Based on the equipment specifications, noise levels at inverter locations are expected to be 65 dBA at a distance of 3.3 feet, 29.3 dBA at a distance of 200 feet, and 19.8 dBA at a distance of 600 feet. Noise levels at the 1,000-kilovolt-amperes transformer are expected to be 64 dBA at 3.3 feet, 28.3 dBA at 200 feet, and 18.8 dBA at 600 feet. The sound assessment conducted for the Project is based on the distance of the nearest property line in relation to inverters and transformers and demonstrates the combined sound level impact is anticipated to be approximately 32.8 dBA (see Attachment I). For comparison, the sound level of a quiet rural area is approximately 30 dBA and a library is approximately 40 dBA. The Project is incompliance with the most restrictive sound level limits set by MDEP for abutting parcels containing a residence, which are 55 dBA during daytime hours (7:00 am to 7:00 pm) and 45 dBA during nighttime hours (7:00 pm to 7:00 am). Based on the results of the sound assessment, the Applicant requests a waiver from the requirement to provide a background noise measurement for the Project site.

12) Proof of financial capacity to construct and operate the proposed facility.

Norwich has financed and installed over \$75 million worth of renewable energy systems across New England. Working with their financial partners, Norwich Solar is building more than 15 solar projects this year and managing project costs of over \$20 million. Drawing upon project specific financing and the support of a stable line of credit with Mascoma Bank, Norwich Solar is more than capable of developing and installing projects of this size. Norwich Solar maintains a \$4 million line of credit with its principal banking



institution, Mascoma Bank. With multiple offices across the region, Mascoma Bank services customers throughout Maine, New Hampshire, and Vermont. A reference letter from Mascoma Bank is provided in Attachment H.

#### 13) A decommissioning plan.

The Decommissioning Plan for the Project is provided in Attachment O.

#### STANDARD FOR APPROVAL (SECTION 7)

#### 1. Lots

The Project does not exceed 20% lot coverage. The total fenced area of the Project is 9.59 acres, and the Project parcel is approximately 71.93 acres, resulting in approximately 13.3% lot coverage.

#### 2. Legal Responsibilities

The Applicant, Readfield Main Street Solar LLC, is member-managed by Norwich and is authorized to construct, use, and maintain the Project, including through decommissioning. Sunny Acres, LLC, the land holding entity also member-managed by Norwich, has signed a Purchase and Sale Agreement with the current landowner of the Project parcel. The Applicant has entered into a lease option agreement with Sunny Acres, LLC (see the referenced agreements in Attachment D). The lease period will be 25 years with up to two five-year extensions. The Project will be constructed and maintained in compliance with relevant federal, state, and local laws, regulations, and ordinances.

Norwich is the Project owner, and Runtime Solar (a division of Norwich) will operate and maintain the Project. Additional details regarding operations and maintenance are provided in the Operations and Maintenance Plan in Attachment M.

# 3. Deed Registration

The Applicant understands that the Project shall be incorporated into the description of the real property in the lot/property deed and recorded with the Kennebec County Registry of Deeds as a condition of Planning Board approval.

#### 4. Setback

The solar array will be set back a minimum of 200 feet from all lot lines as shown on the Site Plans in Attachment B. The panel racking system is designed to support the bottom of the solar panels approximately 3 feet above grade to the top of the panels at a maximum of 10 feet above grade.

#### 5. Prohibited Locations

The Project will not be placed within any legal easement or right-of-way, within any stormwater conveyance system, or in any other manner so as to alter or impede stormwater runoff from collecting in a constructed stormwater conveyance system.

#### 6. Utility Notification

A copy of the Interconnection Agreement between the Applicant and CMP is provided in Attachment K.



#### 7. Fence

Perimeter fencing with an access gate will be installed around the Project in compliance with the NEC. Fencing will be approximately 8 feet tall and will consist of a fixed knot agricultural style fence. The fence will have an approximately 6-inch gap between the bottom of the fence and the ground to allow for smaller wildlife passage. Barbed wire fencing will not be used.

#### 8. Signage

A sign will be installed at the Project entrance off Main Street (or alternatively, on the fence gate at the perimeter of the array). The sign will identify the owner/operator and will include a 24-hour emergency contact phone number. A clearly visible warning sign will be placed at the base of pad-mounted transformers and on the perimeter fencing to inform of potential voltage hazards.

# 9. Screening

Existing forested vegetation will provide screening from roads and adjacent properties. The array will be set back more than 1,000 feet from Main Street, 200 feet from the nearest property line, and approximately 720 feet from the nearest structure. The array will be surrounded by existing forested vegetation that will screen the Project. Specifically, an approximately 435-foot forested buffer will remain on the north side of the array to provide screening of the Project from Main Street, and an approximately 500-foot-wide forested buffer will remain between the array and the nearest structure to provide a visual screen.

# 10. Glare

The Project has been sited to avoid concentrated glare onto nearby structures and roadways. The array will be set back more than 1,000 feet from Main Street and approximately 720 feet from the nearest structure. In addition, a buffer of existing forested vegetation will surround the array, as shown on Sheet C-1.0 of the Site Plans in Attachment B. Based on the setback distances and the screening provided by existing forested vegetation surrounding the array, the Project is not expected to be visible from neighboring properties or roadways. Furthermore, solar panels are designed to absorb solar energy and convert it to electricity. As such, solar panels are manufactured with anti-reflective materials to capture and retain as much of the solar spectrum as possible. Typical solar panels reflect only about 2% of incoming sunlight, which is less than bare soil and vegetation.<sup>5</sup> Therefore, the Project is not expected to produce glare onto nearby properties or roadways.

#### 11. Noise

Noise associated with the Project is described under the Review Criteria section above (Adjacent Land Uses). A sound assessment was conducted for the Project based on the distance of the nearest property line in relation to inverters and transformers. The sound assessment demonstrates the combined sound level impact is anticipated to be approximately 32.8 dBA (see Attachment I). For comparison, the sound level of a quiet rural area is approximately 30 dBA and a library is approximately 40 dBA. Conservatively assuming the background noise of the Project site is equivalent to the 30 dBA sound level of a quiet rural area, the Project will not be more than 10 decibels greater than the existing background levels. Therefore, the Applicant requests a waiver from the requirement to provide a background noise measurement for the Project site.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>5</sup> Massachusetts Department of Energy Resources, Massachusetts Department of Environmental Protection, and Massachusetts Clean Energy Center. 2015. Questions & Answers: Ground-Mounted Solar Photovoltaic Systems. Available at: <u>https://www.mass.gov/files/documents/2016/08/rn/solar-pv-guide.pdf</u>.



# 12. Lighting

The Project does not include lighting.

# 13. Impervious Assessment

Stormwater permitting for the Project will be accomplished under the MDEP's Stormwater Management Law (Chapter 500). Projects creating less than 1 acre of new impervious surfaces qualify for a Stormwater PBR. The MDEP does not consider solar panels as impervious surfaces. The proposed Project will create approximately 0.25 acre of impervious surfaces and, therefore, qualifies for a Stormwater PBR. Following Project construction, the area under and around the solar array will be maintained as a meadow. This meadow will function as a vegetated buffer providing stormwater treatment. As such, ground cover within the array area will be mowed no more than twice per year. The Project will comply with Maine Stormwater Best Management Practices Manual.<sup>6</sup> The Stormwater Management Report for the Project is provided in Attachment E.

# 14. Utility Connections

The electrical collection system will be installed underground to the extent possible. A segment of aboveground collector line will be installed adjacent to the proposed driveway, running from the AC combiner to the POI on Main Street. The electrical transformers for utility interconnections will be installed aboveground.

# 15. Emergency Services

Prior to Project operations, the owner/operator will provide a copy of the Project summary, final electrical schematic and site plan to the Fire Chief. Perimeter fencing with an access gate will be installed around the Project, and the gate will be secured with a Knox Box lock (or similar locking mechanism agreed upon by the Fire Chief). All means of shutting down the Project will be clearly marked. The Emergency Management Plan for the Project, which provides owner/operator contact information, is provided in Attachment N.

# 16. Maintenance Conditions

Once operational, the system owner/operator will properly maintain the Project in good condition to keep the Project free from hazards. Site access will be maintained to a level acceptable to the Fire Chief for emergency response. The owner/operator will be responsible for the cost of maintaining the Project driveway, including regular plowing of snow to maintain access.

# 17. Satisfaction with All Aspects of Capacity and Plans Submitted

The Applicant has the capacity to finance, safely operate, and decommission the Project. The Applicant's financial and technical capacity are described under the Review Criteria section above.

# 18. Removal

If/when any portion of the Project is removed, any earth disturbance will be graded and re-seeded unless the disturbed area is authorized for another developed use.



<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>6</sup> https://www.maine.gov/dep/land/stormwater/stormwaterbmps/

#### 19. Alternatives Assessment

The Project meets the standards of the Readfield Solar Ordinance and Land Use Ordinance, as well as the goals and objectives of the Readfield Comprehensive Plan; therefore, an alternatives assessment is not included.

#### 20. Preservation of Town's Character

The Project is consistent with the character of the community with regards to visual consistency with local neighborhood areas, maintenance of scenic views, maintenance of open space land and farms, the Readfield Comprehensive Plan, and associated town planning documents. The array will be set back more than 1,000 feet from Main Street and approximately 720 feet from the nearest structure. In addition, a buffer of existing forested vegetation will surround the array, as shown on Sheet C-1.0 of the Site Plans in Attachment B. Based on the setback distances and the screening provided by existing forested vegetation surrounding the array, the Project is not expected to be visible from neighboring properties or roadways. The array will not impact scenic views. The solar array is predominantly sited within an open field portion of the parcel, thereby maintaining existing open space, and resulting in a limited amount of tree clearing for the Project.



# ATTACHMENT A: LAND USE PERMIT APPLICATION FORM AND PLANNING BOARD REVIEW CRITERIA QUESTIONNAIRE



Permit Fee	
Date Paid	
Receipt #	

Town of Readfield

Readfield, Maine 04355 (207) 685-4939

Map 143 Lot 14

# Planning Board Land Use Permit Application

The undersigned applies for approval of the Readfield Planning Board as follows:

1.	Applicant / Owner		Agent (if any):		
	Name <u>Readfi</u>	eld Main Street Solar, LLC	C Name	Stantec c/o Kara Moody	
	Address 14 N	Maine Street, Suite 305C-1	Address	30 Park Drive	
	Bru	inswick, ME 04011		Topsham, ME 04086	
	Phone# (W)	802-359-7416	Phone#	(W) <u>207-406-5505</u>	
	(H)			(H)	-

Email for applicant/agent permitting@norwichsolar.com; kara.moody@stantec.com

**Note:** Property owner must provide written authorization if he/she wishes to be represented by an agent. Such authorization may be provided either by signing this application, or by providing authorization by means of a separately signed statement included with the application.

2. Physical location of property: Main Street

3. Please describe what you are proposing to do:

Readfield Main Street Solar, LLC proposes to construct and operate the Readfield Main Street Solar Project, a distributed generation solar energy facility on the south side of Main Street in Readfield. The Project is a ground-mounted solar facility with an installed capacity of up to 975 kilowatts alternating current. Based on the Town of Readfield Solar Ordinance, the Project is considered a large-scale solar energy system. Additional details are provided in the attached narrative.

4.. What land use district, e.g., rural residential, is the property located (as defined in Article 7 of the Land Use Ordinance (LUO) and depicted on the Land Use Map)? Rural, Rural Residential, Resource Protection

5. What is the existing use of the property (see Table 1/Table of Uses, Article 7, of the LUO)? Agriculture

6. What is the proposed use of the property as best described from Table 1/Table of Uses in Article 7? Essential Services

7. Lot Width <u>769'</u> Lot Depth <u>4,100'</u> Lot Area in Acres (1 acre = 43,560 sq. ft.) <u>71.93 acres</u>

8. If a structure is proposed to be built, or expanded, list the following:

Type of Structure(s)	Length	Width	Height

#### **Non-Conforming Structures**

Questions to answer **if** you are seeking a permit to expand, relocate, reconstruct or replace a **nonconforming** structure **or** are seeking a permit to build a new, enlarged or replacement foundation beneath an existing non-conforming structure. (See Article 11 of the Land Use Ordinance for definition of "**non-conforming**.")

- A. For reconstruction, relocation or expansion of a non-conforming structure in a shoreland zone, please list the total **floor area** for all portions of the structure(s) located between <u>25 to 75 feet</u> from the normal highwater line of the water body, tributary stream, or upland edge of a wetland:
  . (Please attach a worksheet showing how you calculated the total **floor area**. The term "**floor area**" is defined in Article 11 of the Land Use Ordinance)
- C. If you plan to put in a new, enlarged or replacement foundation below a non-conforming structure OR if you are seeking to relocate, reconstruct or replace a non-conforming structure, please describe whether the foundation or structure can be located further from the water to meet, or come closer to meeting set-backs, and if not, explain why it cannot be moved further back.
- D. For structures in the Shoreland Residential, Resource Protection or Stream Protection zones, please show how the proposed development does not result in exceeding the 20% lot coverage maximum. See Article 11 of the Land Use Ordinance for definition of "lot coverage."

I certify that the foregoing, and the attached materials including responses to review criteria, are true, correct and accurate to the best of my knowledge.

Signature of Applicant / Owner _	Mation	Date	8/7/2023
Signature of Agent (if any):	Kamay	Date _	8/7/2023

Applicant: Town of Readfield

# Planning Board Review Criteria Questionnaire

- State how the proposed activity will not have an undue adverse affect on:
  a) the scenic or natural beauty of the area,
  See Attached Sheets
  - b) any historical sites that may be located on the property,
  - c) any significant wildlife habitat,
  - d) any public rights for physical or visual access to any shoreline,
  - e) any rare and irreplaceable natural areas,
- 2. a) What other Town, State or Federal permits will be required for this project?
  - b) Do you intend to apply for these permits?

c) Are you committed to conducting this activity and subsequent use of the property in conformance with all applicable Town, State and Federal laws, rules, regulations and ordinances?

State how the proposed activity will:
 a) prevent stormwater from giving rise to soil erosion both during and after the development,

(In this regard you may reference the appropriate erosion control or stormwater management books available at the Town Office)

- b) reasonably conserve the land's capacity to hold water,
- 4. State what impact the proposed activity will have upon the Town's public services and facilities. This may include, but not be limited to the amount and type of anticipated traffic, requirements for emergency services, effects relating to public education, etc.
- 5. a) What financial resources (including mortgage commitments) do you have to assure the completion and implementation of this project in compliance with the Land Use Ordinance?

b) What technical support will be used in connection with any design, development or use of the project?

6. a) Is any portion of the subject property located within, or affected by any flood areas as depicted on the Federal Emergency Management Agency Flood Insurance Rate Map? (These Flood Maps are available for your reference at the Town Office).

i) If the answer to question (a) is yes, do you intend to include any portion of your development within the boundaries of the flood plain, including any structures or buildings, wells, wastewater disposal systems, or any storage or placement of property stockpiling of materials?

ii) If the answer to question (i) is yes, how do you intend to develop this project (including it's subsequent use) to comply with the Floodplain Ordinance of the Town of Readfield?

7. a) Does your proposed development or use include any alteration of or impact to any wetland? If the answer to this question is yes, describe how you intend to minimize this impact?

b) Are you aware that any wetland alteration requires additional permitting on the State or Federal level and will you be applying for those?

- 8. What part of your development or use will rely on or could impact groundwater?
- 9. a) State the nature of solid waste your proposal will generate both during development and the subsequent use of the property.

b) Will this solid waste be taken to the Town Recycling Station? If so, how will the Town be compensated for handling such waste?

c) If the solid waste is not to be taken to the Town Recycling Station, how do you plan to dispose of it?

- 10. Do you intend to connect to any public water supply?
- 11. a) What impact, if any, could the proposed activity have on adjacent properties and their uses. State whether any noise, glare, fumes smoke, dust, odors, or other affects will be generated.

b) Describe the anticipated extent of these impacts and how you intend to buffer or reduce them to a level acceptable to adjacent properties.

- 12. a) What is the approximate percentage of slope of the land?
  - b) What is the nature of the soils?

c) What is the nature and extent of the existing vegetation on the site of development or use?

- 13. a) What is the nearest waterbody (lake, pond, stream, or brook)?
  - b) What is the least distance between the waterbody and the project site?
  - c) What part of your project could impact one of these waterbodies?
  - d) How do you intend to minimize this impact?
- 14. How do you intend to provide for the adequate disposal of sewage and wastewater in order to comply with the requirements of the State Plumbing Code?
- 15. Describe or illustrate on a separate paper how you intend to control and manage any additional stormwater resulting from this project or use. You may reference the publication, "Stormwater Management for Maine, Best Management Practices" published by the Department of Environmental Protection (1995) and which is available for reference at the Town Office.

**NOTE:** If the project results in 20,000 sq. ft. or more of impervious area in the Maranacook Lake watershed or more than one (1) acre in the other lake watersheds, or more than five (5) acres of disturbed area in either watershed, a Stormwater Management permit from the Department of Environmental Protection will be required.

- 16. What will your water requirements be for this use and what will be your water source?
- 17. What types and amount of additional traffic do you expect as a result of this use?
- 18. What are your plans for permanent access to the site of the proposed use?
- 19. Does your proposed development or use cross the Readfield town line?If so, into which town?How will you avoid causing unreasonable traffic congestion or unsafe conditions as related to the use of that town's public ways?
- 20. What is the estimated depth-to-frontage ratio of the lots you propose to create or develop?
- 21. Has a representative of the Readfield Fire Department reviewed your proposal?
- 22. Are there currently any enforceable land use violations associated with this property?
- 23. If your project involves the construction of a road has the road design been approved by the Road Committee?

# **Required Submittals**

(Per Article 6, Section 3.I.2)

- $\underline{x}$  1. Copy of the portion of applicable tax map showing subject property, abutting properties and boundaries of all contiguous property under the control of the owner or applicant, regardless of whether all or part is being developed at this time.
- $\underline{x}$  2. Names and mailing addresses of all property owners abutting the proposed development. (Abutters are the owners of any parcels with one or more common boundaries or points, as well as property owners of any parcel located directly across any road, railroad or stream along the road, railroad or stream from the parcel involved in the application. Also included is any Qualified Conservation Holder of an easement in any of these parcels).
- <u>x</u> 3. Exact direction to the property from the Town Office, using a map if necessary.
- $\underline{x}$  4. The Assessor's tax map and lot numbers of the parcels.
- $\underline{x}$  5. A copy of the deed to the property or other documentation to demonstrate right, title or interest in the property on the part of the applicant.
- <u>x</u> 6. The name, registration number and seal of the land surveyor, architect, engineer and/or similar professional who prepared any plan.
- $\underline{x}$  7. Map showing the north bearing and lot dimensions of all property lines of the property to be developed and the source of this information.
- <u>x</u> 8. Site plan(s) illustrating the following: (Note: If the site plan is not drawn to scale, then specific distances identifying the relative locations of the following features must be shown on the plan).
  - a) The location and size of any existing and proposed sewer and water mains, culverts and drains that will serve the development whether on or off the property along with the direction of existing and proposed surface water drainage across the site.
  - b) The location, names, and present and proposed widths of existing and proposed roads, driveways, streets, parking and loading areas, walkways and rights-of-way within or adjacent to the proposed development.
  - c) The location and dimensions of all existing and proposed buildings and structures on the site, including underground storage tanks.
  - d) The location of intersecting roads or driveways within 200 hundred feet of the site.
  - e) The location of existing and proposed open drainage courses, wetlands, water bodies, floodplains, stands of trees, and other important natural features, with a description of such features to be retained.
  - f) The location and dimensions of any existing and proposed easements.
  - g) The location and dimensions of all existing and proposed provisions for water supply and wastewater disposal systems, including a design copy or letter of soils suitability for any proposed new or replacement wastewater disposal systems.
  - h) The location and dimensions of all existing and proposed signs.
  - i) For any project which shall result in a change to exterior lighting, the location, height, and type of existing and proposed exterior lighting and, for commercial, industrial and institutional projects, the foot-candle intensities of proposed lighting projecting on abutting properties.
  - j) The proposed landscaping and buffering.
  - k) The location and amount of any earth-moving.
  - 1) A copy of all existing or proposed covenants or deed restrictions associated with the subject property.

Revised 4/27/2021

- N/A 9. A copy of any applicable Federal, State or Town applications or permits which have been issued.
- <u>x</u> 10. A narrative describing how the proposal meets all of the Planning Board's Review Criteria.
- <u>x</u> 11. Evidence of receipt of application fee paid to the Town of Readfield.
- x 12. A schedule of construction, including anticipated beginning and completion dates.
- $\underline{x}$  13. A stormwater drainage and erosion and control plan in compliance with Article 8, Sections 10 and 11.
- x 14. A description of the traffic movement to be generated by the development including types, peak hour and average daily vehicle trips, travel routes, and duration of traffic movement both during and following construction. A full traffic impact study shall be required under the conditions set forth in Article 8, Section 18.H, and shall include the components described therein.
- <u>x</u> 15. An assessment of the solid or hazardous wastes to be generated by the proposed activity and a plan for its handling and disposal, along with evidence of disposal arrangements.
- <u>x</u> 16. A copy of any required dimensional calculations applicable to the standards being reviewed, for example, square footage of structures, percent of lot coverage, etc.
- <u>N/A</u>17. Elevation drawings for new commercial, industrial, and institutional buildings.
- x 18. Any additional information relevant to the project, for example, photographs, Cobbossee Watershed District recommendations, etc.

-----(end of application)-----

#### **Planning Board Fees**

Value of Project	<u>Fee</u>
Up to \$100,000	\$100
\$100,001 to \$500,000	\$150
\$500,001 to \$1,000,000	\$250
\$1,000,001 and over	\$500

"Value of Project" is considered the fair market value of all labor and materials associated with the project requiring site review. The above fee schedule does not include other fees that may be required as part of this project, for example, building and plumbing permit fees.

# Subdivision Review

Minor	subdivisions	\$175

Major subdivisions \$175 plus \$50 per lot

Legitimate non-profit organizations will be assessed one-half of the regular fees

# Planning Board Review Criteria Questionnaire

1. State how the proposed activity will not have an undue adverse affect on: a) the scenic or natural beauty of the area,

The Project will not have an undue adverse effect on the scenic or natural beauty of the area. The array will be surrounded by vegetation and will be set back more than 1,000 feet from Main Street and approximately 720 feet from the nearest structure (see Sheet C-1.0 of the Site Plans in Attachment B). Based on the setback distances and the screening provided by existing forested vegetation surrounding the array, the Project is not expected to be visible from Main Street.

b) any historical sites that may be located on the property,

The Project will not have an undue adverse effect on historical sites. The Applicant consulted with the Maine Historic Preservation Commission (MHPC) to request information on significant cultural or historic resources associated with the proposed Project area. The MHPC concluded that there are no National Register listed or known eligible properties on or adjacent to the Project site, and the Project parcels are not considered sensitive for archaeological resources.

c) any significant wildlife habitat,

The Project will not have an undue adverse effect on significant wildlife habitats. The Applicant consulted with the MDIFW regarding known locations of endangered, threatened, and special concern species; designated Essential and Significant Wildlife Habitats; and inland fisheries habitat concerns in the vicinity of the Project. According to MDIFW, there are no mapped Essential or Significant Wildlife Habitats or inland fisheries habitats that will be affected by the Project.

d) any public rights for physical or visual access to any shoreline,

The Project will not have an undue adverse effect on public rights for physical or visual access to the shoreline. The Project is not located near any shoreline.

e) any rare and irreplaceable natural areas,

The Project will not have an undue adverse effect on rare or irreplaceable natural areas on the property. The Applicant consulted with the Maine Natural Areas Program (MNAP) to request information on the presence of rare or unique botanical features documented near the proposed Project. Such rare and unique botanical features include the habitat of rare, threatened, or endangered plant species and unique or exemplary natural communities. According to MNAP's files, there are no rare botanical features documented within the Project area.

2. a) What other Town, State or Federal permits will be required for this project?

A Stormwater Permit by Rule and a solar decommissioning permit will be required from the Maine Department of Environmental Protection. A Driveway/Entrance Permit will be required from the Maine Department of Transportation.

b) Do you intend to apply for these permits?

Yes. Permit applications are anticipated to be filed in late summer/early fall 2023.

c) Are you committed to conducting this activity and subsequent use of the property in conformance with all applicable Town, State and Federal laws, rules, regulations and ordinances?

Yes. The Project will be constructed and operated in conformance with all applicable town, state, and federal laws, rules, regulations, and ordinances.

3. State how the proposed activity will:

a) prevent stormwater from giving rise to soil erosion both during and after the development,

(In this regard you may reference the appropriate erosion control or stormwater management books available at the Town Office)

An erosion and sedimentation control plan has been prepared for the Project (see Site Plans in Attachment B), and the Project contractor will implement BMPs as required by the *Maine Erosion and Sediment Control Best Management Practices (BMPs), Manual for Designers and Engineers*. The erosion and sedimentation control plan complies with Maine's Erosion and Sediment Control Law (38 M.R.S.A. § 420-C) and is based upon sound conservation practices, including as applicable. Erosion control measures will be installed prior to initiating Project construction and will remain in place and be maintained until the site is permanently stabilized.

b) reasonably conserve the land's capacity to hold water,

The Project's Stormwater Management Report, certified by a Maine-licensed professional engineer, is provided in Attachment E. The Stormwater Management Report demonstrates that stormwater from the Project will infiltrate into the ground beneath the solar array at a rate equal to the pre-construction infiltration rate. Following Project construction, the area under and around the solar array will be maintained as a meadow. This meadow will function as a vegetated buffer providing stormwater treatment. The Project will comply with the Maine Stormwater Best Management Practices Manual.

4. State what impact the proposed activity will have upon the Town's public services and facilities. This may include, but not be limited to the amount and type of

anticipated traffic, requirements for emergency services, effects relating to public education, etc.

The Project will not impact the Town's public services or facilities. Traffic during Project construction will include delivery and installation of Project materials and equipment and is anticipated to be approximately 25 to 30 vehicles per day at the peak of individual Project phases. During operations, the Project will be accessed less than once per month unless additional maintenance is required. The Project is not expected to require fire protection services, as it is not typical to practice fire suppression by means of water inundation within a solar array.

5. a) What financial resources (including mortgage commitments) do you have to assure the completion and implementation of this project in compliance with the Land Use Ordinance?

Norwich Technologies (manager of the Applicant) maintains a \$4 million line of credit with its principal banking institution, Mascoma Bank. With multiple offices across the region, Mascoma Bank services customers throughout Maine, New Hampshire, and Vermont. A reference letter from Mascoma Bank is provided in Attachment H.

b) What technical support will be used in connection with any design, development or use of the project?

In addition to Norwich's internal expertise, the Project development team includes the following:

- Stantec (www.stantec.com) permitting support and natural resource assessments
- Krebs & Lansing Consulting Engineers, Inc. (krebsandlansing.com) civil engineering and stormwater design
- Horizons Engineering (www.horizonsengineering.com) land survey
- RLC Engineering (www.rlc-eng.com) electrical engineering
- 6. a) Is any portion of the subject property located within, or affected by any flood areas as depicted on the Federal Emergency Management Agency Flood Insurance Rate Map? (These Flood Maps are available for your reference at the Town Office).

No.

i) If the answer to question (a) is yes, do you intend to include any portion of your development within the boundaries of the flood plain, including any structures or buildings, wells, wastewater disposal systems, or any storage or placement of property stockpiling of materials?

ii) If the answer to question (i) is yes, how do you intend to develop this project (including it's subsequent use) to comply with the Floodplain Ordinance of the Town of Readfield?
7. a) Does your proposed development or use include any alteration of or impact to any wetland? If the answer to this question is yes, describe how you intend to minimize this impact?

No.

b) Are you aware that any wetland alteration requires additional permitting on the State or Federal level and will you be applying for those?

Yes, the Applicant is aware that wetland alteration requires state and/or federal permitting. These permit applications are not applicable because the Project will not impact wetlands.

8. What part of your development or use will rely on or could impact groundwater?

The Project will not adversely impact either the quality or quantity of groundwater. No new groundwater extraction is anticipated as part of the Project. For additional details, see the Review Criteria section (Groundwater) of the application narrative (page 9).

9. a) State the nature of solid waste your proposal will generate both during development and the subsequent use of the property.

Solid waste during construction will consist of construction debris, packaging materials, and associated construction wastes. During operation, no solid waste will be generated by the Project.

b) Will this solid waste be taken to the Town Recycling Station? No. If so, how will the Town be compensated for handling such waste?

c) If the solid waste is not to be taken to the Town Recycling Station, how do you plan to dispose of it?

Solid waste during construction will be delivered to a landfill with adequate capacity to accept the Project's wastes (e.g., Crossroads Landfill in Norridgewock) by a licensed non-hazardous waste transporter.

10. Do you intend to connect to any public water supply?

No.

11. a) What impact, if any, could the proposed activity have on adjacent properties and their uses. State whether any noise, glare, fumes smoke, dust, odors, or other affects will be generated.

The Project will not have a detrimental effect on adjacent land uses or other properties

that might be affected by noise, glare, fumes, smoke, dust, odors, or other effects. For additional details, see the Review Criteria section (Adjacent Land Uses) of the application narrative (pages 10-11).

b) Describe the anticipated extent of these impacts and how you intend to buffer or reduce them to a level acceptable to adjacent properties.

The anticipated extent of these impacts is described in the Review Criteria section (Adjacent Land Uses) of the application narrative (pages 10-11). The careful siting of the solar array within the property, the existing on-site vegetation, and the distance from adjacent properties all contribute to minimizing the impact to adjacent properties and is acceptable as proposed, therefore not necessitating additional buffer mitigation.

12. a) What is the approximate percentage of slope of the land?

The slope of the land within the solar array area is approximately 10%.

b) What is the nature of the soils?

Soil types within the Project area are rocky and sandy loams, which are suitable for construction of the solar array, racking, and associated driveway and equipment.

c) What is the nature and extent of the existing vegetation on the site of development or use?

The Project parcel is primarily comprised open fields with some interspersed forested land.

13. a) What is the nearest waterbody (lake, pond, stream, or brook)?

There is an unnamed stream on the Project parcel that was identified during the wetland and watercourse delineation.

b) What is the least distance between the waterbody and the project site?

The unnamed stream is approximately 190 feet from the Project driveway and approximately 445 feet from the solar array.

c) What part of your project could impact one of these waterbodies?

The Project will not impact a waterbody.

d) How do you intend to minimize this impact?

Not applicable. The Project will not impact a waterbody.

14. How do you intend to provide for the adequate disposal of sewage and wastewater in order to comply with the requirements of the State Plumbing Code?

The Project will not require permanent sewage and wastewater disposal. During Project construction, temporary toilet facilities will be used, and service of the facilities will be provided by a licensed wastewater transporter. Sewage and wastewater disposal will not be required during Project operations.

15. Describe or illustrate on a separate paper how you intend to control and manage any additional stormwater resulting from this project or use. You may reference the publication, "Stormwater Management for Maine, Best Management Practices" published by the Department of Environmental Protection (1995) and which is available for reference at the Town Office.

**NOTE:** If the project results in 20,000 sq. ft. or more of impervious area in the Maranacook Lake watershed or more than one (1) acre in the other lake watersheds, or more than five (5) acres of disturbed area in either watershed, a Stormwater Management permit from the Department of Environmental Protection will be required.

Stormwater permitting for the Project will be accomplished under the MDEP's Stormwater Management Law (Chapter 500). Projects creating less than 1 acre of new impervious surfaces qualify for a Stormwater Permit by Rule (PBR). The MDEP does not consider solar panels as impervious surfaces. The proposed Project will create approximately 0.25 acre of impervious surfaces and, therefore, qualifies for a Stormwater PBR. Following Project construction, the area under and around the solar array will be maintained as a meadow. This meadow will function as a vegetated buffer providing stormwater treatment. As such, ground cover within the array area will be mowed no more than twice per year. The Project will comply with Maine Stormwater Best Management Practices Manual. The Stormwater Management Report for the Project is provided in Attachment E.

16. What will your water requirements be for this use and what will be your water source?

The Project may require water during construction for dust control purposes. If water is needed for dust control, the contractor will truck water to the Project site. The Project will not require a water supply for Project operations.

17. What types and amount of additional traffic do you expect as a result of this use?

Traffic during Project construction will include delivery and installation of Project materials and equipment and is anticipated to be approximately 25 to 30 vehicles per day at the peak of individual Project phases. During operations, the Project will be accessed less than once per month unless additional maintenance is required.

18. What are your plans for permanent access to the site of the proposed use?

Permanent access to the Project site will include upgrading the existing driveway entrance off Main Street.

19. Does your proposed development or use cross the Readfield town line? No.If so, into which town?

How will you avoid causing unreasonable traffic congestion or unsafe conditions as related to the use of that town's public ways?

Warning signs and flaggers will be used as appropriate during Project construction to provide temporary traffic controls for safe movement of traffic into and out of the Project site.

20. What is the estimated depth-to-frontage ratio of the lots you propose to create or develop?

The depth-to-frontage ratio of the Project parcel is approximately 4,150 feet (depth) to approximately 670 feet (frontage).

21. Has a representative of the Readfield Fire Department reviewed your proposal?

The Project site plan and the Emergency Management Plan have been provided to the Readfield Fire Chief for review.

22. Are there currently any enforceable land use violations associated with this property?

No.

23. If your project involves the construction of a road has the road design been approved by the Road Committee?

The Project does not involve the construction of road. The existing driveway off Main Street will be improved to provide access to the Project. A Driveway/Entrance permit will be obtained from the Maine Department of Transportation prior to commencement of the driveway improvements.

# ATTACHMENT B: SITE PLANS



#### READFIELD MAIN STREET READFIELD MAIN STREET SOLAR, LLC SOLAR, LLC Main Street Readfield, Maine **CIVIL SITE PLANS** PROPOSED PHOTOVOLTAIC POWER ) Stantec **GENERATION FACILITY** KREBS & LANSING READFIELD, MAINE MAIN STREET SSUED FOR PERMIT REVIEW NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION MAPPING SOURCE DATA USED FOR PLAN COMPLIATION Chil Engineering: Krebs and Lonsing Consulting Engineers, Inc. 164 Main Street, Suite 201 Childrafter, Vieweet, 2014 SITE SHEET INDEX Storiec 30 Park Drive Topshom, Valve 04000 1 of 1 BOUNDARY, TOPOGRAPHIC, AND EXISTING CONDITIONS PLAN Norwish Soler 14 Name Street, Suite 305C-1, Box 49 Brunswick, Maine 04011 C-1.0 SITE PLAN Surveying: Horizone Engineering, Inc. 1040 Portland Road Saco, Maine 04072 C-2.0 STANDARD DETAILS C-2.1 ESC DETAILS C-2.2 ESC DETAILS C-3.0 PRE-DEVELOPMENT STORMWATER C-3.1 POST-DEVELOPMENT STORMWATER READFIELD, ME LOCATION MAP















ATTACHMENT C: TAX MAPS













# ATTACHMENT D: TITLE, RIGHT, OR INTEREST DOCUMENTATION



# PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT - LAND ONLY

("days" means business days unless otherwise noted, see paragraph 20)

August 30 , 2021

9/3/2021

Effective Date

Offer Date

Effective Date is defined in Paragraph 20 of this Agreement.

1. PARTIES: This Agreement is made between Sunny Acres, LLC

("]	Buyer") and
Colin Hewett Executor of William Hewett Estate	_ ("Seller").
<ol> <li>DESCRIPTION: Subject to the terms and conditions hereinafter set forth, Seller agrees to sell and Buyer agrees to sell agre</li></ol>	to buy []all
County of Kennebec , State of Maine, located at TBD Main Street	and
described in deed(s) recorded at said County's Registry of Deeds Book(s) <u>13355</u> , Page(s) <u>23-25</u>	·
3. PURCHASE PRICE/EARNEST MONEY: For such Deed and conveyance Buyer agrees to pay the total purch \$	hase price of ffective Date, arnest money
If Buyer fails to deliver the initial or additional deposit in compliance with the above terms Seller may terminate this Agiright to terminate ends once Buyer has delivered said deposit (s). The remainder of the purchase price shall be paid by we cashier's or trust account check upon delivery of the Deed.	reement. This vire, certified
This Purchase and Sale Agreement is subject to the following conditions:	
4. ESCROW AGENT/ACCEPTANCE:       RE/MAX Riverside       ('Agency         said earnest money and act as escrow agent until closing; this offer shall be valid until       September 3, 2021         5:00       AM X PM; and, in the event of non-acceptance, this earnest money shall be returned	y") shall hold (date) ned promptly
to Buyer.	
5. TITLE AND CLOSING: A deed, conveying good and merchantable title in accordance with the Standards of Title the Maine Bar Association shall be delivered to Buyer and this transaction shall be closed and Buyer shall pay the bal execute all necessary papers on <u>March 31, 2023</u> (closing date) or before, if agreed in writing by b Seller is unable to convey in accordance with the provisions of this paragraph, then Seller shall have a reasonable time exceed 30 calendar days, from the time Seller is notified of the defect, unless otherwise agreed to in writing by both Buy to remedy the title. Seller hereby agrees to make a good-faith effort to cure any title defect during such period. If, at the closing date set forth above or the expiration of such reasonable time period, Seller is unable to remedy the title, Buyer r accept the deed with the title defect or may terminate this Agreement in which case the parties shall be relieved of any further hereunder and any earnest money shall be returned to the Buyer.	e adopted by ance due and oth parties. If period, not to er and Seller, he later of the nay close and er obligations
6. DEED: The property shall be conveyed by a <u><b>Trustee</b></u> deed, and shall be free an encumbrances except covenants, conditions, easements and restrictions of record which do not materially and advers continued current use of the property.	nd clear of all ely affect the
7. POSSESSION: Possession of premises shall be given to Buyer immediately at closing unless otherwise agreed in write	iting.
8. RISK OF LOSS: Until the closing, the risk of loss or damage to said premises by fire or otherwise, is assumed by shall have the right to view the property within 24 hours prior to closing for the purpose of determining that the presubstantially the same condition as on the date of this Agreement.	Seller. Buyer emises are in

9. PRORATIONS: The following items, where applicable, shall be prorated as of the date of closing: rent, association fees, (other) <u>n/a</u>. Real estate taxes shall be prorated as of the date of closing (based on municipality's fiscal year). Seller is responsible for any unpaid taxes for prior years. If the amount of said taxes is not known at the time of closing, they shall be apportioned on the basis of the taxes assessed for the preceding year with a reapportionment as soon as the new tax rate and valuation can be ascertained, which latter provision shall survive closing. Buyer and Seller will each pay their transfer tax as required by State of Maine.

10. DUE DILIGENCE: Buyer is encouraged to seek information from professionals regarding any specific issue or concern. Neither Seller nor Licensee makes any warranties regarding the condition, permitted use or value of Sellers' real property. This Agreement is subject to the following contingencies, with results being satisfactory to Buyer:

Page 1 of 5 Buyer(s) Initials

TMUB

Seller(s) Initials

<u>CC</u>	DNTINGENCY	YES	NO	FULL	RESOLUT	ION	OBTAINED BY	TO BE PAID FOR BY
1.	SURVEY	X		within	400	days	Buyer	Buyer
	Purpose: Property Lines and	Topogr	aphy			•	v	v
2.	SOILS TEST		X	within	n/a	days	n/a	n/a
	Purpose: n/a							
3.	SEPTIC SYSTEM							
	DESIGN		X	within	n/a	days	n/a	n/a
	Purpose: <u>n/a</u>							
4.	LOCAL PERMITS	X		within	400	days	Buyer	Buyer
	Purpose: Solar Permits							
5.	HAZARDOUS							
	WASTE REPORTS	X		within	400	days	Buyer	Buyer
	Purpose: If needed for Solar							
6.	UTILITIES	X		within	400	days	Buyer	Buyer
	Purpose: CMP Interconnection	on Agre	ement					
7.	WATER		X	within	n/a	days	n/a	n/a
	Purpose: <u>n/a</u>							
8.	SUB-DIVISION							
	APPROVAL		X	within	n/a	days	n/a	n/a
	Purpose: <u>n/a</u>							
9.	DEP/LUPC/ACOE APPROVALS	X		within	400	days	Buyer	Buyer
	Purpose: If needed for Solar							
10.	ZONING VARIANCE	X		within	400	days	Buyer	Buyer
	Purpose: If needed for Solar							
11.	HABITAT REVIEW/							
	WATERFOWL	X		within	400	days	Buyer	Buyer
	Purpose: If needed for Solar							
12.	REGISTERED FARMLAND		X	within	n/a	days	n/a	n/a
	Purpose: <u>n/a</u>							
13.	MDOT DRIVEWAY/							
	ENTRANCE PERMIT	X		within	400	days	Buyer	Buyer
	Purpose: If needed for Solar							
14.	DEED RESTRICTION		X	within	n/a	days	n/a	n/a
	Purpose: <u>n/a</u>							
15.	TAX STATUS*		X	within	n/a	days	n/a	n/a
	Purpose: <u>n/a</u>							
16.	BUILD PACKAGE	X		within	400	days	Buyer	Buyer
	Purpose: For Solar Project							
17.	OTHER		X	within	n/a	days	n/a	n/a
	Purpose: n/a							

\* If the land is enrolled in the Maine Tree Growth Tax program, Seller agrees to provide Buyer with the current Forest Management and Harvest Plan within 14 days.  $\mathbf{X}$  Yes  $\square$  No

Further specifications regarding any of the above: See other conditions. Tree Growth notation is only if necessary.

Unless otherwise specified above, all of the above will be obtained and paid for by Buyer. Seller agrees to cooperate with Buyer and shall give Buyer and Buyer's agents and consultants reasonable access to the property in order to undertake the above investigations. Buyer agrees to take reasonable steps to return the property to its pre-inspection condition. If the result of any investigation or other condition specified herein is unsatisfactory to Buyer in Buyer's sole discretion, Buyer will declare the Agreement null and void by notifying Seller in writing within the specified number of days, and any earnest money shall be returned to Buyer. If the result of any investigation or other condition or other condition specified herein is unsatisfactory to Buyer, and Buyer, and Buyer wishes to pursue remedies other than voiding the Agreement, Buyer must do so to full resolution within the time period set forth above; otherwise this contingency is waived. If Buyer does not notify Seller that an investigation is unsatisfactory within the time period set forth above, or if any investigation under this paragraph is not performed or completed during the period specified in this paragraph, this contingency and the right to conduct an investigation are waived by Buyer. In the absence of inspection(s) mentioned above, Buyer is relying completely upon Buyer's own opinion as to the condition of the property.

Page 2 of 5 Buyer(s) Initials

# \_\_\_\_\_ Seller(s) Initials

#### 11. FINANCING: Buyer's obligation to close:

#### Not Subject to Financing

- is not subject to a financing contingency. Buyer has provided Seller with acceptable proof of the funds.
- is not subject to a financing contingency. Buyer shall provide proof of the funds acceptable to Seller within <u>3</u> days. If such proof is unacceptable to Seller, Seller may terminate this Agreement no later than <u>2</u> days from receipt. If proof of funds is not provided within such time period, Seller may terminate this Agreement which right shall end once such proof is received, however Seller retains the agreed upon time period to terminate if such proof is unacceptable. If Seller terminates in either case, the earnest money shall be returned to Buyer.
  - Buyer's ability to purchase is not subject to the sale of another property. See addendum Yes No.

#### Subject to Financing

- Buyer's obligation to close is subject to financing as follows:
- a. Buyer's obligation to close is subject to Buyer obtaining a \_\_\_\_\_\_-loan of \_\_\_\_\_\_\_% of the purchase price, at an interest rate not to exceed \_\_\_\_\_\_\_% and amortized over a period of \_\_\_\_\_\_years. Buyer is under a good faith obligation to seek and obtain financing on these terms. If such financing is not available to Buyer as of the closing date, Buyer is not obligated to close and may terminate this Agreement in which ease the earnest money shall be returned to Buyer.
- b. Buyer to provide Seller with letter from lender showing that Buyer has made application for loan specified in (a) and, subject to verification of information, is qualified for the loan requested within \_\_\_\_\_ days from the Effective Date of the Agreement. If Buyer fails to provide Seller with such letter within said time period, Seller may terminate this Agreement and the earnest money shall be returned to Buyer. This right to terminate ends once Buyer's letter is received.
- e. Buyer hereby authorizes, instructs and directs its lender to communicate the status of the Buyer's loan application to Seller, Seller's licensee and Buyer's licensee.
- d. After (b) is met, if the lender notifies Buyer that it is unable or unwilling to provide said financing, Buyer is obligated to provide Seller with written documentation of the loan denial within two days of receipt. After notifying Seller, Buyer shall have \_\_\_\_\_\_\_ days to provide Seller with a letter from another lender showing that Buyer has made application for loan specified in (a) and, subject to verification of information, is qualified for the loan requested. If Buyer fails to provide Seller with such letter within said time period, Seller may terminate this Agreement and the earnest money shall be returned to Buyer. This right to terminate ends once Buyer's letter is received.

e. Buyer agrees to pay no more than \_\_\_\_\_ points. Seller agrees to pay up to \$\_\_\_\_\_\_toward Buyer's actual prepaids, points and/or closing costs, but no more than allowable by Buyer's lender.

- f. Buyer's ability to obtain financing is not subject to the sale of another property. See addendum Yes No.
- g. Buyer may choose to pay eash instead of obtaining financing. If so, Buyer shall notify Seller in writing including providing proof of funds and the Agreement shall no longer be subject to financing, and Seller's right to terminate pursuant to the provisions of this paragraph shall be void and Seller's obligations pursuant to 1 le shall remain in full force and effect.

12. BROKERAGE DISCLOSURE: Buyer and Seller acknowledge they have been advised of the following relationships:

Jake Hewett	( 020549 ) of	Vallee Harwood & Blouin Real Estate	(	<b>3128</b> )
Licensee	MLS ID	Agency		MLS ID
is a 🗙 Seller Agent 🗌 Buyer Agent 🗌 Disc Dual A	gent 🗌 Transaction Broke	•		
Peter Bettinger	( <b>019250</b> ) of	<b>RE/MAX</b> Riverside	(	<b>1874</b> )
Licensee	MLS ID	Agency		MLS ID

is a Seller Agent Buyer Agent Disc Dual Agent Transaction Broker

If this transaction involves Disclosed Dual Agency, the Buyer and Seller acknowledge the limited fiduciary duties of the agents and hereby consent to this arrangement. In addition, the Buyer and Seller acknowledge prior receipt and signing of a Disclosed Dual Agency Consent Agreement.

13. PROPERTY DISCLOSURE FORM: Buyer acknowledges receipt of Property Disclosure Form.

14. DEFAULT/RETURN OF EARNEST MONEY: Buyer's failure to fulfill any of Buyer's obligations hereunder shall constitute a default and Seller may employ all legal and equitable remedies, including without limitation, termination of this Agreement and forfeiture by Buyer of the earnest money. Seller's failure to fulfill any of Seller's obligations hereunder shall constitute a default and Buyer may employ all legal and equitable remedies, including without limitation, termination of this Agreement and return to Buyer of the earnest money. Agency acting as escrow agent has the option to require written releases from both parties prior to disbursing the earnest money to either Buyer or Seller. In the event that the Agency is made a party to any lawsuit by virtue of acting as escrow agent, Agency shall be entitled to recover reasonable attorney's fees and costs which shall be assessed as court costs in favor of the prevailing party.

15. MEDIATION: Earnest money or other disputes within the jurisdictional limit of small claims court will be handled in that forum. All other disputes or claims arising out of or relating to this Agreement or the property addressed in this Agreement (other than requests for injunctive relief) shall be submitted to mediation in accordance with generally accepted mediation practices. Buyer and Seller are bound to mediate in good faith and to each pay half of the mediation fees. If a party fails to submit a dispute or claim to mediation prior to initiating litigation (other than requests for injunctive relief), then that party will be liable for the other party's legal fees in any subsequent litigation regarding that same matter in which the party who failed to first submit the dispute or claim to mediation loses in that subsequent litigation. This clause shall survive the closing of the transaction.

16. PRIOR STATEMENTS: Any representations, statements and agreements are not valid unless contained herein. This Agreement completely expresses the obligations of the parties and may only be amended in writing, signed by both parties.

Page 3 of 5

Buver(s) Initials Thub



Seller(s) Initials

#### DocuSign Envelope ID: 55BC047C-6A23-4D48-BF1F-BF8E065CFCA5

17. HEIRS/ASSIGNS: This Agreement shall extend to and be obligatory upon heirs, personal representatives, successors, and assigns of the Seller and the assigns of the Buyer.

18. COUNTERPARTS: This Agreement may be signed on any number of identical counterparts, such as a faxed copy, with the same binding effect as if the signatures were on one instrument. Original, faxed or other electronically transmitted signatures are binding.

19. NOTICE: Any notice, communication or document delivery requirements hereunder may be satisfied by providing the required notice, communication or documentation to or from the parties or their Licensee. Only withdrawals of offers and counteroffers will be effective upon communication, verbally or in writing.

20. EFFECTIVE DATE/BUSINESS DAYS: This Agreement is a binding contract when the last party signing has caused a paper or electronic copy of the fully executed agreement to be delivered to the other party which shall be the Effective Date. Licensee is authorized to fill in the Effective Date on Page 1 hereof. Except as expressly set forth to the contrary, the use of the term "days" in this Agreement, including all addenda made a part hereof, shall mean business days defined as excluding Saturdays, Sundays and any observed Maine State/Federal holidays. Deadlines in this Agreement, including all addenda, expressed as "within x days" shall be counted from the Effective Date, unless another starting date is expressly set forth, beginning with the first day after the Effective Date, or such other established starting date, and ending at 5:00 p.m. Eastern Time on the last day counted. Unless expressly stated to the contrary, deadlines in this Agreement, including all addenda, expressed as a specific date shall end at 5:00 p.m. Eastern Time on such date.

21. CONFIDENTIALITY: Buyer and Seller authorize the disclosure of the information herein to the real estate licensees, attorneys, lenders, appraisers, inspectors, investigators and others involved in the transaction necessary for the purpose of closing this transaction. Buyer and Seller authorize the lender and/or closing agent preparing the entire closing disclosure and/or settlement statement to release a copy of the closing disclosure and/or settlement statement to the parties and their licensees prior to, at and after the closing.

22. OTHER CONDITIONS: Buyer will close w/in 30 days of receipt of all necessary permits & interconnecting agreement from CMP. \$ The point on November 1st, 2021. Payment goes towards purchase price, but is released to the seller and kept by the seller. The point on non-refundable payment to be paid to seller on January 15th, 2022. Payment goes towards purchase price.

Solution Non-Refundable payments that go towards the purchase price will be paid on April 15th, 2022, July 15th, 2022, October 15th, 2022 and January 15th, 2023. Payments are to be paid to the seller and kept by the seller as long as current purchase and sale is still binding.

#### 23. GENERAL PROVISIONS:

- a. A copy of this Agreement is to be received by all parties and, by signature, receipt of a copy is hereby acknowledged. If not fully understood, contact an attorney. This is a Maine contract and shall be construed according to the laws of Maine.
- b. Seller acknowledges that State of Maine law requires buyers of property owned by non-resident sellers to withhold a prepayment of capital gains tax unless a waiver has been obtained by Seller from the State of Maine Revenue Services.
- c. Buyer and Seller acknowledge that under Maine law payment of property taxes is the legal responsibility of the person who owns the property on April 1, even if the property is sold before payment is due. If any part of the taxes is not paid when due, the lien will be filed in the name of the owner as of April 1 which could have a negative impact on their credit rating. Buyer and Seller shall agree at closing on their respective obligations regarding actual payment of taxes after closing. Buyer and Seller should make sure they understand their obligations agreed to at closing and what may happen if taxes are not paid as agreed.
- d. Buyer acknowledges that Maine law requires continuing interest in the property and any back up offers to be communicated by the listing agent to the Seller.
- e. Whenever this Agreement provides for earnest money to be returned or released, agency acting as escrow agent must comply with Maine Real Estate Commission rules which may require written notices or obtaining written releases from both parties.

### 24. ADDENDA: Yes X No Explain:

Page 4 of 5

Buyer(s) Initials Thub

Seller(s) Initials  $\mathcal{U}$ 

25. ELECTRONIC SIGNATURES: Pursuant to the Maine Uniform Electronic Transactions Act and Digital Signature Act, the parties authorize and agree to the use of electronic signatures as a method of signing/initialing this Agreement, including all addenda. The parties hereby agree that either party may sign electronically by utilizing an electronic signature service.

Buyer's Mailing address is 15 Railroad Way, W	/hite River Junc	tion, VT 05001	
Troy McBride	8/30/2021		
BUYER Sunny Acres, LLC	DATE	BUYER	DATE
BUYER	DATE	BUYER	DATE
Seller accepts the offer and agrees to deliver the agrees to pay agency a commission for services	above-described as specified in th	property at the price and upon the te e listing agreement.	rms and conditions set forth and
Seller's Mailing address is			·
Colin C tewett 9/3/	/2021		
SELLER Colin Hewett Executor of William Hewett Estate	e DATE	SELLER	DATE
SELLER	DATE	SELLER	DATE

### **COUNTER-OFFER**

Seller agrees to sell on the terms and conditions as detailed herein with the following changes and/or conditions:

SELLER	DATE	SELLER	DATE
SELLER	DATE	SELLER	DATE
The Buyer hereby accepts the co	ounter offer set forth above.		
BUYER	DATE	BUYER	DATE
BUYER	DATE	BUYER	DATE
	EXTR	INSION	
The closing date of this Agreeme	ent is extended until		
<i>c c</i>		DATE	
SELLER	DATE	SELLER	DATE
SELLER	DATE	SELLER	DATE

BUYER



**BUYER** 

BUYER



Maine Association of REALTORS®/Copyright © 2021. All Rights Reserved. Revised 2021.



DATE

DATE

DATE

DATE

# ADDENDUM 2 TO AGREEMENT

Addendum to contract dated	August 30, 2021		
between Colin Hewett Executor of William Hewett Estate	•		
		(hereinafter	"Seller")
and Sunny Acres, LLC			
		(hereinafter	"Buyer")
property located at TBD Main Street, Readfield, ME 0435	5		

Closing to be extended until: Within 30 days of receiving permits and CMP Interconnection Agreement (1.3.9 Approval) or 3.31.25 - whichever is first. Buyer to notify seller once Permits and Agreement have been accepted.

If/When the 30-day closing notification is made because the Buyer has received permits and CMP

Interconnection Agreement -

Parties acknowledge Agency's advice to seek legal, tax and other professional advice as necessary in connection with sale/purchase of property.

DocuSigned by:	1/24/2023	Colina ( Howard	4 2/10/2023
BUNGSP39BA2540C	Date	Seller	Date
Sunny Acres, LLC		Colin Hewett Execu	itor of William Hewett Estate
Buyer	Date	Seller	Date
Buyer	Date	Seller	Date
Buyer	Date	Seller	Date
<b>Maine Association of E</b> All Rights Reserved. Re	REALTORS®/Copyright © 202 vised 2020.	3.	
AX Riverside, 1 Bowdoin Mill Island Tonsham ME (	4086	Phone: (340) 642-9800	Fax: (207) 725-8509 Norwich

#### LEASE OPTION AGREEMENT

THIS LEASE OPTION AGREEMENT, is entered into as of <u>December 17<sup>th</sup> 2021</u> (the "Effective **Date**"), by and between Sunny Acres, LLC, with an address of 15 Railroad Row, Suite 101, White River Junction, Vermont 05001 ("Lessor"), and Readfield Main Street Solar LLC, a Maine limited liability company with a principal place of business located at 14 Maine Street, Suite 305 C-1, Box 49, Brunswick, Maine 04011 ("Lessee").

### WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, Lessor is the owner of real property located on Main Street, Readfield, Maine 04355, (the "**Property**") with latitude 44.356045 N and longitude -69.890505 W ; and

WHEREAS, Lessor desires to grant Lessee an option to lease approximately +/- 80.10 acre, more or less of the Property (the "Leased Premises") for the construction and operation of a solar electric generating system (the "System"); and

WHEREAS, the parties have agreed that Lessee is granted an option to lease said Leased Premises from Lessor; and

WHEREAS, the parties wish to reduce their agreement to writing.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of and and agree as follows:

1. Lessor hereby grants to Lessee the sole and exclusive right and option (the "**Option**") throughout the Option Period to lease from Lessor the Leased Premises or any portion thereof, including access thereto, for the development and operation of the System.

2. This Lease Option Agreement shall be and remain in full force for **one (1) year** from the date of execution of this Lease Option Agreement (the "**Option Period**").

3. Payments. Payments under this Lease Option Agreement shall be as follows:

Term		Payment
One-year Option Period	Payable at Signing of Lease Option Agreement	

4. Lessor hereby warrants and represents that Lessor: (a) owns the Property in fee simple absolute; (b) has the sole and unilateral right and authority to enter into this Lease Option Agreement; (c) has and will maintain good and marketable title to the Property, free and clear of any encumbrances except those which of record appear; (d) shall not enter into any lease, option to lease, purchase and sale agreement, option to purchase, or any other similar agreement with any other developer of solar energy generating systems during the Option Period; and (e) shall notify Lessee promptly in writing after any transfer or other change in ownership of all or any part of the Property, including the name and address of the new owner.

5. Lessee shall give Lessor written notice of Lessee's election to exercise this Option and to lease the Leased Premise at the time and date specified by Lessee in such notice. The formal Solar Site Lease Agreement, which has been fully negotiated and agreed to by Lessor and Lessee, and included herein as Exhibit 1 – Solar Site Lease Agreement, shall be executed by both parties at that time.

6. Extension of Option Period. Prior to the conclusion of the Option Period, Lessee may request, and Lessor shall grant, a one-time extension of the Option Period for a period of not more than **one** (1) year. Lessee shall pay Lessor an extension payment of for a period of not more the time of the extension request. Lessor shall credit the extension payment to the first payment due under the Solar Site Lease Agreement. In the event that Lessee does not exercise this Option to enter into a Solar Site Lease Agreement, Lessor shall retain any extension payment made in accordance with this Section.

7. During the Option Period, Lessor shall permit Lessee and its authorized agents and representatives to enter upon the Property to:

a. conduct any necessary surveys, studies or analyses to determine the Property's suitability to host the System;

b. submit any applications for permits or licenses necessary to facilitate construction and operation of the System, including but not limited to a Certificate of Public Good; and

c. attend and participate in any public meetings or hearings regarding the System.

8. Lessee shall bear the cost of all surveys, studies, analyses, permits and licenses.

9. In the event Lessor fails to perform its obligations under this Option Agreement for any reason other than Lessee's breach, Lessee may pursue all remedies available at law and in equity.

10. The parties shall execute any and all other documents and take all actions necessary to effectuate the intent of this Lease Option Agreement.

11. This Option shall be binding upon the parties hereto and the respective heirs, successors and assigns of each.

[signatures appear on following page]

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Lease Option Agreement on the day and year first above written.

LESSOR

Sunny Acres, LLC, a Vermont member-managed limited liability company

By: Norwich Technologies, Inc., its Member

By: officer

STATE OF VERMONT COUNTY OF Windsor

On this  $17^{+}$  date of <u>December</u>, 20<u>Alpersonally appeared</u> <u>Troy</u> <u>MeBride</u> who executed the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged that this instrument, signed by him/her/them, to be his/her/their free act and deed.

Before me,

Notary Public " My commission expires: Jan. 31, 2023

Gregg Freeman Notary Public, State of Vermont My Commission Number: <sup>157,0013307</sup> My Commission Expires Jan 31, 2023

LESSEE

Readfield Main Street Solar LLC, a Maine member-managed limited liability company

By: Norwich Technologies, Inc., its Member

STATE OF MAINE COUNTY OF Windsor

On this <u>17<sup>+h</sup></u> date of <u>December</u>, 20<u>21</u> personally appeared <u>Troy Medice</u> who executed the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged that this instrument, signed by him, to be his free act and deed and the free act and deed of <u>Readfield Main Street Solar</u> LLC

Before me,

Notary Public My commission expires Jan. 31, 2023

Gregg Freeman Notary Public, State of Vermont My Commission Number: 157.0013307 My Commission Expires Jan 31, 2023

### READFIELD MAIN SOLAR LLC

### November 29, 2022

To: Sunny Acres LLC 15 Railroad Row Suite 101 White River Junction, VT 05001

Re: Extension of Lease Option Period

Dear Sunny Acres LLC:

Pursuant to our Lease Option Agreement, upon request by the Lessee, Lessor shall grant an extension of the Option Period. Lessee requests an extension of the Option Period to December 17, 2023. Enclosed please find the extension payment of We look forward to the continuation of a most successful relationship.

Sincerely,

Readfield Main Solar LLC, a Maine member-managed limited liability company

By: Norwich Technologies, Inc., its Member

DocuSigned by: Troy McBride Its duly authorized officer By:

### ATTACHMENT E: STORMWATER MANAGEMENT REPORT



Stormwater Management Report

Readfield Main Street Solar, LLC Proposed Solar Project Readfield, Maine

Submitted on behalf of:



Prepared by:



Krebs and Lansing Consulting Engineers, Inc. Ian Jewkes, P.E. ME #17165 164 Main Street, Suite 201 Colchester, Vermont 05446 (802) 878-0375 ian.jewkes@krebsandlansing.com

August 03, 2023



# Section 1.0 – Introduction

The following plan outlines anticipated inspection and maintenance procedures for the proposed erosion and sediment control measures, as well as stormwater management systems for the proposed solar project. The purpose of this plan is to detail the measures necessary to comply with the Maine Department of Environmental Conservation "Stormwater Management Rules" detailed in Chapters 500, 501, & 502 and the "Maine Stormwater Best Management Practices Manual". In addition to these requirements there are requirements from the Town of Readfield regulations that must be met. Section 6, item 10 of the Town of Readfield Solar Ordinance requires "a stormwater from the Solar Energy System (SES) will infiltrate into the ground beneath the SES at a rate equal to that of the infiltration rate prior to the placement of the system." Readfield Main Street Solar, LLC is proposing a 0.975 MW AC solar energy facility. This project site is located on the southern side of Main Street east of Carleton Pond and west of Case Cemetery.

The project will include the following activities:

- Temporary Sediment and Erosion Control
- Construction Entrance
- Construction of new gravel drives and turnarounds for project access including sections of pervious gravel
- Temporary construction staging areas
- Installation of solar modules and racking support system
- Installation of buried and above ground electric cables and conduits
- Installation of electrical equipment, transformer and associated concrete pads
- Installation of project fencing
- Removal of temporary erosion control measures after construction is complete and a fully vegetated condition has been achieved

The total project limit of disturbance is 17.51 acres. The fenced area enclosing the solar facility encompasses an area of 9.59 acres. The total impervious area created by the project is 10,875 square feet (0.25 acres). Please note the Maine DEP only considers the solar module racking post footprint to be impervious, not the solar modules. See 06-096 Chapter 500 Section 3(L).

## Section 2.0 – Hydrologic Modeling

The pre- and post-development site conditions were modeled using the HydroCAD modeling program, version 10. This program was developed in accordance with the methodology published by the USDA Soil Conservation Service TR-55 document. Precipitation data used in

Readfield Main Street Solar – Stormwater Management Report

the analysis from Maine Chapter 500 (Appendix H, Kennebec County), is shown in the table below.

Recurrence Interval	Type III, 24-hour storm depth
2-year storm	2.80 inches
10-year storm	4.20 inches
25-year storm	5.20 inches
50-year storm	6.10 inches

# Section 3.0 – Description of Analysis Points

The watershed model developed analyzed the discharge of runoff from the project site at six Analysis Points downstream of the proposed development. The selected analysis points are defined below and can be found on Sheets C-3.0 and C-3.1. Grading and minor earthwork are proposed at the new turn around and transformer locations. There is one section of pervious gravel road proposed in the watershed draining to analysis point SN004. The analysis points, watershed boundaries, and total area assessed for pre- and post- development remain the same, allowing us to compare the values.

Analysis	Point #1	<u>(SN001)</u>

Location:	Latitude: N44° 21' 23	.08"
	Longitude: W69° 53'	50.46"
Pre-Developm	nent Drainage Area:	11.70 acres
Post-Develop	ment Drainage Area:	11.70 acres
Analysis Point	: #2 (SN002)	
Location:	Latitude: N44° 20' 59	.60"
	Longitude: W69° 53'	32.36"
Pre-Developm	nent Drainage Area:	18.01 acres
Post-Develop	ment Drainage Area:	18.01 acres
<u>Analysis Point</u>	: #3 (SN003)	
Location:	Latitude: N44° 20' 53	.00"
	Longitude: W69° 53'	20.23"
Pre-Developm	nent Drainage Area:	19.65 acres
Post-Development Drainage Area: 19.65 acres		
<u>Analysis Point</u>	: #4 (SN004 <u>)</u>	

Readfield Main Street Solar – Stormwater Management Report

# KREBS & LANSING

Location:	Latitude: N44° 20' 59.42"
	Longitude: W69° 53' 22.22"

Pre-Development Drainage Area:20.19 acresPost-Development Drainage Area:20.19 acres

Analysis Point #5 (SN005)

Location: Latitude: N44° 21' 23.37" Longitude: W69° 53' 28.67"

Pre-Development Drainage Area:0.65 acresPost-Development Drainage Area:0.65 acres

<u>Analysis Point #6 (SN006)</u> Location: Latitude: N44° 21' 25.17" Longitude: W69° 53' 35.40"

Pre-Development Drainage Area:2.49 acresPost-Development Drainage Area:2.49 acres

### Section 4.0 – Pre-Development Site Conditions

The pre-development conditions and drainage patterns are shown on the attached Sheet C-3.0. The watershed area evaluated encompasses an area of 72.69 acres. The runoff from the eastern side of the site generally flows to the southeast. The runoff from the western side of the site generally flows to the northwest. There is a wetland and stream complex in the center of the eastern portion of the site. The existing soils in the majority of the site are Lyman-Tunbridge complex soils, hydrologic soil group (HSG) D. These are loamy supraglacial till stony soils. The remaining existing soils that make up the site are also in HSG D, including Paxton-Charlton and Woodbridge fine sandy loams.

The pre-development peak flow rates were evaluated for storms ranging from the 2-year, 10year, 25-year, and 50-year 24-hour storm events. Below are the peak flow values for the 2-year, 10-year, 25-year storms.

Pre-Development Peak Flows (cfs)				
Analysis Point	2-year	10-year	25-year	50-year
SN001	3.87	8.59	12.31	15.78
SN002	6.59	14.24	20.19	25.71
SN003	6.18	13.69	19.59	25.08
SN004	7.80	16.86	23.91	30.45

Readfield Main Street Solar – Stormwater Management Report
# KREBS & LANSING

SN005	0.35	0.76	1.07	1.36
SN006	1.56	3.34	4.73	6.02

#### Section 5.0 – Post-Development Site Conditions

The post-development conditions and drainage patterns are shown on the attached Sheet C-3.1. The proposed project is a 0.975 MW-AC solar energy facility. The project will include pervious and impervious roadways, equipment pads, posts to support solar racking and perimeter fences, and 8 new power poles. The new roadways, equipment pads and posts, and power poles will be the infrastructure which generates the proposed impervious surface on site. The total new impervious area proposed is 10,875 square feet (0.25 acres). There is a 10,922 square foot (0.25 acre) section of pervious project road through the northern central portion of the project.

The array field itself will be made up of fixed mount solar panels. The panels sit on supports which are held above the ground on steel I-beam posts similar to those supporting roadside guardrails. These posts have very small cross-sectional areas which contribute minimally to the total impervious area.

Post-Development Peak Flows (cfs)										
Analysis Point	2-year	10-year	25-year	50-year						
SN001	3.87	8.59	12.31	15.78						
SN002	6.59	14.24	20.19	25.71						
SN003	6.14	13.58	19.45	24.9.						
SN004	7.34	16.31	23.34	29.90						
SN005	0.35	0.76	1.07	1.36						
SN006	1.56	3.34	4.73	6.02						

The post-development peak flow rates were evaluated for storms ranging from the 2-year, 10-year, 25-year, and 50-year 24-hour storm events.

#### Section 6.0 – Water Quality Analysis Summary

The post development meadow condition, being mowed once or at the most twice a year, has similar runoff characteristics to the pre-development partially wooded areas. Rounding to a nominal ½ cubic foot per second, the post-development peak runoff flows do not increase at any of the six analysis points for the 2-, 10-, 25- & 50-year storm events. It is our opinion that this meets the intent of the flooding standard and the Readfield solar ordinance guidelines. Please note that this project is not subject to Site Law jurisdiction and the new impervious area of 0.25 acres is well below the 3-acre threshold. The impervious area proposed is treated via Readfield Main Street Solar – Stormwater Management Report

flow over vegetated areas. The project is not located in a drainage area for which the Phosphorus Standard or the Urban Impaired Standard applies, 06-096 Chapter 502.

Based on this analysis it is our conclusion that the project as designed meets the Basic Standards detailed in Chapter 500 and the Town of Readfield Solar Ordinance.











# Area Listing (all nodes)

Area	CN	Description
(acres)		(subcatchment-numbers)
50.010	78	Meadow, non-grazed, HSG D (2S, 3S, 4S, 5S, 6S, 15S, 16S, 17S, 18S, 19S, 20S)
0.760	98	Paved parking, HSG D (3S, 4S, 5S, 6S, 16S, 17S, 18S, 19S, 20S)
94.600	77	Woods, Good, HSG D (1S, 2S, 3S, 4S, 5S, 6S, 15S, 16S, 17S, 18S, 19S, 20S)
145.369	77	TOTAL AREA

Readfield\_Main\_SW\_07-31-23\_V2 Prepared by Krebs & Lansing Consulting Engineers, Inc. HydroCAD® 10.00 s/n 06429 © 2013 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

# Soil Listing (all nodes)

Area	Soil	Subcatchment
(acres)	Group	Numbers
0.000	HSG A	
0.000	HSG B	
0.000	HSG C	
145.369	HSG D	1S, 2S, 3S, 4S, 5S, 6S, 15S, 16S, 17S, 18S, 19S, 20S
0.000	Other	
145.369		TOTAL AREA

Readfield\_Main\_SW\_07-31-23\_V2 Prepared by Krebs & Lansing Consulting Engineers, Inc. HydroCAD® 10.00 s/n 06429 © 2013 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

HSG-A	HSG-B	HSG-C	HSG-D	Other	Total	Ground	Subcatchment
(acres)	(acres)	(acres)	(acres)	(acres)	(acres)	Cover	Numbers
0.000	0.000	0.000	50.010	0.000	50.010	Meadow, non-grazed	2S, 3S, 4S, 5S, 6S, 15S, 16S, 17S, 18S, 19S, 20S
0.000	0.000	0.000	0.760	0.000	0.760	Paved parking	3S, 4S, 5S, 6S, 16S, 17S, 18S, 19S, 20S
0.000	0.000	0.000	94.600	0.000	94.600	Woods, Good	1S, 2S, 3S, 4S, 5S, 6S, 15S, 16S, 17S, 18S, 19S, 20S
0.000	0.000	0.000	145.369	0.000	145.369	TOTAL AREA	

# Ground Covers (all nodes)

Readfield Main SW 07-31-23 V2

Type III 24-hr 2 YR 24 HR Rainfall=2.80"Printed 8/3/2023Pons LLCPage 5

Prepared by Krebs & Lansing Consulting Engineers, Inc. HydroCAD® 10.00 s/n 06429 © 2013 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC

> Time span=5.00-20.00 hrs, dt=0.05 hrs, 301 points Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS, Weighted-CN Reach routing by Stor-Ind+Trans method - Pond routing by Stor-Ind method

Subcatchment1S: Pre SN001	Runoff Area=509,553 sf 0.00% Impervious Runoff Depth>0.82" Flow Length=1,762' Tc=82.2 min CN=77 Runoff=3.87 cfs 0.802 af
Subcatchment 2S: Pre SN002	Runoff Area=784,613 sf 0.00% Impervious Runoff Depth>0.87" Flow Length=1,707' Tc=79.1 min CN=78 Runoff=6.59 cfs 1.313 af
Subcatchment 3S: Pre SN003	Runoff Area=855,947 sf 0.02% Impervious Runoff Depth>0.82" Flow Length=3,053' Tc=89.7 min CN=77 Runoff=6.18 cfs 1.342 af
Subcatchment4S: Pre SN004	Runoff Area=879,255 sf 1.50% Impervious Runoff Depth>0.88" Flow Length=2,580' Tc=72.6 min CN=78 Runoff=7.80 cfs 1.476 af
Subcatchment 5S: Pre SN005	Runoff Area=28,335 sf 4.35% Impervious Runoff Depth>0.89" Flow Length=328' Tc=40.9 min CN=78 Runoff=0.35 cfs 0.048 af
Subcatchment6S: Pre SN006	Runoff Area=108,342 sf 3.02% Impervious Runoff Depth>0.90" Flow Length=835' Tc=30.2 min CN=78 Runoff=1.56 cfs 0.186 af
Subcatchment15S: Post SN001	Runoff Area=509,553 sf 0.00% Impervious Runoff Depth>0.82" Flow Length=1,762' Tc=82.2 min CN=77 Runoff=3.87 cfs 0.802 af
Subcatchment16S: Post SN002	Runoff Area=784,613 sf 0.00% Impervious Runoff Depth>0.87" Flow Length=1,707' Tc=79.1 min CN=78 Runoff=6.59 cfs 1.313 af
Subcatchment17S: Post SN003	Runoff Area=855,947 sf 0.14% Impervious Runoff Depth>0.82" Flow Length=3,052' Tc=90.0 min CN=77 Runoff=6.14 cfs 1.342 af
Subcatchment18S: Post SN004	Runoff Area=879,453 sf 1.06% Impervious Runoff Depth>0.83" Flow Length=2,579' Tc=71.5 min CN=77 Runoff=7.34 cfs 1.393 af
Subcatchment 19S: Post SN005	Runoff Area=28,335 sf 4.90% Impervious Runoff Depth>0.89" Flow Length=328' Tc=40.9 min CN=78 Runoff=0.35 cfs 0.048 af
Subcatchment 20S: Post SN006	Runoff Area=108,342 sf 3.02% Impervious Runoff Depth>0.90" Flow Length=835' Tc=30.2 min CN=78 Runoff=1.56 cfs 0.186 af
Link 7L: Pre	Inflow=24.78 cfs 5.168 af Primary=24.78 cfs 5.168 af
Link 21L: Post	Inflow=24.32 cfs 5.084 af Primary=24.32 cfs 5.084 af

Total Runoff Area = 145.369 ac Runoff Volume = 10.252 af Average Runoff Depth = 0.85" 99.48% Pervious = 144.609 ac 0.52% Impervious = 0.760 ac

#### Summary for Subcatchment 1S: Pre SN001

Runoff = 3.87 cfs @ 13.17 hrs, Volume= 0.802 af, Depth> 0.82"

Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS, Weighted-CN, Time Span= 5.00-20.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs Type III 24-hr 2 YR 24 HR Rainfall=2.80"

 A	rea (sf)	CN I	Description		
5	09,553	77 \	Woods, Go	od, HSG D	
5	09,553	100.00% Pervious Are			a
Tc (min)	Length (feet)	Slope (ft/ft)	Velocity (ft/sec)	Capacity (cfs)	Description
44.2	150	0.0350	0.06		Sheet Flow, Sheet Woods
 38.0	1,612	0.0798	0.71		Vvoods: Dense underbrush n= 0.800 P2= 2.80" Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Woods Forest w/Heavy Litter Kv= 2.5 fps
 82.2	1 762	Total			

#### Subcatchment 1S: Pre SN001



### Summary for Subcatchment 2S: Pre SN002

Runoff 6.59 cfs @ 13.11 hrs, Volume= 1.313 af, Depth> 0.87" =

_	Ai	rea (sf)	CN	Description	l	
	3	20,827	77	Woods, Go	od, HSG D	
	4	63,786	78	Meadow, n	on-grazed,	HSG D
	7	84,613	78	Weighted A	verage	
	7	84,613		100.00% P	ervious Are	а
	Та	l o o ortho	Class		Consoit	Description
	(min)	(feet)	Siope (ft/ft	) (ft/sec)	Capacity (cfs)	Description
-	41.9	150	0.0400	0.06		Sheet Flow, Sheet Woods
						Woods: Dense underbrush n= 0.800 P2= 2.80"
	9.3	196	0.0199	9 0.35		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Woods 1
						Forest w/Heavy Litter Kv= 2.5 fps
	9.7	258	0.031:	3 0.44		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Woods 2
						Forest w/Heavy Litter Kv= 2.5 fps
	4.5	625	0.109 <sup>-</sup>	1 2.31		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Meadow
						Short Grass Pasture Kv= 7.0 fps
	6.1	277	0.0930	0.76		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Woods 3
						Forest w/Heavy Litter Kv= 2.5 fps
	7.6	201	0.030	7 0.44		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Woods 4
_						Forest w/Heavy Litter Kv= 2.5 fps
	79.1	1,707	Total			

#### Readfield Main SW 07-31-23 V2

Prepared by Krebs & Lansing Consulting Engineers, Inc. HydroCAD® 10.00 s/n 06429 © 2013 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC



Subcatchment 2S: Pre SN002

### Summary for Subcatchment 3S: Pre SN003

Runoff = 6.18 cfs @ 13.27 hrs, Volume= 1.342 af, Depth> 0.82"

_	A	rea (sf)	CN	Description		
	5	64,677	77 \	Woods, Go	od, HSG D	
	2	91,094	78	Vleadow, no	on-grazed,	HSG D
		176	98	Paved park	ing, HSG D	
-	8	55,947	77 \	Weighted A	verage	
	8	55.771		99.98% Pe	rvious Area	
		<sup>´</sup> 176		0.02% <b>I</b> mpe	ervious Area	a
				•		
	Тс	Length	Slope	Velocity	Capacity	Description
_	(min)	(feet)	(ft/ft)	(ft/sec)	(cfs)	
	47.0	150	0.0300	0.05		Sheet Flow, Sheet Woods
						Woods: Dense underbrush n= 0.800 P2= 2.80"
	9.3	297	0.0450	0.53		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Woods 1
						Forest w/Heavy Litter Kv= 2.5 fps
	4.9	542	0.0690	1.84		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Meadow
						Short Grass Pasture Kv= 7.0 fps
	16.6	705	0.0798	0.71		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Woods 2
						Forest w/Heavy Litter Kv= 2.5 fps
	11.9	1,359	0.0710	1.90	1.90	Channel Flow, Channel Woods
						Area= 1.0 sf Perim= 3.0' r= 0.33'
_						n= 0.100 Earth, dense brush, high stage
	89.7	3,053	Total			

#### Readfield Main SW 07-31-23 V2

Prepared by Krebs & Lansing Consulting Engineers, Inc. HydroCAD® 10.00 s/n 06429 © 2013 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC



Subcatchment 3S: Pre SN003

### Summary for Subcatchment 4S: Pre SN004

Runoff = 7.80 cfs @ 13.02 hrs, Volume= 1.476 af, Depth> 0.88"

Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS, Weighted-CN, Time Span= 5.00-20.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs Type III 24-hr 2 YR 24 HR Rainfall=2.80"

			<b>Description</b>	CN E	rea (sf)	Α
		od, HSG D	Voods, Go	77 V	90,692	6
	HSG D	on-grazed, l	leadow, no	78 N	75,331	1
		ing, HSG D	aved park	98 F	13,232	
		verage	Veighted A	78 V	79,255	8
		rvious Area	8.50% Pe	9	66,023	8
	a	ervious Area	.50% Impe	1	13,232	
	Description	Conocity	Valaaity	Slope	Longth	То
	Description	Capacity (cfs)	(ft/sec)	(ft/ft)	(feet)	(min)
	Sheet Flow, Sheet Meadow	(010)	0.10	0.0140	135	22.4
	Grass: Dense n= 0.240 P2= 2.80"		••			
	Sheet Flow, Sheet, Gravel		0.72	0.0120	15	0.3
	Smooth surfaces n= 0.011 P2= 2.80"					
d Meadow	Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated I		0.62	0.0078	283	7.6
	Short Grass Pasture Kv= 7.0 fps					
d Woods 1	Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated V		0.34	0.0181	311	15.4
	Forest w/Heavy Litter Kv= 2.5 fps					
	Channel Flow, Channel Woods 1	1.72	1.72	0.0578	490	4.8
	Area= 1.0 st Perim= 3.0' r= 0.33'					
	n= 0.100 Earth, dense brush, high stage		0.50	0.0500	470	5.0
d Woods 2	Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated V		0.59	0.0560	176	5.0
al \ <b>A</b> /a a al a - <b>2</b>	Forest W/Heavy Litter KV= 2.5 fps		0.00	0 4000	CO 4	10.0
a woods 3	Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated V		0.80	0.1028	604	12.0
	Channel Flow Channel Woode	2.09	2 00	0 0010	566	15
	$\Delta r_{0,2} = 1.0 \text{ sf}$ Derim = 2.0' r = 0.22'	2.00	2.00	0.0040	500	4.5
	n = 0.100 Earth dense brush high stage					
				Tatal	2 5 9 0	72.6

72.6 2,580 Total

#### Readfield Main SW 07-31-23 V2

Prepared by Krebs & Lansing Consulting Engineers, Inc. HydroCAD® 10.00 s/n 06429 © 2013 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC



### Subcatchment 4S: Pre SN004

### Summary for Subcatchment 5S: Pre SN005

Runoff = 0.35 cfs @ 12.60 hrs, Volume= 0.048 af, Depth> 0.89"

 A	rea (sf)	CN	Description		
	14,244	77 \	Woods, Go	od, HSG D	
	12,858	78 I	Meadow, n	on-grazed,	HSG D
	1,233	98	Paved park	ing, HSG D	
	28.335	78	Weighted A	verage	
	27,102		95.65% Pe	rvious Area	
	1,233		4.35% Impe	ervious Area	a
	,		•		
Тс	Length	Slope	Velocity	Capacity	Description
(min)	(feet)	(ft/ft)	(ft/sec)	(cfs)	·
 14.7	67	0.0098	0.08		Sheet Flow, Sheet Meadow 1
					Grass: Dense n= 0.240 P2= 2.80"
25.0	78	0.0393	0.05		Sheet Flow, Sheet Woods
					Woods: Dense underbrush n= 0.800 P2= 2.80"
0.6	5	0.1825	0.15		Sheet Flow, Sheet Meadow 2
					Grass: Dense n= 0.240 P2= 2.80"
0.1	15	0.1271	2.50		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Meadow
					Short Grass Pasture Kv= 7.0 fps
0.5	163	0.0580	5.73	5.73	Channel Flow, Channel Meadow
					Area= 1.0 sf Perim= 3.0' r= 0.33'
					n= 0.030 Earth, grassed & winding
40.9	328	Total			

Hydrograph 📘 Runoff 0.38 0.35 cfs 0.36 Type III 24-hr 0.34 2 YR 24 HR Rainfall=2.80" 0.32 0.3 Runoff Area=28,335 sf 0.28 0.26 Runoff Volume=0.048 af 0.24 Runoff Depth>0.89" 0.22 Flow (cfs) 0.2 Flow Length=328' 0.18 Tc=40.9 min 0.16 0.14 CN=78 0.12 0.1 0.08 0.06 0.04 0.02 0-6 ż ģ 10 14 15 16 17 18 8 11 12 13 19 5 20 Time (hours)

#### Subcatchment 5S: Pre SN005

#### Summary for Subcatchment 6S: Pre SN006

Runoff = 1.56 cfs @ 12.45 hrs, Volume= 0.186 af, Depth> 0.90"

A	rea (sf)	CN	Description		
	75,396	77	Woods, Go	od, HSG D	
29,671 78 Meadow, non-grazed, H					HSG D
	3,275	98	Paved park	ing, HSG D	
1	08,342	78	Weighted A	verage	
1	05,067	9	96.98% Pei	rvious Area	
	3,275		3.02% <b>I</b> mpe	ervious Area	a
_		-		•	
IC	Length	Slope	Velocity	Capacity	Description
(min)	(feet)	(ft/ft)	(ft/sec)	(cfs)	
17.1	150	0.0340	0.15		Sheet Flow, Sheet Meadow
					Grass: Dense n= 0.240 P2= 2.80"
1.2	89	0.0292	1.20		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Meadow
					Short Grass Pasture Kv= 7.0 fps
8.4	381	0.0910	0.75		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Woods 1
					Forest w/Heavy Litter Kv= 2.5 fps
0.1	15	0.0190	2.22		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Conc., Gravel
					Unpaved Kv= 16.1 fps
3.4	200	0.1518	0.97		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Woods 2
					Forest w/Heavy Litter Kv= 2.5 fps
30.2	835	Total			

Prepared by Krebs & Lansing Consulting Engineers, Inc. HydroCAD® 10.00 s/n 06429 © 2013 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC



Subcatchment 6S: Pre SN006

#### Summary for Subcatchment 15S: Post SN001

<u>Page 17</u>

Runoff 3.87 cfs @ 13.17 hrs, Volume= 0.802 af, Depth> 0.82" =

Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS, Weighted-CN, Time Span= 5.00-20.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs Type III 24-hr 2 YR 24 HR Rainfall=2.80"

A	rea (sf)	CN	Description		
4	68,109	77	Woods, Go	od, HSG D	
	41,444	78	Meadow, no	on-grazed,	HSG D
5	09,553	77	Weighted A	verage	
5	09,553		100.00% Pe	ervious Are	а
Tc (min)	Length (feet)	Slope (ft/ft	e Velocity ) (ft/sec)	Capacity (cfs)	Description
44.2	150	0.0350	0.06		Sheet Flow, Sheet Woods Woods: Dense underbrush n= 0.800 P2= 2.80"
38.0	1,612	0.0798	3 0.71		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Woods Forest w/Heavy Litter Kv= 2.5 fps
82.2	1.762	Tota			

#### Subcatchment 15S: Post SN001



#### Summary for Subcatchment 16S: Post SN002

Runoff = 6.59 cfs @ 13.11 hrs, Volume= 1.313 af, Depth> 0.87"

	A	rea (sf)	CN	Description				
	2	20,016	77 \	Woods, Go	od, HSG D			
	564,580 78 Meadow, non-grazed, H			Meadow, no	on-grazed,	HSG D		
		<sup></sup> 17	98	Paved park	ing, HSG D			
-	7	84.613	78	Weighted A	verage			
	7	84.596		100.00% P	ervious Are	а		
		17		0.00% Impe	ervious Area	a		
						-		
	Тс	Length	Slope	Velocity	Capacity	Description		
	(min)	(feet)	(ft/ft)	(ft/sec)	(cfs)	'		
	41.9	150	0.0400	0.06		Sheet Flow, Sheet Woods		
						Woods: Dense underbrush n= 0.800 P2= 2.80"		
	9.3	196	0.0199	0.35		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Woods 1		
						Forest w/Heavy Litter Kv= 2.5 fps		
	9.7	258	0.0313	0.44		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Woods 2		
						Forest w/Heavy Litter Kv= 2.5 fps		
	4.5	625	0.1091	2.31		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Meadow		
						Short Grass Pasture Kv= 7.0 fps		
	6.1	277	0.0930	0.76		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Woods 3		
						Forest w/Heavy Litter Kv= 2.5 fps		
	7.6	201	0.0307	0.44		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Woods 4		
_						Forest w/Heavy Litter Kv= 2.5 fps		
	79.1	1,707	Total					

Prepared by Krebs & Lansing Consulting Engineers, Inc. HydroCAD® 10.00 s/n 06429 © 2013 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC



#### Subcatchment 16S: Post SN002

#### Summary for Subcatchment 17S: Post SN003

Runoff = 6.14 cfs @ 13.29 hrs, Volume= 1.342 af, Depth> 0.82"

_	A	rea (sf)	CN [	Description		
	5	30,763	0,763 77 Woods, Good, HSG D		od, HSG D	
	3	23,995	78 N	Meadow, no	on-grazed,	HSG D
_		1,189	98 F	Paved park	ing, HSG D	
	8	55,947	77 \	Neighted A	verage	
	8	54,758	ę	99.86% Pei	rvious Area	
		1,189	(	).14% <b>I</b> mpe	ervious Area	а
	т.	1			0	Description
	IC (mine)	Length	Siope	Velocity	Capacity	Description
-	(min) 47.0				(CIS)	
	47.0	150	0.0300	0.05		Sheet Flow, Sheet Woods
	51	161	0.0450	0.52		Woods: Dense underbrush n= 0.800 P2= 2.80 Shallow Concentrated Flow Shallow Concentrated Woods 1
	5.1	101	0.0450	0.55		Errest w/Heavy Litter Ky= 2.5 frs
	4 5	135	0 0050	0 49		Shallow Concentrated Flow Shallow Conc. Meadow
	4.0	100	0.0000	0.40		Short Grass Pasture Ky= 7.0 fps
	4.9	542	0.0690	1.84		Shallow Concentrated Flow. Shallow Concentrated Meadow
						Short Grass Pasture Kv= 7.0 fps
	16.6	705	0.0798	0.71		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Woods 2
						Forest w/Heavy Litter Kv= 2.5 fps
	11.9	1,359	0.0710	1.90	1.90	Channel Flow, Channel Woods
						Area= 1.0 sf Perim= 3.0' r= 0.33'
_						n= 0.100 Earth, dense brush, high stage
	90.0	3,052	Total			

Prepared by Krebs & Lansing Consulting Engineers, Inc. HydroCAD® 10.00 s/n 06429 © 2013 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC



Subcatchment 17S: Post SN003

#### Summary for Subcatchment 18S: Post SN004

Runoff = 7.34 cfs @ 13.02 hrs, Volume= 1.393 af, Depth> 0.83"

Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS, Weighted-CN, Time Span= 5.00-20.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs Type III 24-hr 2 YR 24 HR Rainfall=2.80"

_	Ai	rea (sf)	CN	Description		
	6	37,001	77	Noods, Good, HSG D		
	2	22,209	78	8 Meadow, non-grazed, HSG D		
		9,321	98	Paved park	ing, HSG D	
_		10,922	78	Meadow, no	on-grazed,	HSG D
	8	79,453	77	Weighted A	verage	
	8	70,132	1	98.94% Pei	rvious Area	
		9,321		1.06% <b>I</b> mpe	ervious Area	а
	Тс	Length	Slope	Velocity	Capacity	Description
	(min)	(feet)	(ft/ft)	(ft/sec)	(cfs)	
	21.7	130	0.0140	0.10		Sheet Flow, Sheet Meadow
						Grass: Dense n= 0.240 P2= 2.80"
	0.4	20	0.0120	0.76		Sheet Flow, Sheet, Gravel
						Smooth surfaces n= 0.011 P2= 2.80"
	0.1	14	0.0150	1.97		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Conc. Gravel
						Unpaved Kv= 16.1 fps
	7.0	268	0.0082	0.63		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Meadow Short Grass Pasture Ky= 7.0 fps
	15.4	311	0.0181	0.34		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Woods 1
						Forest w/Heavy Litter Kv= 2.5 fps
	4.8	490	0.0578	1.72	1.72	Channel Flow, Channel Woods 1
						Area= 1.0 sf Perim= 3.0' r= 0.33'
						n= 0.100 Earth, dense brush, high stage
	5.0	176	0.0560	0.59		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Woods 2
						Forest w/Heavy Litter Kv= 2.5 fps
	12.6	604	0.1028	0.80		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Woods 3
						Forest w/Heavy Litter Kv= 2.5 fps
	4.5	566	0.0848	2.08	2.08	Channel Flow, Channel Woods
						Area= 1.0 sf Perim= 3.0' r= 0.33'
_						n= 0.100 Earth, dense brush, high stage
	74 5	0.570	<b>T</b> ( )			

71.5 2,579 Total

Prepared by Krebs & Lansing Consulting Engineers, Inc. HydroCAD® 10.00 s/n 06429 © 2013 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC



Subcatchment 18S: Post SN004

#### Summary for Subcatchment 19S: Post SN005

Runoff = 0.35 cfs @ 12.60 hrs, Volume= 0.048 af, Depth> 0.89"

Area (sf)	CN	Description	l	
14,090	77	Woods, Good, HSG D		
12,858	78	Meadow, n	on-grazed,	HSG D
1,387	98	Paved park	king, HSG D	
28,335	78	Weighted A	verage	
26,948		95 10% Pe	rvious Area	
1 387		4 90% Imp	ervious Area	a
.,				-
c Lenath	Slope	e Velocitv	Capacity	Description
n) (feet)	(ft/ft	) (ft/sec)	(cfs)	
7 67	0.0098	3 0.08		Sheet Flow, Sheet Meadow 1
				Grass: Dense $n = 0.240$ P2= 2.80"
0 78	0.0393	3 0.05		Sheet Flow. Sheet Woods
				Woods: Dense underbrush n= 0.800 P2= 2.80"
6 5	0.182	5 0.15		Sheet Flow. Sheet Meadow 2
				Grass: Dense n= 0.240 P2= 2.80"
1 15	0.127 <sup>-</sup>	2.50		Shallow Concentrated Flow. Shallow Concentrated Meadow
				Short Grass Pasture Kv= 7.0 fps
5 163	0.0580	5.73	5.73	Channel Flow. Channel Meadow
				Area= 1.0 sf Perim= 3.0' r= 0.33'
				n= 0.030 Earth, grassed & winding
9 328	Total			
	Area (sf)   14,090   12,858   1,387   28,335   26,948   1,387   C Length   n) (feet)   .7 67   .0 78   .6 5   .1 15   .5 163   .9 328	Area (sf)   CN     14,090   77     12,858   78     1,387   98     28,335   78     26,948   1,387     1,387   78     26,948   1,387     1,387   78     26,948   1,387     7   67   0.0098     .0   78   0.0393     .6   5   0.1825     .1   15   0.1271     .5   163   0.0580     .9   328   Total	Area (sf)   CN   Description     14,090   77   Woods, Go     12,858   78   Meadow, n     1,387   98   Paved park     28,335   78   Weighted A     26,948   95.10% Pe     1,387   4.90% Imp     Tc   Length   Slope     10   (feet)   (ft/ft)     .7   67   0.0098   0.08     .0   78   0.1825   0.15     .1   15   0.1271   2.50     .5   163   0.0580   5.73     .9   328   Total   0.011	Area (sf)   CN   Description     14,090   77   Woods, Good, HSG D     12,858   78   Meadow, non-grazed,     1,387   98   Paved parking, HSG D     28,335   78   Weighted Average     26,948   95.10% Pervious Area     1,387   4.90% Impervious Area     1,387   Velocity Capacity     n)   (feet)     (ff/ft)   (ff/sec)     .7   67     .0   78     .0   78     .0   78     .0   78     .0   78     .0   78     .0   78     .0   78     .0   78     .0   78     .0   78     .0   78     .0   78     .1   15     .1   15     .1   15     .1   15     .1   15     .1   15

Hydrograph 📘 Runoff 0.38 0.35 cfs 0.36 Type III 24-hr 0.34 2 YR 24 HR Rainfall=2.80" 0.32 0.3 Runoff Area=28,335 sf 0.28 0.26 Runoff Volume=0.048 af 0.24 Runoff Depth>0.89" 0.22 Flow (cfs) 0.2 Flow Length=328' 0.18 Tc=40.9 min 0.16 0.14 CN=78 0.12 0.1 0.08 0.06 0.04 0.02 0-6 ż ģ 14 15 16 17 18 8 10 11 12 13 19 5 20 Time (hours)

#### Subcatchment 19S: Post SN005

#### Summary for Subcatchment 20S: Post SN006

Runoff = 1.56 cfs @ 12.45 hrs, Volume= 0.186 af, Depth> 0.90"

A	rea (sf)	CN	Description		
	75,396	77 \	Noods, Go	od, HSG D	
	29,671	78	Meadow, no	on-grazed,	HSG D
	3,275	98	Paved park	ing, HSG D	
1	08,342	78	Neighted A	verage	
1	05,067	9	96.98% Pe	vious Area	
	3,275	:	3.02% <b>I</b> mpe	ervious Area	a
_				<b>.</b> .	
TC	Length	Slope	Velocity	Capacity	Description
(min)	(teet)	(ft/ft)	(ft/sec)	(cts)	
17.1	150	0.0340	0.15		Sheet Flow, Sheet Meadow
					Grass: Dense n= 0.240 P2= 2.80"
1.2	89	0.0292	1.20		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Meadow
					Short Grass Pasture Kv= 7.0 fps
8.4	381	0.0910	0.75		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Woods 1
					Forest w/Heavy Litter Kv= 2.5 fps
0.1	15	0.0190	2.22		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Conc., Gravel
					Unpaved Kv= 16.1 fps
3.4	200	0.1518	0.97		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Woods 2
					Forest w/Heavy Litter Kv= 2.5 fps
30.2	835	Total			

Prepared by Krebs & Lansing Consulting Engineers, Inc. HydroCAD® 10.00 s/n 06429 © 2013 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC



Subcatchment 20S: Post SN006

Readfield\_Main\_SW\_07-31-23\_V2Type III 24-hr 2 YR 24 HR Rainfall=2.80"Prepared by Krebs & Lansing Consulting Engineers, Inc.Printed 8/3/2023HydroCAD® 10.00 s/n 06429 © 2013 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLCPage 28

# Summary for Link 7L: Pre

Inflow Are	ea =	72.682 ac,	0.57% Impervious, Inflo	ow Depth > 0.85"	for 2 YR 24 HR event
Inflow	=	24.78 cfs @	13.12 hrs, Volume=	5.168 af	
Primary	=	24.78 cfs @	13.12 hrs, Volume=	5.168 af, Atte	en= 0%, Lag= 0.0 min

Primary outflow = Inflow, Time Span= 5.00-20.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs



#### Link 7L: Pre

Readfield\_Main\_SW\_07-31-23\_V2Type III 24-hr 2 YR 24 HR Rainfall=2.80"Prepared by Krebs & Lansing Consulting Engineers, Inc.Printed 8/3/2023HydroCAD® 10.00 s/n 06429 © 2013 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLCPage 29

# Summary for Link 21L: Post

Inflow A	Area	=	72.687 ac,	0.48% Impervious,	Inflow Depth >	0.84" fo	or 2 YR 24 HR event
Inflow	=	=	24.32 cfs @	13.11 hrs, Volume	= 5.084 a	af	
Primary	y =	=	24.32 cfs @	13.11 hrs, Volume	= 5.084 a	af, Atten=	= 0%, Lag= 0.0 min

Primary outflow = Inflow, Time Span= 5.00-20.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs



#### Link 21L: Post

Readfield\_Main\_SW\_07-31-23\_V2Type III 24-hr10 YR 24 HR Rainfall=4.20"Prepared by Krebs & Lansing Consulting Engineers, Inc.Printed8/3/2023HydroCAD® 10.00 s/n 06429 © 2013 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLCPage 30

Time span=5.00-20.00 hrs, dt=0.05 hrs, 301 points Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS, Weighted-CN Reach routing by Stor-Ind+Trans method - Pond routing by Stor-Ind method

Subcatchment1S: Pre SN001	Runoff Area=509,553 sf 0.00% Impervious Runoff Depth>1.77" Flow Length=1,762' Tc=82.2 min CN=77 Runoff=8.59 cfs 1.725 af
Subcatchment 2S: Pre SN002	Runoff Area=784,613 sf 0.00% Impervious Runoff Depth>1.85" Flow Length=1,707' Tc=79.1 min CN=78 Runoff=14.24 cfs 2.770 af
Subcatchment 3S: Pre SN003	Runoff Area=855,947 sf 0.02% Impervious Runoff Depth>1.76" Flow Length=3,053' Tc=89.7 min CN=77 Runoff=13.69 cfs 2.887 af
Subcatchment4S: Pre SN004	Runoff Area=879,255 sf 1.50% Impervious Runoff Depth>1.85" Flow Length=2,580' Tc=72.6 min CN=78 Runoff=16.86 cfs 3.113 af
Subcatchment 5S: Pre SN005	Runoff Area=28,335 sf 4.35% Impervious Runoff Depth>1.87" Flow Length=328' Tc=40.9 min CN=78 Runoff=0.76 cfs 0.102 af
Subcatchment6S: Pre SN006	Runoff Area=108,342 sf 3.02% Impervious Runoff Depth>1.88" Flow Length=835' Tc=30.2 min CN=78 Runoff=3.34 cfs 0.390 af
Subcatchment15S: Post SN001	Runoff Area=509,553 sf 0.00% Impervious Runoff Depth>1.77" Flow Length=1,762' Tc=82.2 min CN=77 Runoff=8.59 cfs 1.725 af
Subcatchment16S: Post SN002	Runoff Area=784,613 sf 0.00% Impervious Runoff Depth>1.85" Flow Length=1,707' Tc=79.1 min CN=78 Runoff=14.24 cfs 2.770 af
Subcatchment17S: Post SN003	Runoff Area=855,947 sf 0.14% Impervious Runoff Depth>1.76" Flow Length=3,052' Tc=90.0 min CN=77 Runoff=13.58 cfs 2.887 af
Subcatchment18S: Post SN004	Runoff Area=879,453 sf 1.06% Impervious Runoff Depth>1.78" Flow Length=2,579' Tc=71.5 min CN=77 Runoff=16.31 cfs 2.990 af
Subcatchment19S: Post SN005	Runoff Area=28,335 sf 4.90% Impervious Runoff Depth>1.87" Flow Length=328' Tc=40.9 min CN=78 Runoff=0.76 cfs 0.102 af
Subcatchment 20S: Post SN006	Runoff Area=108,342 sf 3.02% Impervious Runoff Depth>1.88" Flow Length=835' Tc=30.2 min CN=78 Runoff=3.34 cfs 0.390 af
Link 7L: Pre	Inflow=54.14 cfs 10.987 af Primary=54.14 cfs 10.987 af
Link 21L: Post	Inflow=53.51 cfs 10.864 af Primary=53.51 cfs 10.864 af

Total Runoff Area = 145.369 ac Runoff Volume = 21.851 af Average Runoff Depth = 1.80" 99.48% Pervious = 144.609 ac 0.52% Impervious = 0.760 ac
# Summary for Subcatchment 1S: Pre SN001

Runoff = 8.59 cfs @ 13.11 hrs, Volume= 1.725 af, Depth> 1.77"

Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS, Weighted-CN, Time Span= 5.00-20.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs Type III 24-hr 10 YR 24 HR Rainfall=4.20"

Are	ea (sf)	CN [	Description		
50	9,553	77 \	Noods, Go	od, HSG D	
50	9,553		100.00% Pe	ervious Are	a
Tc (min)	Length (feet)	Slope (ft/ft)	Velocity (ft/sec)	Capacity (cfs)	Description
44.2	150	0.0350	0.06		Sheet Flow, Sheet Woods Woods: Dense underbrush n= 0.800 P2= 2.80"
38.0	1,612	0.0798	0.71		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Woods Forest w/Heavy Litter Kv= 2.5 fps
82.2	1,762	Total			

## Subcatchment 1S: Pre SN001



## Summary for Subcatchment 2S: Pre SN002

Runoff = 14.24 cfs @ 13.09 hrs, Volume= 2.770 af, Depth> 1.85"

Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS, Weighted-CN, Time Span= 5.00-20.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs Type III 24-hr 10 YR 24 HR Rainfall=4.20"

_	Ai	rea (sf)	CN	Description		
	3	20,827	77	Woods, Go	od, HSG D	
	4	63,786	78	Meadow, no	on-grazed,	HSG D
	7	84.613	78	Weighted A	verage	
	7	84,613		100.00% P	ervious Are	a
	Tc (min)	Length (feet)	Slope (ft/ft	e Velocity ) (ft/sec)	Capacity (cfs)	Description
	41.9	150	0.0400	0.06		Sheet Flow, Sheet Woods
						Woods: Dense underbrush n= 0.800 P2= 2.80"
	9.3	196	0.0199	0.35		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Woods 1
						Forest w/Heavy Litter Kv= 2.5 fps
	9.7	258	0.0313	3 0.44		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Woods 2
						Forest w/Heavy Litter Kv= 2.5 fps
	4.5	625	0.1091	I 2.31		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Meadow
	<b>•</b> •	077				Short Grass Pasture Kv= 7.0 fps
	6.1	277	0.0930	) 0.76		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Woods 3
	7.0	004	0 000-			Forest w/Heavy Litter Kv= 2.5 fps
	7.6	201	0.030	0.44		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Woods 4
_						Forest W/Heavy Litter KV= 2.5 fps
	704	4 707	Tatal			

79.1 1,707 Total

Prepared by Krebs & Lansing Consulting Engineers, Inc. HydroCAD® 10.00 s/n 06429 © 2013 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC



Subcatchment 2S: Pre SN002

## Summary for Subcatchment 3S: Pre SN003

Runoff = 13.69 cfs @ 13.24 hrs, Volume= 2.887 af, Depth> 1.76"

Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS, Weighted-CN, Time Span= 5.00-20.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs Type III 24-hr 10 YR 24 HR Rainfall=4.20"

_	A	rea (sf)	CN	Description		
	5	64,677	77 \	Woods, Go	od, HSG D	
	2	91,094	78	Vleadow, no	on-grazed,	HSG D
		176	98	Paved park	ing, HSG D	
-	8	55,947	77 \	Weighted A	verage	
	8	55.771		99.98% Pe	rvious Area	
		<sup>´</sup> 176		0.02% <b>I</b> mpe	ervious Area	a
				•		
	Тс	Length	Slope	Velocity	Capacity	Description
_	(min)	(feet)	(ft/ft)	(ft/sec)	(cfs)	
	47.0	150	0.0300	0.05		Sheet Flow, Sheet Woods
						Woods: Dense underbrush n= 0.800 P2= 2.80"
	9.3	297	0.0450	0.53		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Woods 1
						Forest w/Heavy Litter Kv= 2.5 fps
	4.9	542	0.0690	1.84		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Meadow
						Short Grass Pasture Kv= 7.0 fps
	16.6	705	0.0798	0.71		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Woods 2
						Forest w/Heavy Litter Kv= 2.5 fps
	11.9	1,359	0.0710	1.90	1.90	Channel Flow, Channel Woods
						Area= 1.0 sf Perim= 3.0' r= 0.33'
_						n= 0.100 Earth, dense brush, high stage
	89.7	3,053	Total			

Hydrograph 📘 Runoff 15-13.69 cfs 14-Type III 24-hr 13-10 YR 24 HR Rainfall=4.20" 12-Runoff Area=855,947 sf 11-10-Runoff Volume=2.887 af 9-Runoff Depth>1.76" Flow (cfs) 8 Flow Length=3,053' 7-Tc=89.7 min 6 CN=77 5 4-3-2-1-0-6 ż 8 ģ 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 5 20

Time (hours)

## Subcatchment 3S: Pre SN003

## Summary for Subcatchment 4S: Pre SN004

Runoff = 16.86 cfs @ 13.00 hrs, Volume= 3.113 af, Depth> 1.85"

Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS, Weighted-CN, Time Span= 5.00-20.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs Type III 24-hr 10 YR 24 HR Rainfall=4.20"

_	Ar	rea (sf)	CN	Description		
	6	90,692	77	Woods, Go	od, HSG D	
	1	75,331	78	Meadow, no	on-grazed,	HSG D
_		13,232	98	Paved park	ing, HSG D	
	8	79,255	78	Weighted A	verage	
	8	66,023		98.50% Per	rvious Area	
		13,232		1.50% Impe	ervious Area	a
	То	Longth	Slope	) Volocity	Conosity	Description
	(min)	(feet)	Siope (ft/ff)			Description
-	22 A	135	0 0140	$\frac{10000}{10000}$	(013)	Shoot Flow, Shoot Moodow
	22.4	155	0.0140	0.10		Grass: Dense $n=0.240$ P2= 2.80"
	0.3	15	0.0120	0.72		Sheet Flow Sheet Gravel
	0.0	10	0.0120	0.12		Smooth surfaces $n=0.011$ P2= 2.80"
	7.6	283	0.0078	3 0.62		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Meadow
						Short Grass Pasture Kv= 7.0 fps
	15.4	311	0.0181	1 0.34		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Woods 1
						Forest w/Heavy Litter Kv= 2.5 fps
	4.8	490	0.0578	3 1.72	1.72	Channel Flow, Channel Woods 1
						Area= 1.0 sf Perim= 3.0' r= 0.33'
						n= 0.100 Earth, dense brush, high stage
	5.0	176	0.0560	0.59		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Woods 2
						Forest w/Heavy Litter Kv= 2.5 fps
	12.6	604	0.1028	3 0.80		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Woods 3
						Forest w/Heavy Litter Kv= 2.5 fps
	4.5	566	0.0848	3 2.08	2.08	Channel Flow, Channel Woods
						Area= 1.0 st Perim= 3.0 r= 0.35
_	70.0	0.500	<b><b>T , ,</b></b>			n= 0.100 Earth, dense brush, high stage
	1.1.1.					

72.6 2,580 Total

#### Readfield Main SW 07-31-23 V2

Hydrograph 📘 Runoff 18-16.86 cfs 17-Type III 24-hr 16-10 YR 24 HR Rainfall=4.20" 15-14-Runoff Area=879,255 sf 13 Runoff Volume=3.113 af 12-11-Runoff Depth>1.85" **Flow (cfs)** Flow Length=2,580' 8 Tc=72.6 min 7-CN=78 6 5-4 3 2 1 0-6 8 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 ż ġ 5 20 Time (hours)

# Subcatchment 4S: Pre SN004

## Summary for Subcatchment 5S: Pre SN005

Runoff = 0.76 cfs @ 12.58 hrs, Volume= 0.102 af, Depth> 1.87"

Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS, Weighted-CN, Time Span= 5.00-20.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs Type III 24-hr 10 YR 24 HR Rainfall=4.20"

_	A	rea (sf)	CN	Description		
		14,244	77	Woods, Go	od, HSG D	
		12,858	78	Meadow, n	on-grazed,	HSG D
		1,233	98	Paved park	ing, HSG D	
-		28.335	78	Weighted A	verage	
		27,102		95.65% Pe	rvious Area	
		1,233		4.35% Impe	ervious Area	a
		,		•		
	Тс	Length	Slope	Velocity	Capacity	Description
	(min)	(feet)	(ft/ft)	(ft/sec)	(cfs)	
	14.7	67	0.0098	0.08		Sheet Flow, Sheet Meadow 1
						Grass: Dense n= 0.240 P2= 2.80"
	25.0	78	0.0393	0.05		Sheet Flow, Sheet Woods
						Woods: Dense underbrush n= 0.800 P2= 2.80"
	0.6	5	0.1825	0.15		Sheet Flow, Sheet Meadow 2
						Grass: Dense n= 0.240 P2= 2.80"
	0.1	15	0.1271	2.50		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Meadow
						Short Grass Pasture Kv= 7.0 fps
	0.5	163	0.0580	5.73	5.73	Channel Flow, Channel Meadow
						Area= 1.0 sf Perim= 3.0' r= 0.33'
_						n= 0.030 Earth, grassed & winding
	40.9	328	Total			



## Subcatchment 5S: Pre SN005

## Summary for Subcatchment 6S: Pre SN006

Runoff = 3.34 cfs @ 12.43 hrs, Volume= 0.390 af, Depth> 1.88"

Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS, Weighted-CN, Time Span= 5.00-20.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs Type III 24-hr 10 YR 24 HR Rainfall=4.20"

A	rea (sf)	CN I	Description		
	75,396	77 \	Noods, Go	od, HSG D	
	29,671	78 I	Meadow, n	on-grazed,	HSG D
	3,275	<u>98 I</u>	Paved park	<u>ing, HSG D</u>	
1	08,342	78 V	Neighted A	verage	
1	05,067	ę	96.98% Pei	rvious Area	
	3,275		3.02% <b>I</b> mpe	ervious Area	a
т.	1 0.		\/- <u> </u> '+-	0	Description
IC (mim)	Length	Slope	Velocity	Capacity	Description
<u>(min)</u>	(teet)	(π/π)	(π/sec)	(CTS)	
17.1	150	0.0340	0.15		Sheet Flow, Sheet Meadow
					Grass: Dense n= 0.240 P2= 2.80"
1.2	89	0.0292	1.20		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Meadow
					Short Grass Pasture Kv= 7.0 fps
8.4	381	0.0910	0.75		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Woods 1
					Forest w/Heavy Litter Kv= 2.5 fps
0.1	15	0.0190	2.22		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Conc., Gravel
					Unpaved Kv= 16.1 fps
3.4	200	0.1518	0.97		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Woods 2
					Forest w/Heavy Litter Kv= 2.5 fps
30.2	835	Total			

Hydrograph Runoff 3.34 cfs Type III 24-hr 10 YR 24 HR Rainfall=4.20" 3-Runoff Area=108,342 sf Runoff Volume=0.390 af Runoff Depth>1.88" Flow (cfs) 2-Flow Length=835' Tc=30.2 min CN=78 1 0 6 ż 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 5

Time (hours)

Subcatchment 6S: Pre SN006

# Summary for Subcatchment 15S: Post SN001

Runoff = 8.59 cfs @ 13.11 hrs, Volume= 1.725 af, Depth> 1.77"

Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS, Weighted-CN, Time Span= 5.00-20.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs Type III 24-hr 10 YR 24 HR Rainfall=4.20"

	A	rea (sf)	CN	Description					
	4	68,109	77	Woods, Go	loods, Good, HSG D				
		41,444	78	Meadow, non-grazed, HSG D					
	5	09,553	77	Weighted A	verage				
509,553 100.00% Pervious Area					а				
	Tc (min)	Length (feet)	Slop (ft/fl	e Velocity ) (ft/sec)	Capacity (cfs)	Description			
_	44.2	150	0.035	0 0.06		Sheet Flow, Sheet Woods Woods: Dense underbrush n= 0.800 P2= 2.80"			
	38.0	1,612	0.079	8 0.71		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Woods Forest w/Heavy Litter Kv= 2.5 fps			
_	01 1	1 760	Tatal						

82.2 1,762 Total

## Subcatchment 15S: Post SN001



## Summary for Subcatchment 16S: Post SN002

Runoff = 14.24 cfs @ 13.09 hrs, Volume= 2.770 af, Depth> 1.85"

Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS, Weighted-CN, Time Span= 5.00-20.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs Type III 24-hr 10 YR 24 HR Rainfall=4.20"

Ar	ea (sf)	CN I	Description		
22	20,016	77 \	Noods, Go	od, HSG D	
56	54,580	78 I	Meadow, no	on-grazed,	HSG D
	17	98 I	Paved park	ing, HSG D	
78	34.613	78 \	Neighted A	verage	
78	34,596		100.00% P	ervious Are	а
	17	(	0.00% Impe	ervious Area	a
Тс	Length	Slope	Velocity	Canacity	Description
(min)	(feet)	(ft/ft)	(ft/sec)	(cfs)	
41.9	150	0.0400	0.06		Sheet Flow, Sheet Woods
					Woods: Dense underbrush n= 0.800 P2= 2.80"
9.3	196	0.0199	0.35		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Woods 1
9.7	258	0.0313	0.44		Shallow Concentrated Flow. Shallow Concentrated Woods 2
					Forest w/Heavy Litter Kv= 2.5 fps
4.5	625	0.1091	2.31		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Meadow
					Short Grass Pasture Kv= 7.0 fps
6.1	277	0.0930	0.76		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Woods 3
					Forest w/Heavy Litter Kv= 2.5 fps
7.6	201	0.0307	0.44		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Woods 4
					Forest w/Heavy Litter Kv= 2.5 fps
79.1	1,707	Total			



#### Subcatchment 16S: Post SN002

## Summary for Subcatchment 17S: Post SN003

Runoff = 13.58 cfs @ 13.24 hrs, Volume= 2.887 af, Depth> 1.76"

Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS, Weighted-CN, Time Span= 5.00-20.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs Type III 24-hr 10 YR 24 HR Rainfall=4.20"

_	A	rea (sf)	CN [	Description		
	5	30,763	77 \	Noods, Go	od, HSG D	
	3	23,995	78 N	Meadow, no	on-grazed,	HSG D
_		1,189	98 F	Paved park	ing, HSG D	
	8	55,947	77 \	Neighted A	verage	
	8	54,758	ç	9.86% Pe	rvious Area	
		1,189	(	).14% <b>I</b> mpe	ervious Area	а
	Тс	l enath	Slope	Velocity	Canacity	Description
_	(min)	(feet)	(ft/ft)	(ft/sec)	(cfs)	
	47.0	150	0.0300	0.05		Sheet Flow, Sheet Woods
						Woods: Dense underbrush n= 0.800 P2= 2.80"
	5.1	161	0.0450	0.53		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Woods 1
						Forest w/Heavy Litter Kv= 2.5 fps
	4.5	135	0.0050	0.49		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Conc. Meadow
	4.0	E 40	0 0000	4.04		Short Grass Pasture Kv= 7.0 fps
	4.9	542	0.0690	1.84		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Meadow
	16.6	705	0 0708	0 71		Sholl Grass Pasture INF 7.0 Ips
	10.0	705	0.0790	0.71		Forest w/Heavy Litter Ky= 2.5 fps
	11 9	1 359	0 0710	1 90	1 90	Channel Flow Channel Woods
	11.0	1,000	0.07 10	1.00	1.00	Area= $1.0 \text{ sf}$ Perim= $3.0' \text{ r}= 0.33'$
_						n= 0.100 Earth, dense brush, high stage
	90.0	3,052	Total			



## Subcatchment 17S: Post SN003

## Summary for Subcatchment 18S: Post SN004

Runoff = 16.31 cfs @ 12.97 hrs, Volume= 2.990 af, Depth> 1.78"

Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS, Weighted-CN, Time Span= 5.00-20.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs Type III 24-hr 10 YR 24 HR Rainfall=4.20"

_	A	rea (sf)	CN I	Description		
	6	37,001	77 \	Noods, Go	od, HSG D	
	2	22,209	78 I	Meadow, no	on-grazed,	HSG D
		9,321	98 I	Paved park	ing, HSG D	
_		10,922	78 I	Meadow, no	on-grazed,	HSG D
	8	79,453	77	Neighted A	verage	
	8	70,132	ę	98.94% Pei	rvious Area	
		9,321		1.06% <b>I</b> mpe	ervious Area	a
	Тс	Length	Slope	Velocity	Capacity	Description
	(min)	(feet)	(ft/ft)	(ft/sec)	(cfs)	
	21.7	130	0.0140	0.10		Sheet Flow, Sheet Meadow
						Grass: Dense n= 0.240 P2= 2.80"
	0.4	20	0.0120	0.76		Sheet Flow, Sheet, Gravel
						Smooth surfaces n= 0.011 P2= 2.80"
	0.1	14	0.0150	1.97		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Conc. Gravel
						Unpaved Kv= 16.1 fps
	7.0	268	0.0082	0.63		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Meadow Short Grass Pasture Kv= 7.0 fps
	15.4	311	0.0181	0.34		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Woods 1
						Forest w/Heavy Litter Kv= 2.5 fps
	4.8	490	0.0578	1.72	1.72	Channel Flow, Channel Woods 1
						Area= 1.0 sf Perim= 3.0' r= 0.33'
						n= 0.100 Earth, dense brush, high stage
	5.0	176	0.0560	0.59		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Woods 2
						Forest w/Heavy Litter Kv= 2.5 fps
	12.6	604	0.1028	0.80		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Woods 3
						Forest w/Heavy Litter Kv= 2.5 fps
	4.5	566	0.0848	2.08	2.08	Channel Flow, Channel Woods
						Area= 1.0 sf Perim= 3.0' r= 0.33'
_						n= 0.100 Earth, dense brush, high stage
		0 5 7 0	T - 4 - 1			

71.5 2,579 Total



## Subcatchment 18S: Post SN004

## Summary for Subcatchment 19S: Post SN005

Runoff = 0.76 cfs @ 12.58 hrs, Volume= 0.102 af, Depth> 1.87"

Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS, Weighted-CN, Time Span= 5.00-20.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs Type III 24-hr 10 YR 24 HR Rainfall=4.20"

	Area (sf)	CN I	Description		
	14,090	77 \	Woods, Go	od, HSG D	
	12,858	78 I	Vleadow, n	on-grazed,	HSG D
	1,387	98 I	Paved park	ing, HSG D	
	28.335	78	Weighted A	verage	
	26,948	(	95.10% Pe	rvious Area	
	1,387	4	4.90% Impe	ervious Are	a
	,		•		
To	Length	Slope	Velocity	Capacity	Description
(min)	(feet)	(ft/ft)	(ft/sec)	(cfs)	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
14.7	67	0.0098	0.08		Sheet Flow, Sheet Meadow 1
					Grass: Dense n= 0.240 P2= 2.80"
25.0	78	0.0393	0.05		Sheet Flow, Sheet Woods
					Woods: Dense underbrush n= 0.800 P2= 2.80"
0.6	5	0.1825	0.15		Sheet Flow, Sheet Meadow 2
					Grass: Dense n= 0.240 P2= 2.80"
0.1	15	0.1271	2.50		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Meadow
					Short Grass Pasture Kv= 7.0 fps
0.5	163	0.0580	5.73	5.73	Channel Flow, Channel Meadow
					Area= 1.0 sf Perim= 3.0' r= 0.33'
					n= 0.030 Earth, grassed & winding
40.9	328	Total			



## Subcatchment 19S: Post SN005

## Summary for Subcatchment 20S: Post SN006

Runoff = 3.34 cfs @ 12.43 hrs, Volume= 0.390 af, Depth> 1.88"

Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS, Weighted-CN, Time Span= 5.00-20.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs Type III 24-hr 10 YR 24 HR Rainfall=4.20"

A	rea (sf)	CN I	Description		
	75,396	77 \	Noods, Go	od, HSG D	
	29,671	78 I	Meadow, n	on-grazed,	HSG D
	3,275	<u>98 I</u>	Paved park	<u>ing, HSG D</u>	
1	08,342	78 V	Neighted A	verage	
1	05,067	ę	96.98% Pei	rvious Area	
	3,275		3.02% <b>I</b> mpe	ervious Area	a
т.	1 0.		\/- <u> </u> '+-	0	Description
IC (mim)	Length	Slope	Velocity	Capacity	Description
<u>(min)</u>	(teet)	(π/π)	(π/sec)	(CTS)	
17.1	150	0.0340	0.15		Sheet Flow, Sheet Meadow
					Grass: Dense n= 0.240 P2= 2.80"
1.2	89	0.0292	1.20		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Meadow
					Short Grass Pasture Kv= 7.0 fps
8.4	381	0.0910	0.75		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Woods 1
					Forest w/Heavy Litter Kv= 2.5 fps
0.1	15	0.0190	2.22		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Conc., Gravel
					Unpaved Kv= 16.1 fps
3.4	200	0.1518	0.97		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Woods 2
					Forest w/Heavy Litter Kv= 2.5 fps
30.2	835	Total			

Hydrograph Runoff 3.34 cfs Type III 24-hr 10 YR 24 HR Rainfall=4.20" 3-Runoff Area=108,342 sf Runoff Volume=0.390 af Runoff Depth>1.88" Flow (cfs) 2-Flow Length=835' Tc=30.2 min CN=78 1 0 6 ż 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 5 Time (hours)

#### Subcatchment 20S: Post SN006

Readfield\_Main\_SW\_07-31-23\_V2Type III 24-hr10 YR 24 HR Rainfall=4.20"Prepared by Krebs & Lansing Consulting Engineers, Inc.Printed 8/3/2023HydroCAD® 10.00 s/n 06429 © 2013 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLCPage 53

# Summary for Link 7L: Pre

Inflow A	Area =	72.682 ac,	0.57% Impervious, Ir	flow Depth > 1.81"	for 10 YR 24 HR event
Inflow	=	54.14 cfs @	13.07 hrs, Volume=	10.987 af	
Primary	y =	54.14 cfs @	13.07 hrs, Volume=	10.987 af, At	ten= 0%, Lag= 0.0 min

Primary outflow = Inflow, Time Span= 5.00-20.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs



#### Link 7L: Pre

Readfield\_Main\_SW\_07-31-23\_V2Type III 24-hr10 YR 24 HR Rainfall=4.20"Prepared by Krebs & Lansing Consulting Engineers, Inc.Printed 8/3/2023HydroCAD® 10.00 s/n 06429 © 2013 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLCPage 54

# Summary for Link 21L: Post

Inflow /	Area =	72.687 ac,	0.48% Impervious, I	nflow Depth > 1.79'	' for 10 YR 24 HR event
Inflow	=	53.51 cfs @	13.08 hrs, Volume=	10.864 af	
Primar	y =	53.51 cfs @	13.08 hrs, Volume=	: 10.864 af, A	tten= 0%, Lag= 0.0 min

Primary outflow = Inflow, Time Span= 5.00-20.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs



#### Link 21L: Post

Readfield\_Main\_SW\_07-31-23\_V2Type III 24-hr25 YR 24 HR Rainfall=5.20"Prepared by Krebs & Lansing Consulting Engineers, Inc.Printed8/3/2023HydroCAD® 10.00 s/n 06429 © 2013 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLCPage 55

Time span=5.00-20.00 hrs, dt=0.05 hrs, 301 points Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS, Weighted-CN Reach routing by Stor-Ind+Trans method - Pond routing by Stor-Ind method

Subcatchment1S: Pre SN001	Runoff Area=509,553 sf 0.00% Impervious Runoff Depth>2.53" Flow Length=1,762' Tc=82.2 min CN=77 Runoff=12.31 cfs 2.463 af
Subcatchment 2S: Pre SN002	Runoff Area=784,613 sf 0.00% Impervious Runoff Depth>2.62" Flow Length=1,707' Tc=79.1 min CN=78 Runoff=20.19 cfs 3.928 af
Subcatchment 3S: Pre SN003	Runoff Area=855,947 sf 0.02% Impervious Runoff Depth>2.52" Flow Length=3,053' Tc=89.7 min CN=77 Runoff=19.59 cfs 4.124 af
Subcatchment4S: Pre SN004	Runoff Area=879,255 sf 1.50% Impervious Runoff Depth>2.62" Flow Length=2,580' Tc=72.6 min CN=78 Runoff=23.91 cfs 4.413 af
Subcatchment 5S: Pre SN005	Runoff Area=28,335 sf 4.35% Impervious Runoff Depth>2.66" Flow Length=328' Tc=40.9 min CN=78 Runoff=1.07 cfs 0.144 af
Subcatchment6S: Pre SN006	Runoff Area=108,342 sf 3.02% Impervious Runoff Depth>2.67" Flow Length=835' Tc=30.2 min CN=78 Runoff=4.73 cfs 0.552 af
Subcatchment15S: Post SN001	Runoff Area=509,553 sf 0.00% Impervious Runoff Depth>2.53" Flow Length=1,762' Tc=82.2 min CN=77 Runoff=12.31 cfs 2.463 af
Subcatchment16S: Post SN002	Runoff Area=784,613 sf 0.00% Impervious Runoff Depth>2.62" Flow Length=1,707' Tc=79.1 min CN=78 Runoff=20.19 cfs 3.928 af
Subcatchment17S: Post SN003	Runoff Area=855,947 sf 0.14% Impervious Runoff Depth>2.52" Flow Length=3,052' Tc=90.0 min CN=77 Runoff=19.45 cfs 4.123 af
Subcatchment18S: Post SN004	Runoff Area=879,453 sf 1.06% Impervious Runoff Depth>2.54" Flow Length=2,579' Tc=71.5 min CN=77 Runoff=23.34 cfs 4.269 af
Subcatchment19S: Post SN005	Runoff Area=28,335 sf 4.90% Impervious Runoff Depth>2.66" Flow Length=328' Tc=40.9 min CN=78 Runoff=1.07 cfs 0.144 af
Subcatchment20S: Post SN006	Runoff Area=108,342 sf 3.02% Impervious Runoff Depth>2.67" Flow Length=835' Tc=30.2 min CN=78 Runoff=4.73 cfs 0.552 af
Link 7L: Pre	Inflow=77.08 cfs 15.625 af Primary=77.08 cfs 15.625 af
Link 21L: Post	Inflow=76.29 cfs 15.480 af Primary=76.29 cfs 15.480 af

Total Runoff Area = 145.369 acRunoff Volume = 31.105 afAverage Runoff Depth = 2.57"99.48% Pervious = 144.609 ac0.52% Impervious = 0.760 ac

## Summary for Subcatchment 1S: Pre SN001

Runoff = 12.31 cfs @ 13.09 hrs, Volume= 2.463 af, Depth> 2.53"

Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS, Weighted-CN, Time Span= 5.00-20.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs Type III 24-hr 25 YR 24 HR Rainfall=5.20"

Area (sf)	CN	Description		
509,553	77	Woods, Go	od, HSG D	
509,553		100.00% P	ervious Are	a
Tc Length (min) (feet)	Slope (ft/ft	e Velocity ) (ft/sec)	Capacity (cfs)	Description
44.2 150	0.0350	0.06	\$ F	Sheet Flow, Sheet Woods
38.0 1,612	0.0798	3 0.71		Woods: Dense underbrush n= 0.800 P2= 2.80" Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Woods Forest w/Heavy Litter Kv= 2.5 fps
82.2 1,762	Total			

# Subcatchment 1S: Pre SN001



## Summary for Subcatchment 2S: Pre SN002

Runoff = 20.19 cfs @ 13.08 hrs, Volume= 3.928 af, Depth> 2.62"

Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS, Weighted-CN, Time Span= 5.00-20.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs Type III 24-hr 25 YR 24 HR Rainfall=5.20"

_	Ai	rea (sf)	CN	Description	l	
	3	20,827	77	Woods, Go	od, HSG D	
	4	63,786	78	Meadow, n	on-grazed,	HSG D
	7	84,613	78	Weighted A	verage	
	7	84,613		100.00% P	ervious Are	а
	Та	الم مع مع الم	Class		Consoit	Description
	(min)	(feet)	Siope (ft/ft	) (ft/sec)	Capacity (cfs)	Description
	41.9	150	0.0400	0.06		Sheet Flow, Sheet Woods
						Woods: Dense underbrush n= 0.800 P2= 2.80"
	9.3	196	0.0199	9 0.35		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Woods 1
						Forest w/Heavy Litter Kv= 2.5 fps
	9.7	258	0.031:	3 0.44		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Woods 2
						Forest w/Heavy Litter Kv= 2.5 fps
	4.5	625	0.109 <sup>-</sup>	1 2.31		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Meadow
						Short Grass Pasture Kv= 7.0 fps
	6.1	277	0.0930	0.76		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Woods 3
						Forest w/Heavy Litter Kv= 2.5 fps
	7.6	201	0.030	7 0.44		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Woods 4
_						Forest w/Heavy Litter Kv= 2.5 tps
	79.1	1,707	Total			

#### Readfield Main SW 07-31-23 V2



#### Subcatchment 2S: Pre SN002

## Summary for Subcatchment 3S: Pre SN003

Runoff = 19.59 cfs @ 13.23 hrs, Volume= 4.124 af, Depth> 2.52"

Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS, Weighted-CN, Time Span= 5.00-20.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs Type III 24-hr 25 YR 24 HR Rainfall=5.20"

	A	rea (sf)	CN I	Description		
	5	64,677	77 \	Woods, Go	od, HSG D	
	2	91,094	78	Vleadow, no	on-grazed,	HSG D
		176	98	Paved park	ing, HSG D	
_	8	55,947	77 \	Weighted A	verage	
	8	55,771	9	99.98% Pei	rvious Area	
		<sup>´</sup> 176		0.02% <b>I</b> mpe	ervious Area	a
	Тс	Length	Slope	Velocity	Capacity	Description
_	(min)	(feet)	(ft/ft)	(ft/sec)	(cfs)	
	47.0	150	0.0300	0.05		Sheet Flow, Sheet Woods
						Woods: Dense underbrush n= 0.800 P2= 2.80"
	9.3	297	0.0450	0.53		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Woods 1
						Forest w/Heavy Litter Kv= 2.5 fps
	4.9	542	0.0690	1.84		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Meadow
						Short Grass Pasture Kv= 7.0 fps
	16.6	705	0.0798	0.71		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Woods 2
						Forest w/Heavy Litter Kv= 2.5 fps
	11.9	1,359	0.0710	1.90	1.90	Channel Flow, Channel Woods
						Area= 1.0 sf Perim= 3.0' r= 0.33'
_						n= 0.100 Earth, dense brush, high stage
	89.7	3,053	Total			

#### Readfield Main SW 07-31-23 V2



#### Subcatchment 3S: Pre SN003

## Summary for Subcatchment 4S: Pre SN004

Runoff = 23.91 cfs @ 12.99 hrs, Volume= 4.413 af, Depth> 2.62"

Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS, Weighted-CN, Time Span= 5.00-20.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs Type III 24-hr 25 YR 24 HR Rainfall=5.20"

_	Ar	rea (sf)	CN	Description		
	6	90,692	77	Woods, Go	od, HSG D	
	1	75,331	78	Meadow, no	on-grazed,	HSG D
_		13,232	98	Paved park	ing, HSG D	
	8	79,255	78	Weighted A	verage	
	8	66,023		98.50% Per	rvious Area	
13,232 1.50% <b>I</b>			1.50% Impe	ervious Area	a	
	То	Longth	Slope	) Volocity	Conocity	Description
	(min)	(feet)	Siope (ft/ff)			Description
-	22 A	135	0 0140	$\frac{10000}{10000}$	(013)	Shoot Flow Shoot Maadow
	22.4	155	0.0140	0.10		Grass: Dense $n=0.240$ P2= 2.80"
	0.3	15	0.0120	0.72		Sheet Flow Sheet Gravel
	0.0	10	0.0120	0.12		Smooth surfaces $n = 0.011$ P2= 2.80"
	7.6	283	0.0078	3 0.62		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Meadow
						Short Grass Pasture Kv= 7.0 fps
	15.4	311	0.0181	1 0.34		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Woods 1
						Forest w/Heavy Litter Kv= 2.5 fps
	4.8	490	0.0578	3 1.72	1.72	Channel Flow, Channel Woods 1
						Area= 1.0 sf Perim= 3.0' r= 0.33'
						n= 0.100 Earth, dense brush, high stage
	5.0	176	0.0560	0.59		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Woods 2
						Forest w/Heavy Litter Kv= 2.5 fps
	12.6	604	0.1028	3 0.80		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Woods 3
						Forest w/Heavy Litter Kv= 2.5 fps
	4.5	566	0.0848	3 2.08	2.08	Channel Flow, Channel Woods
						Area= 1.0 st Perim= 3.0' r= 0.35
_	70.0	0.500	<b><b>T , ,</b></b>			n= 0.100 ∟artn, dense brusn, nign stage
	1.1.1.					

72.6 2,580 Total

4-2-0-

5

6

ż

8

ģ

10

11

12

Time (hours)

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

Hydrograph 📘 Runoff 26-23.91 cfs 24 Type III 24-hr 22-25 YR 24 HR Rainfall=5.20" 20-Runoff Area=879,255 sf 18-Runoff Volume=4.413 af 16 Runoff Depth>2.62" (cls) 14-12-12-Flow Length=2,580' Tc=72.6 min 10-CN=78 8-6-

## Subcatchment 4S: Pre SN004

## Summary for Subcatchment 5S: Pre SN005

Runoff = 1.07 cfs @ 12.57 hrs, Volume= 0.144 af, Depth> 2.66"

Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS, Weighted-CN, Time Span= 5.00-20.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs Type III 24-hr 25 YR 24 HR Rainfall=5.20"

A	rea (sf)	CN I	Description		
	14,244	77 \	Noods, Go	od, HSG D	
	12,858	78 I	Meadow, n	on-grazed,	HSG D
	1,233	98 I	Paved park	ing, HSG D	
	28,335	78 V	Neighted A	verage	
	27,102	ę	95.65% Pe	rvious Area	
	1,233	4	4.35% Impe	ervious Area	a
	,		•		
Тс	Length	Slope	Velocity	Capacity	Description
(min)	(feet)	(ft/ft)	(ft/sec)	(cfs)	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
14.7	67	0.0098	0.08		Sheet Flow, Sheet Meadow 1
					Grass: Dense n= 0.240 P2= 2.80"
25.0	78	0.0393	0.05		Sheet Flow, Sheet Woods
					Woods: Dense underbrush n= 0.800 P2= 2.80"
0.6	5	0.1825	0.15		Sheet Flow, Sheet Meadow 2
					Grass: Dense n= 0.240 P2= 2.80"
0.1	15	0.1271	2.50		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Meadow
					Short Grass Pasture Kv= 7.0 fps
0.5	163	0.0580	5.73	5.73	Channel Flow, Channel Meadow
					Area= 1.0 sf Perim= 3.0' r= 0.33'
					n= 0.030 Earth, grassed & winding
40.9	328	Total			

#### Readfield Main SW 07-31-23 V2

Prepared by Krebs & Lansing Consulting Engineers, Inc. HydroCAD® 10.00 s/n 06429 © 2013 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC



Subcatchment 5S: Pre SN005

## Summary for Subcatchment 6S: Pre SN006

Runoff = 4.73 cfs @ 12.42 hrs, Volume= 0.552 af, Depth> 2.67"

Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS, Weighted-CN, Time Span= 5.00-20.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs Type III 24-hr 25 YR 24 HR Rainfall=5.20"

A	rea (sf)	CN	Description		
	75,396	77 \	Noods, Go	od, HSG D	
	29,671	78	Meadow, no	on-grazed,	HSG D
	3,275	98	Paved park	ing, HSG D	
1	08,342	78	Neighted A	verage	
1	05,067	9	96.98% Pe	vious Area	
	3,275	:	3.02% <b>I</b> mpe	ervious Area	a
_				<b>.</b> .	
TC	Length	Slope	Velocity	Capacity	Description
(min)	(teet)	(ft/ft)	(ft/sec)	(cts)	
17.1	150	0.0340	0.15		Sheet Flow, Sheet Meadow
					Grass: Dense n= 0.240 P2= 2.80"
1.2	89	0.0292	1.20		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Meadow
					Short Grass Pasture Kv= 7.0 fps
8.4	381	0.0910	0.75		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Woods 1
					Forest w/Heavy Litter Kv= 2.5 fps
0.1	15	0.0190	2.22		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Conc., Gravel
					Unpaved Kv= 16.1 fps
3.4	200	0.1518	0.97		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Woods 2
					Forest w/Heavy Litter Kv= 2.5 fps
30.2	835	Total			

Hydrograph 📘 Runoff 4.73 cfs 5-Type III 24-hr 25 YR 24 HR Rainfall=5.20" 4-Runoff Area=108,342 sf Runoff Volume=0.552 af Runoff Depth>2.67" 3-Flow (cfs) Flow Length=835' Tc=30.2 min 2-CN=78 1 0-6 ż 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 5 Time (hours)

Subcatchment 6S: Pre SN006
## Summary for Subcatchment 15S: Post SN001

Runoff = 12.31 cfs @ 13.09 hrs, Volume= 2.463 af, Depth> 2.53"

Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS, Weighted-CN, Time Span= 5.00-20.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs Type III 24-hr 25 YR 24 HR Rainfall=5.20"

	A	rea (sf)	CN	Description		
	4	68,109	77	Woods, Goo	od, HSG D	
		41,444	78	Meadow, no	on-grazed,	HSG D
	5	09,553	77	Weighted A	verage	
509,553 100.00% Pervious Area			100.00% Pe	ervious Are	а	
	Tc (min)	Length (feet)	Slop (ft/fl	e Velocity t) (ft/sec)	Capacity (cfs)	Description
	44.2	150	0.035	0 0.06		Sheet Flow, Sheet Woods Woods: Dense underbrush n= 0.800 P2= 2.80"
	38.0	1,612	0.079	8 0.71		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Woods Forest w/Heavy Litter Kv= 2.5 fps
	00.0	1 760	Tatal			

82.2 1,762 Total

# Subcatchment 15S: Post SN001



# Summary for Subcatchment 16S: Post SN002

Runoff = 20.19 cfs @ 13.08 hrs, Volume= 3.928 af, Depth> 2.62"

Ar	ea (sf)	CN I	Description		
22	220,016 77 Woods, Good, HSG D				
56	54,580	78 I	Meadow, no	on-grazed,	HSG D
	17	98 I	Paved park	ing, HSG D	
78	34.613	78 \	Neighted A	verage	
78	34,596		100.00% P	ervious Are	а
	17	(	0.00% Impe	ervious Area	a
Тс	Length	Slope	Velocity	Canacity	Description
(min)	(feet)	(ft/ft)	(ft/sec)	(cfs)	
41.9	150	0.0400	0.06		Sheet Flow, Sheet Woods
					Woods: Dense underbrush n= 0.800 P2= 2.80"
9.3	196	0.0199	0.35		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Woods 1
9.7	258	0.0313	0.44		Shallow Concentrated Flow. Shallow Concentrated Woods 2
					Forest w/Heavy Litter Kv= 2.5 fps
4.5	625	0.1091	2.31		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Meadow
					Short Grass Pasture Kv= 7.0 fps
6.1	277	0.0930	0.76		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Woods 3
					Forest w/Heavy Litter Kv= 2.5 fps
7.6	201	0.0307	0.44		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Woods 4
					Forest w/Heavy Litter Kv= 2.5 fps
79.1	1,707	Total			



Subcatchment 16S: Post SN002

# Summary for Subcatchment 17S: Post SN003

Runoff = 19.45 cfs @ 13.21 hrs, Volume= 4.123 af, Depth> 2.52"

_	A	rea (sf)	CN [	Description		
	5	30,763	77 \	Noods, Go	od, HSG D	
	3	23,995	78 N	Meadow, no	on-grazed,	HSG D
_		1,189	98 F	Paved park	ing, HSG D	)
	8	55,947	77 \	Neighted A	verage	
	8	54,758	ę	9.86% Pe	rvious Area	
		1,189	(	).14% <b>I</b> mpe	ervious Area	а
	т.	1			0	Description
	IC (mine)	Length	Siope	Velocity	Capacity	Description
-	(min)				(CIS)	
	47.0	150	0.0300	0.05		Sheet Flow, Sheet Woods
	51	161	0.0450	0.52		Woods: Dense underbrush n= 0.800 P2= 2.80 Shallow Concentrated Flow Shallow Concentrated Woods 1
	5.1	101	0.0450	0.55		Errest w/Heavy Litter Ky= 2.5 frs
	4 5	135	0 0050	0 49		Shallow Concentrated Flow Shallow Conc. Meadow
	4.0	100	0.0000	0.40		Short Grass Pasture Ky= 7.0 fps
	4.9	542	0.0690	1.84		Shallow Concentrated Flow. Shallow Concentrated Meadow
						Short Grass Pasture Kv= 7.0 fps
	16.6	705	0.0798	0.71		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Woods 2
						Forest w/Heavy Litter Kv= 2.5 fps
	11.9	1,359	0.0710	1.90	1.90	Channel Flow, Channel Woods
						Area= 1.0 sf Perim= 3.0' r= 0.33'
_						n= 0.100 Earth, dense brush, high stage
	90.0	3,052	Total			

0

5

6

ż

8

9

10

11

12

Time (hours)

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

Hydrograph 📘 Runoff 21 19.45 cfs 20-Type III 24-hr 19-18-25 YR 24 HR Rainfall=5.20" 17-16-Runoff Area=855,947 sf 15-Runoff Volume=4.123 af 14-13 Runoff Depth>2.52" Flow (cfs) 12-11 Flow Length=3,052' 10-Tc=90.0 min 9-8-CN=77 7-6-5-4-3-2-1-

## Subcatchment 17S: Post SN003

# Summary for Subcatchment 18S: Post SN004

Runoff = 23.34 cfs @ 12.96 hrs, Volume= 4.269 af, Depth> 2.54"

Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS, Weighted-CN, Time Span= 5.00-20.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs Type III 24-hr 25 YR 24 HR Rainfall=5.20"

_	A	rea (sf)	CN I	Description		
	6	37,001	77 \	Noods, Go	od, HSG D	
	2	22,209	78 I	Meadow, no	on-grazed,	HSG D
		9,321	98 I	Paved park	ing, HSG D	
_		10,922	78 I	Meadow, no	on-grazed,	HSG D
	8	79,453	77	Neighted A	verage	
	8	70,132	ę	98.94% Pei	rvious Area	
		9,321		1.06% <b>I</b> mpe	ervious Area	a
	Тс	Length	Slope	Velocity	Capacity	Description
	(min)	(feet)	(ft/ft)	(ft/sec)	(cfs)	
	21.7	130	0.0140	0.10		Sheet Flow, Sheet Meadow
						Grass: Dense n= 0.240 P2= 2.80"
	0.4	20	0.0120	0.76		Sheet Flow, Sheet, Gravel
						Smooth surfaces n= 0.011 P2= 2.80"
	0.1	14	0.0150	1.97		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Conc. Gravel
						Unpaved Kv= 16.1 fps
	7.0	268	0.0082	0.63		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Meadow Short Grass Pasture Kv= 7.0 fps
	15.4	311	0.0181	0.34		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Woods 1
						Forest w/Heavy Litter Kv= 2.5 fps
	4.8	490	0.0578	1.72	1.72	Channel Flow, Channel Woods 1
						Area= 1.0 sf Perim= 3.0' r= 0.33'
						n= 0.100 Earth, dense brush, high stage
	5.0	176	0.0560	0.59		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Woods 2
						Forest w/Heavy Litter Kv= 2.5 fps
	12.6	604	0.1028	0.80		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Woods 3
						Forest w/Heavy Litter Kv= 2.5 fps
	4.5	566	0.0848	2.08	2.08	Channel Flow, Channel Woods
						Area= 1.0 sf Perim= 3.0' r= 0.33'
_						n= 0.100 Earth, dense brush, high stage
		0 5 7 0	T - 4 - 1			

71.5 2,579 Total



#### Subcatchment 18S: Post SN004

# Summary for Subcatchment 19S: Post SN005

Runoff = 1.07 cfs @ 12.57 hrs, Volume= 0.144 af, Depth> 2.66"

	Area (sf)	CN I	Description		
	14,090	77 \	Woods, Go	od, HSG D	
	12,858	78 I	Vleadow, n	on-grazed,	HSG D
	1,387	98 I	Paved park	ing, HSG D	
	28.335	78	Weighted A	verage	
	26,948	(	95.10% Pe	rvious Area	
	1,387	4	4.90% Impe	ervious Are	a
	,		•		
To	Length	Slope	Velocity	Capacity	Description
(min)	(feet)	(ft/ft)	(ft/sec)	(cfs)	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
14.7	67	0.0098	0.08		Sheet Flow, Sheet Meadow 1
					Grass: Dense n= 0.240 P2= 2.80"
25.0	78	0.0393	0.05		Sheet Flow, Sheet Woods
					Woods: Dense underbrush n= 0.800 P2= 2.80"
0.6	5	0.1825	0.15		Sheet Flow, Sheet Meadow 2
					Grass: Dense n= 0.240 P2= 2.80"
0.1	15	0.1271	2.50		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Meadow
					Short Grass Pasture Kv= 7.0 fps
0.5	163	0.0580	5.73	5.73	Channel Flow, Channel Meadow
					Area= 1.0 sf Perim= 3.0' r= 0.33'
					n= 0.030 Earth, grassed & winding
40.9	328	Total			

# Readfield Main SW 07-31-23 V2

Prepared by Krebs & Lansing Consulting Engineers, Inc. HydroCAD® 10.00 s/n 06429 © 2013 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC



Subcatchment 19S: Post SN005

# Summary for Subcatchment 20S: Post SN006

Runoff = 4.73 cfs @ 12.42 hrs, Volume= 0.552 af, Depth> 2.67"

A	rea (sf)	CN	Description		
	75,396	77	Woods, Go	od, HSG D	
	29,671	78	Meadow, no	on-grazed,	HSG D
	3,275	98	Paved park	ing, HSG D	
1	08,342	78	Weighted A	verage	
1	05,067	1	96.98% Pei	rvious Area	
	3,275		3.02% <b>I</b> mpe	ervious Area	a
_		~		•	
IC	Length	Slope	Velocity	Capacity	Description
(min)	(feet)	(ft/ft)	(ft/sec)	(cfs)	
17.1	150	0.0340	0.15		Sheet Flow, Sheet Meadow
					Grass: Dense n= 0.240 P2= 2.80"
1.2	89	0.0292	1.20		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Meadow
					Short Grass Pasture Kv= 7.0 fps
8.4	381	0.0910	0.75		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Woods 1
					Forest w/Heavy Litter Kv= 2.5 fps
0.1	15	0.0190	2.22		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Conc., Gravel
					Unpaved Kv= 16.1 fps
3.4	200	0.1518	0.97		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Woods 2
					Forest w/Heavy Litter Kv= 2.5 fps
30.2	835	Total			



Subcatchment 20S: Post SN006

Readfield\_Main\_SW\_07-31-23\_V2Type III 24-hr25 YR 24 HR Rainfall=5.20"Prepared by Krebs & Lansing Consulting Engineers, Inc.Printed8/3/2023HydroCAD® 10.00 s/n 06429 © 2013 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLCPage 78

# Summary for Link 7L: Pre

Inflow /	Area =	72.682 ac,	0.57% Impervious, In	flow Depth > 2.58"	for 25 YR 24 HR event
Inflow	=	77.08 cfs @	13.06 hrs, Volume=	15.625 af	
Primar	y =	77.08 cfs @	13.06 hrs, Volume=	15.625 af, Atte	en= 0%, Lag= 0.0 min

Primary outflow = Inflow, Time Span= 5.00-20.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs



#### Link 7L: Pre

Readfield\_Main\_SW\_07-31-23\_V2Type III 24-hr25 YR 24 HR Rainfall=5.20"Prepared by Krebs & Lansing Consulting Engineers, Inc.Printed8/3/2023HydroCAD® 10.00 s/n 06429 © 2013 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLCPage 79

# Summary for Link 21L: Post

Inflow /	Area =	72.687 ac,	0.48% Impervious, Int	flow Depth > 2.56"	for 25 YR 24 HR event
Inflow	=	76.29 cfs @	13.06 hrs, Volume=	15.480 af	
Primar	y =	76.29 cfs @	13.06 hrs, Volume=	15.480 af, Atte	en= 0%, Lag= 0.0 min

Primary outflow = Inflow, Time Span= 5.00-20.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs



#### Link 21L: Post

Readfield\_Main\_SW\_07-31-23\_V2Type III 24-hr50 YR 24 HR Rainfall=6.10"Prepared by Krebs & Lansing Consulting Engineers, Inc.Printed 8/3/2023HydroCAD® 10.00 s/n 06429 © 2013 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLCPage 80

Time span=5.00-20.00 hrs, dt=0.05 hrs, 301 points Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS, Weighted-CN Reach routing by Stor-Ind+Trans method - Pond routing by Stor-Ind method

Subcatchment1S: Pre SN001	Runoff Area=509,553 sf 0.00% Impervious Runoff Depth>3.24" Flow Length=1,762' Tc=82.2 min CN=77 Runoff=15.78 cfs 3.162 af
Subcatchment 2S: Pre SN002	Runoff Area=784,613 sf 0.00% Impervious Runoff Depth>3.35" Flow Length=1,707' Tc=79.1 min CN=78 Runoff=25.71 cfs 5.021 af
Subcatchment 3S: Pre SN003	Runoff Area=855,947 sf 0.02% Impervious Runoff Depth>3.23" Flow Length=3,053' Tc=89.7 min CN=77 Runoff=25.08 cfs 5.296 af
Subcatchment4S: Pre SN004	Runoff Area=879,255 sf 1.50% Impervious Runoff Depth>3.35" Flow Length=2,580' Tc=72.6 min CN=78 Runoff=30.45 cfs 5.641 af
Subcatchment5S: Pre SN005	Runoff Area=28,335 sf 4.35% Impervious Runoff Depth>3.39" Flow Length=328' Tc=40.9 min CN=78 Runoff=1.36 cfs 0.184 af
Subcatchment6S: Pre SN006	Runoff Area=108,342 sf 3.02% Impervious Runoff Depth>3.40" Flow Length=835' Tc=30.2 min CN=78 Runoff=6.02 cfs 0.706 af
Subcatchment15S: Post SN001	Runoff Area=509,553 sf 0.00% Impervious Runoff Depth>3.24" Flow Length=1,762' Tc=82.2 min CN=77 Runoff=15.78 cfs 3.162 af
Subcatchment16S: Post SN002	Runoff Area=784,613 sf 0.00% Impervious Runoff Depth>3.35" Flow Length=1,707' Tc=79.1 min CN=78 Runoff=25.71 cfs 5.021 af
Subcatchment17S: Post SN003	Runoff Area=855,947 sf 0.14% Impervious Runoff Depth>3.23" Flow Length=3,052' Tc=90.0 min CN=77 Runoff=24.93 cfs 5.296 af
Subcatchment18S: Post SN004	Runoff Area=879,453 sf 1.06% Impervious Runoff Depth>3.26" Flow Length=2,579' Tc=71.5 min CN=77 Runoff=29.90 cfs 5.481 af
Subcatchment19S: Post SN005	Runoff Area=28,335 sf 4.90% Impervious Runoff Depth>3.39" Flow Length=328' Tc=40.9 min CN=78 Runoff=1.36 cfs 0.184 af
Subcatchment 20S: Post SN006	Runoff Area=108,342 sf 3.02% Impervious Runoff Depth>3.40" Flow Length=835' Tc=30.2 min CN=78 Runoff=6.02 cfs 0.706 af
Link 7L: Pre	Inflow=98.45 cfs 20.010 af Primary=98.45 cfs 20.010 af
Link 21L: Post	Inflow=97.58 cfs 19.849 af Primary=97.58 cfs 19.849 af

Total Runoff Area = 145.369 ac Runoff Volume = 39.859 af Average Runoff Depth = 3.29" 99.48% Pervious = 144.609 ac 0.52% Impervious = 0.760 ac

# Summary for Subcatchment 1S: Pre SN001

Runoff = 15.78 cfs @ 13.08 hrs, Volume= 3.162 af, Depth> 3.24"

Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS, Weighted-CN, Time Span= 5.00-20.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs Type III 24-hr 50 YR 24 HR Rainfall=6.10"

	A	rea (sf)	CN	Description		
	5	09,553	77	Woods, Go	od, HSG D	
	5	09,553		100.00% P	ervious Are	a
(n	Tc nin)	Length (feet)	Slope (ft/ft)	e Velocity (ft/sec)	Capacity (cfs)	Description
4	4.2	150	0.0350	0.06	, <i>L</i>	Sheet Flow, Sheet Woods Woods: Dense underbrush_n= 0.800_P2= 2.80"
3	8.0	1,612	0.0798	0.71		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Woods Forest w/Heavy Litter Kv= 2.5 fps
8	2.2	1,762	Total			

# Subcatchment 1S: Pre SN001



# Summary for Subcatchment 2S: Pre SN002

Runoff = 25.71 cfs @ 13.08 hrs, Volume= 5.021 af, Depth> 3.35"

_	Ai	rea (sf)	CN	Description		
	3	20,827	77	Woods, Go	od, HSG D	
_	4	63,786	78	Meadow, n	on-grazed,	HSG D
	7	84,613	78	Weighted A	verage	
	7	84,613		100.00% P	ervious Are	a
	_		-		• · ·	
	Tc	Length	Slope		Capacity	Description
_	(min)	(feet)	(ft/ft	) (ft/sec)	(cfs)	
	41.9	150	0.0400	0.06		Sheet Flow, Sheet Woods
						Woods: Dense underbrush n= 0.800 P2= 2.80"
	9.3	196	0.0199	9 0.35		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Woods 1
						Forest w/Heavy Litter Kv= 2.5 fps
	9.7	258	0.0313	3 0.44		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Woods 2
						Forest w/Heavy Litter Kv= 2.5 fps
	4.5	625	0.1091	1 2.31		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Meadow
						Short Grass Pasture Kv= 7.0 fps
	6.1	277	0.0930	0.76		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Woods 3
						Forest w/Heavy Litter Kv= 2.5 fps
	7.6	201	0.0307	7 0.44		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Woods 4
_						Forest w/Heavy Litter Kv= 2.5 fps
	79.1	1,707	Total			

# Readfield Main SW 07-31-23 V2

Prepared by Krebs & Lansing Consulting Engineers, Inc. HydroCAD® 10.00 s/n 06429 © 2013 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC



### Subcatchment 2S: Pre SN002

# Summary for Subcatchment 3S: Pre SN003

Runoff = 25.08 cfs @ 13.23 hrs, Volume= 5.296 af, Depth> 3.23"

_	A	rea (sf)	CN	Description		
	5	64,677	77 \	Woods, Go	od, HSG D	
	2	91,094	78	Vleadow, no	on-grazed,	HSG D
		176	98	Paved park	ing, HSG D	
-	8	55,947	77 \	Weighted A	verage	
	8	55.771		99.98% Pe	rvious Area	
		<sup>´</sup> 176		0.02% <b>I</b> mpe	ervious Area	a
				•		
	Тс	Length	Slope	Velocity	Capacity	Description
_	(min)	(feet)	(ft/ft)	(ft/sec)	(cfs)	
	47.0	150	0.0300	0.05		Sheet Flow, Sheet Woods
						Woods: Dense underbrush n= 0.800 P2= 2.80"
	9.3	297	0.0450	0.53		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Woods 1
						Forest w/Heavy Litter Kv= 2.5 fps
	4.9	542	0.0690	1.84		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Meadow
						Short Grass Pasture Kv= 7.0 fps
	16.6	705	0.0798	0.71		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Woods 2
						Forest w/Heavy Litter Kv= 2.5 fps
	11.9	1,359	0.0710	1.90	1.90	Channel Flow, Channel Woods
						Area= 1.0 sf Perim= 3.0' r= 0.33'
_						n= 0.100 Earth, dense brush, high stage
	89.7	3,053	Total			

Hydrograph 28-📘 Runoff 25.08 cfs 26 Type III 24-hr 24-50 YR 24 HR Rainfall=6.10" 22-Runoff Area=855,947 sf 20-Runoff Volume=5.296 af 18-Runoff Depth>3.23" 16-Flow (cfs) 14 Flow Length=3,053' 12 Tc=89.7 min 10-CN=77 8-6 4-2-0-6 ż 8 ģ 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 5 20 Time (hours)

# Subcatchment 3S: Pre SN003

### Summary for Subcatchment 4S: Pre SN004

Runoff = 30.45 cfs @ 12.98 hrs, Volume= 5.641 af, Depth> 3.35"

Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS, Weighted-CN, Time Span= 5.00-20.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs Type III 24-hr 50 YR 24 HR Rainfall=6.10"

_	Ai	rea (sf)	CN	Description		
	6	90,692	77	Woods, Go	od, HSG D	
	1	75,331	78	Meadow, n	on-grazed,	HSG D
_		13,232	98	Paved park	ing, HSG D	
	8	79,255	78	Weighted A	verage	
	8	66,023		98.50% Pe	rvious Area	
		13,232		1.50% Impe	ervious Area	a
	Тс	l enath	Slope	<ul> <li>Velocity</li> </ul>	Canacity	Description
	(min)	(feet)	(ft/ft	) (ft/sec)	(cfs)	Description
	22.4	135	0.0140	0.10		Sheet Flow, Sheet Meadow
						Grass: Dense n= 0.240 P2= 2.80"
	0.3	15	0.0120	0.72		Sheet Flow, Sheet, Gravel
						Smooth surfaces n= 0.011 P2= 2.80"
	7.6	283	0.0078	3 0.62		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Meadow
	45.4	044	0.0404	0.04		Short Grass Pasture Kv= 7.0 fps
	15.4	311	0.018	0.34		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Woods 1
	1 9	400	0.0579	2 1 7 2	1 7 2	Channel Flow Channel Woods 1
	4.0	490	0.0570	<b>)</b> 1.72	1.72	Area = 1.0 sf. Perime 3.0' $r = 0.33'$
						n = 0.100 Farth dense brush high stage
	5.0	176	0.0560	0.59		Shallow Concentrated Flow Shallow Concentrated Woods 2
	0.0	110	0.0000	0.00		Forest w/Heavy Litter Ky= 2.5 fps
	12.6	604	0.1028	3 0.80		Shallow Concentrated Flow. Shallow Concentrated Woods 3
						Forest w/Heavy Litter Kv= 2.5 fps
	4.5	566	0.0848	3 2.08	2.08	Channel Flow, Channel Woods
						Area= 1.0 sf Perim= 3.0' r= 0.33'
_						n= 0.100 Earth, dense brush, high stage
	72 6	2 500	Totol			

72.6 2,580 Total

Hydrograph 34 📘 Runoff 30 45 cfs 32-Type III 24-hr 30-28-50 YR 24 HR Rainfall=6.10" 26-Runoff Area=879,255 sf 24-Runoff Volume=5.641 af 22 20-Runoff Depth>3.35" (cts) 18-16-Flow Length=2,580' 16 Tc=72.6 min 14 12-CN=78 10-8-6 4 2 0-6 ż 8 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 ġ 5 20 Time (hours)

## Subcatchment 4S: Pre SN004

# Summary for Subcatchment 5S: Pre SN005

Runoff = 1.36 cfs @ 12.56 hrs, Volume= 0.184 af, Depth> 3.39"

A	rea (sf)	CN I	Description		
	14,244	77 \	Noods, Go	od, HSG D	
	12,858	78 I	Meadow, n	on-grazed,	HSG D
	1,233	98 I	Paved park	ing, HSG D	
	28,335	78 V	Neighted A	verage	
	27,102	ę	95.65% Pe	rvious Area	
	1,233	4	4.35% Impe	ervious Area	a
	,		•		
Тс	Length	Slope	Velocity	Capacity	Description
(min)	(feet)	(ft/ft)	(ft/sec)	(cfs)	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
14.7	67	0.0098	0.08		Sheet Flow, Sheet Meadow 1
					Grass: Dense n= 0.240 P2= 2.80"
25.0	78	0.0393	0.05		Sheet Flow, Sheet Woods
					Woods: Dense underbrush n= 0.800 P2= 2.80"
0.6	5	0.1825	0.15		Sheet Flow, Sheet Meadow 2
					Grass: Dense n= 0.240 P2= 2.80"
0.1	15	0.1271	2.50		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Meadow
					Short Grass Pasture Kv= 7.0 fps
0.5	163	0.0580	5.73	5.73	Channel Flow, Channel Meadow
					Area= 1.0 sf Perim= 3.0' r= 0.33'
					n= 0.030 Earth, grassed & winding
40.9	328	Total			

# Readfield Main SW 07-31-23 V2

Prepared by Krebs & Lansing Consulting Engineers, Inc. HydroCAD® 10.00 s/n 06429 © 2013 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC



# Subcatchment 5S: Pre SN005

# Summary for Subcatchment 6S: Pre SN006

Runoff = 6.02 cfs @ 12.42 hrs, Volume= 0.706 af, Depth> 3.40"

A	rea (sf)	CN	Description		
	75,396	77 \	Noods, Go	od, HSG D	
	29,671	78	Meadow, no	on-grazed,	HSG D
	3,275	98	Paved park	ing, HSG D	
1	08,342	78	Neighted A	verage	
1	05,067	9	96.98% Pe	vious Area	
	3,275	:	3.02% <b>I</b> mpe	ervious Area	a
_				<b>.</b> .	
TC	Length	Slope	Velocity	Capacity	Description
(min)	(teet)	(ft/ft)	(ft/sec)	(cts)	
17.1	150	0.0340	0.15		Sheet Flow, Sheet Meadow
					Grass: Dense n= 0.240 P2= 2.80"
1.2	89	0.0292	1.20		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Meadow
					Short Grass Pasture Kv= 7.0 fps
8.4	381	0.0910	0.75		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Woods 1
<b>.</b> .					Forest w/Heavy Litter Kv= 2.5 fps
0.1	15	0.0190	2.22		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Conc., Gravel
					Unpaved Kv= 16.1 fps
3.4	200	0.1518	0.97		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Woods 2
					Forest w/Heavy Litter Kv= 2.5 fps
30.2	835	Total			

Hydrograph Runoff 6.02 cfs Type III 24-hr 6-50 YR 24 HR Rainfall=6.10" 5-Runoff Area=108,342 sf Runoff Volume=0.706 af 4-Runoff Depth>3.40" Flow (cfs) Flow Length=835' 3-Tc=30.2 min CN=78 2-1-0-6 ż 8 ģ 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 5 Time (hours)

Subcatchment 6S: Pre SN006

# Summary for Subcatchment 15S: Post SN001

Runoff = 15.78 cfs @ 13.08 hrs, Volume= 3.162 af, Depth> 3.24"

Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS, Weighted-CN, Time Span= 5.00-20.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs Type III 24-hr 50 YR 24 HR Rainfall=6.10"

/	Area (sf)	CN	Description					
	468,109	77	Woods, Go	Woods, Good, HSG D				
41,444 78 Meadow, non-grazed, HSG D								
509.553 77 Weighted Average			Weighted A	verage				
509,553 100.00% Pervious Area				а				
Tc (min)	Length (feet)	Slop (ft/fl	e Velocity t) (ft/sec)	Capacity (cfs)	Description			
44.2	150	0.035	0 0.06		Sheet Flow, Sheet Woods Woods: Dense underbrush n= 0.800 P2= 2.80"			
38.0	1,612	0.079	8 0.71		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Woods Forest w/Heavy Litter Kv= 2.5 fps			
	4 700	Tatal			· · · ·			

82.2 1,762 Total

# Subcatchment 15S: Post SN001



# Summary for Subcatchment 16S: Post SN002

Runoff = 25.71 cfs @ 13.08 hrs, Volume= 5.021 af, Depth> 3.35"

Ar	ea (sf)	CN I	Description		
22	20,016	77 \	Noods, Go	od, HSG D	
56	64,580	78 I	Meadow, no	on-grazed,	HSG D
	17	98 I	<sup>⊃</sup> aved park	ing, HSG D	
78	34.613	78	Neiahted A	verage	
78	34,596		100.00% Pe	ervious Are	а
	17	(	0.00% Impe	ervious Area	a
Тс	Length	Slone	Velocity	Canacity	Description
(min)	(feet)	(ft/ft)	(ft/sec)	(cfs)	
41.9	150	0.0400	0.06		Sheet Flow, Sheet Woods
					Woods: Dense underbrush n= 0.800 P2= 2.80"
9.3	196	0.0199	0.35		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Woods 1
9.7	258	0.0313	0.44		Shallow Concentrated Flow. Shallow Concentrated Woods 2
					Forest w/Heavy Litter Kv= 2.5 fps
4.5	625	0.1091	2.31		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Meadow
					Short Grass Pasture Kv= 7.0 fps
6.1	277	0.0930	0.76		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Woods 3
					Forest w/Heavy Litter Kv= 2.5 fps
7.6	201	0.0307	0.44		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Woods 4
					Forest w/Heavy Litter Kv= 2.5 fps
79.1	1,707	Total			



### Subcatchment 16S: Post SN002

# Summary for Subcatchment 17S: Post SN003

Runoff = 24.93 cfs @ 13.20 hrs, Volume= 5.296 af, Depth> 3.23"

	A	rea (sf)	CN [	Description		
	5	30,763	77 V	Noods, Go	od, HSG D	
	3	23,995	78 N	Meadow, no	on-grazed,	HSG D
_		1,189	98 F	Paved park	ing, HSG D	
	8	55,947	77 V	Neighted A	verage	
	8	54,758	ç	9.86% Pe	rvious Area	
		1,189	C	).14% <b>I</b> mpe	ervious Area	а
	Та	l e re entre	Clana	Volgeity	Conceitre	Description
	IC (min)	Length				Description
_	(11111)				(05)	
	47.0	150	0.0300	0.05		Sheet Flow, Sheet woods
	51	161	0 0450	0.53		Shallow Concentrated Flow Shallow Concentrated Woods 1
	5.1	101	0.0430	0.00		Forest w/Heavy Litter Ky= 2.5 frs
	4 5	135	0 0050	0 49		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Conc. Meadow
			0.0000	0110		Short Grass Pasture Ky= 7.0 fps
	4.9	542	0.0690	1.84		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Meadow
						Short Grass Pasture Kv= 7.0 fps
	16.6	705	0.0798	0.71		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Woods 2
						Forest w/Heavy Litter Kv= 2.5 fps
	11.9	1,359	0.0710	1.90	1.90	Channel Flow, Channel Woods
						Area= 1.0 sf Perim= 3.0' r= 0.33'
_						n= 0.100 Earth, dense brush, high stage
	90.0	3.052	Total			

Hydrograph 📘 Runoff 24.93 cfs 26-Type III 24-hr 24-50 YR 24 HR Rainfall=6.10" 22-Runoff Area=855,947 sf 20-Runoff Volume=5.296 af 18 Runoff Depth>3.23" **Elow (cfs)** 16-Flow Length=3,052' Tc=90.0 min 10-CN=77 8-6 4-2-0-6 ż 8 ģ 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 5 20 Time (hours)

# Subcatchment 17S: Post SN003

# Summary for Subcatchment 18S: Post SN004

Runoff = 29.90 cfs @ 12.95 hrs, Volume= 5.481 af, Depth> 3.26"

Runoff by SCS TR-20 method, UH=SCS, Weighted-CN, Time Span= 5.00-20.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs Type III 24-hr 50 YR 24 HR Rainfall=6.10"

_	A	rea (sf)	CN	Description		
	6	37,001	77 \	Woods, Go	od, HSG D	
	2	22,209	78	Meadow, n	on-grazed,	HSG D
		9,321	98	Paved park	ing, HSG D	
_		10,922	78	Meadow, n	on-grazed,	HSG D
	8	79,453	77 \	Weighted A	verage	
	8	70,132	9	98.94% Pe	rvious Area	
		9,321		1.06% <b>I</b> mpe	ervious Area	a
	Тс	Length	Slope	Velocity	Capacity	Description
_	(min)	(feet)	(ft/ft)	(ft/sec)	(cfs)	
	21.7	130	0.0140	0.10		Sheet Flow, Sheet Meadow
						Grass: Dense
	0.4	20	0.0120	0.76		Sheet Flow, Sheet, Gravel
						Smooth surfaces $n = 0.011$ P2= 2.80"
	0.1	14	0.0150	1.97		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Conc. Gravel
	7.0	000	0 0000	0.00		Unpaved KV= 16.1 fps
	7.0	268	0.0082	0.63		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Meadow
	15 /	311	0 0181	0.34		Shallow Concontrated Flow Shallow Concontrated Woods 1
	13.4	511	0.0101	0.54		Forest w/Heavy Litter $K_{V} = 2.5$ fres
	48	490	0 0578	1 72	1 72	Channel Flow Channel Woods 1
	1.0	100	0.0070	1.72	1.72	Area= 1.0 sf Perim= 3.0' $r= 0.33'$
						n= 0.100 Earth, dense brush, high stage
	5.0	176	0.0560	0.59		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Woods 2
						Forest w/Heavy Litter Kv= 2.5 fps
	12.6	604	0.1028	0.80		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Woods 3
						Forest w/Heavy Litter Kv= 2.5 fps
	4.5	566	0.0848	2.08	2.08	Channel Flow, Channel Woods
						Area= 1.0 sf Perim= 3.0' r= 0.33'
						n= 0.100 Earth, dense brush, high stage
	74 5	0.570	T . 4 . 1			

71.5 2,579 Total

Hydrograph 📘 Runoff 32-29.90 cfs 30-Type III 24-hr 28-50 YR 24 HR Rainfall=6.10" 26-Runoff Area=879,453 sf 24 22-Runoff Volume=5.481 af 20 Runoff Depth>3.26" (cls) 18-16-14-Flow Length=2,579' 14-Tc=71.5 min 12-CN=77 10 8-6 4-2 0-6 ż 8 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 ġ 5 20 Time (hours)

# Subcatchment 18S: Post SN004

# Summary for Subcatchment 19S: Post SN005

Runoff = 1.36 cfs @ 12.56 hrs, Volume= 0.184 af, Depth> 3.39"

A	rea (sf)	CN	Description		
	14,090	77 \	Woods, Go	od, HSG D	
	12,858	78 I	Meadow, n	on-grazed,	HSG D
	1,387	98	Paved park	ing, HSG D	
	28.335	78	Weighted A	verage	
	26,948		95.10% Pe	rvious Area	
	1.387		4.90% Impe	ervious Are	a
	-,				-
Тс	Length	Slope	Velocity	Capacity	Description
(min)	(feet)	(ft/ft)	(ft/sec)	(cfs)	'
14.7	67	0.0098	0.08		Sheet Flow, Sheet Meadow 1
					Grass: Dense n= 0.240 P2= 2.80"
25.0	78	0.0393	0.05		Sheet Flow, Sheet Woods
					Woods: Dense underbrush n= 0.800 P2= 2.80"
0.6	5	0.1825	0.15		Sheet Flow, Sheet Meadow 2
					Grass: Dense n= 0.240 P2= 2.80"
0.1	15	0.1271	2.50		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Meadow
					Short Grass Pasture Kv= 7.0 fps
0.5	163	0.0580	5.73	5.73	Channel Flow, Channel Meadow
					Area= 1.0 sf Perim= 3.0' r= 0.33'
					n= 0.030 Earth, grassed & winding
40.9	328	Total			

# Readfield Main SW 07-31-23 V2

Prepared by Krebs & Lansing Consulting Engineers, Inc. HydroCAD® 10.00 s/n 06429 © 2013 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLC



# Subcatchment 19S: Post SN005

# Summary for Subcatchment 20S: Post SN006

Runoff = 6.02 cfs @ 12.42 hrs, Volume= 0.706 af, Depth> 3.40"

A	rea (sf)	CN	Description		
	75,396	77 \	Noods, Go	od, HSG D	
	29,671	78	Meadow, no	on-grazed,	HSG D
	3,275	98	Paved park	ing, HSG D	
1	08,342	78	Neighted A	verage	
1	05,067	9	96.98% Pei	rvious Area	
	3,275		3.02% <b>I</b> mpe	ervious Area	а
Тс	Length	Slope	Velocity	Capacity	Description
<u>(min)</u>	(feet)	(ft/ft)	(ft/sec)	(cfs)	
17.1	150	0.0340	0.15		Sheet Flow, Sheet Meadow
					Grass: Dense n= 0.240 P2= 2.80"
1.2	89	0.0292	1.20		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Meadow
					Short Grass Pasture Kv= 7.0 fps
8.4	381	0.0910	0.75		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Woods 1
<b>.</b> .	. –				Forest w/Heavy Litter Kv= 2.5 fps
0.1	15	0.0190	2.22		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Conc., Gravel
<b>.</b>	~~~				Unpaved Kv= 16.1 fps
3.4	200	0.1518	0.97		Shallow Concentrated Flow, Shallow Concentrated Woods 2
					Forest W/Heavy Litter Kv= 2.5 fps
30.2	835	Total			



Subcatchment 20S: Post SN006
Readfield\_Main\_SW\_07-31-23\_V2Type III 24-hr50 YR 24 HR Rainfall=6.10"Prepared by Krebs & Lansing Consulting Engineers, Inc.Printed 8/3/2023HydroCAD® 10.00 s/n 06429 © 2013 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLCPage 103

#### Summary for Link 7L: Pre

Inflow A	Area =	72.682 ac,	0.57% Impervious, Inflo	w Depth > 3.30"	for 50 YR 24 HR event
Inflow	=	98.45 cfs @	13.05 hrs, Volume=	20.010 af	
Primary	y =	98.45 cfs @	13.05 hrs, Volume=	20.010 af, Atte	en= 0%, Lag= 0.0 min

Primary outflow = Inflow, Time Span= 5.00-20.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs



#### Link 7L: Pre

Readfield\_Main\_SW\_07-31-23\_V2Type III 24-hr50 YR 24 HR Rainfall=6.10"Prepared by Krebs & Lansing Consulting Engineers, Inc.Printed 8/3/2023HydroCAD® 10.00 s/n 06429 © 2013 HydroCAD Software Solutions LLCPage 104

#### Summary for Link 21L: Post

Inflow /	Area =	72.687 ac,	0.48% Impervious, Inflo	w Depth > 3.28"	for 50 YR 24 HR event
Inflow	=	97.58 cfs @	13.05 hrs, Volume=	19.849 af	
Primary	y =	97.58 cfs @	13.05 hrs,  Volume=	19.849 af, Atte	en= 0%,  Lag= 0.0 min

Primary outflow = Inflow, Time Span= 5.00-20.00 hrs, dt= 0.05 hrs



#### Link 21L: Post

ATTACHMENT F: AGENCY CORRESPONDENCE





Stantec Consulting Services Inc. 30 Park Drive, Topsham ME 04086-1737

November 1, 2021 File: 195602046

Attention: Mr. Kirk F. Mohney, Director Maine Historic Preservation Commission 65 State House Station Augusta, ME 04333-0065

#### Reference: Significant Cultural / Historic Resources Information Request - Readfield, Maine

#### Dear Mr. Mohney,

The purpose of this letter is to request information on any significant cultural or historic resources associated with the location depicted on the attached project location map (Attachment 1). We are assisting Norwich Solar Technologies with evaluating this site for a proposed commercial solar energy project on Route 17 (Readfield Road) in Readfield, Maine (Project).

The Project is still in the design phase; therefore, a preliminary layout is not yet available. Please review the map in Attachment 1 and advise if there are any known or suspected cultural or historic resources associated with this potential development area. Adjacent parcels that contain buildings are depicted in relation to the Project area as numbered symbols on the figure in Attachment 2. None of the buildings identified were estimated to be greater than 50 years old based on the viewpoints obtained from Google Maps.<sup>1</sup> Details of each resource location and building age are included in Table 1 below and Attachment 2. Representative photographs of buildings locations are contained in Attachment 3.

Building Number on Attachment 2	Tax Map / Lot Number	Estimated Building Age > 50 years old <sup>1</sup>	Photo Number
1	143/013	N	1
2	143/002	N	2
3	143/015	N	3
4	143/016	N	4

Table 1	. Project	Adjacent	Building	Details,	Readfield	Project	Site
---------	-----------	----------	----------	----------	-----------	---------	------

<sup>1</sup> Google Maps. 2021. Street View. Available online at: https://www.google.com/maps. Accessed October 29, 2021.

Although a Project layout is not yet available, it is anticipated that there will be no Project visibility from any of the identified adjacent building locations due to the existing forested buffers between the building locations and the Project area.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> Google Maps. 2021. Street View. Available online at: https://www.google.com/maps. Accessed October 29, 2021.

November 1, 2021 Mr. Kirk F. Mohney, Director Page 2 of 2

Reference: Significant Cultural / Historic Resources Information Request – Readfield, Maine

Should you have any questions, please feel free to contact me. Thank you for your assistance in obtaining this information.

Regards,

Stantec Consulting Services Inc.

Eben Babe

Eben Baker PWS, Ecologist Project Scientist Phone: 207 747 9407 eben.baker@stantec.com

Attachments:

Attachment 1 – Project Location Map Attachment 2 – Building Locations Attachment 3 – Representative Photographs

> Based on the information submitted, I have concluded that there will be no historic properties affected by the proposed undertaking, as defined by Section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act. Consequently, pursuant to 36 CFR 800.4(d)(1), no further Section 106 consultation is required unless additional resources are discovered during project implementation pursuant to 36 CFR 800.13.

. Mohney Kul

21

Kirk F. Mohney, State Historic Preservation Officer Maine Aistoric Preservation Commission

MHPC 1794-21



STATE OF MAINE DEPARTMENT OF INLAND FISHERIES & WILDLIFE 353 WATER STREET 41 STATE HOUSE STATION AUGUSTA ME 04333-0041



December 2, 2021

Eben Baker Stantec 30 Park Drive Topsham, ME 04086

#### RE: Information Request - Norwich Solar Technologies Solar Project, Readfield

Dear Eben:

Per your request received on November 02, 2021, we have reviewed current Maine Department of Inland Fisheries and Wildlife (MDIFW) information for known locations of Endangered, Threatened, and Special Concern species; designated Essential and Significant Wildlife Habitats; and inland fisheries habitat concerns within the vicinity of the *Norwich Solar Technologies Solar, Readfield* project. Note that as project details are lacking, our comments are non-specific and should be considered preliminary.

Our Department has not mapped any Essential Habitats that would be directly affected by your project.

#### Endangered, Threatened, and Special Concern Species

<u>Bats</u> - Of the eight species of bats that occur in Maine, the three *Myotis* species are afforded special\_ protection under Maine's Endangered Species Act (MESA, 12 M.R.S §12801 et. seq.): little brown bat (State Endangered), northern long-eared bat (State Endangered), and eastern small-footed bat (State Threatened). The five remaining bat species are designated as Species of Special Concern: big brown bat, red bat, hoary bat, silver-haired bat, and tri-colored bat. While a comprehensive statewide inventory for bats has not been completed, based on historical evidence, it is likely that several of these species occur within the project area during the fall/spring migration, the summer breeding season, and/or for overwintering. If the proposed project has a Federal nexus, either via funding or permitting, or if the project is not consistent with the USFWS "4(d) Rule", we recommend that you contact the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service--Maine Fish and Wildlife Complex (Wende Mahaney, <u>Wende\_Mahaney@fws.gov</u>, 207-902-1569) for further guidance on their perspective, as the northern long-eared bat is also listed as a Threatened Species under the Federal Endangered Species Act. The USFWS "4(d) Rule" provides guidance for protection of bat winter hibernacula and maternity roost trees for northern long-eared bats (see <u>https://www.fws.gov/midwest/endangered/mammals/nleb/4drule.html</u>). MDIFW Endangered Species Rules for bats (Chapter 8.06; see link at

<u>http://www.maine.gov/sos/cec/rules/09/137/137c008.docx</u>) provide equivalent seasonal protection of maternity roost trees for any of the three state-listed bats, seasonally prohibits entry into subsurface winter hibernacula, and has additional protections for tree removal within <sup>1</sup>/<sub>4</sub> mile of subsurface winter hibernacula. At present, no maternity roost trees have been designated for protection.

In addition to traditional hibernacula like caves and old mines, recent findings indicate that *Myotis* and big brown bats may also overwinter in exposed rocky features. To date, Maine talus and rocky outcrop studies have focused on relatively exposed slopes with minimal canopy cover, although ongoing research has shown that bats use rocky areas under the forest canopy. Occupied talus slopes in Maine have

#### Letter to Eben Baker, Stantec Comments RE: Norwich Solar Technologies Solar, Readfield December 2, 2021

consisted of variable rock sizes, ranging in size from softball-sized to car-sized boulders. Rock piles, rock ledges, and small vertical cracks in rocks (>1/2-inch-wide) create crevices that allow bats to access deeper cavities that provide protection for predators and suitable temperature and humidity conditions. Some species of bat, like the eastern small-footed bat, use rocky features year-round. A desktop GIS analysis does not indicate the presence of these features in your project area; however, not all talus and rocky features have been mapped statewide. Therefore, we advise that all areas of talus and rocky features of approximately 1,000 square feet or greater in size be documented on and within 250 feet of your project area, including smaller areas of rock piles and tailings (i.e., quarry spoils). See attached photographs for representative features—these photographs are not all-inclusive and should be used for guidance purposes only. Detailed photographs and coordinates should be submitted to MDIFW for review, and acoustic monitoring may be recommended to document occupancy. Alternatively, these features should be appropriately buffered commensurate with the size and layout of the project. If these features are not present in the project area, our Agency does not anticipate significant impacts to any of the bat species as a result of this project based on currently best available science.

#### Significant Wildlife Habitat

<u>Significant Vernal Pools</u> - At this time MDIFW Significant Wildlife Habitat (SWH) maps indicate no known presence of SWHs subject to protection under the Natural Resources Protection Act (NRPA) within the project area, which include Waterfowl and Wading Bird Habitats, Seabird Nesting Islands, Shorebird Areas, and Significant Vernal Pools. However, a comprehensive statewide inventory for Significant Vernal Pools has not been completed. Therefore, we recommend that surveys for vernal pools be conducted within the project boundary by qualified wetland scientists prior to final project design to determine whether there are Significant Vernal Pools present in the area. These surveys should extend up to 250 feet beyond the anticipated project footprint because of potential performance standard requirements for off-site Significant Vernal Pools, assuming such pools are located on land owned or controlled by the applicant. Once surveys are completed, survey forms should be submitted to our Agency for review well before the submission of any necessary permits. Our Department will need to review and verify any vernal pool data prior to final determination of significance.

#### Fisheries Habitat

We generally recommend maintaining 100-foot undisturbed vegetated buffers from the upland edge of all intermittent and perennial streams and any contiguous wetlands. Maintaining and enhancing buffers along these resources is critical to the protection of water temperatures, water quality, natural inputs of coarse woody debris, and various forms of aquatic life necessary to support fish and other aquatic species. Riparian buffers also provide critical habitat and important travel corridors for a variety of wildlife species. Stream crossings should be avoided, but if a stream crossing is necessary, or an existing crossing needs to be modified, it should be designed to provide for full aquatic passage. Small streams, including intermittent streams, can provide crucial rearing habitat, cold water for thermal refugia, and abundant food for juvenile salmonids on a seasonal basis. Undersized crossings may inhibit these functions and become a frequent maintenance problem that causes reoccurring damage to the resource. Generally, MDIFW recommends that all new, modified, and replacement stream crossings be sized to span at least 1.2 times the bankfull width of the stream. In addition, we generally recommend that stream crossings be open bottomed (i.e. natural bottom), although embedded structures which are backfilled with representative streambed material have been shown to be effective in providing habitat connectivity for fish and other aquatic organisms. Construction Best Management Practices should be closely followed to avoid erosion, sedimentation, alteration of stream flow, and other impacts as eroding soils can travel

Letter to Eben Baker, Stantec Comments RE: Norwich Solar Technologies Solar, Readfield December 2, 2021

significant distances as well as transport other pollutants resulting in direct impacts to fish, other aquatic life, and their habitats. In addition, we recommend that any necessary instream work occur between July 15 and October 1.

#### Wildlife Permeable Fencing

To enhance the use of the project area by smaller animals, and in consideration of the need for site safety and security, we recommend the use of wildlife-permeable fencing. Options for wildlife-permeable fencing includes the use of larger mesh fencing, similar to typical highway right-of-way fencing, with large (12-in. x 12-in.) holes along the bottom of the fence, spaced evenly along the entire perimeter of the fence line every 20-25 feet. Alternatively, the fence can be installed so that there is at least 12 inches of clearance along the entire perimeter bottom.

This consultation review has been conducted specifically for known MDIFW jurisdictional features and should not be interpreted as a comprehensive review for the presence of other regulated features that may occur in this area. Prior to the start of any future site disturbance we recommend additional consultation with the municipality, and other state resource agencies including the Maine Natural Areas Program, Maine Department of Marine Resources, and Maine Department of Environmental Protection in order to avoid unintended protected resource disturbance.

Please feel free to contact my office if you have any questions regarding this information, or if I can be of any further assistance.

Best regards,

Becca Settele Wildlife Biologist



#### **Representative Photographs of Suitable Bat Rock-Roosting Sites**

Prepared by the Maine Department of Inland Fisheries and Wildlife *Photographs are for guidance only and should not be considered all-inclusive. Arrows indicate sites of rock-roosting bats.* 

Photographs used by permission: Paul R. Moosman, Jr., Department of Biology, Virginia Military Institute



















STATE OF MAINE DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE, CONSERVATION & FORESTRY

> 177 State House Station Augusta, Maine 04333

Amanda E. Beal Commissioner

JANET T. MILLS GOVERNOR

November 5, 2021

Eben Baker Stantec 30 Park Drive Topsham, ME 04086

Via email: <u>eben.baker@stantec.com</u>

Re: Rare and exemplary botanical features in proximity to: #195602046, Norwich Solar Technologies, Route 17, Readfield, Maine

Dear Mr. Baker:

I have searched the Maine Natural Areas Program's Biological and Conservation Data System files in response to your request received November 1, 2021 for information on the presence of rare or unique botanical features documented from the vicinity of the project in Readfield, Maine. Rare and unique botanical features include the habitat of rare, threatened, or endangered plant species and unique or exemplary natural communities. Our review involves examining maps, manual and computerized records, other sources of information such as scientific articles or published references, and the personal knowledge of staff or cooperating experts.

Our official response covers only botanical features. For authoritative information and official response for zoological features you must make a similar request to the Maine Department of Inland Fisheries and Wildlife, 284 State Street, Augusta, Maine 04333.

According to the information currently in our Biological and Conservation Data System files, there are no rare botanical features documented specifically within the project area. This lack of data may indicate minimal survey efforts rather than confirm the absence of rare botanical features. You may want to have the site inventoried by a qualified field biologist to ensure that no undocumented rare features are inadvertently harmed.

If a field survey of the project area is conducted, please refer to the enclosed supplemental information regarding rare and exemplary botanical features documented to occur in the vicinity of the project site. The list may include information on features that have been known to occur historically in the area as well as recently field-verified information. While historic records have not been documented in several years, they may persist in the area if suitable habitat exists. The enclosed list identifies features with potential to occur in the area, and it should be considered if you choose to conduct field surveys.

This finding is available and appropriate for preparation and review of environmental assessments, but it is not a substitute for on-site surveys. Comprehensive field surveys do not exist for all natural areas in Maine, and in the absence of a specific field investigation, the Maine Natural Areas Program cannot provide a definitive statement on the presence or absence of unusual natural features at this site.

MOLLY DOCHERTY, DIRECTOR MAINE NATURAL AREAS PROGRAM BLOSSOM LANE, DEERING BUILDING



PHONE: (207) 287-804490 WWW.MAINE.GOV/DACF/MNAP Letter to Stantec Comments RE: Norwich Solar, Readfield November 5, 2021 Page 2 of 2

The Maine Natural Areas Program (MNAP) is continuously working to achieve a more comprehensive database of exemplary natural features in Maine. We would appreciate the contribution of any information obtained should you decide to do field work. MNAP welcomes coordination with individuals or organizations proposing environmental alteration or conducting environmental assessments. If, however, data provided by MNAP are to be published in any form, the Program should be informed at the outset and credited as the source.

The Maine Natural Areas Program has instituted a fee structure of \$75.00 an hour to recover the actual cost of processing your request for information. You will receive an invoice for \$150.00 for two hours of our services.

Thank you for using MNAP in the environmental review process. Please do not hesitate to contact me if you have further questions about the Natural Areas Program or about rare or unique botanical features on this site.

Sincerely,

Krit Ping

Kristen Puryear | Ecologist | Maine Natural Areas Program 207-287-8043 | <u>kristen.puryear@maine.gov</u>

#### Rare and Exemplary Botanical Features within 4 miles of Project: #195602046, Norwich Solar, Readfield, Maine

Common Name	State Status	State Rank	Global Rank	Date Last Observed	Occurrence Number	Habitat
Adder's Tongue Fern						
	SC	S1	G5	1924-07	8	Non-tidal rivershore (non-forested, seasonally wet),Open wetland, not coastal nor rivershore (non-forested, wetland),Old field/roadside (non-forested, wetland or upland)
American Ginseng						
	E	S3	G3G4	1907-07-28	18	Hardwood to mixed forest (forest, upland)
Blunt-lobed Woodsia						
	Т	S1	G5	1932	5	Rocky summits and outcrops (non-forested, upland),Hardwood to mixed forest (forest, upland)
Broad Beech Fern						
	SC	S2	G5	1998-06-25	1	Hardwood to mixed forest (forest, upland)
	SC	S2	G5	1895-08-17	12	Hardwood to mixed forest (forest, upland)
Columbia Water-mea	I					
	SC	S2	G5	2020-08-25	10	Open water (non-forested, wetland)
Ebony Spleenwort						
	SC	S2	G5	1987-08-07	4	Rocky summits and outcrops (non-forested, upland),Hardwood to mixed forest (forest, upland)
Fragrant Wood Fern						
	SC	S3	G5	1932	29	Rocky summits and outcrops (non-forested, upland), Alpine or subalpine (non-forested, upland)
Indian Grass						
	E	S1	G5	1933-07-12	9	Non-tidal rivershore (non-forested, seasonally wet)
Mountain Honeysuck	le					
	E	S2	G5	1975-pre	1	Dry barrens (partly forested, upland),Hardwood to mixed forest (forest, upland)
Northern Hardwoods	Forest					
	<null></null>	S5	G3G5	1998-06-25	4	Hardwood to mixed forest (forest, upland)
Maine Natural Areas Pro	gram		Page 1 of 2			www.maine.gov/dacf/mnap

#### Rare and Exemplary Botanical Features within 4 miles of Project: #195602046, Norwich Solar, Readfield, Maine

Common Name	State Status	State Rank	Global Rank	Date Last Observed	Occurrence Number	Habitat	
Showy Lady's-slipper							
	SC	S3	G4G5	1903-06	33	Forested wetland, Open wetland, not coastal nor rivershore (non-forested, wetland)	
	SC	S3	G4G5	1874-07-04	36	Forested wetland, Open wetland, not coastal nor rivershore (non-forested, wetland)	
Stiff Arrowhead							
	SC	S2	G5	2016-08-29	12	Tidal wetland (non-forested, wetland)	
Water Stargrass							
	SC	S3	G5	2020-07-19	7	Open water (non-forested, wetland)	
White Adder's-mouth							
	E	S1	G5T4T5	1878-06	15	Forested wetland	

Maine Natural Areas Program

Page 2 of 2

www.maine.gov/dacf/mnap

### **Conservation Status Ranks**

**State and Global Ranks**: This ranking system facilitates a quick assessment of a species' or habitat type's rarity and is the primary tool used to develop conservation, protection, and restoration priorities for individual species and natural habitat types. Each species or habitat is assigned both a state (S) and global (G) rank on a scale of 1 to 5. Factors such as range extent, the number of occurrences, intensity of threats, etc., contribute to the assignment of state and global ranks. The definitions for state and global ranks are comparable but applied at different geographic scales; something that is state imperiled may be globally secure.

The information supporting these ranks is developed and maintained by the Maine Natural Areas Program (state ranks) and NatureServe (global ranks).

Rank	Definition
S1	Critically Imperiled – At very high risk of extinction or elimination due to very restricted
G1	range, very few populations or occurrences, very steep declines, very severe threats, or
	other factors.
S2	Imperiled – At high risk of extinction or elimination due to restricted range, few
G2	populations or occurrences, steep declines, severe threats, or other factors.
S3	<b>Vulnerable</b> – At moderate risk of extinction or elimination due to a fairly restricted range,
G3	relatively few populations or occurrences, recent and widespread declines, threats, or
	other factors.
S4	Apparently Secure – At fairly low risk of extinction or elimination due to an extensive
G4	range and/or many populations or occurrences, but with possible cause for some concern
	as a result of local recent declines, threats, or other factors.
S5	Secure – At very low risk or extinction or elimination due to a very extensive range,
G5	abundant populations or occurrences, and little to no concern from declines or threats.
SX	<b>Presumed Extinct</b> – Not located despite intensive searches and virtually no likelihood of
GX	rediscovery.
SH	Possibly Extinct – Known from only historical occurrences but still some hope of
GH	rediscovery.
S#S#	Range Rank – A numeric range rank (e.g., S2S3 or S1S3) is used to indicate any range of
G#G#	uncertainty about the status of the species or ecosystem.
SU	<b>Unrankable</b> – Currently unrankable due to lack of information or due to substantially
GU	conflicting information about status or trends.
GNR	<b>Unranked</b> – Global or subnational conservation status not yet assessed.
SNR	
SNA	<b>Not Applicable</b> – A conservation status rank is not applicable because the species or
GNA	ecosystem is not a suitable target for conservation activities (e.g., non-native species or
	ecosystems.
Qualifier	Definition
S#?	Inexact Numeric Rank – Denotes inexact numeric rank.
G#?	
Q	Questionable taxonomy that may reduce conservation priority – Distinctiveness of this
	entity as a taxon or ecosystem type at the current level is questionable. The "Q" modifier
	is only used at a global level.
T#	Infraspecific Taxon (trinomial) – The status of infraspecific taxa (subspecies or varieties)
	are indicated by a "T-rank" following the species' global rank.

**State Status**: Endangered and Threatened are legal status designations authorized by statute. Please refer to MRSA Title 12, §544 and §544-B.

Status	Definition
E	Endangered – Any native plant species in danger of extinction throughout all or a
	significant portion of its range within the State or Federally listed as Endangered.
Т	Threatened – Any native plant species likely to become endangered within the
	foreseeable future throughout all or a significant portion of its range in the State or
	Federally listed as Threatened.
SC	<b>Special Concern</b> – A native plant species that is rare in the State, but not rare enough to
	be considered Threatened or Endangered.
PE	Potentially Extirpated – A native plant species that has not been documented in the State
	in over 20 years, or loss of the last known occurrence.

**Element Occurrence (EO) Ranks**: Quality assessments that designate viability of a population or integrity of habitat. These ranks are based on size, condition, and landscape context. Range ranks (e.g., AB, BC) and uncertainty ranks (e.g., B?) are allowed. The Maine Natural Areas Program tracks all occurrences of rare plants and natural communities/ecosystems (S1-S3) as well as exemplary common natural community types (S4-S5 with EO ranks A/B).

Rank	Definition
Α	Excellent – Excellent estimated viability/ecological integrity.
В	Good – Good estimated viability/ecological integrity.
С	Fair – Fair estimated viability/ecological integrity.
D	<b>Poor</b> – Poor estimated viability/ecological integrity.
E	Extant – Verified extant, but viability/ecological integrity not assessed.
н	Historical – Lack of field information within past 20 years verifying continued existence of
	the occurrence, but not enough to document extirpation.
Х	Extirpated – Documented loss of population/destruction of habitat.
U	<b>Unrankable</b> – Occurrence unable to be ranked due to lack of sufficient information (e.g.,
	possible mistaken identification).
NR	Not Ranked – An occurrence rank has not been assigned.

Visit the Maine Natural Areas Program website for more information <u>http://www.maine.gov/dacf/mnap</u>



#### ATTACHMENT G: WETLAND AND WATERCOURSE DELIENATION AND VERNAL POOL SURVEY REPORT





#### Wetland and Watercourse Delineation and Vernal Pool Survey Report

Potential Solar Development Site – Readfield, Maine

September 2022

Prepared for:

Norwich Solar Technologies 14 Maine Street, Suite 305C-1 Brunswick, ME 04011

Prepared by:

Stantec Consulting Services Inc. 30 Park Drive Topsham, ME 04086

## **Table of Contents**

1.0		1
2.0	METHODS	1
2.1	WETLAND AND WATERCOURSE DELINEATION	1
2.2	VERNAL POOL SURVEY	2
3.0	SURVEY RESULTS	3
3.1	GENERAL SITE DESCRIPTION	3
3.2	WETLAND AND WATERCOURSE DELINEATION AND VERNAL POOL	
	SURVEY	4
4.0	WETLAND REGULATIONS	7
4.1	STATE AND FEDERAL REGULATIONS	7
4.2	LOCAL REGULATIONS	8

#### LIST OF TABLES

Table 1. Summary of Delineated Wetlands	5
Table 2. Summary of Delineated Watercourses	6

#### LIST OF APPENDICES

Appendix A	Figures
Appendix B	Representative Photographs
Appendix C	Corps Wetland Determination Data Forms



# **1.0 INTRODUCTION**

Norwich Solar Technologies contracted Stantec Consulting Services Inc. (Stantec) to perform a wetland and watercourse delineation and vernal pool survey on a parcel in Readfield, Maine (Project Site). The Project Site (Tax Map 143, Lot 43) is located on Main Street (Appendix A: Figure 1. Wetland and Watercourse Delineation Map).

On October 25, 2021, Stantec performed on-site wetland delineation and mapping services at the Project Site. This report includes descriptions of the wetland and watercourse delineation and vernal pool survey methods, results, and an overview of relevant federal and state regulations.

## 2.0 METHODS

## 2.1 WETLAND AND WATERCOURSE DELINEATION

Wetlands and watercourses within the Project Site were identified in accordance with the definitions detailed in Maine State Statute 38 M.R.S.A. Sec. 480-B of the Natural Resources Protection Act (NRPA).<sup>1</sup> Wetland boundaries were determined using the technical criteria described in the United States Army Corps of Engineers (Corps) *Corps of Engineers Wetlands Delineation Manual*<sup>2</sup> and the *Regional Supplement to the Corps of Engineers Wetland Delineation Manual*: Northcentral and Northeast Region (Version 2.0).<sup>3</sup> Wetland communities were classified according to the *Classification of Wetlands and Deepwater Habitats of the United States*.<sup>4</sup> Hydric soil determinations were made in accordance with the Corps wetland delineation manuals and the *Field Indicators for Identifying Hydric Soils in New England* (Version 4).<sup>5</sup> Wetlands of Special Significance (WoSS) were identified based on criteria in Chapter 310 of the NRPA<sup>6</sup> and Chapter 335 Significant Wildlife Habitat.<sup>7</sup> Identification of WoSS was limited to observable conditions within the Project Site. Wetland delineations were conducted under seasonally appropriate conditions.

<sup>4</sup> Federal Geographic Data Committee. 2013. Classification of wetlands and deepwater habitats of the United States. FGDC-STD-004-2013. Second Edition. Wetlands Subcommittee, Federal Geographic Data Committee and U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, Washington, DC.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>7</sup> Maine Department of Environmental Protection. 7 January 2014. Natural Resources Protection Act Chapter 335: Significant Wildlife Habitat.



<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> Title 38: Waters and Navigation, Chapter 3: Protection and Improvement of Waters, Subchapter 1: Environmental Protection Board, Article 5-a: Natural Resources Protection Act

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> Environmental Laboratory. 1987. *Corps of Engineers Wetlands Delineation Manual*. Technical Report Y-87-1. U.S. Army Corps of Engineers Waterways Experiment Station, Vicksburg, MS.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>3</sup> U.S. Army Corps of Engineers. 2012. *Regional Supplement to the Corps of Engineers Wetland Delineation Manual: Northcentral and Northeast Region (Version 2.0),* ed. J.S. Wakeley, R.W. Lichvar, and C.V. Noble. ERDC/EL TR-12-1. Vicksburg, MS: U.S. Army Engineer Research and Development Center.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>5</sup> New England Hydric Soils Technical Committee. 2017. Field Indicators for Identifying Hydric Soils in New England (Version 4).

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>6</sup> Maine Department of Environmental Protection. 26 January 2009. Natural Resources Protection Act Chapter 310: Wetlands and Waterbodies Protection Rules. Bureau of Land and Water Quality, DEPLW0297-D2009.

Mapped watercourses (e.g., river, stream, or brook) were identified based on the technical guidance available from the Corps on the identification of an Ordinary High Water Mark,<sup>8</sup> definition of a tributary as described in the Clean Water Act,<sup>9</sup> and as detailed in the Maine Department of Environmental Protection (MDEP) watercourse identification guidance document.<sup>10</sup> Data was collected on flow regime, bankfull and Ordinary High Water Mark width, dominant substrates, and evidence of biological use.

Each delineated resource was assigned a unique alpha-numeric code. Wetland boundaries and watercourses were not marked in the field. A Global Positioning System (GPS) receiver capable of sub-meter accuracy was used to locate the wetland and watercourse boundaries. Representative photographs were taken of each wetland and watercourse and are included in Appendix B.

## 2.2 VERNAL POOL SURVEY

Stantec conducted a vernal pool survey on May 19, 2022, in accordance with the Maine Association of Wetland Scientists' 2014 Vernal Pool Survey Protocol,<sup>11</sup> as well as the definitions set forth in Chapter 335, Significant Wildlife Habitat, of the NRPA and the Corps General Permit.

Vernal pools are dynamic habitats that vary in water level, vegetative cover, and other physical characteristics during the course of a year, as well as from year to year. In addition, the breeding activity of amphibians, particularly the initiation of breeding, depends upon seasonal environmental parameters, such as temperature and precipitation. Due to this variability, the presence and number of egg masses may differ between breeding seasons and during a given breeding season. Based on observed field conditions, Stantec determined that the field survey in 2022 was conducted at an appropriate time of year and coincided with the obligate vernal pool species respective breeding periods.

The survey involved searching for amphibian breeding activity, primarily the presence of egg masses, and use by other vernal pool-dependent species. If present, information was collected on the physical characteristics of each pool such as the likely hydro-period (i.e., how long surface water will remain in the pool) and the presence and/or type of inlet and outlet. Information on the biological and physical characteristics of each pool was used to determine if the vernal pool met the criteria of a Significant Vernal Pool, as defined in Chapter 335 of the NRPA. According to this rule, a vernal pool is a natural, temporary to semi-permanent body of water occurring in a shallow depression that typically fills during the spring or fall and may dry during the summer. Vernal pools have no permanently flowing inlet or outlet and no viable populations of predatory fish. In addition, a Significant Vernal Pool contains one or any combination of the following:

- 40 or more wood frog (Lithobates sylvaticus) egg masses;
- 20 or more spotted salamander (Ambystoma maculatum) egg masses;
- 10 or more blue-spotted salamander (Ambystoma laterale) egg masses;

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>11</sup> Maine Association of Wetland Scientists Vernal Pool Technical Committee. 2014. Vernal Pool Survey Protocol. April 2014.



<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>8</sup> U.S. Army Corps of Engineers. 2005. Regulatory Guidance Letter: Ordinary High Water Mark Identification. December 8, 2005. No. 05-05.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>9</sup> U.S. Army Corps of Engineers. 2020. 85 Code of Federal Regulations 22250, "Waters of the United States". April 21, 2020.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>10</sup> Danielson, T. J. 2018. Natural Resource Protection Act Streams, Rivers, and Brooks. Maine Department of Environmental Protection, Augusta, ME.

- Fairy shrimp (*Eubranchipus* spp.); and/or
- Documented use by a state-listed rare, threatened, or endangered species that commonly requires a vernal pool to complete a critical portion of their life-history, such as Blanding's turtle (*Emydoidea blandingii*), spotted turtle (*Clemmys guttata*), wood turtle (*Clemmys insculpta*), eastern ribbon snake (*Thamnophis sauritus*), ringed boghaunter (*Williamsonia lintneri*), swamp darner (*Epiaeschna heros*), and comet darner (*Anax longipes*).

If present, the characteristics of the pools were also compared to the regulatory definition of a vernal pool used by the Corps. In Maine, vernal pools are regulated by the Corps according to the Maine General Permit, which provides the following definition for vernal pools:

A vernal pool, also referred to as a seasonal forest pool, is a temporary to semi-permanent body of water occurring in a shallow depression that typically fills during the spring or fall and may dry during the summer. Vernal pools have no permanent inlet or outlet and no viable populations of predatory fish.

A vernal pool may provide the primary breeding habitat for wood frogs (Lithobates [sylvatica] sylvaticus), spotted salamanders (Ambystoma maculatum), blue-spotted salamanders (Ambystoma laterale), and fairy shrimp (Eubranchipus spp.), as well as valuable habitat for other plants and wildlife, including several rare, threatened, and endangered species. A vernal pool intentionally created for the purposes of compensatory mitigation is included in this definition. For the purposes of this GP, the presence of any of the following species in any life stage in any abundance level/quantity would designate the waterbody as a vernal pool: fairy shrimp, blue-spotted salamanders, spotted salamanders, or wood frogs.

## 3.0 SURVEY RESULTS

## 3.1 GENERAL SITE DESCRIPTION

The Project Site is approximately 85 acres and is located on the south side of Main Street (Route 17) in Readfield. The proposed access to the Project Site is from Main Street. The northern end of the Project Site abuts private residences to the east and west. There is a gravel pull-off lot in the northeast corner of the Project Site along Main Street that contains piles of debris. The Project Site is dominated by two upland fields and forested uplands. A farm road traverses the northern field, continues through upland forest dominated by eastern white pine (*Pinus strobus*), and terminates at the southern field. Both fields were mowed at the time of the delineation. An informal trail system connects hunting stands and shacks in the southern end of the property.

The topography slopes to the east and southeast from the high point in the northwest corner. Fields within the Project Site were characterized as disturbed, tilled, upland soil. Tree species in the upland forested areas include eastern white pine, eastern hemlock (*Tsuga canadensis*), red maple (*Acer rubrum*), gray birch (*Betula populifolia*), paper birch (*Betula papyrifera*), balsam fir (*Abies balsamea*), northern red oak (*Quercus rubra*), and American beech (*Fagus grandifolia*). The upland sapling and shrub layer is dominated by regenerating species present in the forest canopy interspersed with invasive species including multiflora rose (*Rosa multiflora*) and Japanese honeysuckle (*Lonicera*)



*japonica*). The upland herbaceous layer is dominated by bracken fern (*Pteridium aquilinum*) and Canadian goldenrod (*Solidago canadensis*).

The U.S. Department of Agriculture Soil Survey of Kennebec County, Maine,<sup>12</sup> depicts four major soil types within the Project Site: Lyman – Tunbridge complex, Paxton very stony fine sandy loam, Woodbridge very stony fine sandy loam, and Paxton – Charlton fine sandy loam. The Lyman – Turnbridge complex comprises the majority of the northern field as well as both the eastern and western edges of the southern field and is somewhat excessively drained. The Paxton very stony fine sandy loam is a well-drained soil and is located in the southern area of the Project Site, south of the southern field. The Woodbridge very stony fine sandy loam is a moderately well-drained soil found in the southeast corner of the Project Site. The Paxton – Charlton fine sandy loam is a well-drained soil comprising the majority of the southern field.

## 3.2 WETLAND AND WATERCOURSE DELINEATION AND VERNAL POOL SURVEY

During the on-site fieldwork conducted on October 25 and 26, 2021, and May 19, 2022, five wetlands and one watercourse were identified within the Project Site. The resources were GPS-located and are depicted on Figure 1 (Appendix A). These results are characterized in Table 1. Summary of Delineated Wetlands and Table 2. Summary of Delineated Watercourses. Representative photographs of identified natural resources are included in Appendix B. Representative Corps wetland determination data forms were prepared at one location and are included in Appendix C. Additionally, a vernal pool survey was conducted on May 19, 2022, which coincided with obligate vernal pool species respective breeding periods. No vernal pools were identified during the survey.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>12</sup> Web Soil Survey, Natural Resources Conservation Service, United States Department of Agriculture. Available at: http://websoilsurvey.nrcs.usda.gov/. Accessed March 2022.



#### Table 1. Summary of Delineated Wetlands

Wetland Resource Identifier	Wetland Classification <sup>1</sup>	Dominant Vegetation	Hydric Soil Criteria and Indicator	Evidence of Hydrology	Wetland of Special Significance (WoSS)	Additional Comments
W01GPA	PEM/PSS	Trees: none Saplings / Shrubs: red raspberry ( <i>Rubus idaeus</i> ) Herbs: narrow-leaf cattail ( <i>Typha angustifolia</i> ), cotongrass bulrush ( <i>Scripus cyperinus</i> ), sensitive fern ( <i>Oncide a sensibilis</i> ), reed canary grass ( <i>Phalaris arundinacea</i> ), winklefel gddenrod (Solidago rugosa), flat-top goldento ( <i>Euthamia gramintolia</i> )	A11: Depleted Below Dark Surface	High Water Table (A2) Saturation (A3) Water-Stained Leaves (B9)	Yes, portions within 25 feet of a stream	Stream S01GP flows north along northeastern edge of the Project Site. Feature extends offsite to the east.
W01GPB	PFO	Trees: black ash (Fraxinus nigra), green ash (Fraxinus pennsylvanica), eastern white pine, American beech Saplings / Shrubs: balsam fir, black ash, green ash, red raspberry, red maple, eastern herrlock Herbs: cinnamon fem (Osmundastrum cinnamomeum), sensitive fem, fringed sedge (Carex crimita), ostrich fem (Matteuccia struthiopteris), cottongrass burush	A2: Histic Epipedon	High Water Table (A2) Water-stained Leaves (B9) Stunted or Stressed Plants (D1)	No	Portion of larger wetland complex outside Project Site to the east. Eastern white pine and American beech growing on hummocks show wetland adaptations including shallow roots.
W01GPC	PFO	Trees: black ash, green ash, red maple, balsam fir, eastern hemlock, gray birch Saplings / Shrubs: red maple, balsam fir Herbs: fringed sedge, royal fern ( <i>Osmunda</i> regalis), sensitive fern, three- leaf gddthread ( <i>Copits tirfola</i> ), cottongrass bulrush, Christmas ferm ( <i>Polysichum acrosichoides</i> )	A11: Depleted Below Dark Surface	Water-stained Leaves (B9) Stunted or Stressed Plants (D1) Microtopographic Rellef (D4)	No	Forested wetland is located on the southern end of the Project Site and extends offsite to the south.
W01GPD	PEM/PFO	Trees: black ash Saplings / Shrubs: eastern white pine, red raspberry Herbs: sensitive fern, royal fern, narrow-leaf cattail, wrinkleleaf goldenrod	A2: Histic Epipedon	High Water Table (A2) Saturation (A3)	No	Isolated wetland.
W01GPE	PEM	Trees: black ash Saplings / Shrubs: eastern white pine, red raspberry Herbs: sensitive fern, royal fern, narrow-leaf cattall, wrinkleleaf goldenrod	A2: Histic Epipedon	High Water Table (A2) Saturation (A3) Stunted or Stressed Plants (D1)	No	Isolated wetland.

5

 Wetland classification follows Federal Geographic Data Committee, (2013):

 PFO = Palustrine Forested

 PSS = Palustrine Scrub Shrub

 PEM = Palustrine Energent

Stream Identifier	Flow Type	Bankfull Width (ft)	Ordinary High Water Mark Width (ft)	Dominant Substrates	NRPA Stream	Additional notes
S01GP	Ephemeral	1–6	1–6	Boulder, cobble, silt	No	Flows north into wetland W01GPA. Ephemeral stream does not contain aquatic vegetation or aquatic animals and is not depicted on a USGS 7.5' topographic map.

6

#### Table 2. Summary of Delineated Watercourses

# 4.0 WETLAND REGULATIONS

## 4.1 STATE AND FEDERAL REGULATIONS

The Corps and MDEP regulate the wetlands and waterbodies (e.g., streams) identified within the Project Site. Under the provisions of Section 404 of the Clean Water Act, the Corps regulates dredging or filling within Waters of the United States, which include navigable waters and all their tributaries, adjacent wetlands, and other waters or wetlands where degradation or destruction could affect interstate or foreign commerce. The Corps has recently reissued a General Permit for the State of Maine (October 13, 2020) that merges the federal and state permit review process for many projects.

In Maine, wetlands and waterbodies, as well as other protected natural resources, are regulated under 38 M.R.S.A. §§ 480-A – 480-JJ, the NRPA. Projects that do not impact a wetland or projects that impact less than 4,300 square feet of wetland are usually exempt from state NRPA Tier permitting requirements. This exemption does not apply if the impact is:

- 1. in, on, or over a coastal wetland, great pond, river, stream, or brook;
- within 25 feet of those resources identified above, or is more than 25 feet and no erosion control is used;
- 3. in a shoreland zone or a wetland protected by the shoreland zone;
- 4. part of a wetland with more than 20,000 square feet of open water or emergent vegetation, except artificial impoundments;
- 5. in a peatland;
- 6. part of a larger project; or
- 7. in Significant Wildlife Habitat.

Typically, projects with cumulative impacts to freshwater wetlands between 4,300 but less 15,000 square feet are eligible for review under the Tier 1 NRPA permitting process. Wetland alterations between 0 and 15,000 square feet require a Corps Self Verification Form submittal, assuming the project meets the thresholds for activities for this level of review. Alterations that affect between 15,000 and 43,560 square feet (1 acre) of freshwater wetlands are eligible for the NRPA Tier 2 review process and Corps Pre-Construction Notification. Cumulative freshwater wetland impacts that exceed 1 acre typically require a NRPA Tier 3 review. Impacts to WoSS, rivers, streams and brooks, great ponds, and Significant Wildlife Habitat typically require an Individual Corps Permit. Specifics of how the agencies will regulate this Project can be determined with preliminary plans and consultation with the agencies.

Stream S01GP (Photo 4) does not meet the MDEP definition of a stream because it is not depicted on a USGS 7.5-minute series topographic map, does not contain flowing water continuously for a period of at least 6 months of the year, and does not contain aquatic vegetation or aquatic insects. Due to S01GP not meeting the MDEP definition of a stream the portions of wetland W01GPA that are located within 25 feet of a stream are not considered WoSS.

Full identification of WoSS involves contacting natural resource agencies such as the Maine Natural Areas Program, Maine Department of Inland Fisheries and Wildlife, and MDEP to determine if there are



any documented occurrences of rare, threatened, or endangered species and communities within or in the vicinity of the Project Site. Stantec initiated consultation with the Maine Natural Areas Program, Maine Department of Inland Fisheries and Wildlife, and MDEP for the Project Site in November 2021. Responses have been received from all three agencies. The agency responses did not identify any endangered, threatened, or special concern species, rare or unique botanical features, or Essential and Significant Wildlife Habitats within the Project Site.

## 4.2 LOCAL REGULATIONS

According to the Town of Readfield Zoning Maps, the southwestern portion of the Project Site includes an area mapped as Resource Protection Zoning District. Although Stantec identified wetlands and streams within the Project Site, they are not specifically identified on the Town Zoning Map. Stantec recommends contacting the Town Code Enforcement Officer regarding any local zoning requirements for the Project Site.



# **APPENDICES**



# Appendix A FIGURES



\\1956\active\1956\2046\03\_data\gis\_cad\gis\MXDs\Readfield\195602046\_01\_Readfield\_WetDelin.m>

pbarbera

2022-09-07 By:

Disclaimer: This document has been prepared based on information provided by others as cited in the Notes section. Stantec has not verified the accuracy and/or completeness of this information and shall not be responsible for any errors or omissions which may be incorporated herein as a result. Stantec assumes no responsibility for data supplied in electronic format, and the recipient accepts full responsibility for verifying the accuracy and completeness of the data.

## Appendix B REPRESENTATIVE PHOTOGRAPHS



Photo 1. PEM/PSS wetland 01GPA, facing north. Stantec, October 25, 2021.



Photo 2. Debris pile near PEM/PSS wetland 01GPA, facing southwest. Stantec, October 25, 2021.





Photo 3. PFO wetland 01GPC. Stantec, October 25, 2021.



Photo 4. Ephemeral stream S01GP, view south from upstream. Stantec, October 25, 2021.



# Appendix C CORPS WETLAND DETERMINATION DATA FORMS





#### WETLAND DETERMINATION DATA FORM Northeast and Northcentral Region

Project/Site											
r rojoononto.	Readfield De	lineation					Stantec Project #:	195602046		Date:	10/25/21
Applicant:					County:	Kennebec					
Investigator #1: G. Pelletier Investigator #2: L. Pelletier										State:	ME
Soil Unit: NWI/WWI Classification: Wetland ID: 01GPA										01GPA	
Landform.	Landform: Depression Local Relief: Concave Sample Point: Wetland										Wetland
Slope (%): 0-3   atitude: 44 355598   ongitude: -69 890318							C	Detum			
Are climatic/hydrologic conditions on the site typical for this time of year?							10		INAD03	Community ID.	PEIW/P35
Are vignation and Soil and Hydrology and Sine typical for this time of year ( (if no, explain in remarks)											
Are Vegetation	$\Box$ , Soll $\Box$ ,	or Hydrology 🗆 sig	nificantly di	sturbed	?		Are normal circumst	ances presen	ť?		
Are Vegetation	□, Soil □,	or Hydrology 🛛 nat	urally prob	lematic?			⊡ Yes	🗆 No			
SUMMARY OF	FINDINGS										
Hydrophytic Veo	getation Pre	sent?		Yes	🗆 🗆 No			Hydric Soils	Present?		🗹 Yes 🗖 No
Wetland Hvdrol	oav Present	?						Is This Sam	olina Point V	Within A Wetlan	d? 🛛 Yes 🔲 No
Remarks	- 3)										
r tornanto.											
HYDROLOGY											
Wetland Hydro	ology Indic	ators (Check here i	f indicators	are not	present	Ц					
Primary:									Secondary:		
	A1 - Surface	Water		4	B9 - Wate	er-Stained	Leaves B6 - Surface Soil Cracks				
~	A2 - High Wa	ater Table			B13 - Aqu	atic Faun	Э.			B10 - Drainage Pa	atterns
2	A3 - Saturati	on			B15 - Mar	1 Deposits				B16 - Moss Trim I	Lines
	B1 - Water N	larks			C1 - Hydr	ogen Sulf	de Odor			C2 - Dry-Season	Water Table
	B2 - Sedime	nt Deposits			C3 - Oxid	ized Rhizo	spheres on Living Roots			C8 - Crayfish Burr	ows
	B3 - Drift De	posits			C4 - Pres	ence of R	educed Iron			C9 - Saturation Vi	sible on Aerial Imagery
님	B4 - Algal Ma	at or Crust			C6 - Rece	ent Iron Re	duction in Tilled Solls		님	D1 - Stunted or Si	ressed Plants
	B5 - Iron Dep	DOSILS on Micible on Acriel Imr	aon	님	Other (Ex	NUCK SUP	ace		님	D2 - Geomorphic	rosition
	B8 - Sparsel		lyery	님			endrks)			D3 - Shallow Aqui	idiu anhic Relief
	Do - Oparser	y vegetated concave c	unace						H	D5 - FAC-Neutral	Test
	-									Be 1710 Nedital	1030
Field Observat	ions:										
Surface Water	Present?	🗆 Yes 🛛 No	Depth:		(in.)			Wotland Hy	drology Pr	ocont?	
Water Table Pre	esent?	🗹 Yes 🛛 No	Depth:	6	(in.)			wenanu ny	urology Fi	esent: D	
Saturation Pres	ent?	🗹 Yes 🛛 No	Depth:	0	(in.)						
Describe Descrid	ad Data (atr			al shataa		ineneti	if_evenile.htev		NI/A		
Describe Record	eu Data (sti	earn gauge, morntorn	ig well, aen	ai priotos	s, previous	sinspecii	JIIS), II avaliable.		IN/A		
Remarks:	associated	with ephemeral stre	eam 01GP								
SOILS											
Map Unit Name	:	0				S	eries Drainage Class:				
Taxonomy (Sub	aroup):						JJ	-			
Profile Descrin	tion (Describe to								lease lease the Display		
		the depth needed to document the inc	licator or confirm the	absence of indi	cators.) (Type: C	=Concentration	D=Depletion_RM=Reduced Matrix_CS=0	Covered/Costed Sand Gra	DC. LOCATION, PLEPO	re Lining M=Matrix)	
Ton	Rottom	the depth needed to document the inc	licator or confirm the	Antrix	cators.) (Type: C	=Concentration,	D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=0	Covered/Coated Sand Gra	ins; Location: PL=Po	re Lining, M=Matrix)	Texture
Тор	Bottom	the depth needed to document the inc	icator or confirm the	absence of indi	cators.) (Type: C	=Concentration,	D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=0	Covered/Coated Sand Gra	ns; Location: PL=Po	re Lining, M=Matrix)	
Top Depth	Bottom Depth	the depth needed to document the inc Horizon	licator or confirm the Color (f	absence of indi Matrix Moist)	cators.) (Type: C	=Concentration,	D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C Color (Moist)	Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles %		Location	Texture (e.g. clay, sand, loam)
Top Depth 0	Bottom Depth 3	the depth needed to document the inc Horizon 1	icator or confirm the Color (f 10YR	absence of indi Matrix Moist) 2/1	cators.) (Type: C % 100	=Concentration,	D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C	Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles %		Location	Texture (e.g. clay, sand, loam) loam
Top Depth 0 4	Bottom Depth 3 7	the depth needed to document the inc Horizon 1 2	Color (I 10YR 10YR	absence of indi Matrix Moist) 2/1 3/2	cators.) (Type: C % 100 90	=Concentration,	D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C Color (Moist) 4/6	Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles % 10 10	Type C	Location	Texture (e.g. clay, sand, loam) loam silt loam
Top Depth 0 4 8	Bottom Depth 3 7 10	the depth needed to document the inc Horizon 1 2 3	Icator or confirm the Color (I 10YR 10YR 10YR	absence of indi Matrix Voist) 2/1 3/2 4/2	Cators.) (Type: C % 100 90 90	EConcentration,	D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C Color (Moist) 4/6 4/6	Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles % 10 10 10	Type C C	Location	Texture (e.g. clay, sand, loam) loam silt loam silt loam
Top Depth 0 4 8 11	Bottom Depth 3 7 10 14	the depth needed to document the inc Horizon 1 2 3 4	Color (I 10YR 10YR 10YR 10YR 10YR	absence of Indi Matrix Moist) 2/1 3/2 4/2 4/1	Cators.) (Type: C           %           100           90           90           90           90           90	EConcentration,	D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C Color (Moist) 4/6 4/6 4/6 4/6	Mottles           %           10           10           10           10		Location	Texture (e.g. clay, sand, loam) loam silt loam silt loam loam
Top Depth 0 4 8 11	Bottom Depth 3 7 10 14	the depth needed to document the inc Horizon 1 2 3 4 5	Color (I 10YR 10YR 10YR 10YR 10YR 10YR	absence of Indi Matrix Moist) 2/1 3/2 4/2 4/1 6/1	%           100         90 </td <td>Concentration, 10YR 10YR 10YR 10YR</td> <td>D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C Color (Moist) 4/6 4/6 4/6 4/6 4/6</td> <td>Covered/Coated Sand Gra           Mottles           %           10           10           10           10</td> <td>C C C C</td> <td>Location</td> <td>Texture (e.g. clay, sand, loam) loam silt loam silt loam loam</td>	Concentration, 10YR 10YR 10YR 10YR	D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C Color (Moist) 4/6 4/6 4/6 4/6 4/6	Covered/Coated Sand Gra           Mottles           %           10           10           10           10	C C C C	Location	Texture (e.g. clay, sand, loam) loam silt loam silt loam loam
Top Depth 0 4 8 11 15	Bottom Depth 3 7 10 14 20	the depth needed to document the inc Horizon 1 2 3 4 5	Color (I 10YR 10YR 10YR 10YR 10YR 10YR	absence of Indi Matrix Voist) 2/1 3/2 4/2 4/1 6/1	Cators.) (Type: C % 100 90 90 90 90	Concentration, 10YR 10YR 10YR 10YR 10YR	D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C Color (Moist) 4/6 4/6 4/6 4/6 4/6	Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles % 10 10 10 10 10	C C C C C C	Location	Texture (e.g. clay, sand, loam) loam silt loam loam 
Top Depth 0 4 8 11 15 	Bottom Depth 3 7 10 14 20 	the depth needed to document the inc Horizon 1 2 3 4 5 	icator or confirm the Color (f 10YR 10YR 10YR 10YR 10YR 	absence of Indi Matrix Moist) 2/1 3/2 4/2 4/1 6/1 	Cators.) (Type: C % 100 90 90 90 90 90 	Concentration, 10YR 10YR 10YR 10YR 10YR 	D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C Color (Moist) 4/6 4/6 4/6 4/6 4/6 	Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles % 10 10 10 10 10 10	C C C C C C 	Location	Texture (e.g. clay, sand, loam) loam silt loam silt loam loam 
Top Depth 0 4 8 11 15 	Bottom Depth 3 7 10 14 20  	the depth needed to document the inc Horizon 1 2 3 4 5 	icator or confirm the Color (I 10YR 10YR 10YR 10YR 10YR 10YR  	absence of Indi Matrix Moist) 2/1 3/2 4/2 4/1 6/1 	Cators.) (Type: C % 100 90 90 90 90  	Concentration, 10YR 10YR 10YR 10YR 10YR  	D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C Color (Moist) 4/6 4/6 4/6 4/6 4/6  	Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles % 10 10 10 10 10 10	C C C C C 	Location	Texture (e.g. clay, sand, loam) loam silt loam loam  
Top Depth 0 4 8 11 15  	Bottom Depth 3 7 10 14 20  	the depth needed to document the inc Horizon 1 2 3 4 5   	icator or confirm the Color (I 10YR 10YR 10YR 10YR 10YR 10YR  	absence of Indi Matrix Moist) 2/1 3/2 4/2 4/1 6/1  	Cators.) (Type: C % 100 90 90 90 90   	=Concentration, 10YR 10YR 10YR 10YR 10YR  	D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C Color (Moist) 4/6 4/6 4/6 4/6  	Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles % 10 10 10 10 10 10	C C C C C C C 	Location	Texture (e.g. clay, sand, loam) loam silt loam loam   
Top Depth 0 4 8 11 15     <b>NRCS Hydric</b> :	Bottom Depth 3 7 10 14 20    Soil Field II	the depth needed to document the inc Horizon 1 2 3 4 5     ndicators (check he	icator or confirm the Color (I 10YR 10YR 10YR 10YR 10YR    re if indica	absence of indi           Matrix           Vioist)           2/1           3/2           4/2           4/1           6/1	cators.) (Type: C % 100 90 90 90 90 90     not prese	Concentration, 10YR 10YR 10YR 10YR 10YR 10YR 10YR   	D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C Color (Moist) 4/6 4/6 4/6 4/6   	Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles % 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 Indicatoo	Type C C C C C C   s for Proble	Location Location	Texture (e.g. clay, sand, loam) loam silt loam loam    
Top Depth 0 4 8 11 15   NRCS Hydric 1	Bottom           Depth           3           7           10           14           20                 Soil Field In           At-Histosol	the depth needed to document the inc Horizon 1 2 3 4 5 5   ndicators (check he	Color (f 10YR 10YR 10YR 10YR 10YR 10YR 10YR   	Absence of Indi Matrix Moist) 2/1 3/2 4/2 4/1 6/1   tors are	cators.) (Type: C       %       100       90 <t< td=""><td>Concentration. 10YR 1</td><td>D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C Color (Moist) 4/6 4/6 4/6 4/6    w Surface    RR R MIRA (1498)</td><td>Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles % 10 10 10 10 10 10 Indicator</td><td>C           C           C           C           C           C           S for Proble           A10 - 2 cm</td><td>Location Location</td><td>Texture (e.g. clay, sand, loam) loam silt loam loam    </td></t<>	Concentration. 10YR 1	D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C Color (Moist) 4/6 4/6 4/6 4/6    w Surface    RR R MIRA (1498)	Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles % 10 10 10 10 10 10 Indicator	C           C           C           C           C           C           S for Proble           A10 - 2 cm	Location Location	Texture (e.g. clay, sand, loam) loam silt loam loam    
Top Depth 0 4 8 11 15   NRCS Hydric	Bottom           Depth           3           7           10           14           20                 Soil Field In           A1- Histosol           A2 - Histic El	Horizon 1 2 3 4 5   ndicators (check he pipedon	Index or confirm the Color (I 10YR 10YR 10YR 10YR 10YR    ere if indica	absence of Indi     Matrix     Moist)     2/1     3/2     4/2     4/1     6/1       tors are     □	cators.) (Type: C           %           100           90	10YR 10YR 10YR 10YR 10YR 10YR    ent I 2-    ent I 2-            	D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C Color (Moist) 4/6 4/6 4/6 4/6   w Surface (LRR R, MLRA 149B) 200 (LRR R, MLRA 149B)	Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles % 10 10 10 10 10 10 Indicato	C           C           C           C           C           Solution           France           C           C           C           C           C           C           Solution           A10 - 2 cm           A16 - Coast	Location Location Muck (LRR K, L, MLRA 1 Prairie Redox (LRR	Texture           (e.g. clay, sand, loam)           loam           silt loam           loam           loam
Top Depth 0 4 8 11 15   NRCS Hydric:	Bottom           Depth           3           7           10           14           20                 Soil Field I           A1- Histosol           A2 - Histic E           A3 - Black H	the depth needed to document the inc Horizon 1 2 3 4 5   ndicators (check he pipedon istic	icator or confirm the Color (f 10YR 10YR 10YR 10YR 10YR 10YR   ere if indica	absence of Indi Matrix Moist) 2/1 3/2 4/2 4/1 6/1   tors are	cators.) (Type: C           %           100           90	10YR 10YR 10YR 10YR 10YR 10YR          -	D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C Color (Moist) 4/6 4/6 4/6 4/6   w Surface (LRR R, MLRA 149B) ace (LRR R, MLRA 149B) dineral (LRR K, L)	Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles % 10 10 10 10 10 10 Indicator	C         C           C         C           C         C           C         C           S         For Proble           A16 - Coast         S3 - 5cm Mi	Location Location Matic Soils <sup>1</sup> Vluck (LRR K, L, MLRA 1 Prairie Redox (LRR cky Peat of Peat (	Texture           (e.g. clay, sand, loam)           loam           silt loam           loam           loam
Top Depth 0 4 11 15   NRCS Hydric	Bottom           Depth           3           7           10           14           20              Soil Field In           A1- Histosoi           A2 - Histic E           A3 - Black H           A4 - Hydroge	the depth needed to document the inc Horizon 1 2 3 4 5   ndicators (check he pipedon istic an Sulfide	icator or confirm the Color (f 10YR 10YR 10YR 10YR   are if indica	absence of Indii Matrix Moist) 2/1 3/2 4/2 4/1 6/1   tors are	actors.) (Type: C           %           100           90	10YR 10YR 10YR 10YR 10YR 10YR 10YR 10YR	D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C Color (Moist) 4/6 4/6 4/6 4/6   w Surface (LRR R, MLRA 149B) Wineral (LRR K, L) Matrix	Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles % 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10	Type           C           C           C           C           Solution           For Proble           A10 - 2 cm I           A16 - Coast           S3 - 5cm MI           S7 - Dark S	Location Location Muck (LRR K, L, MLRA 1 Prairie Redox (LRR / Locky Peat of Peat ( Urface (LRR K, L, M)	Texture           (e.g. clay, sand, loam)           loam           silt loam           loam           loam
Top Depth 0 4 11 15   <b>NRCS Hydric</b> :	Bottom           Depth           3           7           10           14           20                 Soil Field In           A1- Histosol           A2 - Histic E           A3 - Black H           A4 - Hydroge           A5 - Stratifier	the depth needed to document the inc Horizon 1 2 3 4 5   ndicators (check he pipedon istic en Sulfide d Layers	icator or confirm the Color (f 10YR 10YR 10YR 10YR 10YR 	absence of Indii Matrix Moist) 2/1 3/2 4/2 4/2 4/1 6/1   tors are 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2	cators.) (Type: C           %           100           90	10YR	D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C Color (Moist) 4/6 4/6 4/6 4/6 	Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles % 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10	Type           C           C           C           C           C           Signal	Location Location	Texture (e.g. clay, sand, loam) loam silt loam loam    49B) K, L, R) LRR K, L, R)
Top Depth 0 4 8 11 15   NRCS Hydric 3	Bottom           Depth           3           7           10           14           20              Soil Field In           A1- Histosol           A2 - Histic E           A3 - Black H           A4 - Hydroge           A5 - Stratifie           A11 - Deplet	the depth needed to document the inc Horizon 1 2 3 4 5  ndicators (check he pipedon istic en Sulfide d Layers ed Below Dark Surface	icator or confirm the Color (I 10YR 10YR 10YR 10YR 10YR    ere if indica	absence of Indii Matrix Voist) 2/1 3/2 4/2 4/1 6/1  tors are 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	actors.) (Type: C           %           100           90	10YR 10YR 10YR 10YR 10YR 10YR             	D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C Color (Moist) 4/6 4/6 4/6 4/6 	Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles % 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	Type           C           C           C           C           Solution           Figure 2           C           C           C           C           C           C           Solution           Type           Solution	Location Location	Texture (e.g. clay, sand, loam) loam silt loam loam     49B) K, L, R) LRR K, L, R)
Top Depth 0 4 8 11 15   NRCS Hydric	Bottom           Depth           3           7           10           14           20              Soil Field In           A1- Histosol           A2 - Histic E           A3 - Black H           A4 - Hydroge           A5 - Stratifie           A11 - Deplet           A12 - Thick I	the depth needed to document the inc Horizon 1 2 3 4 5   ndicators (check he pipedon istic pipedon istic an Sulfide d Layers ed Below Dark Surface Dark Surface	icator or confirm the Color (f 10YR 10YR 10YR 10YR 10YR   ere if indica	absence of Indi Matrix Voist) 2/1 3/2 4/2 4/1 6/1  tors are 1 1 2 2 1 2 2 1 2 2 1 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2	cators.) (Type: C           %           100           90	10YR 10YR 10YR 10YR 10YR 10YR          -	D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C Color (Moist) 4/6 4/6 4/6   w Surface (LRR R, MLRA 149B) 400 (LRR R, MLRA 14	Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles % 10 10 10 10 10 Indicator	Type           C           C           C           C           C           Signed	Liocation Location	Texture           (e.g. clay, sand, loam)           loam           silt loam           loam           loam
Top Depth 0 4 8 11 15   NRCS Hydric :	Bottom           Depth           3           7           10           14           20              Soil Field It           A1- Histosoi           A2 - Histic El           A3 - Black H           A4 - Hydroge           A5 - Stratifie           A12 - Thick I           S1 - Sandy M	the depth needed to document the inc Horizon 1 2 3 4 5   ndicators (check he pipedon istic en Sulfide d Layers ed Below Dark Surface Dark Surface Auck Mineral	icator or confirm the Color (f 10YR 10YR 10YR 10YR 10YR   ere if indica	absence of Indii Matrix Voist) 2/1 3/2 4/2 4/1 6/1   tors are 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	with the second secon	LOYR	D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C Color (Moist) 4/6 4/6 4/6 4/6   w Surface (LRR R, MLRA 149B) ace (LRR R, MLRA 149B) Vineral (LR R, L) Matrix K urface Surface Surface Surface Surface	Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles % 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	Type           C           C           C           C           C           Solution           Figure 2           C           Solution           Solution           Solution           Solution           Solution <tr tr=""></tr>	Liocation Location	Texture           (e.g. clay, sand, loam)           loam           silt loam           loam <tr< td=""></tr<>
Top Depth 0 4 11 15   NRCS Hydric:	Bottom           Depth           3           7           10           14           20              Soil Field In           A1- Histosol           A2 - Histoc El           A3 - Black H           A4 - Hydroge           A5 - Stratifier           A12 - Thick I           S1 - Sandy N           S4 - Sandy N	the depth needed to document the inc Horizon 1 2 3 4 5   ndicators (check he pipedon istic an Sulfide d Layers ed Below Dark Surface Dark Surface Dark Surface Muck Mineral Sleyed Matrix	icator or confirm the Color (f 10YR 10YR 10YR 10YR   are if indica	absence of Indi Matrix Voist) 2/1 3/2 4/2 4/1 6/1   tors are 0 1 2 2 2 4 4 2 4 2 4 2 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4	cators.) (Type: C           %           100           90           90           90           90           90           90           90           90           91           90	10YR 10YR 10YR 10YR 10YR 10YR 10YR 10YR	D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C Color (Moist) 4/6 4/6 4/6 4/6   w Surface (LRR R, MLRA 149B) ACE (LRR R, MLRA 149B) Viineral (LRR K, L) Matrix x (rface Surface Surface Surface Surface	Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles % 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10	Type           C           C           C           C           C           Solution           For Proble           A10 - 2 cm             A10 - 2 cm             A16 - Coast           S3 - 5cm Mi           S7 - Dark S           S8 - Polyval           S9 - Thin Da           F12 - Iron-M           F13 - Piedm           TA6 - Mesic	Location Location	Texture           (e.g. clay, sand, loam)           loam           silt loam           loam           loam
Top Depth 0 4 8 11 15   NRCS Hydric: 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	Bottom           Depth           3           7           10           14           20              Soil Field In           A1- Histosol           A2 - Histic E           A3 - Black H           A4 - Hydroge           A5 - Stratifier           A11 - Deplet           A12 - Thick I           S1 - Sandy N           S4 - Sandy F           S6 - Stratifier	the depth needed to document the inc Horizon 1 2 3 4 5  ndicators (check he pipedon istic an Sulfide d Layers ed Below Dark Surface Dark Surface Auck Mineral Bleyed Matrix Redox	icator or confirm the Color (f 10YR 10YR 10YR 10YR 10YR    re if indica	absence of Indi Matrix Moist) 2/1 3/2 4/2 4/2 4/1 6/1   tors are 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2	cators.) (Type: C           %           100           90	10YR	D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C Color (Moist) 4/6 4/6 4/6 4/6 	Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles % 10 10 10 10 10 10 10	Type           C           C           C           C           C           C           Signed Sector           Sign	Liocation Location	Texture (e.g. clay, sand, loam) loam silt loam loam   49B) K, L, R) LRR K, L, R) (LRR K, L, R) S (MLRA 149B) 45, 149B)
Top Depth 0 4 11 15   NRCS Hydric :	Bottom           Depth           3           7           10           14           20              Soil Field In           A1- Histosol           A2 - Histic E           A3 - Black H           A4 - Hydroge           A5 - Stratifier           A1- Deplet           A1 - Sandy M           S4 - Sandy C           S5 - Sandy F           S6 - Strippec	the depth needed to document the inc Horizon 1 2 3 4 5   ndicators (check he pipedon istic en Sulfide d Layers ed Below Dark Surface Dark Surface Auck Mineral Sleyed Matrix Redox	icator or confirm the Color (I 10YR 10YR 10YR 10YR 10YR    ere if indica	absence of Indi Matrix Voist) 2/1 3/2 4/2 4/1 6/1   tors are 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	cators.) (Type: C           %           100           90	10YR 10YR 10YR 10YR 10YR 10YR          	D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C Color (Moist) 4/6 4/6 4/6 4/6   w Surface (LRR R, MLRA 149B) ace (LRR R, MLRA 149B) Wineral (LRR K, L) Matrix K Inface Surface Surface Surface	Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles % 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10	Type           C           C           C           C           C           C           Star           A10 - 2 cm I           A16 - Coast           S3 - 5cm Mi           S7 - Dark S           S9 - Thin Da           F12 - Iron-W           F12 - Iron-W           F12 - Iron-W           F12 - Very           Other (Ta) - Very		Texture           (e.g. clay, sand, loam)           loam           silt loam
Top Depth 0 4 8 11 15   NRCS Hydric 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	Bottom           Depth           3           7           10           14           20              Soil Field In           A1- Histosol           A2 - Histic El           A3 - Black H           A4 - Hydroge           A5 - Stratifie           A11 - Deplet           A12 - Thick I           S1 - Sandy N           S4 - Sandy C           S5 - Sandy F           S6 - Strippec           S7 - Dark Su	Horizon Horizon 1 2 3 4 5   ndicators (check he pipedon istic en Sulfide d Layers ed Below Dark Surface Dark Surface Auck Mineral Sleyed Matrix Redox H Matrix Irface (LRR R, MLRA 1498)	icator or confirm the Color (f 10YR 10YR 10YR 10YR 10YR   ere if indica	absence of Indi Matrix Voist) 2/1 3/2 4/2 4/1 6/1  tors are 2 2 2 4 4 2 4 4 2 4 4 2 4 4 2 4 4 2 4 4 2 4 4 2 4 4 2 4 4 2 4 4 2 4 4 2 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4	cators.) (Type: C           %           100           90	10YR 10YR 10YR 10YR 10YR 10YR             	D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C Color (Moist) 4/6 4/6 4/6   w Surface (LRR R, MLRA 149B) 4/6   w Surface (LRR R, MLRA 149B) Wineral (LRR R, MLRA 149B) Wineral (LRR R, MLRA 149B) Wineral (LRR K, L) Matrix K frace Surface Surface Surface Surface	Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles % 10 10 10 10 10 10 Indicator	Type           C           C           C           C           C           Stars           A10 - C cm I           A16 - Coast           S3 - 5cm Mt           S7 - Dark S           S8 - Polyval           S9 - Thin Da           F12 - Iron-M           F12 - Iron-M           F12 - Red F           TF2 - Red F           TF2 - Red F           TF12 - Very           Other (Expland)		Texture           (e.g. clay, sand, loam)           loam           silt loam           loam           loam
Top Depth 0 4 8 11 15   NRCS Hydric 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	Bottom           Depth           3           7           10           14           20              Soil Field I           A1- Histosol           A2 - Histic E           A3 - Black H           A4 - Hydroge           A5 - Stratifie           A11 - Deplet           A12 - Thick I           S1 - Sandy N           S4 - Sandy C           S5 - Strippec           S7 - Dark Su	the depth needed to document the inc Horizon 1 2 3 4 5   ndicators (check he pipedon istic en Sulfide d Layers ed Below Dark Surface Dark Surface Auck Mineral Sleyed Matrix Redox I Matrix Iface (LRR R, MLRA 149B)	icator or confirm the Color (f 10YR 10YR 10YR 10YR 10YR   pre if indica	absence of Indi Matrix Voist) 2/1 3/2 4/2 4/1 6/1   tors are 2 2 2 4 4 2 4 4 2 4 4 2 4 4 2 4 4 2 4 4 2 4 4 2 4 4 2 4 4 2 4 4 2 4 4 2 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4	actors.) (Type: C           %           100           90	10YR 10YR 10YR 10YR 10YR 10YR             	D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C Color (Moist) 4/6 4/6 4/6   w Surface (LRR R, MLRA 149B) 400 (LRR R, MLRA 149	Covered/Coated Sand Gra  Mottles % 10 10 10 10 10 10 Indicator	Type           C           C           C           C           C           C           Signed State           A10 - 2 cm I           A16 - Coast           S3 - 5cm Mi           S7 - Dark Si           S8 - Polyval           S9 - Thin Dai           F12 - Iron-W           F19 - Piedm           TA6 - Mesic           TF2 - Red F           TF12 - Very           Other (Explational Comparison of the compute vegation of the compute vegation of the compute vegation of the compute vegation. <td>Liocation Location</td> <td>Texture           (e.g. clay, sand, loam)           loam           silt loam           loam   S (MLRA K, L, R)</td>	Liocation Location	Texture           (e.g. clay, sand, loam)           loam           silt loam           loam   S (MLRA K, L, R)
Top Depth 0 4 8 11 15   NRCS Hydric : 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	Bottom           Depth           3           7           10           14           20              Soil Field I           A1- Histosol           A2- Histic E           A3- Black H           A4- Hydroge           A5- Stratifie           A1- Deplet           A1- Deplet           Star Stratifie           S1 - Sandy N           S4 - Sandy C           S5 - Strippec           S6 - Strippec           S7 - Dark Su	Horizon 1 2 3 4 5   ndicators (check he pipedon istic an Sulfide d Layers ed Below Dark Surface Dark Surface Dark Surface Dark Surface Auck Mineral Sleyed Matrix Redox J Matrix If ace (LRR R. MLRA 149B)	icator or confirm the Color (f 10YR 10YR 10YR 10YR   pre if indica	absence of Indi Matrix Moist) 2/1 3/2 4/2 4/1 6/1  tors are 2 2 2 4 4 2 4 4 2 4 4 2 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4	cators.) (Type: C           %           100           90	10YR 10YR 10YR 10YR 10YR 10YR 10YR 10YR	D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C Color (Moist) 4/6 4/6 4/6 4/6   w Surface (LRR R, MLRA 149B) ACC (LRR R, MLRA 149B) Viineral (LRR K, L) Matrix K surface Surface Surface	Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles % 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10	Type           C           C           C           C           C           C           Signed State           A10 - 2 cm I           A16 - Coast           S3 - 5cm Mi           S7 - Dark S           S8 - Polyval           S9 - Thin Da           F12 - Iron-M           F19 - Piedm           TF2 - Red F           TF12 - Very           Other (Expla           of hydrophydic veget           problematic.           Pacsent*2	Liocation Location	Texture         (e.g. clay, sand, loam)         loam         silt loam         loam   (IRR K, L, R)
Top Depth 0 4 8 11 15   NRCS Hydric: 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	Bottom           Depth           3           7           10           14           20              Soil Field In           A1- Histosol           A2 - Histic E           A3 - Black H           A4 - Hydroge           A5 - Stratifier           A1 - Deplet           A1 - Deslet           S1 - Sandy N           S5 - Sandy F           S6 - Strippec           S7 - Dark Su	the depth needed to document the inc Horizon 1 2 3 4 5   ndicators (check he pipedon istic of Sulfide d Layers ed Below Dark Surface Dark Surface Dark Surface Dark Surface Dark Surface I duck Mineral Sleyed Matrix Redox H Matrix Irface (LRR R, MLRA 149B)	icator or confirm the Color (f 10YR 10YR 10YR 10YR   ere if indica	absence of Indi           Matrix           Moist)           2/1           3/2           4/2           4/1           6/1                 tors are           0           2           1           0           1           0           1           0           1           0           1           0           1           0           0           0           0           0           0	cators), (Type: C % 100 90 90 90 90 90    not prese S8 - Polyn S9 - Thin F1 - Loan F3 - Depli F6 - Redc F7 - Depli F8 - Redc	10YR 10YR 10YR 10YR 10YR 10YR 10YR 10YR	D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C Color (Moist) 4/6 4/6 4/6 	Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles % 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10	Type           C           C           C           C           C           C           Stars           Tope           Image: Stars           Stars           C           Top           Top           Thin Da           S8 - Polyval           S9 - Thin Da           F12 - Iron-W           TF12 - Neary           Thin Da           TF12 - Very           Other (Expla           of hydrolphylic veget           r problematic.           Present?	Liocation Location	Texture (e.g. clay, sand, loam)         loam         silt loam         loam   S (
Top Depth 0 4 8 11 15   NRCS Hydric: 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	Bottom Depth 3 7 10 14 20  Soil Field Ir A1- Histosol A2 - Histic E A3 - Black H A4 - Hydroge A5 - Stratifie A11 - Deplet A12 - Thick I S1 - Sandy M S4 - Sandy C S5 - Sandy F S6 - Strippec S7 - Dark Su	the depth needed to document the inc Horizon 1 2 3 4 5  ndicators (check he pipedon istic an Sulfide d Layers ed Below Dark Surface Dark Surface Dark Surface Dark Surface Dark Surface Auck Mineral Sleyed Matrix Redox H Matrix Ifface (LRR R, MLRA 149B)	icator or confirm the Color (f 10YR 10YR 10YR 10YR 10YR   re if indica	absence of Indi Matrix Voist) 2/1 3/2 4/2 4/1 6/1   tors are 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2	cators.) (Type: C % 100 90 90 90 90 90    not presse S8 - Polyy S9 - Thin F1 - Loan F3 - Depli F6 - Redc F7 - Depli F8 - Redc	10YR	D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C Color (Moist) 4/6 4/6 4/6 4/6   w Surface (LRR R, MLRA 1498) Viineral (LRR R, MLRA 1498) Viineral (LRR K, L) Matrix K Irface Surface Surface	Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles % 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10	Type           C	Location Location  Location	Texture (e.g. clay, sand, loam)         loam         silt loam         loam  (IRR K, L, R)
Top Depth 0 4 8 11 15   NRCS Hydric: 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	Bottom Depth 3 7 10 14 20  Soil Field In A1- Histosol A2 - Histic El A3 - Black H A4 - Hydrogg A5 - Stratifie A11 - Deplet A5 - Stratifie A11 - Deplet A5 - Stratifie S4 - Sandy C S5 - Sandy F S6 - Strippec S7 - Dark Su	the depth needed to document the inc Horizon 1 2 3 4 5  ndicators (check here pipedon istic an Sulfide d Layers ed Below Dark Surface Dark Surface Auck Mineral Sleyed Matrix Redox I Matrix Irface (LRR R, MLRA 149B)	icator or confirm the Color (f 10YR 10YR 10YR 10YR 10YR    re if indica	absence of Indi Matrix Voist) 2/1 3/2 4/2 4/2 4/1 6/1   tors are 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	cators.) (Type: C % 100 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90 90	10YR	D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C Color (Moist) 4/6 4/6 4/6 4/6   w Surface (LRR R, MLRA 149B) 400 (LRR R, MLRA 149B) 401 Matrix x Inface Surface Surface	Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles % 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10	Type           C	Location Location Location	Texture (e.g. clay, sand, loam)         loam         silt loam         loam         loam  (RR K, L, R)         S


# WETLAND DETERMINATION DATA FORM

Northeast and Northcentral Region

Project/Site:	Readfield Delineation					Wetland ID: 01GPA Sample Point Netland
VEGETATION	(Species identified in all upper	case are non-native	e species	.)		
Tree Stratum (Plo	ot size: 10 meter radius)					
	<u>Species Name</u>	-	% Cover	Dominant	Ind.Status	Dominance Test Worksheet
1.						
2.						Number of Dominant Species that are OBL, FACW, or FAC: 2 (A)
3.						
4.						Total Number of Dominant Species Across All Strata: 2 (B)
5.						
6.						Percent of Dominant Species That Are OBL, FACW, or FAC: <u>100.0%</u> (A/B)
7.						
8.						Prevalence Index Worksheet
9.						Total % Cover of: Multiply by:
10.						OBL spp. $51$ x 1 = $51$
		Total Cover =	0			FACW spp. 23 x $2 = 46$
						FAC spp. 8 x $3 = 24$
Sapling/Shrub Str	atum (Plot size: 5 meter radius)					FACU spp. 0 x 4 = 0
1.	Rubus idaeus					UPL spp x 5 =
2.						
3.						Total 82 (A) 121 (B)
4.						
5.						Prevalence Index = B/A = 1.476
6.						
7.						
8.						Hydrophytic Vegetation Indicators:
9.						☑ Yes  □ No   Rapid Test for Hydrophytic Vegetation
10.						☐ Yes ☐ No Dominance Test is > 50%
		Total Cover =	0			☐ Yes ☐ No Prevalence Index is ≤ 3.0 *
						□ Yes □ No Morphological Adaptations (Explain) *
Herb Stratum (Plo	t size: 2 meter radius)					☐ Yes ☑ No Problem Hydrophytic Vegetation (Explain) *
1.	Typha angustifolia		25	Y	OBL	
2.	Scirpus cyperinus		1	N	OBL	* Indicators of hydric soil and wetland hydrology must be
3.	Solidago rugosa		5	N	FAC	present, unless disturbed or problematic.
4.	Onoclea sensibilis		20	N	FACW	Definitions of Vegetation Strata:
5.	Phalaris arundinacea		3	N	FACW	
6	Futhamia graminifolia		3	N	FAC	Tree - Woody plants 3 in (7.6cm) or more in diameter at breast
7	l vthrum salicaria		25	Y	OBL	height (DBH), regardless of height.
8			20			
9						Sapling/Shrub - Woody plants less than 3 in. DBH and greater than 3.28 ft.
10						tall.
11						
12						Herb - All herbaceous (non-woody) plants, regardless of size. and
13						woody plants less than 3.28 ft. tall.
14						
15						Woody Vines - All woody vines areater than 3.28 ft. in height.
13.		Total Cover -	 			moou, moo , moo
		i otal Cover =	02			
Moody Mars Start	m (Plot cize: 10 meter meter)					
vvoouy vine Strat	uni (Plut size. Tu meter radius)					
· · ·						
2.						
3.						nyurophytic vegetation Present 🗹 Yes 🗆 No
4. <i>F</i>						
5.						
Bomarka		i otal Cover =	U			
Remarks:						

Additional Remarks:



#### WETLAND DETERMINATION DATA FORM Northeast and Northcentral Region

Project/Site:	Readfield De	lineation					Stantec Project #:	195602046		Date:	10/25/21
Applicant:	Norwich Sola	ar								County:	Kennebec
Investigator #1:	G. Pelletier			Investi	igator #2:	L. Pelle	tier			State:	ME
Soil Unit:					-	NV	VI/WWI Classification:			Wetland ID:	01GPB
Landform:	Depression	1		Loc	al Relief:	Concav	e			Sample Point:	Wetland
Slope (%)	0-3	Latitude:	44 349675		onaitude:	-69 8940	76	Datum	NAD83	Community ID:	PEO
Are climatic/hvc	Irologic con	ditions on the site tv	nical for thi	s time of	f vear? (If	no evolain	in remarks)		No		
Are Vegetation		or Hydrology 🗆 sig	piticantly d	icturbod'	າງເພາ. (ແ າ		Are normal circumst		110		
Are Vegetation		or Ludrology 🗆 sig	urally prob	lomotio?	f						
Are vegetation		or Hydrology 🗆 nai	urally prob	iematic?			⊡ 163				
SUMMARY OF	FINDINGS								_		
Hydrophytic Ve	getation Pre	sent?		⊡ Yes	s 🗆 No	l.		Hydric Soils	Present?		🗹 Yes 🗆 No
Wetland Hydrol	ogy Present	!?		Yes	s 🗆 No			Is This Sam	pling Point '	Within A Wetlan	id? 🛛 Yes 🗖 No
Remarks:											
HYDROLOGY											
Wotland Hydr	ology Indic	ators (Check here i	findicators	are not	procent	Ъ					
Primanu	biogy mult	ators (Check here i	rinuicators	are not	present	Ц			Socondan		
	Δ1 - Surface	\//ater			RQ _ Wate	ar-Stained	Leaves			B6 - Surface Soil	Cracks
	A2 - High Wa	ater Table			B13 - An	atic Faun	a		H	B10 - Drainage Pa	atterns
2	A3 - Saturati	on		Ē	B15 - Mai	d Deposit	5			B16 - Moss Trim	Lines
	B1 - Water N	larks			C1 - Hydr	ogen Sulf	ide Odor			C2 - Dry-Season	Water Table
	B2 - Sedime	nt Deposits			C3 - Oxid	ized Rhize	ospheres on Living Roots			C8 - Crayfish Bur	rows
	B3 - Drift De	posits			C4 - Pres	ence of R	educed Iron			C9 - Saturation Vi	isible on Aerial Imagery
	B4 - Algal Ma	at or Crust			C6 - Rece	ent Iron R	eduction in Tilled Soils		2	D1 - Stunted or Si	tressed Plants
님	B5 - Iron Dep	DOSIIS			C/-Ihin	Muck Sur	face		님	D2 - Geomorphic	Position
	B8 - Sparsel	Veretated Concave S	agery Surface	Ц	Other (Ex	piain in R	emarks)			D3 - Shallow Aqui	naiu anhic Relief
	Do - Oparsei	y vegetated Concave C	bullace						H	D5 - FAC-Neutral	Test
Field Observed											
Field Observat	ions:										
Surface Water	Present?	🗹 Yes 📋 No	Depth:	3	(in.)			Wetland Hv	droloav Pr	resent? 🗵	Yes 🗆 No
Water Table Pr	esent?	🗹 Yes 📋 No	Depth:	6	(in.)						
Saturation Pres	ent?	🗹 Yes 🛛 No	Depth:	0	(in.)						
Describe Record	ed Data (str	eam gauge, monitori	na well, aeri	al photos	s. previous	s inspecti	ons), if available:		N/A		
Remarks:		0 0 ,	5		,		,,				
itemarks.											
SOILS											
SOILS Map Unit Name	:	0				9	Series Drainage Class:				
SOILS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sub	: ogroup):	0				S	Geries Drainage Class:				
SOILS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sub Profile Descrip	: ogroup): otion (Describe to	O the depth needed to document the inc	licator or confirm the	absence of indi	icators.) (Type: C	=Concentration	Geries Drainage Class:	Covered/Coated Sand Gra	ins; Location: PL=Pc	vre Lining, M=Matrix)	
SOILS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sub Profile Descrip Top	: ogroup): otion (Describe to Bottom	O the depth needed to document the inc	dicator or confirm the	absence of Indi Matrix	icators.) (Type: C	=Concentration	Series Drainage Class:	Covered/Coated Sand Gra	ins; Location: PL=Pc	vre Lining, M=Matrix)	Texture
SOILS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sub <b>Profile Descrip</b> Top Depth	rgroup): <b>btion</b> (Describe to Bottom Depth	0 the depth needed to document the inc Horizon	dicator or confirm the	<sup>absence of Indi</sup> Matrix Vioist)	icators.) (Type: C	=Concentration	Series Drainage Class: D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C Color (Moist)	Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles	ins; Location: PL=Pc	ore Lining, M=Matrix)	Texture (e.g. clay, sand, loam)
SOILS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sub Profile Descrip Top Depth	group): <b>btion</b> (Describe to Bottom Depth 12	0 the depth needed to document the inc Horizon 1	ilicator or confirm the Color (I 10YR	<sup>absence of Indi Matrix Voist) 4/1</sup>	icators.) (Type: C	=Concentration	Series Drainage Class: D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C Color (Moist)	Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles	ins; Location: PL=Pc	vre Lining, M=Matrix)	Texture (e.g. clay, sand, loam)
SOILS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sub Profile Descrip Top Depth 0	: group): tion (Describe to Bottom Depth 12 20	0 the depth needed to document the inc Horizon 1 2	ilicator or confirm the Color (I 10YR	absence of indi Matrix Moist) 4/1	icators.) (Type: C % 100	=Concentration	Series Drainage Class: D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C Color (Moist)	Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles %	ins; Location: PL=Pc	xe Lining, M=Matrix)	Texture (e.g. clay, sand, loam) loam
SOILS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sub Profile Descrip Top Depth 0 13	: group): tion (Describe to Bottom Depth 12 20	0 the depth needed to document the ind Horizon 1 2	icator or confirm the Color (I 10YR 5Y	absence of indi Matrix Moist) 4/1 4/1	cators.) (Type: C % 100 100	=Concentration	Series Drainage Class: D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C Color (Moist)	Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles %	ins; Location: PL=Pc	ve Lining, M=Matrix)	Texture (e.g. clay, sand, loam) loam sandy loam
SOILS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sub Profile Descrip Top Depth 0 13	: tion (Describe to Bottom Depth 12 20	0 the depth needed to document the inc Horizon 1 2	icator or confirm the Color (I 10YR 5Y	absence of Indi Matrix Voist) 4/1 4/1	cators.) (Type: C % 100 100	=Concentration	Series Drainage Class: D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C Color (Moist)	Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles %	ins; Location: PL=Pc	ve Lining, M=Matrix)	Texture (e.g. clay, sand, loam) loam sandy loam
SOILS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sub Profile Descrip Top Depth 0 13	: tion (Describe to Depth 12 20	0 the depth needed to document the inc Horizon 1 2	ilicator or confirm the Color (I 10YR 5Y	absence of indi Matrix Moist) 4/1 4/1	(Type: C % 100 100	=Concentration	Series Drainage Class: D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C Color (Moist)	Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles %	ins; Location: PL=Pc	ve Lining, M=Matrix)	Texture (e.g. clay, sand, loam) loam sandy loam
SOILS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sub Profile Descrip Top Depth 0 13	: btion (Describe to Depth 12 20	0 the depth needed to document the inc Horizon 1 2	ilcator or confirm the Color (I 10YR 5Y	absence of Indi Matrix Moist) 4/1 4/1	Cators.) (Type: C % 100 100	=Concentration	Series Drainage Class: D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C Color (Moist)	Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles %	ins; Location: PL=Pc	ve Lining, M=Matrix)	Texture (e.g. clay, sand, loam) loam sandy loam
SOILS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sub Profile Descrip Top Depth 0 13	: btion (Describe to Depth 12 20 	0 the depth needed to document the ind Horizon 1 2	icator or confirm the Color (I 10YR 5Y	absence of Indi Matrix Moist) 4/1 4/1 	eators.) (Type: C % 100 100 	=Concentration	Series Drainage Class: D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C Color (Moist)	Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles %	Type	ve Lining, M=Matrix)	Texture (e.g. clay, sand, loam) loam sandy loam
SOILS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sub Profile Descrip Top Depth 0 13  	: group): tion (Describe to Depth 12 20  	0 the depth needed to document the ind Horizon 1 2  	ilicator or confirm the Color (I 10YR 5Y	absence of Indi Matrix Moist) 4/1 4/1 	%           100           100	<pre>Concentration</pre>	Series Drainage Class: D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C Color (Moist)	Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles %	Type	vre Lining, M=Matrix)	Texture (e.g. clay, sand, loam) loam sandy loam
SOILS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sub Profile Descrip Top Depth 0 13   	: group): tion (Describe to Depth 12 20   	0 the depth needed to document the ind Horizon 1 2	icator or confirm the Color (I 10YR 5Y  	absence of Indi Matrix Moist) 4/1 4/1  	cators.) (Type: C % 100 100 	=Concentration	Series Drainage Class: D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C Color (Moist)	Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles %	ins; Location: PL=Pc	vre Lining, M=Matrix)  Location	Texture (e.g. clay, sand, loam) loam sandy loam
SOILS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sub Profile Descrip Top Depth 0 13 	: group): tion (Describe to Depth 12 20   Soil Field II	0 the depth needed to document the ind Horizon 1 2        	Sicator or confirm the Color (I 10YR 5Y    	absence of Indi Matrix Moist) 4/1 4/1   tors are	cators.) (Type: C % 100 100 		Series Drainage Class: D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C Color (Moist) 	Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles %	ins; Location: PL=Pc	ve Lining, M=Matrix)  Location	Texture (e.g. clay, sand, loam) loam sandy loam
SOILS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sub Profile Descrip Top Depth 0 13   NRCS Hydric	: group): tion (Describe to Depth 12 20   Soil Field In A1- Histosol	0 the depth needed to document the ind Horizon 1 2    ndicators (check he	Color (I 10YR 5Y   ere if indica	absence of Indi Matrix Moist) 4/1 4/1   tors are	cators.) (Type: C % 100 100   not prese S& - Polya	=Concentration	Series Drainage Class: D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C Color (Moist) 	Covered/Coated Sand Gran	Ins; Location: PL=Pc	ve Lining, M=Matrix)  Location  matic Soils <sup>1</sup> Muck (IR.K L. M.R.A.1	Texture (e.g. clay, sand, loam) loam sandy loam   
SOILS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sub Profile Descrip Top Depth 0 13   NRCS Hydric	: group): tion (Describe to Depth 12 20 	0 the depth needed to document the inc Horizon 1 2    ndicators (check he pipedon	ilcator or confirm the Color (I 10YR 5Y   ere if indica	absence of Indi Matrix Moist) 4/1 4/1   tors are	eators.) (Type: C % 100 100     s8 - Poly S8 - Poly S8 - Poly S9 - Thin	=Concentration	Series Drainage Class: D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C Color (Moist)    w Surface (LRR R, MLRA 149B) aCe (LRR R, MLRA 149B)	Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles % % %	Ins; Location: PL=Pc Type 	ve Lining, M=Matrix)  Location  matic Soils 1 Muck (LRR K, L, MLRA 1 Prairie Redox (LRR	Texture           (e.g. clay, sand, loam)           loam           sandy loam
SOILS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sub Profile Descrip Top Depth 0 13 NRCS Hydric	: group): tion (Describe to Depth 12 20   Soil Field In A1- Histosol A2 - Histo E A3 - Black H	0 the depth needed to document the inc Horizon 1 2 ndicators (check he pipedon istic	ilcator or confirm the Color (I 10YR 5Y   ere if indica	absence of Indi Matrix Moist) 4/1 4/1  tors are	eators.) (Type: C % 100 100    not prese S8 - Poly S9 - Thin F1 - Loan	=Concentration	Series Drainage Class: D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C Color (Moist) 	Covered/Coated Sand Gram	Ins; Location: PL=Pc Type 	ve Lining, M=Matrix)  Location  matic Soils 1 Muck (LRR K, L, MLRA 1 Prairie Redox (LRR ucky Peat of Peat)	Texture           (e.g. clay, sand, loam)           loam           sandy loam
SOILS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sub Profile Descrip Top Depth 0 13 NRCS Hydric	: group): tion (Describe to Depth 12 20   Soil Field In A1- Histosci A2 - Histo E A3 - Black H A4 - Hydroge	0 the depth needed to document the ind Horizon 1 2   ndicators (check here pipedon istic an Sulfide	icator or confirm the Color (I 10YR 5Y   ere if indica	absence of Indi Matrix Moist) 4/1 4/1   tors are	cators.) (Type: C % 100 100 100 	=Concentration	Series Drainage Class: D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C Color (Moist) 	Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles % %	ins; Location: PL=Pc Type 		Texture           (e.g. clay, sand, loam)           loam           sandy loam   49B)           K, L, R)           LLRR K, L, R)
SOILS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sub Profile Descrip Top Depth 0 13 NRCS Hydric	: group): tion (Describe to Depth 12 20   Soil Field In A1- Histosol A2 - Histic E A3 - Black H A4 - Hydrogg A5 - Stratifie	0 the depth needed to document the ind Horizon 1 2 ndicators (check he pipedon istic an Sulfide d Layers	icator or confirm the Color (I 10YR 5Y   ere if indica	absence of Indi Matrix Moist) 4/1 4/1   tors are	cators.) (Type: C % 100 100 	=Concentration	Color (Moist)  Mineral (LR R, MLRA 149B)  Mineral (LR R, L)  Matrix x	Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % %	ins; Location: PL=Pc Type 	we Lining, M=Matrix)  Location  Location  matrix Soils 1  Muck (LRR K, L, MLRA 1  Prairie Redox, L, MRA 1  Prairie Redox (LRR K, L, M)  lue Below Surface (	Texture           (e.g. clay, sand, loam)           loam           sandy loam
SOILS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sub Profile Descrip Top Depth 0 13 NRCS Hydric	: group): tion (Describe to Depth 12 20   Soil Field II A1- Histosol A2 - Histic E A3 - Black H A4 - Hydrogg A5 - Stratifie A11 - Deplet	0 the depth needed to document the ind Horizon 1 2 ndicators (check he pipedon istic en Sulfide d Layers ed Below Dark Surface	Sicator or confirm the Color (I 10YR 5Y   ere if indica	absence of Indi Matrix Moist) 4/1 4/1  tors are	cators.) (Type: C % 100 100 	=concentration	Series Drainage Class: D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C Color (Moist) 	Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles % %	ins; Location: PL=Pc	The Lining, M=Matrix)  Location	Texture           (e.g. clay, sand, loam)           loam           sandy loam
SOILS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sub Profile Descrip Top Depth 0 13 NRCS Hydric	stion (Describe to Bottom Depth 12 20  Soil Field In A1- Histosol A2 - Histic E A3 - Black H A4 - Hydroge A5 - Stratifie A11 - Deplet A12 - Thick I	0 the depth needed to document the ind Horizon 1 2 ndicators (check he pipedon istic en Sulfide d Layers ed Below Dark Surface Dark Surface	Color (I 10YR 5Y   ere if indica	absence of Indi Matrix Moist) 4/1 4/1   tors are 0 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	eators.) (Type: C % 100 100            	=Concentration	Color (Moist)  Color (Moist)  w Surface (LRR R, MLRA 149B) Mineral (LRR K, L) Matrix x Jrface Surface	Covered/Coated Sand Grav	Ins; Location: PL=Pc	The Lining, M=Matrix)  Location  Location	Texture           (e.g. clay, sand, loam)           loam           sandy loam
SOILS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sub Profile Descrip Top Depth 0 13 NRCS Hydric	: group): tion (Describe to Depth 12 20  Soil Field In A1- Histosol A2 - Histic E A3 - Black H A4 - Hydrogg A5 - Stratifie A11 - Deplet A12 - Thick I S1 - Sandy M	0 the depth needed to document the ind Horizon 1 2 ndicators (check he pipedon istic an Sulfide d Layers ed Below Dark Surface Dark Surface Auck Mineral Evend Metrix	icator or confirm the Color (I 10YR 5Y   ere if indica	absence of Indi Matrix Moist) 4/1 4/1  tors are 0 1 1 1 1 1	eators.) (Type: C % 100 100            	=Concentration	Series Drainage Class: D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C Color (Moist) 	Covered/Coated Sand Grav	Ins; Location: PL=Pc Type Type Allo - 2 cm Allo - 2 cm Allo - 2 cm Allo - 2 cm S3 - 5 cm M S7 - Dark S S8 - Polyval S8 - Polyval S9 - Thin Dc F12 - Iron-M F19 - Piedm		Texture           (e.g. clay, sand, loam)           loam           sandy loam
SOILS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sub Profile Descrip Top Depth 0 13 NRCS Hydric 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	: group): tion (Describe to Depth 12 20   Soil Field In A1- Histosol A2 - Histo E A3 - Black H A4 - Hydroge A1 - Deplet A1 - Stratifie A1 - Deplet A1 - Stratifie A1 - Deplet A1 - Stratifie A1 - Deplet A1 - Stratifie A1 - Stratifie	0 the depth needed to document the ind Horizon 1 2 ndicators (check he pipedon istic en Sulfide d Layers ed Below Dark Surface Dark Surface Auck Mineral Sleyed Matrix Redox	ilcator or confirm the Color (I 10YR 5Y   ere if indica	absence of Indi Matrix Voist) 4/1 4/1   tors are 0 1 1 1	eators.) (Type: C % 100 100            	=Concentration	Series Drainage Class: D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C Color (Moist)   W Surface (LRR R, MLRA 149B) Mineral (LRR K, L) Matrix x JIface Surface Surface Surface Surface	Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles % %	Ins; Location: PL=Pc Type Type 		Texture           (e.g. clay, sand, loam)           loam           sandy loam
SOILS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sub Profile Descrip Top Depth 0 13 NRCS Hydric 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	: group): tion (Describe to Depth 12 20 	0 the depth needed to document the ind Horizon 1 2 ndicators (check he pipedon istic an Sulfide d Layers ed Below Dark Surface Dark Surface Dark Surface Auck Mineral Sleyed Matrix Redox I Matrix	icator or confirm the Color (( 10YR 5Y   ere if indica	absence of Indi Matrix Moist) 4/1 4/1   tors are 2 2 1 1 1 1	cators.) (Type: C % 100 100 100 	=Concentration	Color (Moist)  Color (Moist)  General Color (Moist)  Color (Moist)	Sovered/Coated Sand Grav	Ins: Location: PL=Pc Type Type Instantion In		Texture           (e.g. clay, sand, loam)           loam           sandy loam   (K, L, R)           (LRR K, L)           )           S (LRR K, L, R)           S (MLRA 149B)           (45, 149B)           face
SOILS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sub Profile Descrip Top Depth 0 13 NRCS Hydric	: group): tion (Describe to Depth 12 20   Soil Field II A1- Histosol A2 - Histic E A3 - Black H A4 - Hydrogg A5 - Stratifie A11 - Deplet A12 - Thick I S1 - Sandy R S4 - Sandy R S5 - Sandy F S6 - Strippec	0 the depth needed to document the ind Horizon 1 2 ndicators (check he pipedon istic an Sulfide d Layers ed Below Dark Surface Dark Surface Dark Surface Dark Surface Auck Mineral Sleyed Matrix Redox H Matrix Ifface (LRR R, MLRA 148P)	icator or confirm the Color (I 10YR 5Y   ere if indica	absence of Indi Matrix Moist) 4/1 4/1   tors are 0 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	cators.) (Type: C % 100 100 	eConcentration	Series Drainage Class: D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C Color (Moist) 	Covered/Coated Sand Gra  Mottles %	Ins: Location: PL=Pc Type Type Type Type Type Type Type Type		Texture           (e.g. clay, sand, loam)           loam           sandy loam                 496)           :K, L, R)           LRR K, L, R)           (LRR K, L, R)           S (LRR K, L, R)           S (MLRA 1498)           45, 1498)           face
SOILS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sub Profile Descrip Top Depth 0 13 NRCS Hydric 0 1 0 1 0 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	: group): tion (Describe to Depth 12 20   Soil Field II A1- Histosol A2 - Histic E A3 - Black H A4 - Hydroge A5 - Stratifie A11 - Deplet A12 - Thick I S1 - Sandy M S4 - Sandy C S5 - Sandy F S6 - Strippec S7 - Dark SL	0 the depth needed to document the ind Horizon 1 2 ndicators (check he pipedon istic en Sulfide d Layers ed Below Dark Surface Dark Surface Auck Mineral Sleyed Matrix Redox i Matrix Irface (LRR R, MLRA 149B)	icator or confirm the Color (I 10YR 5Y   ere if indica	absence of Indi Matrix Moist) 4/1 4/1  tors are 0 1 1 1 1	cators.) (Type: C % 100 100 	=Concentration	Series Drainage Class: D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C Color (Moist) 	Covered/Coated Sand Grav	ins; Location: PL=Pc Type Type A10 - 2 cm A16 - Coast S3 - 5cm M S7 - Dark S S3 - Polyval S9 - Thin Da F12 - Iron-M F19 - Piedm TA6 - Mesic TF2 - Red F TF12 - Very Other (Expla of hydrophytic veget	The Lining, M=Matrix)  Location  Location	Texture           (e.g. clay, sand, loam)           loam           sandy loam
SOILS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sub Profile Descrip Top Depth 0 13 NRCS Hydric 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	: group): tion (Describe to Depth 12 20   Soil Field II A1- Histosol A2 - Histic E A3 - Black H A4 - Hydrogg A5 - Stratifie A11 - Deplet A12 - Thick I S1 - Sandy M S4 - Sandy C S5 - Sandy F S6 - Strippec S7 - Dark Su	0 the depth needed to document the ind Horizon 1 2	Sicator or confirm the Color (I 10YR 5Y   ere if indica	absence of Indi Matrix Voist) 4/1 4/1  tors are	eators.) (Type: C % 100 100 	econcentration	Series Drainage Class: D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C Color (Moist) 	Sovered/Coated Sand Grav	ins; Location: PL=Pc Type Type 	The Lining, M=Matrix)  Location  Location     matic Soils 1  Muck (LRK K, L, MLRA 1  Prairie Redox (LRR K, L, MIRA 1  Prai	Texture           (e.g. clay, sand, loam)           loam           sandy loam  S (LRR K, L, R)
SOILS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sub Profile Descrip Top Depth 0 13 NRCS Hydric	: group): tion (Describe to Depth 12 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 2	0 the depth needed to document the ind Horizon 1 2 ndicators (check he pipedon istic en Sulfide d Layers ed Below Dark Surface Dark Surface Auck Mineral Sleyed Matrix Redox HMatrix Iface (LRR R, MLRA 149B)	icator or confirm the Color (I 10YR 5Y   ere if indica	absence of Indi Matrix Moist) 4/1 4/1   tors are 2 1 1 1 1 Depth:	eators.) (Type: C % 100 100            	=Concentration	Series Drainage Class: D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C Color (Moist) 	Covered/Coated Sand Grav	Ins; Location: PL=Pc	ve Lining, M=Matrix)  Location  Location  Gravit Content of the second	Texture         (e.g. clay, sand, loam)         loam         sandy loam
SOILS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sub Profile Descrip Top Depth 0 13 NRCS Hydric 0 Restrictive Layer (If Observed)	: group): tion (Describe to Depth 12 20   Soil Field In A1- Histosol A2 - Histo E A3 - Black H A4 - Hydroge A3 - Black H A4 - Hydroge A11 - Deplet A11 - Deplet A11 - Deplet A12 - Thick I S1 - Sandy N S4 - Sandy C S5 - Sandy F S6 - Strippec S7 - Dark SL Type:	0 the depth needed to document the ind Horizon 1 2 ndicators (check here pipedon istic en Sulfide d Layers ed Below Dark Surface Dark Surface Auck Mineral Sleyed Matrix Redox I (Matrix Irface (LRR R, MLRA 149B)	icator or confirm the Color (I 10YR 5Y   ere if indica	absence of Indi Matrix Voist) 4/1 4/1   tors are 0 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	eators.) (Type: C % 100 100            	=Concentration	Series Drainage Class: D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C Color (Moist)   w Surface (LRR R, MLRA 149B) Mineral (LRR K, L) Matrix x urface Surface Surface	Covered/Coated Sand Graved/Coated Sand Graved/Coate	Ins; Location: PL=Pc Type Type 	ve Lining, M=Matrix)  Location  Location	Texture         (e.g. clay, sand, loam)         loam         sandy loam
SOILS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sub Profile Descrip Top Depth 0 13 NRCS Hydric NRCS Hydric	: group): tion (Describe to Depth 12 20 	0 the depth needed to document the ind Horizon 1 2 ndicators (check here pipedon istic an Sulfide d Layers ed Below Dark Surface Dark Surface Auck Mineral Sleyed Matrix Redox I Matrix Irface (LRR R, MLRA 149B)	icator or confirm the Color (( 10YR 5Y   ere if indica	absence of Indi Matrix Moist) 4/1 4/1   tors are 2 2 1 1 1 1 Depth:	cators.) (Type: C % 100 100 100 	=Concentration	Color (Moist)  Color (Moist)  General Color (Moist)  General Color (Moist)  General Color (Moist)  General (LRR R, MLRA 149B)  Mineral (LRR K, L)  Matrix X  Jufface Surface Sions	Covered/Coated Sand Grav	ins; Location: PL=Pc Type Type 	The Lining, M=Matrix  Location  Location  The Location  Location  The Location  The Location  The Location  The Cody Line K, L, MURA 1  Prairie Redox (LRR K, L, M)  Live Below Surface (LRR K, L, M)  Live Below	Texture         (e.g. clay, sand, loam)         loam         sandy loam



# WETLAND DETERMINATION DATA FORM

Northeast and Northcentral Region

Project/Site:	Readfield Delineation				Wetland ID: 01GPB Sample Point Netland
VEGETATION	(Species identified in all uppercase are i ot size: 10 meter radius)	non-native specie	s.)		
Thee Stratum (F	Species Name	% Cove	r Dominant	Ind.Status	Dominance Test Worksheet
1.	Fraxinus nigra	5	Y	FACW	
2.	Fraxinus pennsylvanica	2	N	FACW	Number of Dominant Species that are OBL, FACW, or FAC: 1 (A)
3.	Pinus strobus	2	N	FACU	
4.	Fagus grandifolia	1	N	FACU	Total Number of Dominant Species Across All Strata: 1 (B)
5.					
6.					Percent of Dominant Species That Are OBL, FACW, or FAC: 100.0% (A/B)
7.					
8.					Prevalence Index Worksheet
9.					Total % Cover of: Multiply by:
10.	-				OBL spp. 10 x 1 = 10
	Total	Cover = 10			FACW spp. 22 x $2 = 44$
					FAC spp. 11 $x 3 = 33$
Sapling/Shrub St	atum (Plot size: 5 meter radius)				FACU spp. 15 x $4 = 60$
1.	Abies balsamea	2	N	FAC	UPL spp. 0 $x 5 = 0$
2.	Fraxinus nigra	5	N	FACW	
3.	Fraxinus pennsylvanica	3	N	FACW	Total <u>58</u> (A) <u>147</u> (B)
4.	Rubus idaeus	10	N	FACU	
5.	Acer rubrum	5	N	FAC	Prevalence Index = B/A = <u>2.534</u>
6.	Tsuga canadensis	2	N	FACU	
7.					
8.					Hydrophytic Vegetation Indicators:
9.					Yes No Rapid Test for Hydrophytic Vegetation
10.					☑ Yes 🔲 No Dominance Test is > 50%
	Total	Cover = 27			yes   No   Prevalence Index is ≤ 3.0 *
					☐ Yes ☑ No Morphological Adaptations (Explain) *
Herb Stratum (Pl	ot size: 2 meter radius)				☐ Yes ☑ No Problem Hydrophytic Vegetation (Explain) *
1.	Osmundastrum cinnamomeum	2	N	FACW	* Indicators of hydric soil and wetland hydrology must be
2.	Scirpus cyperinus	5	<u>N</u>	OBL	present, unless disturbed or problematic.
3.	Carex crinita	5	<u>N</u>	OBL	
4.	Onoclea sensibilis	5	<u>N</u>	FACW	Definitions of Vegetation Strata:
5.	Matteuccia struthiopteris	2	<u>N</u>	FAC	-
6	Solidago rugosa	2	N	FAC	I ree - Woody plants 3 in. (7.6cm) or more in diameter at breast beidet (DPH), recording of beidet
/.					neight (DDH), regardless of height.
8.					On all and (Other the Wearth plants less than 2 in DDH and greater than 2 29 ft
9.					Sapling/Snrub - www.plants less than 3 in. DBH and greater than 3.28 ft. tall.
10.					
11.					
12.					woody plants less than 3.28 ft. tall.
13.					
14.					Woody Vince All woody vince greater than 3.28 ft in height
15.					WOODY VINES - All woody vines greater than 3.20 ft. in height.
	Total	Jover = 21			
vvoody Vine Stra	um (Piot size: 10 meter radius)				
2.					
<u> </u>					
4. <i>E</i>					
5.	 Totol (	 Cover = 0			
Remarks:	lotal				
i temarka.					

Additional Remarks:



#### WETLAND DETERMINATION DATA FORM Northeast and Northcentral Region

Project/Site:	Readfield De	lineation					Stantec Project #:	195602046		Date:	10/25/21
Applicant:	Norwich Sola	ır								County:	Kennebec
Investigator #1:	G. Pelletier			Investi	gator #2:	L. Pelle	tier			State:	ME
Soil Unit:					<u> </u>	NV	VI/WWI Classification:			Wetland ID:	01GPC
Landform.	Depression	n		Loc	al Relief	Concav	IP			Sample Point	Wetland
Slope (%):	0.2	l atitudo:	44 246054	200	ongitudo:	en 2061	6	Datum	NAD92	Community ID:	DEO
Are elimetic/bu	U-J	Lauluue.	44.340034	o timo of	Ungitude.	-09.0901	0		NADOS		PFO
Are climatic/nyc			pical for thi	s ume or	year? (if	no, explain	in remarks)			4	
Are Vegetation	$\Box$ , Soll $\Box$ ,	or Hydrology 🗆 sig	nificantly d	sturbed	?		Are normal circumst	ances presen	ť?		
Are Vegetation	□, Soil □,	or Hydrology 🛛 nat	urally prob	lematic?			⊡ Yes	□ No			
SUMMARY OF	FINDINGS										
Hydrophytic Ve	getation Pre	sent?		Yes	🗆 🗆 No	)		Hydric Soils	Present?		🗹 Yes 🗆 No
Wetland Hydrol	o logy Present	?		Yes		,		Is This Sam	olina Point '	Within A Wetlar	nd? 🛛 Yes 🔳 No
Remarks	- 3)										
i ternarite.											
HYDROLOGY											
Wetland Hydr	ology Indic	ators (Check here i	f indicators	are not	present						
Primary		·							Secondary:		
	A1 - Surface	Water		1	B9 - Wate	er-Stained	Leaves			B6 - Surface Soil	Cracks
1	A2 - High Wa	ater Table			B13 - Aqı	uatic Faun	a			B10 - Drainage P	atterns
2	A3 - Saturati	on			B15 - Ma	rl Deposit	S		4	B16 - Moss Trim	Lines
	B1 - Water N	larks			C1 - Hydr	rogen Sulf	ide Odor			C2 - Dry-Season	Water Table
	B2 - Sedimer	nt Deposits			C3 - Oxid	lized Rhize	ospheres on Living Roots			C8 - Crayfish Bur	rows
	B3 - Drift De	posits			C4 - Pres	sence of R	educed Iron		님	C9 - Saturation V	Isible on Aerial Imagery
	B4 - Algal Ma	at or Crust		님	C7 Thin	ent Iron R	face		2	D1 - Stunted or S	Desition
I H	B3 - Iron Dep	on Visible on Aerial Im:	2000/	님	Other (Ex	volain in P	nace omarks)		H	D2 - Geomorphic	itard
	B8 - Snarsel	Venetated Concave S	Surface	님			emarksj			D3 - Shallow Aqu	anhic Relief
	Do opulooi	y vegetated conouve c	Januado							D5 - FAC-Neutral	Test
Field Observed											
Field Observat	lions:										
Surface Water	Present?	🗹 Yes 🛛 No	Depth:	3	(in.)			Wetland Hy	drology Pr	resent? 🛛	Yes 🗆 No
Water Table Pr	esent?	🗹 Yes 🛛 No	Depth:	6	(in.)			weddiadarfy	arologyii		
Saturation Pres	ent?	🗹 Yes 🛛 No	Depth:	0	(in.)						
Describe Record	led Data (etr	eam daude monitori	na well seri	al photos		e inenacti	ions) if available:		NI/A		
Deserver		cum gauge, monitori	ng wen, aen		, previou	3 mapeou			14/74		
Pomarke.											
i temarka.											
Remarks.											
SOILS											
SOILS Map Unit Name	e:	0				S	Series Drainage Class:	:			
SOILS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sub	e: ogroup):	0				S	Series Drainage Class:	:			
SOILS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sub Profile Descrip	o: ogroup): otion (Describe to	O the depth needed to document the inc	dicator or confirm the	absence of indi	cators.) (Type: C	C=Concentration	Series Drainage Class:	Covered/Coated Sand Gra	ins; Location: PL=Pc	vre Lining, M=Matrix)	
SOILS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sub Profile Descrip Top	e: ogroup): otion (Describe to Bottom	O the depth needed to document the inc	ilcator or confirm the	absence of India	cators.) (Type: C	S=Concentration	Series Drainage Class: D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C	Covered/Coated Sand Gra	ins; Location: PL=Pc	ore Lining, M=Matrix)	Texture
Solls Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sub Profile Descrip Top	e: ogroup): otion (Describe to Bottom	0 the depth needed to document the inc	ilcator or confirm the	absence of India Matrix	cators.) (Type: C	S=Concentration	Series Drainage Class: D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C	Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles	ins; Location: PL=Pc	ore Lining, M=Matrix)	Texture
Solls Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sub Profile Descrip Top Depth	e: ogroup): otion (Describe to Depth	0 the depth needed to document the ind Horizon	ficator or confirm the	absence of India Matrix Moist)	cators.) (Type: C	S=Concentration	Series Drainage Class: D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C Color (Moist)	Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles %	ins; Location: PL=Pc	ve Lining, M=Matrix)	Texture (e.g. clay, sand, loam)
SOILS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sub Profile Descrip Top Depth 0	e: bgroup): btion (Describe to Bottom Depth 4	0 the depth needed to document the ind Horizon 1	licator or confirm the Color (I 10YR	absence of india Matrix Moist) 3/1	cators.) (Type: C % 100	E=Concentration	Series Drainage Class: D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C Color (Moist)	Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles %	ins; Location: PL=Pc	vre Lining, M=Matrix)	Texture (e.g. clay, sand, loam) loam
SOILS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sub Profile Descrip Top Depth 0 5	e: bggroup): btion (Describe to Bottom Depth 4 6	0 the depth needed to document the ind Horizon 1 2	licator or confirm the Color (I 10YR 10YR	absence of india Matrix Moist) 3/1 4/1	cators.) (Type: C % 100 100	E=Concentration	Series Drainage Class: D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C Color (Moist)	Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles %	ins; Location: PL=Pc	ve Lining, M=Matrix)	Texture (e.g. clay, sand, loam) Ioam Ioam
SolLS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sub Profile Descrip Top Depth 0 5 10	s: ygroup): tion (Describe to Bottom Depth 4 6 12	0 the depth needed to document the inc Horizon 1 2 3	licator or confirm the Color (I 10YR 10YR 5YR	absence of India Matrix Voist) 3/1 4/1 5/2	cators.) (Type: C % 100 100 100	S=Concentration	Series Drainage Class: D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C Color (Moist)	Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles %	ins; Location: PL=Pc	ve Lining, M=Matrix)	Texture (e.g. clay, sand, loam) Ioam Ioam
SolLS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sub Profile Descrip Top Depth 0 5 10	by by by by by by by by by by by by by b	0 the depth needed to document the ind Horizon 1 2 3	icator or confirm the Color (I 10YR 10YR 5YR	absence of indi Matrix Voist) 3/1 4/1 5/2	cators.) (Type: C % 100 100 100	C=Concentration	Series Drainage Class: D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C Color (Moist)	Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles %	ins; Location: PL=Pc	re Lining, M=Matrix)	Texture (e.g. clay, sand, loam) Ioam Ioam
SolLS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sub Profile Descrip Top Depth 0 5 10	e: bgroup): btion (Describe to Bottom Depth 4 6 12 12	0 the depth needed to document the inc Horizon 1 2 3	icator or confirm the Color (I 10YR 10YR 5YR	absence of India Matrix Voist) 3/1 4/1 5/2	cators.) (Type: C % 100 100 100	E=Concentration	Series Drainage Class: D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C Color (Moist)	Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles %	ins; Location: PL=Pc	ve Lining, M=Matrix)	_ Texture (e.g. clay, sand, loam) loam loam loam
SolLS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sub Profile Descrip Top Depth 0 5 10	s: proup): ption (Describe to Depth 4 6 12	0 the depth needed to document the inc Horizon 1 2 3	ilicator or confirm the Color (I 10YR 10YR 5YR	absence of indi Matrix Voist) 3/1 4/1 5/2	cators.) (Type: C % 100 100 100	C=Concentration	Color (Moist)	Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles %	ins; Location: PL=Pc	ve Lining, M=Matrix)	_ Texture (e.g. clay, sand, loam) loam loam
SolLS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sut Profile Descrip Top Depth 0 5 10 	s: stion (Describe to Depth 4 6 12 	0 the depth needed to document the ind Horizon 1 2 3 	ilicator or confirm the Color (I 10YR 10YR 5YR	absence of India Matrix Voist) 3/1 4/1 5/2	cators.) (Type: C % 100 100 100 	C=Concentration	Color (Moist)	Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles %	Type	ve Lining, M=Matrix)	Texture (e.g. clay, sand, loam) loam loam
SolLS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Suk Profile Descrip Top Depth 0 5 10 	s: stion (cescribe to Depth 4 6 12  	0 the depth needed to document the inc Horizon 1 2 3 	icator or confirm the Color (I 10YR 10YR 5YR  	absence of indi Matrix Moist) 3/1 4/1 5/2 	cators.) (Type: C % 100 100 100 	S=Concentration	Series Drainage Class: D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C Color (Moist) 	Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles %	ins; Location: PL=Pc	ve Lining, M=Matrix)	Texture (e.g. clay, sand, loam) loam loam loam
SolLS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sub Profile Descrip Top Depth 0 5 10	s: ygroup): tion (Describe to Bottom Depth 4 6 12   	0 the depth needed to document the inc Horizon 1 2 3   	icator or confirm the Color (( 10YR 10YR 5YR  	absence of India Matrix Moist) 3/1 4/1 5/2  	cators.) (Type: C % 100 100 100   	C=Concentration	Series Drainage Class: D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C Color (Moist)	Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles %	ins; Location: PL=Pc	Ne Lining, M=Matrix)	Texture (e.g. clay, sand, loam) loam loam 
SolLS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sub Profile Descrip Top Depth 0 5 10 	2: bgroup): btion (Describe to Depth 4 6 12   Soil Field In	0 the depth needed to document the ind Horizon 1 2 3     ndicators (check he	icator or confirm the Color (I 10YR 5YR   ere if indica	absence of indi Matrix Moist) 3/1 4/1 5/2   tors are	cators.) (Type: C % 100 100    not prese	C=Concentration	Series Drainage Class: D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C Color (Moist)	Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles %	ins; Location: PL=Pc Type	ve Lining, M=Matrix)	Texture (e.g. clay, sand, loam) loam loam loam 
SolLS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sut Profile Descrip Top Depth 0 5 10 	s: proup): ption (Describe to Depth 4 6 12   Soil Field In A1- Histosol	0 the depth needed to document the ind Horizon 1 2 3 3      ndicators (check here	Sicator or confirm the Color (I 10YR 5YR    ere if indica	absence of indi Matrix Voist) 3/1 4/1 5/2    tors are	cators.) (Type: C % 100 100 100     s8 - Poly	C=Concentration	Color (Moist)  Color (Moist)	Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles % %	Ins; Location: PL=Pc Type	ve Lining, M=Matrix)  Location  matic Soils <sup>1</sup> Muck (LRR K, L, MLRA -	Texture         (e.g. clay, sand, loam)         loam
SolLS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sut Profile Descrip Top Depth 0 5 10   NRCS Hydric	s: pgroup): ption (Describe to Depth 4 6 12   Soil Field In A1- Histosol A2 - Histic El	0 the depth needed to document the ind Horizon 1 2 3     ndicators (check he pipedon	Sicator or confirm the Color (I 10YR 10YR 5YR   ere if indica	absence of indi Matrix Moist) 3/1 4/1 5/2   tors are	cators.) (Type: C % 100 100 100    S8 - Poly S9 - Thin	S=Concentration	Color (Moist)  Color (Moist)	Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles % %	Ins; Location: PL=Pc Type 	The Lining, M=Matrix)	Texture         (e.g. clay, sand, loam)         loam         loam         loam
SolLS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Suk Profile Descrip Top Depth 0 5 10 NRCS Hydric	s: pgroup): ption (cescribe to Depth 4 6 12   Soil Field In A1- Histosol A2 - Histo E A3 - Black H	0 the depth needed to document the ind Horizon 1 2 3 3   ndicators (check he pipedon istic	icator or confirm the Color (I 10YR 10YR 5YR   ere if indica	absence of indi Matrix Moist) 3/1 4/1 5/2   tors are	cators.) (Type: C % 100 100 100            	S=Concentration	Series Drainage Class: D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C Color (Moist) 	Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles % %	ins; Location: PL=Pc Type 	Ve Lining, M=Matrix)  Location	Texture         (e.g. clay, sand, loam)         loam         loa
SolLS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sub Profile Descrip Top Depth 0 5 10 NRCS Hydric	2: pgroup): ption (Describe to Depth 4 6 12   Soil Field I A1- Histosol A2 - Histic El A3 - Black H A4 - Hydroge	0 the depth needed to document the inc Horizon 1 2 3 ndicators (check he pipedon istic en Sulfide	icator or confirm the Color (( 10YR 10YR 5YR   ere if indica	absence of India Matrix Moist) 3/1 4/1 5/2  tors are	eators.) (Type: C % 100 100 100     Not prese S8 - Poly S9 - Thin F1 - Loan F2 - Loan	S=Concentration	Series Drainage Class: D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C Color (Moist) 	Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles % %	ins; Location: PL=Pc Type   rs for Proble A10 - 2 cm A16 - Coast S3 - 5cm M S7 - Dark S	Me Lining, M=Matrix)	Texture         (e.g. clay, sand, loam)         loam         loam <tdloam< td="">         loam&lt;</tdloam<>
SolLS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sub Profile Descrip Top Depth 0 5 10 NRCS Hydric	2: bgroup): btion (Describe to Depth 4 6 12  Soil Field In A1- Histosol A2 - Histo El A3 - Black H A4 - Hydroge A5 - Stratifie	0 the depth needed to document the ind Horizon 1 2 3   ndicators (check here pipedon istic an Sulfide d Layers	icator or confirm the Color (I 10YR 10YR 5YR   ere if indica	absence of india Matrix Moist) 3/1 4/1 5/2  tors are	cators.) (Type: C % 100 100 100            	E=Concentration	Series Drainage Class: D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C Color (Moist) 	Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles %	Ins; Location: PL=Pc Type	we Lining, M=Matrix)  Location  Location	Texture         (e.g. clay, sand, loam)         loam         loam         loam         loam
SolLS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Suk Profile Descrip Top Depth 0 5 10    NRCS Hydric	s: ption (Describe to Depth 4 6 12  Soil Field It A1- Histosol A2 - Histic El A3 - Black H A4 - Hydroge A5 - Stratifier A1 - Deplet	0 the depth needed to document the ind Horizon 1 2 3   ndicators (check he pipedon istic en Sulfide d Layers ed Below Dark Surface	icator or confirm the Color (I 10YR 5YR   ere if indica	absence of Indi Matrix Moist) 3/1 4/1 5/2  tors are	cators.) (Type: C % 100 100 100     s8 - Poly S9 - Thin F1 - Loan F3 - Depl F6 - Redg	C=Concentration	Color (Moist)  Color (Moist)	Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles %	Ins; Location: PL=Pc Type    <b></b> <b></b> <b></b> <b></b> <b></b> <b></b>	The Lining, M=Matrix)  Location  Location	Texture       (e.g. clay, sand, loam)       loam       loam       loam
SolLS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sut Profile Descrip Top Depth 0 5 10 NRCS Hydric	s: pgroup): ption (Describe to Depth 4 6 12  Soil Field In A1- Histosol A2 - Histic E A3 - Black H A4 - Hydroge A5 - Stratifie A11 - Deplet A12 - Thick IC	0 the depth needed to document the ind Horizon 1 2 3 ndicators (check he pipedon istic en Sulfide d Layers ed Below Dark Surface Dark Surface	icator or confirm the Color (I 10YR 10YR 5YR   ere if indica	absence of indi Matrix Moist) 3/1 4/1 5/2  tors are 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	cators.) (Type: C % 100 100 100            	S=Concentration	Color (Moist) Co	Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles % %	Ins; Location: PL=Pc	The Lining, M=Matrix)  Location  Location	Texture           (e.g. clay, sand, loam)           loam
SolLS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Suk Profile Descrip Top Depth 0 5 10 NRCS Hydric 0	s: pgroup): ption (Describe to Depth 4 6 12 	0 the depth needed to document the ind Horizon 1 2 3   ndicators (check he pipedon istic nn Sulfide d Layers ed Below Dark Surface Dark Surface Dark Surface Dark Surface	icator or confirm the Color (I 10YR 10YR 5YR    ere if indica	absence of indi Matrix Moist) 3/1 4/1 5/2  tors are 0 1 2 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	cators.) (Type: C % 100 100 100 100            	S=Concentration	Series Drainage Class: D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C Color (Moist) 	Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles %	Ins; Location: PL=Pc Type Type All - 2 cm All - 2 cm All - 2 cm S3 - 5cm M S7 - Dark S S8 - Polyval S9 - Thin Dc F12 - Iron-N F12 - Iron-N F19 - Piedm		Texture           (e.g. clay, sand, loam)           loam           loam
SolLS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Suk Profile Descrip Top Depth 0 5 10 NRCS Hydric 0	s: pgroup): tion (cescribe to Depth 4 6 12   Soil Field II A1- Histosol A2- Histic E A3- Black H A4- Hydroge A5- Stratifie A11- Deplet A12- Deplet A12- Deplet A12- Stratifie A13- Stratifie A13- Stratifie A14- Stratifie A15- Stratifie A15- Stratifie A15- Stratifie A16- Stratifie A16- Stratifie A17- Deplet A17- Sandy N S4- Sandy C	0 the depth needed to document the inc Horizon 1 2 3 ndicators (check he pipedon istic en Sulfide d Layers ed Below Dark Surface Dark Surface Auck Mineral Sleyed Matrix Perdox	icator or confirm the Color (I 10YR 10YR 5YR   ere if indica	absence of India Matrix Voist) 3/1 4/1 5/2  tors are	cators.) (Type: C % 100 100 100 100    not press S8 - Poly S9 - Thin F1 - Loan F2 - Loan F3 - Depl F6 - Redd F8 - Redd	S=Concentration	Series Drainage Class: D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C Color (Moist) 	Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles %	ins; Location: PL=Pc Type Type Alto - 2 cm Alto - 2 cm Alto - Coast S3 - 5cm M S7 - Dark S S8 - Polyval S9 - Thin Da S9 - Thin Da S9 - Thin Da S9 - Thin Da F12 - Iron-M F12 - Iron-M F12 - Iron-M F12 - Piedm TA6 - Mesic		Texture         (e.g. clay, sand, loam)         loam         loam         loam         loam         k. (loam)         loam         loam <td< td=""></td<>
SolLS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sub Profile Descrip Top Depth 0 5 10 NRCS Hydric 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	2: proup): ption (Describe to Depth 4 6 12   Soil Field It A1- Histosol A2 - Histic E A3 - Black H A4 - Hydroge A5 - Stratifier A12 - Thick I S1 - Sandy R S4 - Sandy C S5 - Sandy R	0 the depth needed to document the inc Horizon 1 2 3 ndicators (check he pipedon istic en Sulfide d Layers ed Below Dark Surface Dark Surface Dark Surface Dark Surface Dark Surface Muck Mineral Beyed Matrix Redox I Matrix	icator or confirm the Color (I 10YR 10YR 5YR   ere if indica	absence of India Matrix Moist) 3/1 4/1 5/2  tors are	eators.) (Type: C % 100 100 100    not prese S8 - Poly S9 - Thin F3 - Depl F6 - Redc F7 - Depl F8 - Redc	ert value Belc Dark Surt ny Mucky ny Gleyed eted Matri xx Dark S eted Dark xx Depres	Series Drainage Class: D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C Color (Moist) 	Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % %	Ins; Location: PL=Pc Type Type A10 - 2 cm A10 - 2 cm A10 - 2 cm A10 - 2 cm S3 - 5cm M S7 - Dark S S8 - Polyval S9 - Thin Da S9 - Thin Da S9 - Thin Da S9 - Thin Da F12 - Iron-M F12 - Iron-M F12 - Iron-M F12 - Red F TF12 - Red F		Texture           (e.g. clay, sand, loam)           loam           loam
SolLS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sut Profile Descrip Top Depth 0 5 10    NRCS Hydric	2: group): ption (Describe to Depth 4 6 12   Soil Field It A1- Histosol A2 - Histic El A3 - Black H A4 - Hydroge A5 - Stratifier A11 - Deplet A11 - Deplet A12 - Thick IC S1 - Sandy N S4 - Sandy F S5 - Sandy F S6 - Strippec	0 the depth needed to document the ind Horizon 1 2 3 ndicators (check he pipedon istic en Sulfide d Layers ed Below Dark Surface Dark Surface Auck Mineral Bleyed Matrix Redox I Matrix Iface (LRB R. MIRA 1498)	ilcator or confirm the Color (I 10YR 10YR 5YR    	absence of Indi Matrix Moist) 3/1 4/1 5/2  tors are	cators.) (Type: C % 100 100 100     S8 - Poly S9 - Thin F1 - Loan F3 - Depl F6 - Redd F7 - Depl F8 - Redd	ent Carlos Sur Alexandre Sur A	Color (Moist)  Color (Moist)	Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles %	Ins; Location: PL=Pc Type Type Instantiation	We Lining, M=Matrik)  Location	Texture         (e.g. clay, sand, loam)         loam         loam         loam   >      <
SolLS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sut Profile Descrip Top Depth 0 5 10 NRCS Hydric 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	2: pgroup): ption (Describe to Depth 4 6 12  Soil Field Ir A1- Histosol A2 - Histic E A3 - Black H A4 - Hydroge A5 - Stratifier A11 - Deplet A12 - Thick I S1 - Sandy M S4 - Sandy C S5 - Sandy F S6 - Strippec S7 - Dark Su	0 the depth needed to document the ind Horizon 1 2 3   ndicators (check he pipedon istic en Sulfide d Layers ed Below Dark Surface Dark Surface Auck Mineral Sleyed Matrix Redox I Matrix Irface (LRR R, MLRA 149B)	Icator or confirm the Color (I 10YR 10YR 5YR   ere if indica	absence of indi Matrix Moist) 3/1 4/1 5/2   tors are 0 1 0 0 0 0 0	cators.) (Type: C % 100 100 100            	S Concentration Con	Series Drainage Class: D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C Color (Moist) 	Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles %	Ins; Location: PL=Pc	The Lining, M=Matrix)	Texture           (e.g. clay, sand, loam)           loam           loam
SolLS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sut Profile Descrip Top Depth 0 5 10 NRCS Hydric 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	s: pgroup): ption (Describe to Depth 4 6 12   Soil Field It A1- Histosol A2 - Histic El A3 - Black H A4 - Hydroge A5 - Straitfier A12 - Thick It S1 - Sandy R S4 - Sandy C S5 - Sandy R S6 - Strippec S7 - Dark Su	0 the depth needed to document the ind Horizon 1 2 3 ndicators (check he pipedon istic pipedon istic check park Surface Dark Surface Dark Surface Muck Mineral Sleyed Matrix tedox I Matrix Iface (LRR R, MLRA 149B)	icator or confirm the Color (I 10YR 10YR 5YR   ere if indica	absence of indi Matrix Moist) 3/1 4/1 5/2   tors are 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	Cators.) (Type: C % 100 100 100            	S=Concentration	Series Drainage Class: D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C Color (Moist) 	Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles %	ins; Location: PL=Pc Type Type 	Ve Lining, M=Matrix)	Texture         (e.g. clay, sand, loam)         loam
SolLS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Suk Profile Descrip Top Depth 0 5 10 NRCS Hydric	s: pgroup): ption (Describe to Depth 4 6 12   Soil Field In A1- Histosol A2 - Histic El A3 - Black H A4 - Hydroge A5 - Stratifie A1 - Deplet A1 - Deplet A1 - Deplet A1 - Stratifie S1 - Sandy N S4 - Sandy C S5 - Sandy F S6 - Strippec S7 - Dark Su	0 the depth needed to document the inc Horizon 1 2 3 ndicators (check he pipedon istic on Sulfide d Layers ed Below Dark Surface Dark Surface Dark Surface Muck Mineral Sleyed Matrix Redox I Matrix Ifface (LRR R, MLRA 149B)	icator or confirm the Color (I 10YR 10YR 5YR   ere if indica	absence of indi Matrix Moist) 3/1 4/1 5/2   tors are 0 1 2 1 2 1 2 2 1 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2	cators.) (Type: C % 100 100 100 100            	ent provide set of the	Series Drainage Class: D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C Color (Moist) 	Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % %	ins; Location: PL=Pc Type Type 	VIE Lining, M=Matrix)   Location  Location   matic Soils <sup>1</sup> Muck (LRR K, L, MLRA *  Prairie Redox (LRR Urface (LRR K, L, M)  Lue Below Surface LRR K, L, M  Lus Below Surface (LRR K, L  Anganese Masser ont Floodplain Soi  Spodic (MLRA 144A, Parent Material  Shallow Dark Sur ain in Remarks)  Laton and wetland hydrology	Texture         (e.g. clay, sand, loam)         loam         loa
SolLS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Suk Profile Descrip Top Depth 0 5 10 NRCS Hydric	s: pgroup): tion (Describe to Depth 4 6 12   Soil Field II A1- Histosol A2- Histic E A3- Black H A4- Hydroge A5- Stratifie A11- Deplet A12- Deplet A12- Straty N S4- Sandy N	0 the depth needed to document the inc Horizon 1 2 3 ndicators (check hes pipedon istic en Sulfide d Layers ed Below Dark Surface Dark Surface Auck Mineral Sleyed Matrix Redox Ifface (LRR R, MLRA 149B)	icator or confirm the Color (( 10YR 10YR 5YR   ere if indica	absence of India Matrix Voist) 3/1 4/1 5/2  tors are	cators.) (Type: C % 100 100 100    not prese S8 - Poly S9 - Thin F1 - Loan F2 - Loan F3 - Depl F6 - Redo F8 - Redo	Seconcentration	Series Drainage Class: D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C Color (Moist) 	Mottles Mottles %   Indicator  Indicator   Indicator   Indicator   Indicator     Indicator      Indicator        -	ins; Location: PL=Pc Type Type 	Me Lining, M=Matrix)  Location  Location	Texture         (e.g. clay, sand, loam)         loam
SolLS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sut Profile Descrip Top Depth 0 5 10  NRCS Hydric	2: group): ption (Describe to Depth 4 6 12   Soil Field It A1- Histosol A2 - Histic E; A3 - Black H A4 - Hydroge A5 - Stratifier A1 - Deplet A1 - Deplet A1 - Deplet S1 - Sandy R S4 - Sandy R S4 - Sandy R S5 - Sandy R S6 - Strippec S7 - Dark Su	0 the depth needed to document the ind Horizon 1 2 3 ndicators (check he pipedon istic on Sulfide d Layers ed Below Dark Surface Dark Surface Dark Surface Dark Surface Dark Surface I Matrix Redox I Matrix Iface (LRR R, MLRA 149B)	icator or confirm the Color (( 10YR 10YR 5YR   ere if indica	absence of India Matrix Moist) 3/1 4/1 5/2  tors are	eators) (Type: C % 100 100 100    not prese S8 - Poly S9 - Thin F3 - Depl F6 - Redo F7 - Depl F8 - Redo	ert Carlorent allon	Series Drainage Class: D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C Color (Moist) 	Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % %	ins; Location: PL=Pc Type Type 	WE Lining, M=Matrix)  Location  Location     matic Soils 1  Muck (LRR K, L, MLRA + Prairie Redox (LRR K, L, MI ucky Peat of Peat urface (LRR K, L, MI ucky Peat of Peat urface (LRR K, L, M) ucky Peat of Peat urface (LRR K, L, M) ucky Peat of Peat urface (LRR K, L, MI anganese Masses ont Floodplain Soi Spodic (MLRA 144A; Sarent Material 'Shallow Dark Sur aiton and wetland hydrology  []	Texture         (e.g. clay, sand, loam)         loam



# WETLAND DETERMINATION DATA FORM

Northeast and Northcentral Region

Project/Site:	Readfield Delineation					Wetland ID: 01GPC Sample Point <b>Netlanc</b>
VEGETATION	(Species identified in all upperca	ise are non-native	species	)		
Tree Stratum (P	ot size: 10 meter radius)			/		
	<u>Species Name</u>	-	% Cover	Dominant	Ind.Status	Dominance Test Worksheet
1.	Fraxinus nigra		10	N	FACW	Number of Deminent Species that are ODL $EACIN$ or $EACI = 1$ (A)
2.	Fravinus pennsylvanica		10	N		
<u> </u>	Fagus grandifolia		5	N	FACIL	Total Number of Dominant Species Across All Strata: 1 (B)
	Thuia occidentalis		10	N	FACW	
6	Abies balsamea		20	Y	FAC	Percent of Dominant Species That Are OBL_EACW_or EAC: 100.0% (A/B)
7.						
8.						Prevalence Index Worksheet
9.						Total % Cover of: Multiply by:
10.						OBL spp. 7 x 1 = 7
		Total Cover =	65			FACW spp. 43 x 2 = $\frac{86}{100}$
						FAC spp. 37 x 3 = 111
Sapling/Shrub Str	atum (Plot size: 5 meter radius)					FACU spp. 5 x 4 = 20
1.	Abies balsamea		2	N	FAC	UPL spp. 0 x 5 = 0
2.	Acer rubrum		2	N	FAC	
3.	Fraxinus pennsylvanica		1	N	FACW	Total <u>92</u> (A) <u>224</u> (B)
4.						
5.						Prevalence Index = B/A = <u>2.435</u>
6.						
7.						lledweine die Manstellen Indianaanse
8.						Hydropnytic vegetation indicators:
9.						Ves No Rapid Test for Hydrophytic Vegetation
10.		Total Cover =	5			$\checkmark$ Yes $\Box$ No Dominance results > 50%
			5			[v] res $[v]$ No. Merphological Adaptations (Evaluin) *
Herb Stratum (Pl	ot size: 2 meter radius)					
1.	Osmundastrum cinnamome	eum	10	N	FACW	
2.	Scirpus cyperinus		5	N	OBL	* Indicators of hydric soil and wetland hydrology must be
3.	Dryopteris intermedia		3	N	FAC	present, unless disturbed or problematic.
4.	Onoclea sensibilis		2	N	FACW	Definitions of Vegetation Strata:
5.	Typha angustifolia		2	N	OBL	-
6						<b>Tree -</b> Woody plants 3 in. (7.6cm) or more in diameter at breast
7.						height (DBH), regardless of height.
8.						
9.						Sapling/Shrub - Woody plants less than 3 in. DBH and greater than 3.28 ft.
10.						
11.						
12.						Herb - All herbaceous (non-woody) plants, regardless of size, and woody plants less than 3.28 ft. tall.
13.						
14.						Moody Vince All work vince greater than 2.28 ft in height
15.		Total Origina				WOODY VILLES - Chi woody villes greater tital 5.25 ft. in height.
		Total Cover =	22			
Woody Vino Stro	um (Plot size: 10 motor radius)					
2.						
3.						Hydrophytic Vegetation Present 🗵 Yes 🗆 No
4.						
5.						
		Total Cover =	0			
Remarks:						

Additional Remarks:



#### WETLAND DETERMINATION DATA FORM Northeast and Northcentral Region

Project/Site:	Readfield De	lineation					Stantec Project #:	195602046	i	Date:	10/25/21
Applicant:	Norwich Sola	ar								County:	Kennebec
Investigator #1	G. Pelletier			Investi	igator #2:	L. Pelle	ier			State:	ME
Soil Unit:					<u> </u>	NV	/I/WWI Classification:			Wetland ID:	01GPD
Landform:	Depression	n		Loc	al Relief	Concav	<u>م</u>			Sample Point	Wetland
Slope (%):	0.2	l atitudo:	44 249640	1	ongitudo:	60 9062	0 04	Datum	NAD92	Community ID:	
Siope (70).	U-J		44.340049	L.	Ungitude.	-09.0902			NADOS		PEIW/PFO
Are climatic/nyo	arologic cond	ditions on the site ty	pical for thi	s time of	r year? (If	no, explain i	n remarks)	⊡ Yes ⊔	NO		
Are Vegetation	□, Soil □,	or Hydrology 🛯 sig	nificantly di	sturbed	?		Are normal circumsta	ances presen	it?		
Are Vegetation	□, Soil □,	or Hydrology 🗆 nat	urally probl	lematic?			Yes	🗆 No			
SUMMARY OF	FINDINGS										
Hydronhytic Ve	detation Pre	sent?		🛛 Yes	No	1		Hydric Soils	Present?		🛛 Yes 🗆 No
Wetland Hydro	logy Present	·?						le This Same	nling Point	Mithin A Metlar	
Pomarke:	logy i reach			- 103					pling i olin	within / wettai	
ixemarks.											
HYDROLOGY											
Wetland Hydr	ology Indic	ators (Check here i	f indicators	are not	nresent	Г					
Primary			maloutors	archot	present	Ц			Secondary.		
	A1 - Surface	W/ater			89 - Wate	er-Stained	leaves			B6 - Surface Soil	Cracks
	A2 - High Wa	ater Table			B13 - An	latic Faun	9			B10 - Drainage P	atterns
2	A3 - Saturati	on		H	B15 - Ma	d Deposits	-			B16 - Moss Trim	Lines
	B1 - Water N	larks			C1 - Hydr	ogen Sulfi	de Odor			C2 - Dry-Season	Water Table
	B2 - Sedime	nt Deposits			C3 - Oxid	ized Rhizo	spheres on Living Roots			C8 - Crayfish Bur	rows
	B3 - Drift De	posits			C4 - Pres	ence of R	educed Iron			C9 - Saturation V	isible on Aerial Imagery
	B4 - Algal Ma	at or Crust			C6 - Rece	ent Iron Re	duction in Tilled Soils		4	D1 - Stunted or S	Stressed Plants
	B5 - Iron Dep	posits			C7 - Thin	Muck Sur	face			D2 - Geomorphic	Position
	B7 - Inundati	on Visible on Aerial Ima	agery		Other (Ex	plain in Re	emarks)			D3 - Shallow Aqu	litard
	B8 - Sparsel	y Vegetated Concave S	Surface							D4 - Microtopogra	aphic Relief
										D5 - FAC-Neutral	llest
Field Observa	tions:										
Surface Water	Present?	🗹 Yes 🗖 No	Depth:	3	(in.)						
Water Table Pr	esent?	Ves 🗆 No	Denth:	6	(in)			Wetland Hy	drology Pr	esent?	Yes 🗆 No
Saturation Pres	ent?		Dopth:	0	(in.)						
Outuration in rec	Sent:		Deptil.	U	()						
Describe Record	led Data (str	eam gauge, monitorii	ng well, aeri	al photos	s, previous	s inspecti	ons), if available:		N/A		
Remarks:											
SOILS											
SOILS		0					orion Drainago Classo				
SOILS Map Unit Name	9:	0				S	eries Drainage Class:				
SOILS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sui	e: ogroup):	0				S	eries Drainage Class:				
SOILS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sul Profile Descri	e: ogroup): o <b>tion</b> (Describe to	O the depth needed to document the inc	licator or confirm the	absence of indi	cators.) (Type: C	=Concentration,	eries Drainage Class: D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C	Covered/Coated Sand Gra	ins; Location: PL=Pc	re Lining, M=Matrix)	
SOILS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sul Profile Descrij Top	e: ogroup): otion <sub>(Describe to</sub> Bottom	O the depth needed to document the inc	licator or confirm the	absence of India Matrix	cators.) (Type: C	=Concentration,	eries Drainage Class: D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C	Covered/Coated Sand Gra	ins; Location: PL=Pc	re Lining, M=Matrix)	Texture
SOILS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sul Profile Descrij Top Depth	e: ogroup): otion (Describe to Bottom Depth	0 the depth needed to document the inc Horizon	licator or confirm the	<sup>absence of Indi Matrix Moist)</sup>	cators.) (Type: C	=Concentration,	eries Drainage Class: D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C Color (Moist)	Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles %	ins; Location: PL=Pc	re Lining, M=Matrix)	Texture (e.g. clay, sand, loam)
SOILS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sul Profile Descrij Top Depth 0	e: ogroup): otion (Describe to Bottom Depth 12	0 the depth needed to document the inc Horizon 1	licator or confirm the Color (1 10YR	<sup>absence of India</sup> Matrix Moist) 2/1	cators.) (Type: C % 100	=Concentration,	eries Drainage Class: D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C Color (Moist)	Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles %	ins; Location: PL=Po	re Lining, M=Matrix)	Texture (e.g. clay, sand, loam)
SOILS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sul Profile Descrij Top Depth 0	e: ogroup): otion (Describe to Bottom Depth 12 12	0 the depth needed to document the inc Horizon 1 2	icator or confirm the Color (I 10YR	absence of Indi Matrix Moist) 2/1 3/2	cators.) (Type: C % 100	=Concentration,	eries Drainage Class: D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C Color (Moist)	Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles % 10	ins; Location: PL=Pc	re Lining, M=Matrix)	Texture (e.g. clay, sand, loam)
SOILS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sul Profile Descrij Top Depth 0 2	e: bogroup): botion (Describe to Bottom Depth 12 12	0 the depth needed to document the inc Horizon 1 2	licator or confirm the Color (I 10YR 10YR	absence of Indi Matrix Moist) 2/1 3/2	cators.) (Type: C % 100 90	=Concentration,	eries Drainage Class: D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C Color (Moist) 4/6	Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles % 10	Type	re Lining, M=Matrix)	Texture (e.g. clay, sand, loam) Ioam Ioam
SolLS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sul Profile Descrij Top Depth 0 2	e: pgroup): ption (Describe to Bottom Depth 12 12 12	0 the depth needed to document the inc Horizon 1 2	icator or confirm the Color (I 10YR 10YR	absence of Indi Matrix Moist) 2/1 3/2	cators.) (Type: C % 100 90	=Concentration,	eries Drainage Class: D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C Color (Moist) 4/6	Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles % 10 10	Type	re Lining, M=Matrix)	Texture (e.g. clay, sand, loam) Ioam Ioam 
SOILS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sul Profile Descrij Top Depth 0 2	e: bgroup): btion (Describe to Bottom Depth 12 12	0 the depth needed to document the inc Horizon 1 2	licator or confirm the Color (1 10YR 10YR	absence of Indi Matrix Moist) 2/1 3/2	Cators.) (Type: C % 100 90	=Concentration, 10YR	eries Drainage Class: D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C Color (Moist) 4/6	Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles % 10	Type	re Lining, M=Matrix)	Texture (e.g. clay, sand, loam) loam 
SOILS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sul Profile Descrij Top Depth 0 2	e: bgroup): btion (Describe to Bottom Depth 12 12	0 the depth needed to document the inc Horizon 1 2	icator or confirm the Color (I 10YR 10YR	absence of indi Matrix Moist) 2/1 3/2	Cators.) (Type: C % 100 90	=Concentration, 10YR	eries Drainage Class: D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C Color (Moist) 4/6	Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles % 10	Ins; Location: PL=Pc	re Lining, M=Matrix)	Texture (e.g. clay, sand, loam) loam loam 
SOILS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sul Profile Descrij Top Depth 0 2	e: pgroup): ption (Describe to Bottom Depth 12 12 	0 the depth needed to document the inc Horizon 1 2	icator or confirm the Color (1 10YR 10YR	absence of Indi Matrix Moist) 2/1 3/2	cators.) (Type: C % 100 90	=Concentration, 10YR	eries Drainage Class: D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C Color (Moist) 4/6	Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles % 10	ins; Location: PL=Pc	re Lining, M=Matrix)	Texture (e.g. clay, sand, loam) loam 
SOILS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sul Profile Descrij Top Depth 0 2	e: pogroup): otion (Describe to Bottom Depth 12 12 12 	0 the depth needed to document the inc Horizon 1 2 	icator or confirm the Color (f 10YR 10YR	absence of indi Matrix Voist) 2/1 3/2	cators.) (Type: C % 100 90 	=Concentration, 10YR	eries Drainage Class: D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C Color (Moist) 4/6 	Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles % 10 10	ins; Location: PL=Pc	re Lining, M=Matrix)	Texture (e.g. clay, sand, loam) loam loam
SolLS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sul Profile Descrij Top Depth 0 2 	e: pgroup): ption (Describe to Depth 12 12 12  	0 the depth needed to document the inc Horizon 1 2 	Icator or confirm the Color (I 10YR 10YR	absence of Indi Matrix Voist) 2/1 3/2	cators.) (Type: C % 100 90 	=Concentration, 10YR	eries Drainage Class: D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C Color (Moist) 4/6	Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles % 10	Ins; Location: PL=Pe	re Lining, M=Matrix)  Location	Texture (e.g. clay, sand, loam) loam loam 
SOILS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sul Profile Descrij Top Depth 0 2 2	e: ogroup): otion (Describe to Bottom Depth 12 12 12   	0 the depth needed to document the inc Horizon 1 2   	Color (1 10YR 10YR  	absence of indi Matrix Voist) 2/1 3/2  	Cators.) (Type: C % 100 90  	=Concentration, 10YR	eries Drainage Class: D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C Color (Moist) 4/6   	Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles % 10 10	Type	re Lining, M=Matrix)	Texture (e.g. clay, sand, loam) loam loam 
SolLS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sul Profile Descrij Top Depth 0 2 2 	e: bogroup): botion (Describe to Depth 12 12 12   Soil Field In	0 the depth needed to document the inc Horizon 1 2    ndicators (check he	Icator or confirm the Color (I 10YR 10YR   ere if indica	absence of indi Matrix Moist) 2/1 3/2   tors are	cators.) (Type: C % 100 90    not prese	=Concentration, 10YR	eries Drainage Class: D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C Color (Moist) 4/6  	Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles % 10 10 Indicator	ins; Location: PL=Pc Type C   rs for Proble	re Lining, M=Matrix) Location	Texture (e.g. clay, sand, loam) loam  
SOILS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sul Profile Descrij Top Depth 0 2   NRCS Hydric	e: pogroup): ption (Describe to Bottom Depth 12 12 12   Soil Field In A1- Histosol	0 the depth needed to document the inc Horizon 1 2     mdicators (check here	icator or confirm the Color (I 10YR 10YR    ere if indica	absence of indi Matrix Moist) 2/1 3/2   tors are	cators.) (Type: C % 100 90    not prese S8 - Poly	=Concentration, 10YR	eries Drainage Class: D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C Color (Moist) 4/6    w Surface (LRR R, MLRA 1498)	Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles % 10 10 Indicator	ins; Location: PL=Pc Type C   rs for Proble A10 - 2 cm	re Lining, M=Matrix)  Location     matic Soils <sup>1</sup> Muck (LRB K, L, MLRA -	Texture (e.g. clay, sand, loam) loam loam 
SolLS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sul Profile Descrij Top Depth 0 2   NRCS Hydric	2: pgroup): otion (Describe to Depth 12 12 12  Soil Field In A1- Histosol A2 - Histic El 	0 the depth needed to document the inc Horizon 1 2    ndicators (check he pedon	Icator or confirm the Color (f 10YR 10YR    ere if indica	absence of indi Matrix Voist) 2/1 3/2   tors are	cators.) (Type: C % 100 90    Not prese S8 - Poly S9 - Thin	=Concentration, 10YR 10YR    ent value Belo Dark Surf	eries Drainage Class: D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C Color (Moist) 4/6 	Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles % 10 10 Indicato	Ins; Location: PL=Pe Type C   rs for Proble A10 - 2 cm A16 - Coast	re Lining, M=Matrix)  Location  matic Soils <sup>1</sup> Muck (LRR K, L, MLRA ' Prairie Redox (LRR	Texture         (e.g. clay, sand, loam)         loam         loam
SolLS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sul Profile Descrij Top Depth 0 2 2   NRCS Hydric	s: pgroup): Dtion (Describe to Depth 12 12 12 12   Soil Field In A1- Histosol A2 - Histoic El A3 - Black H	0 the depth needed to document the ind Horizon 1 2    ndicators (check he pipedon istic	Color (I 10YR 10YR   ere if indica	absence of indi Matrix Moist) 2/1 3/2   tors are	cators.) (Type: C % 100 90   not prese \$8 - Polyr \$8 - Polyr \$8 - Polyr	=Concentration	eries Drainage Class: D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C Color (Moist) 4/6 	Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles % 10 10 Indicaton	Ins; Location: PL=Pe Type C 	re Lining, M=Matrix)  Location  matic Soils <sup>1</sup> Muck (LRR K, L, MLRA 1 Prairie Redox (LRR	Texture (e.g. clay, sand, loam) loam loam     149B) × K, L, R) (LRR K, L, R)
SolLS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sul Profile Descrij Top Depth 0 2 2   NRCS Hydric	2: 2group): Degroup): Depth 12 12 12   Soil Field In A1- Histosol A2 - Histic El A3 - Black H A4 - Hydrogg	0 the depth needed to document the inc Horizon 1 2 ndicators (check he pipedon istic an Sulfide d la core	Icator or confirm the Color (I 10YR 10YR   ere if indica	absence of indi	cators.) (Type: C % 100 90             -	=Concentration, 10YR 10YR        -	eries Drainage Class: D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=0 Color (Moist) 4/6 	Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles % 10 10 Indicator	ins: Location: PL=Po Type C 	re Lining, M=Matrix)  Location  Location  matic Soils 1  Muck (LRR K, L, MLRA *  Prairie Redox (LRR ucky Peat of Peat urface (LRR K, L, M)	Техture (e.g. clay, sand, loam) loam loam 
SOILS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sul Profile Descri Top Depth 0 2 NRCS Hydric	2: bgroup): btion (Describe to Depth 12 12 12 	0 the depth needed to document the inc Horizon 1 2	Icator or confirm the Color (I 10YR 10YR   ere if indica	absence of indi Matrix Moist) 2/1 3/2  tors are	cators.) (Type: C % 100 90         Not prese S8 - Poly S9 - Thin F3 - Dopi F3 - Dopi F3 - Dopi	=Concentration, 10YR	eries Drainage Class: D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C Color (Moist) 4/6 4/6 w Surface (LRR R, MLRA 149B) dice (LRR R, MLRA 149B) Mineral (LRR K, L) Matrix	Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles % 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10	Ins; Location: PL=Po Type C C 	re Lining, M=Matrix)  Location  matic Soils <sup>1</sup> Muck (LRR K, L, MLRA (LRR K, L, MLRA (LRR K, L, MLRA (LRR K, L, MLRA (LRR K, L, M)) ue Below Surface urface (LRR K, L, M) ue Below Surface	Texture           (e.g. clay, sand, loam)           loam           loam
SolLS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sul Profile Descrij Top Depth 0 2   NRCS Hydric	2: pgroup): otion (Describe to Depth 12 12 12 12 5 Soil Field II A1- Histosol A2 - Histic E; A3 - Black H A4 - Hydroge A5 - Stratifier A1 - Deplet	0 the depth needed to document the inc Horizon 1 2 ndicators (check he pipedon istic an Sulfide d Layers ed Below Dark Surface Dark Surface	Color (I 10YR 10YR	absence of indi Matrix Moist) 2/1 3/2   tors are	cators.) (Type: C % 100 90     s8 - Poly S9 - Thin F1 - Loan F3 - Depl F6 - Redc F7 - Depl	=Concentration, 10YR 10YR   ent value Belo Dark Surf ny Mucky In y Gleyed eted Matri xx Dark St	eries Drainage Class: D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C Color (Moist) 4/6   w Surface (LRR R, MLRA 1498) Viineral (LRR K, L) Matrix (rface Surface	Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles % 10 10 Indicator	Ins; Location: PL=Pc Type C C   rs for Proble A10 - 2 cm A10 - 2 cm A10 - 2 cm A10 - Coast S3 - 5 cm M S7 - Dark S S8 - Polyval S9 - Thin Dc	The Lining, M=Matrix)  Location     matic Soils <sup>1</sup> Muck (LRR K, L, MLRA + Prairie Redox (LRR rucky Peat of Peat ucky Peat of Peat ucky Surface (LRR K, L, M) ue Below Surface ark Surface (LRR K, L, M)	Texture           (e.g. clay, sand, loam)           loam           loam <tr tr=""> <tr tr=""></tr></tr>
SolLS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sul Profile Descrij Top Depth 0 2   NRCS Hydric	2: 2group): Deptin Depth 12 12 12 12  Soil Field In A1- Histosol A2 - Histic E A3- Black H A4 - Hydroge A5 - Stratifie A11 - Deplet A12 - Thick IC S1 - Condu N	0 the depth needed to document the inc Horizon 1 2 ndicators (check he pipedon istic en Sulfide d Layers ed Below Dark Surface Dark Surface	icator or confirm the Color (I 10YR 10YR   ere if indica	absence of indi Matrix Moist) 2/1 3/2   tors are 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	cators.) (Type: C % 100 90   Not prese S8 - Poly S9 - Thin F1 - Loan F2 - Loan F3 - Depl F6 - Redo F7 - Depl F6 - Redo	=Concentration, 10YR 10YR 	eries Drainage Class: D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C Color (Moist) 4/6   w Surface (LRR R, MLRA 1498) 3CE (LRR R, MLRA 1498) 400 (LRR R, MLRA 1498) 401 (LRR K, L) 401 (	Sovered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles % 10 10 Indicator	Ins; Location: PL=Pe Type C 	The Lining, M=Matrix)  Location  matic Soils 1 Muck (LRR K, L, MLRA · Prairie Redox (LRR urface (LRR K, L, M) ue Below Surface ark Surface (LRR K, L, M) ue Blow Surface (LRR K, L) Much Surface (LRR K, L)	Texture           (e.g. clay, sand, loam)           loam           loam <tr tr=""> <tr tr=""></tr></tr>
SolLS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sul Profile Descrij Top Depth 0 2   NRCS Hydric	2: 2group): Deptn Depth 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12	0 the depth needed to document the inc Horizon 1 2   ndicators (check he pipedon istic an Sulfide d Layers ed Below Dark Surface Dark Surface Dark Surface Dark Surface Dark Surface Dark Surface	Icator or confirm the Color (I 10YR 10YR   ere if indica	absence of indi	eators.) (Type: C % 100 90             -	=Concentration, 10YR 10YR   ent   ent        -	eries Drainage Class: D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C Color (Moist) 4/6   w Surface (LRR R, MLRA 149B) ace (LRR R, MLRA 149B) viineral (LRR K, L) Matrix < triface Surface Surface Surface Surface	Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles % 10 10 Indicator	Ins; Location: PL=Pc Type C   rs for Proble A10 - 2 cm A10 - 2 cm A10 - 2 cm A10 - 2 cm S3 - 5 cm M S7 - Dark S S8 - Polyval S9 - Thin Dz F12 - Iron-M F19 - Piedm TA6 - Mesic	The Lining, M=Matrix)  Location  Location  The definition of the	Texture           (e.g. clay, sand, loam)           loam           loam </td
SolLS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sul Profile Descrij Top Depth 0 2 2   NRCS Hydric	2: 2group): otion (Describe to Depth 12 12 12 12 5 Soil Field In A1- Histosol A2- Histic El A3- Black H A4- Hydroge A5- Stratifie A11- Deplet A12 - Thick [ S1 - Sandy N S4- Sandy C	0 the depth needed to document the inc Horizon 1 2	Icator or confirm the Color (I 10YR 10YR   ere if indica	absence of Indi Matrix Moist) 2/1 3/2  tors are 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	cators.) (Type: C % 100 90 	=Concentration, 10YR 1	eries Drainage Class: D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=0 Color (Moist) 4/6 w Surface (LRR R, MLRA 149B) ace (LRR R, MLRA 149B) Mineral (LRR K, L) Matrix < rrace Surface Surface sions	Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles % 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10	Ins: Location: PL=Pc	re Lining, M=Matrix)  Location  Location  matic Soils <sup>1</sup> Muck (LRR K, L, MLRA ↑ Prairie Redox (LRR ucky Peat of Peat urface (LRR K, L, M) ue Below Surface clark Surface (LRR K, L anganese Masses tont Floodplain Soi Spodic (mLRA 144A, S) arent Material	Texture           (e.g. clay, sand, loam)           loam
SOILS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sul Profile Descrij Top Depth 0 2   NRCS Hydric	2: Dgroup): Dtion (Describe to Depth 12 12 12 12 	0 the depth needed to document the inc Horizon 1 2	Icator or confirm the Color (I 10YR 10YR   ere if indica	absence of Indi Matrix Moist) 2/1 3/2  tors are	cators.) (Type: C % 100 90    not prese S8 - Poly S9 - Thin F1 - Loan F2 - Loan F3 - Depl F6 - Redo F8 - Redo	=Concentration, 10YR	eries Drainage Class: D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C Color (Moist) 4/6 4/6 w Surface (LRR R, MLRA 149B) dace (LRR R, MLRA 149B) Mineral (LRR K, L) Matrix rface Surface sions	Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles % 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10	Ins; Location: PL=Pc	The Lining, M=Matrix)	Texture           (e.g. clay, sand, loam)           loam
SolLS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sul Profile Descrij Top Depth 0 2  NRCS Hydric	2: pgroup): otion (Describe to Depth 12 12 12 12 5 Soil Field I A1- Histosol A2 - Histic E A3 - Black H A4 - Hydroge A5 - Stratifier A11 - Deplet A3 - Black H S1 - Sandy N S4 - Sandy C S5 - Sandy F S6 - Strippec S7 - Dark Str	0 the depth needed to document the inc Horizon 1 2 ndicators (check he pipedon istic an Sulfide d Layers ed Below Dark Surface Dark Surface Dark Surface Auck Mineral Sleyed Matrix Redox H Matrix Hatrix	Color (I 10YR 10YR	absence of indi Matrix Moist) 2/1 3/2   tors are	cators.) (Type: C % 100 90 	=Concentration, 10YR 10YR   ent        -	eries Drainage Class: D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=0 Color (Moist) 4/6   w Surface (LRR R, MLRA 1498) Wineral (LRR K, L) Matrix K frace Surface Surface Surface	Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles % 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10	Ins; Location: PL=Pe Type C C    rs for Proble A10 - 2 cm A16 - Coast S3 - Scm M S7 - Dark S S8 - Polyval S9 - Thin D: F12 - Iron-M F19 - Piedm TA6 - Mesic TF2 - Red F TF12 - Very Other (Exn/2	The Lining, M=Matrix)  Location  Location  matic Soils <sup>1</sup> Muck (LRR K, L, MLRA + Prairie Redox, LIRA + IPrairie Redox, LIRA + IPrairie Redox, LIRA + IPrairie Redox, LIRA + Infanganese Masses tont Floodplain Soi Spodic (MLRA 144A, arrent Material Shallow Dark Sur in in Remarks)	Texture         (e.g. clay, sand, loam)         loam         loam
SolLS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sul Profile Descrij Top Depth 0 2   NRCS Hydric	2: 2group): Dtion (Describe to Depth 12 12 12 12  Soil Field In A1- Histosol A2 - Histic E A3- Black H A4 - Hydroge A5 - Stratifie A11 - Deplet A12 - Thick I S1 - Sandy M S4 - Sandy C S5 - Sandy F S6 - Strippec S7 - Dark Su	0 the depth needed to document the inc Horizon 1 2   ndicators (check he pipedon istic en Sulfide d Layers ed Below Dark Surface Dark Surface Auck Mineral Sleyed Matrix Redox I Matrix Irface (LRR R, MLRA 149B)	icator or confirm the Color (I 10YR 10YR   ere if indica	absence of indi Matrix Moist) 2/1 3/2   tors are 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	cators.) (Type: C % 100 90    not prese S8 - Poly S9 - Thin F1 - Loan F2 - Loan F3 - Depl F6 - Redo F7 - Depl F8 - Redo	=Concentration 10YR        -	eries Drainage Class: D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C Color (Moist) 4/6 	Covered/Coated Sand Gra  Mottles % 10 10 Indicator	Ins; Location: PL=Pe Type C         	re Lining, M=Matrix)  Location  matic Soils 1 Muck (LRR К. L, MIRA - Prairie Redox (LRR К. L, MI urface (LRR К. L, MIRA - Prairie Redox (LRR К. L, M) ue Below Surface ark Surface (LRR К. L, M) Urface (LRR К. L, M) Spodic (MIRA 144A, - Parent Material Shallow Dark Sur ion and welland hydrology	Texture           (e.g. clay, sand, loam)           loam           loam <tr tr=""> <tr tr=""></tr></tr>
SolLS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sul Profile Descrip Top Depth 0 2 NRCS Hydric	2: 2group): Depth Depth 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12	0 He depth needed to document the inc Horizon 1 2   ndicators (check he pipedon istic an Sulfide d Layers ed Below Dark Surface Dark Surface Muck Mineral Sleyed Matrix Redox HMatrix Hatrix Iface (LRR R, MLRA 149B)	Icator or confirm the Color (I 10YR 10YR   ere if indica	absence of indi	eators.) (Type: C % 100 90             -	=Concentration, 10YR   ent    ent        -	eries Drainage Class: D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C Color (Moist) 4/6   w Surface (LRR R, MLRA 149B) ace (LRR R, MLRA 149B) viineral (LRR K, L) Matrix < riface Surface Surface Surface	Covered/Coated Sand Gra  Mottles % 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10	Ins; Location: PL=Pc Type C C    rs for Proble A10 - 2 cm A10 - 2 cm S3 - 5 cm M S7 - Dark S S8 - Polyval S9 - Thin Dz F12 - Iron-M F19 - Piedm TA6 - Mesic TF2 - Red F TF12 - Very Other (Explait veget	re Lining, M=Matrix)  Location  Muck (LRR K, L, MLRA - Prairie Redox (LRR ucky Peat of Peat urface (LRR K, L, MLRA - Prairie Redox (LRR ucky Peat of Peat schallow Surface ark Surface ark Surface (LRR K, L, ML ark Surface	Texture         (e.g. clay, sand, loam)         loam         loam  S (LRR K, L, R)         I
SolLS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sul Profile Descrip Top Depth 0 2 NRCS Hydric	2: 2group): Deptn Depth 12 12 12 	0 the depth needed to document the inc Horizon 1 2	Icator or confirm the Color (I 10YR 10YR   ere if indica	absence of indi	cators.) (Type: C % 100 90             -	=Concentration, 10YR 10YR        -	eries Drainage Class: D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=0 Color (Moist) 4/6 w Surface (LRR R, MLRA 149B) ace (LRR R, MLRA 149B) viineral (LRR K, L) Matrix < rrface Surface Surface sions	Severed/Coated Sand Gra Mottles % 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10	Ins; Location: PL=Pc Type C C 	re Lining, M=Matrix)  Location  Location  Muck (LRR K, L, MLRA ' Prairie Redox (LRR ucky Peat of Peat urface (LRR K, L, ML Arganese Masser ont Floodplain Soi Spodic (MLRA 144A, ' arent, Material Shallow Dark Sur arent Material Shallow Dark Sur aton and wetland hydrology	Texture         (e.g. clay, sand, loam)         loam         loam
SOILS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sul Profile Descrij Top Depth 0 2   NRCS Hydric NRCS Hydric Restrictive Layer (If Observed)	2: pgroup): otion (Describe to Depth 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12	0 the depth needed to document the inc Horizon 1 2	Icator or confirm the Color (I 10YR 10YR	absence of Indi Matrix Moist) 2/1 3/2  tors are	cators.) (Type: C % 100 90 	=Concentration, 10YR	eries Drainage Class: D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C Color (Moist) 4/6 w Surface (LRR R, MLRA 149B) dace (LRR R, MLRA 149B) Mineral (LRR K, L) Matrix < rface Surface sions	Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles % 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10	Ins; Location: PL=Pc	re Lining, M=Matrix)	Texture         (e.g. clay, sand, loam)         loam         loam         loam
SOILS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sul Profile Descrij Top Depth 0 2  NRCS Hydric NRCS Hydric Restrictive Layer (If Observed) Remarks:	2: pgroup): otion (Describe to Depth 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12 12	0 the depth needed to document the inc Horizon 1 2 ndicators (check he pipedon istic an Sulfide d Layers ed Below Dark Surface Dark Surface Dark Surface Auck Mineral Sleyed Matrix Redox H Matrix Irface (LRR R, MLRA 149B) rock al at 12"	Icator or confirm the Color (I 10YR 10YR   ere if indica	absence of indi Matrix Moist) 2/1 3/2  tors are 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	cators.) (Type: C % 100 90 	=Concentration, 10YR	eries Drainage Class: D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C Color (Moist) 4/6   w Surface (LRR R, MLRA 149B) dineral (LRR K, L) Matrix < rface Surface Surface	Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles % 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10	Ins; Location: PL=Pe Type C C     rs for Proble A10 - 2 cm A16 - Coast S3 - Scm M S7 - Dark S S8 - Polyval S9 - Thin Da F12 - Iron-M F19 - Piedm TA6 - Mesic TF2 - Red F TF12 - Very Other (Expla	re Lining, M=Matrix)	Texture         (e.g. clay, sand, loam)         loam         loam



# WETLAND DETERMINATION DATA FORM

Northeast and Northcentral Region

Project/Site:	Readfield Delineation				Wetland ID: 01GPD Sample Point Netland
VEGETATION					
Tree Stratum (Pl	(Species identified in all uppercase are non- ot size: 10 meter radius)	native species.	.)		
	Species Name	% Cover	Dominant	Ind.Status	Dominance Test Worksheet
1.	Fraxinus nigra	10	N	FACW	
2.					Number of Dominant Species that are OBL, FACW, or FAC:(A)
3.					
4.					Total Number of Dominant Species Across All Strata:(B)
5.					
6.					Percent of Dominant Species That Are OBL, FACW, or FAC: <u>100.0%</u> (A/B)
/.					Durana la dan Markabaat
8.					Prevalence Index Worksneet
9.					
10.	 Total Cov	er = 10			$\frac{\text{OBL spp.}}{\text{EACW spp.}} = \frac{5}{20} \times 2 = \frac{40}{10}$
					FAC spp 7 x 3 = 21
Sapling/Shrub Str	atum (Plot size: 5 meter radius)				FACU spp. 10 x 4 = 40
1.	Pinus strobus	2	Ν	FAC	UPL spp. 0 x 5 = 0
2.	Rubus idaeus	10	Ν	FACU	
3.					Total 42 (A) 106 (B)
4.					
5.					Prevalence Index = B/A = <u>2.524</u>
6.					
7.					
8.					Hydrophytic Vegetation Indicators:
9.					Yes No Rapid Test for Hydrophytic Vegetation
10.	 Total Cov	 			yes □ No Dominance Lest is > 50%
	Total Cov	$e_1 = 12$			$\bigtriangledown$ Yes $\square$ No Prevalence Index is $\leq 3.0^{\circ}$
Horb Stratum (Pla	st cizo: 2 motor radius)				☐ Yes ☑ No Morphological Adaptations (Explain) *
	Onoclea sensibilis	10	Y	FACW	
2.	Solidago rugosa	5	N.	FAC	* Indicators of hydric soil and wetland hydrology must be
3.	Osmunda spectabilis	2	N	OBL	present, unless disturbed or problematic.
4.	Typha angustifolia	3	Ν	OBL	Definitions of Vegetation Strata:
5.					-
6					<b>Tree -</b> Woody plants 3 in. (7.6cm) or more in diameter at breast
7.					height (DBH), regardless of height.
8.					
9.					Sapling/Shrub - Woody plants less than 3 in. DBH and greater than 3.28 ft. tall.
10.					can.
11.					I have all hopponess (no see all help to see all or set all here at all
12.					Herb - All nerbaceous (non-woody) plants, regardless of size, and woody plants less than 3.28 ft. tall.
13.	-				
14.					Woody Vines - All woody vines greater than 3.28 ft. in height.
13.	 Total Cov	r = 20			WOODY VIIIed - / miled grouter and one hand hogh
	Total Cov	ci – 20			
Woody Vine Strat	um (Plot size: 10 meter radius)				
1.					
2.					
3.					Hydrophytic Vegetation Present 🛛 Yes 🗖 No
4.					
5.					
	Total Cov	er = 0			
Remarks:					

Additional Remarks:



#### WETLAND DETERMINATION DATA FORM Northeast and Northcentral Region

| Project/Site   |  |   |   |  |  |  |   |   |  |   |  
   
  |   |  |   |  |  |  |                    |  |   |  |   | | | | | | | | |
  |  |  |   |   |   |  |                    |   |                                   |  |  |   |  |  |  |   
            |  |  |  |   |                                     |   |  |   |  |  |  |   |  |  |  |   |   |  |                                |  
  |   |  |   |   |   |  |                 |  |   |   |                                |  
   |   |  |   |   |   |  |                    |  |                         |  |  |  |   |   |   |                          |   |  |                |   |                         |  |  |   |  |  |  |                          |  |  |  |  |                                     |  |  |   |   |  |  |                          |   |  |                 |  |   |  |                                |  |
|--|--|---|---|--|--|--|---|---|--|---
--
---|---|--|---|--|--|--|--------------------|--|---|--
---
--|--|--|---|---|---|--|--------------------|---|-----------------------------------
--|--|---|--|--|--|--|--|--|--|---|-------------------------------------|---|--|---|--|--|--|---|--|--|--|---|---|--|--------------------------------
---|---|--|---|---|---|--|-----------------
--|---|---|--------------------------------|--|---|--|---|---|---|--|--------------------|--|-------------------------
--|--|--|---|---|---|--------------------------|---|--|----------------|---|-------------------------|--|--|---|--|--|--|--------------------------|--|--|--|--|-------------------------------------|--|--|---|---|--|--|--------------------------|---|--|-----------------|--|---|--|--------------------------------|--|
| i rojoonono.   | Readfield De   | lineation   |   |  |  |  | Stantec Project #:  | 195602046   |  | Date:   | 10/25/21   
   
  |   |  |   |  |  |  |                    |  |   |  |   | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
  |  |  |   |   |   |  |                    |   |                                   |  |  |   |  |  |  |   
            |  |  |  |   |                                     |   |  |   |  |  |  |   |  |  |  |   |   |  |                                |  
  |   |  |   |   |   |  |                 |  |   |   |                                |  
   |   |  |   |   |   |  |                    |  |                         |  |  |  |   |   |   |                          |   |  |                |   |                         |  |  |   |  |  |  |                          |  |  |  |  |                                     |  |  |   |   |  |  |                          |   |  |                 |  |   |  |                                |  |
| Applicant:   | Norwich Sola   | ar  |   |  |  |  |   |   |  | County:   | Kennebec   
   
  |   |  |   |  |  |  |                    |  |   |  |   | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
  |  |  |   |   |   |  |                    |   |                                   |  |  |   |  |  |  |   
            |  |  |  |   |                                     |   |  |   |  |  |  |   |  |  |  |   |   |  |                                |  
  |   |  |   |   |   |  |                 |  |   |   |                                |  
   |   |  |   |   |   |  |                    |  |                         |  |  |  |   |   |   |                          |   |  |                |   |                         |  |  |   |  |  |  |                          |  |  |  |  |                                     |  |  |   |   |  |  |                          |   |  |                 |  |   |  |                                |  |
| Investigator #1  | G. Pelletier   |   |   | Invest   | igator #2:   | L. Pelle   | tier  |   |  | State:  | ME   
   
  |   |  |   |  |  |  |                    |  |   |  |   | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
  |  |  |   |   |   |  |                    |   |                                   |  |  |   |  |  |  |   
            |  |  |  |   |                                     |   |  |   |  |  |  |   |  |  |  |   |   |  |                                |  
  |   |  |   |   |   |  |                 |  |   |   |                                |  
   |   |  |   |   |   |  |                    |  |                         |  |  |  |   |   |   |                          |   |  |                |   |                         |  |  |   |  |  |  |                          |  |  |  |  |                                     |  |  |   |   |  |  |                          |   |  |                 |  |   |  |                                |  |
| Soil Unit:   |  |   |   |  |  | NV   | /I/WWI Classification:  | :   |  | Wetland ID:   | 01GPE  
   
  |   |  |   |  |  |  |                    |  |   |  |   | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
  |  |  |   |   |   |  |                    |   |                                   |  |  |   |  |  |  |   
            |  |  |  |   |                                     |   |  |   |  |  |  |   |  |  |  |   |   |  |                                |  
  |   |  |   |   |   |  |                 |  |   |   |                                |  
   |   |  |   |   |   |  |                    |  |                         |  |  |  |   |   |   |                          |   |  |                |   |                         |  |  |   |  |  |  |                          |  |  |  |  |                                     |  |  |   |   |  |  |                          |   |  |                 |  |   |  |                                |  |
| Landform:  | Depression   | ĩ   |   | Loc  | al Relief:   | Concav   | e   |   |  | Sample Point:   | Wetland  
   
  |   |  |   |  |  |  |                    |  |   |  |   | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
  |  |  |   |   |   |  |                    |   |                                   |  |  |   |  |  |  |   
            |  |  |  |   |                                     |   |  |   |  |  |  |   |  |  |  |   |   |  |                                |  
  |   |  |   |   |   |  |                 |  |   |   |                                |  
   |   |  |   |   |   |  |                    |  |                         |  |  |  |   |   |   |                          |   |  |                |   |                         |  |  |   |  |  |  |                          |  |  |  |  |                                     |  |  |   |   |  |  |                          |   |  |                 |  |   |  |                                |  |
| Slope (%):   | 0-3  | Latitude:   | 44.348289   | с L  | onaitude:  | -69.8963   | 83  | Datum:  | NAD83  | Community ID:   | PEM  
   
  |   |  |   |  |  |  |                    |  |   |  |   | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
  |  |  |   |   |   |  |                    |   |                                   |  |  |   |  |  |  |   
            |  |  |  |   |                                     |   |  |   |  |  |  |   |  |  |  |   |   |  |                                |  
  |   |  |   |   |   |  |                 |  |   |   |                                |  
   |   |  |   |   |   |  |                    |  |                         |  |  |  |   |   |   |                          |   |  |                |   |                         |  |  |   |  |  |  |                          |  |  |  |  |                                     |  |  |   |   |  |  |                          |   |  |                 |  |   |  |                                |  |
| Are climatic/hv  | drologic con   | ditions on the site ty  | nical for thi   | s time o   | f vear? //f  | no evolain   | n remarks)  |   | No   |   |  
   
  |   |  |   |  |  |  |                    |  |   |  |   | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
  |  |  |   |   |   |  |                    |   |                                   |  |  |   |  |  |  |   
            |  |  |  |   |                                     |   |  |   |  |  |  |   |  |  |  |   |   |  |                                |  
  |   |  |   |   |   |  |                 |  |   |   |                                |  
   |   |  |   |   |   |  |                    |  |                         |  |  |  |   |   |   |                          |   |  |                |   |                         |  |  |   |  |  |  |                          |  |  |  |  |                                     |  |  |   |   |  |  |                          |   |  |                 |  |   |  |                                |  |
| Are Vegetation   |  | or Hydrology 🗆 sig  | pificantly d  | icturbod'  | າງອະເາ (ແ<br>າ   |  | Are normal circumst   | ances presen  | 110  | 1   |  
   
  |   |  |   |  |  |  |                    |  |   |  |   | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
  |  |  |   |   |   |  |                    |   |                                   |  |  |   |  |  |  |   
            |  |  |  |   |                                     |   |  |   |  |  |  |   |  |  |  |   |   |  |                                |  
  |   |  |   |   |   |  |                 |  |   |   |                                |  
   |   |  |   |   |   |  |                    |  |                         |  |  |  |   |   |   |                          |   |  |                |   |                         |  |  |   |  |  |  |                          |  |  |  |  |                                     |  |  |   |   |  |  |                          |   |  |                 |  |   |  |                                |  |
| Are Vegetation   |  | or Ludrology 🗆 sig  | urally prob   | lometic?   | f  |  |   |   |  |   |  
   
  |   |  |   |  |  |  |                    |  |   |  |   | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
  |  |  |   |   |   |  |                    |   |                                   |  |  |   |  |  |  |   
            |  |  |  |   |                                     |   |  |   |  |  |  |   |  |  |  |   |   |  |                                |  
  |   |  |   |   |   |  |                 |  |   |   |                                |  
   |   |  |   |   |   |  |                    |  |                         |  |  |  |   |   |   |                          |   |  |                |   |                         |  |  |   |  |  |  |                          |  |  |  |  |                                     |  |  |   |   |  |  |                          |   |  |                 |  |   |  |                                |  |
| Are vegetation   |  | or Hydrology 🗆 nai  | urally prob   | iematic?   |  |  | ⊡ 163   |   |  |   |  
   
  |   |  |   |  |  |  |                    |  |   |  |   | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
  |  |  |   |   |   |  |                    |   |                                   |  |  |   |  |  |  |   
            |  |  |  |   |                                     |   |  |   |  |  |  |   |  |  |  |   |   |  |                                |  
  |   |  |   |   |   |  |                 |  |   |   |                                |  
   |   |  |   |   |   |  |                    |  |                         |  |  |  |   |   |   |                          |   |  |                |   |                         |  |  |   |  |  |  |                          |  |  |  |  |                                     |  |  |   |   |  |  |                          |   |  |                 |  |   |  |                                |  |
| SUMMARY OF   | FINDINGS   | -   |   |  |  |  |   |   |  |   |  
   
  |   |  |   |  |  |  |                    |  |   |  |   | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
  |  |  |   |   |   |  |                    |   |                                   |  |  |   |  |  |  |   
            |  |  |  |   |                                     |   |  |   |  |  |  |   |  |  |  |   |   |  |                                |  
  |   |  |   |   |   |  |                 |  |   |   |                                |  
   |   |  |   |   |   |  |                    |  |                         |  |  |  |   |   |   |                          |   |  |                |   |                         |  |  |   |  |  |  |                          |  |  |  |  |                                     |  |  |   |   |  |  |                          |   |  |                 |  |   |  |                                |  |
| Hydrophytic Ve   | getation Pre   | sent?   |   | 🗹 Yes  | s 🗆 No   | )  |   | Hydric Soils  | Present?   |   | 🗹 Yes 🗆 No   
   
  |   |  |   |  |  |  |                    |  |   |  |   | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
  |  |  |   |   |   |  |                    |   |                                   |  |  |   |  |  |  |   
            |  |  |  |   |                                     |   |  |   |  |  |  |   |  |  |  |   |   |  |                                |  
  |   |  |   |   |   |  |                 |  |   |   |                                |  
   |   |  |   |   |   |  |                    |  |                         |  |  |  |   |   |   |                          |   |  |                |   |                         |  |  |   |  |  |  |                          |  |  |  |  |                                     |  |  |   |   |  |  |                          |   |  |                 |  |   |  |                                |  |
| Wetland Hydro  | logy Present   | !?  |   | 🛛 Yes  | s 🗆 No   | I  |   | Is This Sam   | pling Point '  | Within A Wetlar   | nd? 🛛 Yes 🗖 No   
   
  |   |  |   |  |  |  |                    |  |   |  |   | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
  |  |  |   |   |   |  |                    |   |                                   |  |  |   |  |  |  |   
            |  |  |  |   |                                     |   |  |   |  |  |  |   |  |  |  |   |   |  |                                |  
  |   |  |   |   |   |  |                 |  |   |   |                                |  
   |   |  |   |   |   |  |                    |  |                         |  |  |  |   |   |   |                          |   |  |                |   |                         |  |  |   |  |  |  |                          |  |  |  |  |                                     |  |  |   |   |  |  |                          |   |  |                 |  |   |  |                                |  |
| Remarks:   |  |   |   |  |  |  |   |   |  |   |  
   
  |   |  |   |  |  |  |                    |  |   |  |   | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
  |  |  |   |   |   |  |                    |   |                                   |  |  |   |  |  |  |   
            |  |  |  |   |                                     |   |  |   |  |  |  |   |  |  |  |   |   |  |                                |  
  |   |  |   |   |   |  |                 |  |   |   |                                |  
   |   |  |   |   |   |  |                    |  |                         |  |  |  |   |   |   |                          |   |  |                |   |                         |  |  |   |  |  |  |                          |  |  |  |  |                                     |  |  |   |   |  |  |                          |   |  |                 |  |   |  |                                |  |
|  |  |   |   |  |  |  |   |   |  |   |  
   
  |   |  |   |  |  |  |                    |  |   |  |   | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
  |  |  |   |   |   |  |                    |   |                                   |  |  |   |  |  |  |   
            |  |  |  |   |                                     |   |  |   |  |  |  |   |  |  |  |   |   |  |                                |  
  |   |  |   |   |   |  |                 |  |   |   |                                |  
   |   |  |   |   |   |  |                    |  |                         |  |  |  |   |   |   |                          |   |  |                |   |                         |  |  |   |  |  |  |                          |  |  |  |  |                                     |  |  |   |   |  |  |                          |   |  |                 |  |   |  |                                |  |
| HYDROLOGY  |  |   |   |  |  |  |   |   |  |   |  
   
  |   |  |   |  |  |  |                    |  |   |  |   | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
  |  |  |   |   |   |  |                    |   |                                   |  |  |   |  |  |  |   
            |  |  |  |   |                                     |   |  |   |  |  |  |   |  |  |  |   |   |  |                                |  
  |   |  |   |   |   |  |                 |  |   |   |                                |  
   |   |  |   |   |   |  |                    |  |                         |  |  |  |   |   |   |                          |   |  |                |   |                         |  |  |   |  |  |  |                          |  |  |  |  |                                     |  |  |   |   |  |  |                          |   |  |                 |  |   |  |                                |  |
| Wetlewellback  | - I IR.  | -t  | f in dia atawa  |  |  | ~  |   |   |  |   |  
   
  |   |  |   |  |  |  |                    |  |   |  |   | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
  |  |  |   |   |   |  |                    |   |                                   |  |  |   |  |  |  |   
            |  |  |  |   |                                     |   |  |   |  |  |  |   |  |  |  |   |   |  |                                |  
  |   |  |   |   |   |  |                 |  |   |   |                                |  
   |   |  |   |   |   |  |                    |  |                         |  |  |  |   |   |   |                          |   |  |                |   |                         |  |  |   |  |  |  |                          |  |  |  |  |                                     |  |  |   |   |  |  |                          |   |  |                 |  |   |  |                                |  |
| Wetland Hydr   | ology Indic  | ators (Check here i   | f indicators  | are not  | present  |  |   |   | - ·  |   |  
   
  |   |  |   |  |  |  |                    |  |   |  |   | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
  |  |  |   |   |   |  |                    |   |                                   |  |  |   |  |  |  |   
            |  |  |  |   |                                     |   |  |   |  |  |  |   |  |  |  |   |   |  |                                |  
  |   |  |   |   |   |  |                 |  |   |   |                                |  
   |   |  |   |   |   |  |                    |  |                         |  |  |  |   |   |   |                          |   |  |                |   |                         |  |  |   |  |  |  |                          |  |  |  |  |                                     |  |  |   |   |  |  |                          |   |  |                 |  |   |  |                                |  |
| Primary  | <u>.</u>   | 10/   |   | _  |  |  | 1   |   | Secondary:   | DC Curferer Cell  | Caralia  
   
  |   |  |   |  |  |  |                    |  |   |  |   | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
  |  |  |   |   |   |  |                    |   |                                   |  |  |   |  |  |  |   
            |  |  |  |   |                                     |   |  |   |  |  |  |   |  |  |  |   |   |  |                                |  
  |   |  |   |   |   |  |                 |  |   |   |                                |  
   |   |  |   |   |   |  |                    |  |                         |  |  |  |   |   |   |                          |   |  |                |   |                         |  |  |   |  |  |  |                          |  |  |  |  |                                     |  |  |   |   |  |  |                          |   |  |                 |  |   |  |                                |  |
|  | A1 - Surface   | vvater  |   |  | B9 - Wate  | er-Stained   | Leaves  |   | 님  | Bo - Surface Soll   | Cracks   
   
  |   |  |   |  |  |  |                    |  |   |  |   | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
  |  |  |   |   |   |  |                    |   |                                   |  |  |   |  |  |  |   
            |  |  |  |   |                                     |   |  |   |  |  |  |   |  |  |  |   |   |  |                                |  
  |   |  |   |   |   |  |                 |  |   |   |                                |  
   |   |  |   |   |   |  |                    |  |                         |  |  |  |   |   |   |                          |   |  |                |   |                         |  |  |   |  |  |  |                          |  |  |  |  |                                     |  |  |   |   |  |  |                          |   |  |                 |  |   |  |                                |  |
| 2<br>2   | A2 - High Wa   |   |   |  | B15 - Mai  | rl Denosite  | a   |   |  | B16 - Moss Trim   | Lines  
   
  |   |  |   |  |  |  |                    |  |   |  |   | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
  |  |  |   |   |   |  |                    |   |                                   |  |  |   |  |  |  |   
            |  |  |  |   |                                     |   |  |   |  |  |  |   |  |  |  |   |   |  |                                |  
  |   |  |   |   |   |  |                 |  |   |   |                                |  
   |   |  |   |   |   |  |                    |  |                         |  |  |  |   |   |   |                          |   |  |                |   |                         |  |  |   |  |  |  |                          |  |  |  |  |                                     |  |  |   |   |  |  |                          |   |  |                 |  |   |  |                                |  |
|  | B1 - Water M   | /arks   |   | H  | C1 - Hvdr  | rogen Sulf   | ,<br>de Odor  |   | H  | C2 - Dry-Season   | Water Table  
   
  |   |  |   |  |  |  |                    |  |   |  |   | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
  |  |  |   |   |   |  |                    |   |                                   |  |  |   |  |  |  |   
            |  |  |  |   |                                     |   |  |   |  |  |  |   |  |  |  |   |   |  |                                |  
  |   |  |   |   |   |  |                 |  |   |   |                                |  
   |   |  |   |   |   |  |                    |  |                         |  |  |  |   |   |   |                          |   |  |                |   |                         |  |  |   |  |  |  |                          |  |  |  |  |                                     |  |  |   |   |  |  |                          |   |  |                 |  |   |  |                                |  |
|  | B2 - Sedime  | nt Deposits   |   | Ë  | C3 - Oxid  | lized Rhizo  | spheres on Living Roots   |   |  | C8 - Cravfish Bur   | rows   
   
  |   |  |   |  |  |  |                    |  |   |  |   | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
  |  |  |   |   |   |  |                    |   |                                   |  |  |   |  |  |  |   
            |  |  |  |   |                                     |   |  |   |  |  |  |   |  |  |  |   |   |  |                                |  
  |   |  |   |   |   |  |                 |  |   |   |                                |  
   |   |  |   |   |   |  |                    |  |                         |  |  |  |   |   |   |                          |   |  |                |   |                         |  |  |   |  |  |  |                          |  |  |  |  |                                     |  |  |   |   |  |  |                          |   |  |                 |  |   |  |                                |  |
|  | B3 - Drift De  | posits  |   |  | C4 - Pres  | ence of R  | educed Iron   |   |  | C9 - Saturation V   | isible on Aerial Imagery   
   
  |   |  |   |  |  |  |                    |  |   |  |   | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
  |  |  |   |   |   |  |                    |   |                                   |  |  |   |  |  |  |   
            |  |  |  |   |                                     |   |  |   |  |  |  |   |  |  |  |   |   |  |                                |  
  |   |  |   |   |   |  |                 |  |   |   |                                |  
   |   |  |   |   |   |  |                    |  |                         |  |  |  |   |   |   |                          |   |  |                |   |                         |  |  |   |  |  |  |                          |  |  |  |  |                                     |  |  |   |   |  |  |                          |   |  |                 |  |   |  |                                |  |
|  | B4 - Algal Ma  | at or Crust   |   |  | C6 - Rece  | ent Iron Re  | eduction in Tilled Soils  |   | 1  | D1 - Stunted or S   | tressed Plants   
   
  |   |  |   |  |  |  |                    |  |   |  |   | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
  |  |  |   |   |   |  |                    |   |                                   |  |  |   |  |  |  |   
            |  |  |  |   |                                     |   |  |   |  |  |  |   |  |  |  |   |   |  |                                |  
  |   |  |   |   |   |  |                 |  |   |   |                                |  
   |   |  |   |   |   |  |                    |  |                         |  |  |  |   |   |   |                          |   |  |                |   |                         |  |  |   |  |  |  |                          |  |  |  |  |                                     |  |  |   |   |  |  |                          |   |  |                 |  |   |  |                                |  |
|  | B5 - Iron De   | posits  |   |  | C7 - Thin  | Muck Sur   | face  |   |  | D2 - Geomorphic   | Position   
   
  |   |  |   |  |  |  |                    |  |   |  |   | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
  |  |  |   |   |   |  |                    |   |                                   |  |  |   |  |  |  |   
            |  |  |  |   |                                     |   |  |   |  |  |  |   |  |  |  |   |   |  |                                |  
  |   |  |   |   |   |  |                 |  |   |   |                                |  
   |   |  |   |   |   |  |                    |  |                         |  |  |  |   |   |   |                          |   |  |                |   |                         |  |  |   |  |  |  |                          |  |  |  |  |                                     |  |  |   |   |  |  |                          |   |  |                 |  |   |  |                                |  |
|  | B7 - Inundati  | on Visible on Aerial Ima  | agery   |  | Other (Ex  | plain in R   | emarks)   |   |  | D3 - Shallow Aqu  | itard  
   
  |   |  |   |  |  |  |                    |  |   |  |   | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
  |  |  |   |   |   |  |                    |   |                                   |  |  |   |  |  |  |   
            |  |  |  |   |                                     |   |  |   |  |  |  |   |  |  |  |   |   |  |                                |  
  |   |  |   |   |   |  |                 |  |   |   |                                |  
   |   |  |   |   |   |  |                    |  |                         |  |  |  |   |   |   |                          |   |  |                |   |                         |  |  |   |  |  |  |                          |  |  |  |  |                                     |  |  |   |   |  |  |                          |   |  |                 |  |   |  |                                |  |
|  | B8 - Sparsel   | y Vegetated Concave S   | Surface   |  |  |  |   |   |  | D4 - Microtopogra   | aphic Relief   
   
  |   |  |   |  |  |  |                    |  |   |  |   | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
  |  |  |   |   |   |  |                    |   |                                   |  |  |   |  |  |  |   
            |  |  |  |   |                                     |   |  |   |  |  |  |   |  |  |  |   |   |  |                                |  
  |   |  |   |   |   |  |                 |  |   |   |                                |  
   |   |  |   |   |   |  |                    |  |                         |  |  |  |   |   |   |                          |   |  |                |   |                         |  |  |   |  |  |  |                          |  |  |  |  |                                     |  |  |   |   |  |  |                          |   |  |                 |  |   |  |                                |  |
|  |  |   |   |  |  |  |   |   |  | D5 - FAC-Neutral  | Test   
   
  |   |  |   |  |  |  |                    |  |   |  |   | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
  |  |  |   |   |   |  |                    |   |                                   |  |  |   |  |  |  |   
            |  |  |  |   |                                     |   |  |   |  |  |  |   |  |  |  |   |   |  |                                |  
  |   |  |   |   |   |  |                 |  |   |   |                                |  
   |   |  |   |   |   |  |                    |  |                         |  |  |  |   |   |   |                          |   |  |                |   |                         |  |  |   |  |  |  |                          |  |  |  |  |                                     |  |  |   |   |  |  |                          |   |  |                 |  |   |  |                                |  |
| Field Observa  | tions:   |   |   |  |  |  |   |   |  |   |  
   
  |   |  |   |  |  |  |                    |  |   |  |   | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
  |  |  |   |   |   |  |                    |   |                                   |  |  |   |  |  |  |   
            |  |  |  |   |                                     |   |  |   |  |  |  |   |  |  |  |   |   |  |                                |  
  |   |  |   |   |   |  |                 |  |   |   |                                |  
   |   |  |   |   |   |  |                    |  |                         |  |  |  |   |   |   |                          |   |  |                |   |                         |  |  |   |  |  |  |                          |  |  |  |  |                                     |  |  |   |   |  |  |                          |   |  |                 |  |   |  |                                |  |
| Surface Water  | Present?   | 🗹 Yes 📋 No  | Depth:  | 3  | (in.)  |  |   | Wetlewellbr   | due le ave De  |   |  
   
  |   |  |   |  |  |  |                    |  |   |  |   | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
  |  |  |   |   |   |  |                    |   |                                   |  |  |   |  |  |  |   
            |  |  |  |   |                                     |   |  |   |  |  |  |   |  |  |  |   |   |  |                                |  
  |   |  |   |   |   |  |                 |  |   |   |                                |  
   |   |  |   |   |   |  |                    |  |                         |  |  |  |   |   |   |                          |   |  |                |   |                         |  |  |   |  |  |  |                          |  |  |  |  |                                     |  |  |   |   |  |  |                          |   |  |                 |  |   |  |                                |  |
| Water Table P  | esent?   | ☑ Yes □ No  | Depth:  | 6  | (in.)  |  |   | wetland Hy  | arology Pl   | resent? 🖸   | res 🗆 No   
   
  |   |  |   |  |  |  |                    |  |   |  |   | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
  |  |  |   |   |   |  |                    |   |                                   |  |  |   |  |  |  |   
            |  |  |  |   |                                     |   |  |   |  |  |  |   |  |  |  |   |   |  |                                |  
  |   |  |   |   |   |  |                 |  |   |   |                                |  
   |   |  |   |   |   |  |                    |  |                         |  |  |  |   |   |   |                          |   |  |                |   |                         |  |  |   |  |  |  |                          |  |  |  |  |                                     |  |  |   |   |  |  |                          |   |  |                 |  |   |  |                                |  |
| Saturation Pres  | sent?  | ☑ Yes □ No  | Depth:  | 0  | (in.)  |  |   |   |  |   |  
   
  |   |  |   |  |  |  |                    |  |   |  |   | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
  |  |  |   |   |   |  |                    |   |                                   |  |  |   |  |  |  |   
            |  |  |  |   |                                     |   |  |   |  |  |  |   |  |  |  |   |   |  |                                |  
  |   |  |   |   |   |  |                 |  |   |   |                                |  
   |   |  |   |   |   |  |                    |  |                         |  |  |  |   |   |   |                          |   |  |                |   |                         |  |  |   |  |  |  |                          |  |  |  |  |                                     |  |  |   |   |  |  |                          |   |  |                 |  |   |  |                                |  |
|  |  |   |   | -  | ,  |  |   |   |  |   |  
   
  |   |  |   |  |  |  |                    |  |   |  |   | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
  |  |  |   |   |   |  |                    |   |                                   |  |  |   |  |  |  |   
            |  |  |  |   |                                     |   |  |   |  |  |  |   |  |  |  |   |   |  |                                |  
  |   |  |   |   |   |  |                 |  |   |   |                                |  
   |   |  |   |   |   |  |                    |  |                         |  |  |  |   |   |   |                          |   |  |                |   |                         |  |  |   |  |  |  |                          |  |  |  |  |                                     |  |  |   |   |  |  |                          |   |  |                 |  |   |  |                                |  |
| Describe Record  | ied Data (str  | eam gauge, monitori   | ng well, aer  | al photos  | s, previous  | s inspecti   | ons), if available:   |   | N/A  |   |  
   
  |   |  |   |  |  |  |                    |  |   |  |   | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
  |  |  |   |   |   |  |                    |   |                                   |  |  |   |  |  |  |   
            |  |  |  |   |                                     |   |  |   |  |  |  |   |  |  |  |   |   |  |                                |  
  |   |  |   |   |   |  |                 |  |   |   |                                |  
   |   |  |   |   |   |  |                    |  |                         |  |  |  |   |   |   |                          |   |  |                |   |                         |  |  |   |  |  |  |                          |  |  |  |  |                                     |  |  |   |   |  |  |                          |   |  |                 |  |   |  |                                |  |
| Remarks:   |  |   |   |  |  |  |   |   |  |   |  
   
  |   |  |   |  |  |  |                    |  |   |  |   | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
  |  |  |   |   |   |  |                    |   |                                   |  |  |   |  |  |  |   
            |  |  |  |   |                                     |   |  |   |  |  |  |   |  |  |  |   |   |  |                                |  
  |   |  |   |   |   |  |                 |  |   |   |                                |  
   |   |  |   |   |   |  |                    |  |                         |  |  |  |   |   |   |                          |   |  |                |   |                         |  |  |   |  |  |  |                          |  |  |  |  |                                     |  |  |   |   |  |  |                          |   |  |                 |  |   |  |                                |  |
|  |  |   |   |  |  |  |   |   |  |   |  
   
  |   |  |   |  |  |  |                    |  |   |  |   | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
  |  |  |   |   |   |  |                    |   |                                   |  |  |   |  |  |  |   
            |  |  |  |   |                                     |   |  |   |  |  |  |   |  |  |  |   |   |  |                                |  
  |   |  |   |   |   |  |                 |  |   |   |                                |  
   |   |  |   |   |   |  |                    |  |                         |  |  |  |   |   |   |                          |   |  |                |   |                         |  |  |   |  |  |  |                          |  |  |  |  |                                     |  |  |   |   |  |  |                          |   |  |                 |  |   |  |                                |  |
|  |  |   |   |  |  |  |   |   |  |   |  
   
  |   |  |   |  |  |  |                    |  |   |  |   | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
  |  |  |   |   |   |  |                    |   |                                   |  |  |   |  |  |  |   
            |  |  |  |   |                                     |   |  |   |  |  |  |   |  |  |  |   |   |  |                                |  
  |   |  |   |   |   |  |                 |  |   |   |                                |  
   |   |  |   |   |   |  |                    |  |                         |  |  |  |   |   |   |                          |   |  |                |   |                         |  |  |   |  |  |  |                          |  |  |  |  |                                     |  |  |   |   |  |  |                          |   |  |                 |  |   |  |                                |  |
| SOILS  |  |   |   |  |  |  |   |   |  |   |  
   
  |   |  |   |  |  |  |                    |  |   |  |   | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
  |  |  |   |   |   |  |                    |   |                                   |  |  |   |  |  |  |   
            |  |  |  |   |                                     |   |  |   |  |  |  |   |  |  |  |   |   |  |                                |  
  |   |  |   |   |   |  |                 |  |   |   |                                |  
   |   |  |   |   |   |  |                    |  |                         |  |  |  |   |   |   |                          |   |  |                |   |                         |  |  |   |  |  |  |                          |  |  |  |  |                                     |  |  |   |   |  |  |                          |   |  |                 |  |   |  |                                |  |
| SOILS<br>Map Unit Name   | 2:   | 0   |   |  |  | Ş  | eries Drainage Class:   |   |  |   |  
   
  |   |  |   |  |  |  |                    |  |   |  |   | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
  |  |  |   |   |   |  |                    |   |                                   |  |  |   |  |  |  |   
            |  |  |  |   |                                     |   |  |   |  |  |  |   |  |  |  |   |   |  |                                |  
  |   |  |   |   |   |  |                 |  |   |   |                                |  
   |   |  |   |   |   |  |                    |  |                         |  |  |  |   |   |   |                          |   |  |                |   |                         |  |  |   |  |  |  |                          |  |  |  |  |                                     |  |  |   |   |  |  |                          |   |  |                 |  |   |  |                                |  |
| SOILS<br>Map Unit Name<br>Taxonomy (Sul  | e:   | 0   |   |  |  | S  | eries Drainage Class:   | :   |  |   |  
   
  |   |  |   |  |  |  |                    |  |   |  |   | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
  |  |  |   |   |   |  |                    |   |                                   |  |  |   |  |  |  |   
            |  |  |  |   |                                     |   |  |   |  |  |  |   |  |  |  |   |   |  |                                |  
  |   |  |   |   |   |  |                 |  |   |   |                                |  
   |   |  |   |   |   |  |                    |  |                         |  |  |  |   |   |   |                          |   |  |                |   |                         |  |  |   |  |  |  |                          |  |  |  |  |                                     |  |  |   |   |  |  |                          |   |  |                 |  |   |  |                                |  |
| SOILS<br>Map Unit Name<br>Taxonomy (Sul<br>Profile Descri  | e:<br>ogroup):   | O   | dicator or confirm the  | shrance of indi  | instance) (Tunne' C  | S  | eries Drainage Class:   | •<br>•<br>•<br>•  | inc: Location: PI = De   | va Lining M-Matrix)   |  
   
  |   |  |   |  |  |  |                    |  |   |  |   | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
  |  |  |   |   |   |  |                    |   |                                   |  |  |   |  |  |  |   
            |  |  |  |   |                                     |   |  |   |  |  |  |   |  |  |  |   |   |  |                                |  
  |   |  |   |   |   |  |                 |  |   |   |                                |  
   |   |  |   |   |   |  |                    |  |                         |  |  |  |   |   |   |                          |   |  |                |   |                         |  |  |   |  |  |  |                          |  |  |  |  |                                     |  |  |   |   |  |  |                          |   |  |                 |  |   |  |                                |  |
| SOILS<br>Map Unit Name<br>Taxonomy (Sul<br>Profile Descri  | e:<br>ogroup):<br>otion (Describe to   | 0<br>the depth needed to document the inc   | dicator or confirm the  | absence of Indi  | icators.) (Type: C   | =Concentration,  | eries Drainage Class:<br>D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C   | Covered/Coated Sand Gra   | ins; Location: PL=Pc   | ore Lining, M=Matrix)   |  
   
  |   |  |   |  |  |  |                    |  |   |  |   | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
  |  |  |   |   |   |  |                    |   |                                   |  |  |   |  |  |  |   
            |  |  |  |   |                                     |   |  |   |  |  |  |   |  |  |  |   |   |  |                                |  
  |   |  |   |   |   |  |                 |  |   |   |                                |  
   |   |  |   |   |   |  |                    |  |                         |  |  |  |   |   |   |                          |   |  |                |   |                         |  |  |   |  |  |  |                          |  |  |  |  |                                     |  |  |   |   |  |  |                          |   |  |                 |  |   |  |                                |  |
| SOILS<br>Map Unit Name<br>Taxonomy (Sul<br>Profile Descri<br>Top   | e:<br>ogroup):<br>otion (Describe to<br>Bottom   | O<br>the depth needed to document the inc   | dicator or confirm the  | absence of Indi  | icators.) (Type: C   | S=Concentration,   | eries Drainage Class:<br>D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C   | Covered/Coated Sand Gra   | iins; Location: PL=Pc  | vre Lining, M=Matrix)   | Texture  
   
  |   |  |   |  |  |  |                    |  |   |  |   | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
  |  |  |   |   |   |  |                    |   |                                   |  |  |   |  |  |  |   
            |  |  |  |   |                                     |   |  |   |  |  |  |   |  |  |  |   |   |  |                                |  
  |   |  |   |   |   |  |                 |  |   |   |                                |  
   |   |  |   |   |   |  |                    |  |                         |  |  |  |   |   |   |                          |   |  |                |   |                         |  |  |   |  |  |  |                          |  |  |  |  |                                     |  |  |   |   |  |  |                          |   |  |                 |  |   |  |                                |  |
| SOILS<br>Map Unit Name<br>Taxonomy (Sul<br>Profile Descri<br>Top<br>Depth                                    | e:<br>ogroup):<br>otion (Describe to<br>Bottom<br>Depth  | 0<br>the depth needed to document the inc<br>Horizon  | ficator or confirm the  | <sup>absence of indi<br/>Matrix<br/>Voist)</sup>   | cators.) (Type: C  | =Concentration,  | eries Drainage Class:<br>D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C<br>Color (Moist)  | Covered/Coated Sand Gra<br>Mottles<br>%                               | ins; Location: PL=Pc   | ore Lining, M=Matrix)   | Texture<br>(e.g. clay, sand, loam)   
   
  |   |  |   |  |  |  |                    |  |   |  |   | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
  |  |  |   |   |   |  |                    |   |                                   |  |  |   |  |  |  |   
            |  |  |  |   |                                     |   |  |   |  |  |  |   |  |  |  |   |   |  |                                |  
  |   |  |   |   |   |  |                 |  |   |   |                                |  
   |   |  |   |   |   |  |                    |  |                         |  |  |  |   |   |   |                          |   |  |                |   |                         |  |  |   |  |  |  |                          |  |  |  |  |                                     |  |  |   |   |  |  |                          |   |  |                 |  |   |  |                                |  |
| SOILS<br>Map Unit Name<br>Taxonomy (Sul<br>Profile Descri<br>Top<br>Depth<br>0                               | e:<br>ogroup):<br>otion (Describe to<br>Bottom<br>Depth<br>11  | 0<br>the depth needed to document the inc<br>Horizon<br>1   | ilicator or confirm the<br>Color (I<br>10YR                                   | absence of Indi<br>Matrix<br>Moist)<br>4/1   | icators.) (Type: C<br>%<br>100   | E=Concentration,   | eries Drainage Class:<br>D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C<br>Color (Moist)  | Covered/Coated Sand Gra<br>Mottles<br>%                               | ins; Location: PL=Pc   | vre Lining, M=Matrix)   | Texture<br>(e.g. clay, sand, loam)<br>Ioam   
   
  |   |  |   |  |  |  |                    |  |   |  |   | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
  |  |  |   |   |   |  |                    |   |                                   |  |  |   |  |  |  |   
            |  |  |  |   |                                     |   |  |   |  |  |  |   |  |  |  |   |   |  |                                |  
  |   |  |   |   |   |  |                 |  |   |   |                                |  
   |   |  |   |   |   |  |                    |  |                         |  |  |  |   |   |   |                          |   |  |                |   |                         |  |  |   |  |  |  |                          |  |  |  |  |                                     |  |  |   |   |  |  |                          |   |  |                 |  |   |  |                                |  |
| SOILS<br>Map Unit Name<br>Taxonomy (Sul<br>Profile Descri<br>Top<br>Depth<br>0<br>12                         | e:<br>bgroup):<br>btion (Describe to<br>Bottom<br>Depth<br>11<br>14  | 0<br>the depth needed to document the ind<br>Horizon<br>1<br>2  | ilcator or confirm the<br>Color (I<br>10YR<br>2.5Y                            | absence of Indi<br>Matrix<br>Moist)<br>4/1<br>5/2  | icators.) (Type: C<br>%<br>100<br>100  | Concentration,   | eries Drainage Class:<br>D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C<br>Color (Moist)  | Covered/Coated Sand Gra<br>Mottles<br>%                               | ins; Location: PL=Pc   | ve Lining, M=Matrix)  | Texture<br>(e.g. clay, sand, loam)<br>loam<br>   
   
  |   |  |   |  |  |  |                    |  |   |  |   | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
  |  |  |   |   |   |  |                    |   |                                   |  |  |   |  |  |  |   
            |  |  |  |   |                                     |   |  |   |  |  |  |   |  |  |  |   |   |  |                                |  
  |   |  |   |   |   |  |                 |  |   |   |                                |  
   |   |  |   |   |   |  |                    |  |                         |  |  |  |   |   |   |                          |   |  |                |   |                         |  |  |   |  |  |  |                          |  |  |  |  |                                     |  |  |   |   |  |  |                          |   |  |                 |  |   |  |                                |  |
| SOILS<br>Map Unit Name<br>Taxonomy (Sul<br>Profile Descri<br>Top<br>Depth<br>0<br>12                         | e:<br>pgroup):<br>potion (Describe to<br>Bottom<br>Depth<br>11<br>14   | 0<br>the depth needed to document the inc<br>Horizon<br>1<br>2  | ilicator or confirm the<br>Color (I<br>10YR<br>2.5Y                           | absence of Indi<br>Matrix<br>Moist)<br>4/1<br>5/2  | Cators.) (Type: C<br>%<br>100<br>100   | E=Concentration,   | eries Drainage Class:<br>D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C<br>Color (Moist)  | Covered/Coated Sand Gra<br>Mottles<br>%                               | Ins; Location: PL=Pc   | ve Lining, M=Matrix)  | Texture<br>(e.g. clay, sand, loam)<br>loam<br>   
   
  |   |  |   |  |  |  |                    |  |   |  |   | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
  |  |  |   |   |   |  |                    |   |                                   |  |  |   |  |  |  |   
            |  |  |  |   |                                     |   |  |   |  |  |  |   |  |  |  |   |   |  |                                |  
  |   |  |   |   |   |  |                 |  |   |   |                                |  
   |   |  |   |   |   |  |                    |  |                         |  |  |  |   |   |   |                          |   |  |                |   |                         |  |  |   |  |  |  |                          |  |  |  |  |                                     |  |  |   |   |  |  |                          |   |  |                 |  |   |  |                                |  |
| SOILS<br>Map Unit Name<br>Taxonomy (Sul<br>Profile Descri<br>Top<br>Depth<br>0<br>12                         | e:<br>bgroup):<br>btion (Describe to<br>Depth<br>11<br>14  | 0<br>the depth needed to document the inc<br>Horizon<br>1<br>2  | ilicator or confirm the<br>Color (I<br>10YR<br>2.5Y                           | absence of Indi<br>Matrix<br>Moist)<br>4/1<br>5/2  | icators.) (Type: C<br>%<br>100<br>100  | S=Concentration,   | eries Drainage Class:<br>D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C<br>Color (Moist)  | Covered/Coated Sand Gra<br>Mottles<br>%                               | ins; Location: PL=Pc   | re Lining, M=Matrix)  | Texture<br>(e.g. clay, sand, loam)<br>loam<br>   
   
  |   |  |   |  |  |  |                    |  |   |  |   | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
  |  |  |   |   |   |  |                    |   |                                   |  |  |   |  |  |  |   
            |  |  |  |   |                                     |   |  |   |  |  |  |   |  |  |  |   |   |  |                                |  
  |   |  |   |   |   |  |                 |  |   |   |                                |  
   |   |  |   |   |   |  |                    |  |                         |  |  |  |   |   |   |                          |   |  |                |   |                         |  |  |   |  |  |  |                          |  |  |  |  |                                     |  |  |   |   |  |  |                          |   |  |                 |  |   |  |                                |  |
| SOILS<br>Map Unit Name<br>Taxonomy (Sul<br>Profile Descri<br>Top<br>Depth<br>0<br>12                         | e:<br>bgroup):<br>btion (Describe to<br>Depth<br>11<br>14  | 0<br>the depth needed to document the ind<br>Horizon<br>1<br>2  | ilicator or confirm the<br>Color (I<br>10YR<br>2.5Y                           | absence of Indi<br>Matrix<br>Moist)<br>4/1<br>5/2  | %<br>100<br>100  | S<br>C=Concentration,  | eries Drainage Class:<br>D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C<br>Color (Moist)  | Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles %                                     | ins; Location: PL=Pc   | re Lining, M=Matrix)  | Texture<br>(e.g. clay, sand, loam)<br>loam<br><br>   
   
  |   |  |   |  |  |  |                    |  |   |  |   | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
  |  |  |   |   |   |  |                    |   |                                   |  |  |   |  |  |  |   
            |  |  |  |   |                                     |   |  |   |  |  |  |   |  |  |  |   |   |  |                                |  
  |   |  |   |   |   |  |                 |  |   |   |                                |  
   |   |  |   |   |   |  |                    |  |                         |  |  |  |   |   |   |                          |   |  |                |   |                         |  |  |   |  |  |  |                          |  |  |  |  |                                     |  |  |   |   |  |  |                          |   |  |                 |  |   |  |                                |  |
| SOILS<br>Map Unit Name<br>Taxonomy (Sul<br>Profile Descrij<br>Top<br>Depth<br>0<br>12                        | e:<br>Dgroup):<br>Dotion (Describe to<br>Bottom<br>Depth<br>11<br>14   | 0<br>the depth needed to document the inc<br>Horizon<br>1<br>2  | icator or confirm the<br>Color (I<br>10YR<br>2.5Y                             | absence of indi<br>Matrix<br>Moist)<br>4/1<br>5/2  | cators.) (Type: C<br>%<br>100<br>100   | S<br>=Concentration,   | eries Drainage Class:<br>D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C<br>Color (Moist)  | Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles %                                     | ins; Location: PL=Pc   | Ne Lining, M=Matrix)  | Texture<br>(e.g. clay, sand, loam)<br>loam<br><br>   
   
  |   |  |   |  |  |  |                    |  |   |  |   | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
  |  |  |   |   |   |  |                    |   |                                   |  |  |   |  |  |  |   
            |  |  |  |   |                                     |   |  |   |  |  |  |   |  |  |  |   |   |  |                                |  
  |   |  |   |   |   |  |                 |  |   |   |                                |  
   |   |  |   |   |   |  |                    |  |                         |  |  |  |   |   |   |                          |   |  |                |   |                         |  |  |   |  |  |  |                          |  |  |  |  |                                     |  |  |   |   |  |  |                          |   |  |                 |  |   |  |                                |  |
| SOILS<br>Map Unit Name<br>Taxonomy (Sul<br>Profile Descrip<br>Top<br>Depth<br>0<br>12<br>                    | e:<br>Dogroup):<br>botion (Describe to<br>Depth<br>11<br>14<br>  | 0<br>the depth needed to document the inc<br>Horizon<br>1<br>2<br>  | ilicator or confirm the<br>Color (I<br>10YR<br>2.5Y                           | absence of Indi<br>Matrix<br>Moist)<br>4/1<br>5/2  | cators.) (Type: C<br>%<br>100<br>100<br>   | =Concentration,  | eries Drainage Class:<br>D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C<br>Color (Moist)  | Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles %                                     | ins; Location: PL=Pc   | ve Lining, M=Matrix)  | Texture<br>(e.g. clay, sand, loam)<br>loam<br><br>   
   
  |   |  |   |  |  |  |                    |  |   |  |   | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
  |  |  |   |   |   |  |                    |   |                                   |  |  |   |  |  |  |   
            |  |  |  |   |                                     |   |  |   |  |  |  |   |  |  |  |   |   |  |                                |  
  |   |  |   |   |   |  |                 |  |   |   |                                |  
   |   |  |   |   |   |  |                    |  |                         |  |  |  |   |   |   |                          |   |  |                |   |                         |  |  |   |  |  |  |                          |  |  |  |  |                                     |  |  |   |   |  |  |                          |   |  |                 |  |   |  |                                |  |
| SOILS<br>Map Unit Name<br>Taxonomy (Sul<br>Profile Descrij<br>Top<br>Depth<br>0<br>12                        | e:<br>bogroup):<br>botion (Describe to<br>Depth<br>11<br>14<br><br>  | 0<br>the depth needed to document the inc<br>Horizon<br>1<br>2<br>  | ilcator or confirm the<br>Color (I<br>10YR<br>2.5Y                            | absence of Indi<br>Matrix<br>Moist)<br>4/1<br>5/2  | cators.) (Type: C<br>%<br>100<br>100<br>   | S<br>Concentration,  | eries Drainage Class:<br>D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C<br>Color (Moist)  | Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles %                                     | ins; Location: PL=Pc   | ve Lining, M=Matrix)  | Texture<br>(e.g. clay, sand, loam)<br>loam<br><br>   
   
  |   |  |   |  |  |  |                    |  |   |  |   | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
  |  |  |   |   |   |  |                    |   |                                   |  |  |   |  |  |  |   
            |  |  |  |   |                                     |   |  |   |  |  |  |   |  |  |  |   |   |  |                                |  
  |   |  |   |   |   |  |                 |  |   |   |                                |  
   |   |  |   |   |   |  |                    |  |                         |  |  |  |   |   |   |                          |   |  |                |   |                         |  |  |   |  |  |  |                          |  |  |  |  |                                     |  |  |   |   |  |  |                          |   |  |                 |  |   |  |                                |  |
| SOILS<br>Map Unit Name<br>Taxonomy (Sul<br>Profile Descri<br>Top<br>Depth<br>0<br>12<br>                     | e:<br>bgroup):<br>btion (Describe to<br>Depth<br>11<br>14<br><br><br>  | 0<br>the depth needed to document the ind<br>Horizon<br>1<br>2<br><br><br>  | ilcator or confirm the<br>Color (I<br>10YR<br>2.5Y                            | absence of Indi<br>Matrix<br>Moist)<br>4/1<br>5/2<br><br>  | cators.) (Type: C<br>%<br>100<br>100<br><br><br>   | E-Concentration,   | eries Drainage Class:<br>D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C<br>Color (Moist)<br>  | Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles %                                     | ins; Location: PL=Pc   | ve Lining, M=Matrix) Location   | Texture<br>(e.g. clay, sand, loam)<br>loam<br><br><br><br>   
   
  |   |  |   |  |  |  |                    |  |   |  |   | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
  |  |  |   |   |   |  |                    |   |                                   |  |  |   |  |  |  |   
            |  |  |  |   |                                     |   |  |   |  |  |  |   |  |  |  |   |   |  |                                |  
  |   |  |   |   |   |  |                 |  |   |   |                                |  
   |   |  |   |   |   |  |                    |  |                         |  |  |  |   |   |   |                          |   |  |                |   |                         |  |  |   |  |  |  |                          |  |  |  |  |                                     |  |  |   |   |  |  |                          |   |  |                 |  |   |  |                                |  |
| SOILS<br>Map Unit Name<br>Taxonomy (Sul<br>Profile Descri<br>Top<br>Depth<br>0<br>12<br><br><br>NRCS Hydric  | e:<br>bgroup):<br>btion (Describe to<br>Depth<br>11<br>14<br><br><br>Soil Field In   | 0<br>the depth needed to document the ind<br>Horizon<br>1<br>2<br><br><br><br>ndicators (check he   | ilicator or confirm the<br>Color (I<br>10YR<br>2.5Y<br><br><br>erre if indica | absence of Indi<br>Matrix<br>Moist)<br>4/1<br>5/2<br>  | cators.) (Type: C<br>%<br>100<br>100<br>   | S  | eries Drainage Class:<br>D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C<br>Color (Moist)<br><br><br><br>  | Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles % %                                   | ins; Location: PL=Pc   | re Lining, M=Matrix)  | Texture<br>(e.g. clay, sand, loam)<br><br><br><br>   
   
  |   |  |   |  |  |  |                    |  |   |  |   | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
  |  |  |   |   |   |  |                    |   |                                   |  |  |   |  |  |  |   
            |  |  |  |   |                                     |   |  |   |  |  |  |   |  |  |  |   |   |  |                                |  
  |   |  |   |   |   |  |                 |  |   |   |                                |  
   |   |  |   |   |   |  |                    |  |                         |  |  |  |   |   |   |                          |   |  |                |   |                         |  |  |   |  |  |  |                          |  |  |  |  |                                     |  |  |   |   |  |  |                          |   |  |                 |  |   |  |                                |  |
| SOILS<br>Map Unit Name<br>Taxonomy (Sul<br>Profile Descri<br>Top<br>Depth<br>0<br>12<br><br><br>NRCS Hydric  | e:<br>bgroup):<br>btion (Describe to<br>Depth<br>11<br>14<br>  | 0<br>the depth needed to document the ind<br>Horizon<br>1<br>2<br><br><br><br>ndicators (check here   | Color (<br>10YR<br>2.5Y   | absence of Indi<br>Matrix<br>Moist)<br>4/1<br>5/2<br>  | cators.) (Type: C<br>%<br>100<br>100<br>   | =Concentration   | eries Drainage Class:<br>D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C<br>Color (Moist)<br>  | Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles % %                                   | ins; Location: PL=Pc   |   | Texture<br>(e.g. clay, sand, loam)<br>loam<br><br><br>   
   
  |   |  |   |  |  |  |                    |  |   |  |   | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
  |  |  |   |   |   |  |                    |   |                                   |  |  |   |  |  |  |   
            |  |  |  |   |                                     |   |  |   |  |  |  |   |  |  |  |   |   |  |                                |  
  |   |  |   |   |   |  |                 |  |   |   |                                |  
   |   |  |   |   |   |  |                    |  |                         |  |  |  |   |   |   |                          |   |  |                |   |                         |  |  |   |  |  |  |                          |  |  |  |  |                                     |  |  |   |   |  |  |                          |   |  |                 |  |   |  |                                |  |
| SOILS<br>Map Unit Name<br>Taxonomy (Sul<br>Profile Descri<br>Top<br>Depth<br>0<br>12<br><br><br>NRCS Hydric  | e:<br>Dogroup):<br>Dotion (Describe to<br>Depth<br>11<br>14<br><br><br>Soil Field In<br>A1- Histosol<br>A2 - Histo E   | 0<br>the depth needed to document the ind<br>Horizon<br>1<br>2<br><br><br>ndicators (check he<br>pipedon  | Color (I<br>10YR<br>2.5Y<br><br><br>ere if indica                             | absence of Indi<br>Matrix<br>Moist)<br>4/1<br>5/2<br><br><br>tors are  | cators.) (Type: C<br>%<br>100<br>100<br><br><br>not prese<br>S8 - Poly<br>S9 - Thin  | =Concentration   | eries Drainage Class:<br>D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C<br>Color (Moist)<br><br><br><br>w Surface (LRR R, MLRA 149B)<br>BCE (LRR R, MLRA 149B)  | Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles % %                                   | ins: Location: PL=Pc<br>Type   |   | Texture<br>(e.g. clay, sand, loam)<br>loam<br><br><br><br><br><br>149B)<br>KK L R)   
   
  |   |  |   |  |  |  |                    |  |   |  |   | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
  |  |  |   |   |   |  |                    |   |                                   |  |  |   |  |  |  |   
            |  |  |  |   |                                     |   |  |   |  |  |  |   |  |  |  |   |   |  |                                |  
  |   |  |   |   |   |  |                 |  |   |   |                                |  
   |   |  |   |   |   |  |                    |  |                         |  |  |  |   |   |   |                          |   |  |                |   |                         |  |  |   |  |  |  |                          |  |  |  |  |                                     |  |  |   |   |  |  |                          |   |  |                 |  |   |  |                                |  |
| SOILS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sul Profile Descri Top Depth 0 12 NRCS Hydric                                  | e:<br>Dogroup):<br>otion (Describe to<br>Depth<br>11<br>14<br>   | 0 the depth needed to document the inc Horizon 1 2 ndicators (check he pipedon istic  | Color (I<br>10YR<br>2.5Y<br><br><br>ere if indica                             | absence of Indi<br>Matrix<br>Moist)<br>4/1<br>5/2<br><br><br>tors are<br>0<br>1<br>1   | cators.) (Type: C<br>%<br>100<br>100<br><br><br><br><br><br><br><br><br><br><br><br>   | S<br>  | eries Drainage Class:<br>D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C<br>Color (Moist)<br>  | Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles % % %                                 | ins; Location: PL=Pc<br>Type<br>   | We Lining, M=Matrix)  Location  | Texture<br>(e.g. clay, sand, loam)<br>loam<br><br><br><br><br><br>149B)<br>KK, L, R)<br>(LRR K, L, R)  
   
  |   |  |   |  |  |  |                    |  |   |  |   | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
  |  |  |   |   |   |  |                    |   |                                   |  |  |   |  |  |  |   
            |  |  |  |   |                                     |   |  |   |  |  |  |   |  |  |  |   |   |  |                                |  
  |   |  |   |   |   |  |                 |  |   |   |                                |  
   |   |  |   |   |   |  |                    |  |                         |  |  |  |   |   |   |                          |   |  |                |   |                         |  |  |   |  |  |  |                          |  |  |  |  |                                     |  |  |   |   |  |  |                          |   |  |                 |  |   |  |                                |  |
| SOILS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sul Profile Descri Top Depth 0 12 NRCS Hydric                                  | e:<br>bgroup):<br>btion (Describe to<br>Depth<br>11<br>14<br><br><br>Soil Field In<br>A1- Histosol<br>A2 - Histic E<br>A3 - Black H<br>A4 - Hydroge  | 0 the depth needed to document the ind Horizon 1 2 ndicators (check he pipedon istic an Sulfide   | ilcator or confirm the<br>Color (I<br>10YR<br>2.5Y<br><br><br>ere if indica   | absence of Indi<br>Matrix<br>Moist)<br>4/1<br>5/2<br><br>tors are  | eators.) (Type: C<br>%<br>100<br>100<br><br><br>not press<br>S8 - Poly<br>S9 - Thin<br>F1 - Loan<br>F2 - Loan  | == Concentration,<br>==  | eries Drainage Class:<br>D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C<br>Color (Moist)<br><br><br>w Surface (LRR R, MLRA 149B)<br>ace (LRR R, MLRA 149B)<br>Mineral (LRR K, L)<br>Matrix  | Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % | ins; Location: PL=Pc   |   | Texture<br>(e.g. clay, sand, loam)<br>loam<br><br><br><br><br>(49B)<br>K, L, R)<br>(LRR K, L, R)   
   
  |   |  |   |  |  |  |                    |  |   |  |   | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
  |  |  |   |   |   |  |                    |   |                                   |  |  |   |  |  |  |   
            |  |  |  |   |                                     |   |  |   |  |  |  |   |  |  |  |   |   |  |                                |  
  |   |  |   |   |   |  |                 |  |   |   |                                |  
   |   |  |   |   |   |  |                    |  |                         |  |  |  |   |   |   |                          |   |  |                |   |                         |  |  |   |  |  |  |                          |  |  |  |  |                                     |  |  |   |   |  |  |                          |   |  |                 |  |   |  |                                |  |
| SOILS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sul Profile Descri Top Depth 0 12 NRCS Hydric                                  | 2:<br>bgroup):<br>btion (Describe to<br>Depth<br>11<br>14<br><br><br>Soil Field In<br>A1- Histosol<br>A2 - Histo E<br>A3 - Black H<br>A4 - Hydrogr<br>A5 - Stratifie   | 0 The depth needed to document the ind Horizon 1 2 ndicators (check he pipedon istic an Sulfide d Layers  | icator or confirm the<br>Color (I<br>10YR<br>2.5Y<br><br><br>ere if indica    | absence of Indi<br>Matrix<br>Voist)<br>4/1<br>5/2<br>  | cators.) (Type: O<br>%<br>100<br>100<br>100<br>  | S  | eries Drainage Class:<br>D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C<br>Color (Moist)<br>  | Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % | ins; Location: PL=Pc<br>Type<br>   | The Lining, M=Matrix)   Location   Location   | Texture           (e.g. clay, sand, loam)           loam   
   
  |   |  |   |  |  |  |                    |  |   |  |   | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
  |  |  |   |   |   |  |                    |   |                                   |  |  |   |  |  |  |   
            |  |  |  |   |                                     |   |  |   |  |  |  |   |  |  |  |   |   |  |                                |  
  |   |  |   |   |   |  |                 |  |   |   |                                |  
   |   |  |   |   |   |  |                    |  |                         |  |  |  |   |   |   |                          |   |  |                |   |                         |  |  |   |  |  |  |                          |  |  |  |  |                                     |  |  |   |   |  |  |                          |   |  |                 |  |   |  |                                |  |
| SOILS<br>Map Unit Name<br>Taxonomy (Sul<br>Profile Descri<br>Top<br>Depth<br>0<br>12<br><br><br>NRCS Hydric  | 2:<br>Dogroup):<br>Dogroup):<br>Dogroup):<br>Depth<br>11<br>14<br>14<br><br><br>Soil Field II<br>A1- Histosol<br>A2 - Histic E<br>A3 - Black H<br>A4 - Hydrogg<br>A5 - Stratifie<br>A1 - Deplet  | 0 the depth needed to document the ind Horizon 1 2 ndicators (check he pipedon istic an Sulfide d Layers ed Below Dark Surface  | icator or confirm the<br>Color (I<br>10YR<br>2.5Y                             | absence of Indi<br>Matrix<br>Moist)<br>4/1<br>5/2<br><br>tors are  | cators.) (Type: C<br>%<br>100<br>100<br>   | =Concentration,  | eries Drainage Class:<br>D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C<br>Color (Moist)<br>  | Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles % %                                   | ins; Location: PL=Pc<br>Type<br>   |   | Texture           (e.g. clay, sand, loam)           loam <tr td=""> <t< td=""></t<></tr> <tr><td>SOILS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sul Profile Descri Top Depth 0 12 NRCS Hydric</td><td>2:<br/>Dgroup):<br/>Depth<br/>11<br/>14<br/></td><td>0 the depth needed to document the ind Horizon 1 2 ndicators (check he pipedon istic en Sulfide d Layers ed Below Dark Surface Dark Surface</td><td>icator or confirm the<br/>Color (I<br/>10YR<br/>2.5Y<br/><br/><br/>ere if indica</td><td>absence of Indi<br/>Matrix<br/>Moist)<br/>4/1<br/>5/2<br/><br/>tors are<br/>0<br/>0<br/>0<br/>0<br/>0<br/>0<br/>0<br/>0<br/>0<br/>0<br/>0<br/>0<br/>0</td><td>cators.) (Type: C<br/>%<br/>100<br/>100<br/></td><td>=Concentration</td><td>eries Drainage Class:<br/>D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C<br/>Color (Moist)<br/><br/><br/>w Surface (LRR R, MLRA 149B)<br/>ace (LRR R, MLRA 149B)<br/>Wineral (LRR K, L)<br/>Matrix<br/>x<br/>Irface<br/>Surface<br/></td><td>Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles %</td><td>ins: Location: PL=Pc<br/>Type<br/></td><td>The Lining, M=Matrix)  Location  Location  The Lining, M=Matrix)  The Lining and the lining and</td><td>Texture           (e.g. clay, sand, loam)           loam  (LRR K, L, R)</td></tr> <tr><td>SOILS<br/>Map Unit Name<br/>Taxonomy (Sul<br/>Profile Descrip<br/>Top<br/>Depth<br/>0<br/>12<br/><br/><br/>NRCS Hydric</td><td>2:<br/>Dgroup):<br/>Dtion (Describe to<br/>Depth<br/>11<br/>14<br/><br/>Soil Field In<br/>A1- Histosol<br/>A2 - Histic E<br/>A3 - Black H<br/>A4 - Hydrogg<br/>A5 - Stratifie<br/>A11 - Deplet<br/>A12 - Thick I<br/>S1 - Sandy M</td><td>0 the depth needed to document the ind Horizon 1 2 ndicators (check he pipedon istic an Sulfide d Layers ed Below Dark Surface Dark Surface Auck Mineral Evend Matrix</td><td>Color (I<br/>10YR<br/>2.5Y</td><td>absence of Indi<br/>Matrix<br/>Moist)<br/>4/1<br/>5/2<br/></td><td>cators.) (Type: C<br/>%<br/>100<br/>100<br/><br/><br/><br/><br/><br/><br/><br/><br/><br/><br/><br/></td><td>Seconcentration</td><td>eries Drainage Class:<br/>D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C<br/>Color (Moist)<br/></td><td>Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles %</td><td>ins: Location: PL=Pc<br/>Type<br/></td><td></td><td>Texture           (e.g. clay, sand, loam)           Ioam  (LRR K, L, R)</td></tr> <tr><td>SOILS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sul Profile Descri Top Depth 0 12 NRCS Hydric</td><td>2:<br/>Dgroup):<br/>Dtion (Describe to<br/>Depth<br/>11<br/>14<br/><br/><br/>Soil Field In<br/>A1- Histosol<br/>A2 - Histose<br/>A3 - Black H<br/>A4 - Hydroge<br/>A3 - Black H<br/>A4 - Hydroge<br/>A5 - Stratifie<br/>A11 - Deplet<br/>S1 - Sandy M<br/>S4 - Sandy C</td><td>0 the depth needed to document the ind Horizon 1 2 ndicators (check he pipedon istic en Sulfide d Layers ed Below Dark Surface Dark Surface Auck Mineral Sleyed Matrix Redoy</td><td>icator or confirm the<br/>Color (I<br/>10YR<br/>2.5Y<br/><br/><br/>ere if indica</td><td>absence of Indi<br/>Matrix<br/>Moist)<br/>4/1<br/>5/2<br/><br/>tors are<br/>1<br/>2<br/>1<br/>1<br/>1<br/>1</td><td>eators.) (Type: C<br/>%<br/>100<br/>100<br/><br/><br/><br/><br/><br/><br/><br/><br/><br/><br/><br/></td><td>seconcentration<br/></td><td>eries Drainage Class:<br/>D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C<br/>Color (Moist)<br/><br/><br/>w Surface (LRR R, MLRA 149B)<br/>ace (LRR R, MLRA 149B)<br/>Vineral (LRR K, L)<br/>Matrix<br/>x<br/>urface<br/>Surface<br/>Surface<br/>Surface<br/>sions</td><td>Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles % %</td><td>Ins; Location: PL=Pc<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>I<br/>I<br/>I<br/>I<br/>I<br/>I<br/>I<br/>I<br/>I<br/>I<br/>I<br/>I<br/>I<br/>I<br/>I<br/>I<br/>I<br/>I<br/>I</td><td></td><td>Texture           (e.g. clay, sand, loam)           Ioam  </td></tr> <tr><td>SOILS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sul Profile Descri
Top Depth 0 12 NRCS Hydric</td><td>2:<br/>Dgroup):<br/>Dtion (Describe to<br/>Depth<br/>11<br/>14<br/><br/><br/>Soil Field In<br/>A1- Histosol<br/>A2 - Histic E<br/>A3 - Black H<br/>A4 - Hydroge<br/>A5 - Stratifie<br/>A1 - Deplet<br/>A1 - Deplet<br/>S1 - Sandy R<br/>S4 - Sandy C<br/>S5 - Sandy R</td><td>0 the depth needed to document the ind Horizon 1 2 ndicators (check he pipedon istic an Sulfide d Layers ed Below Dark Surface Dark Surface Auck Mineral Sleyed Matrix Redox I Matrix</td><td>ilicator or confirm the<br/>Color (I<br/>10YR<br/>2.5Y</td><td>absence of Indi<br/>Matrix<br/>Voist)<br/>4/1<br/>5/2<br/></td><td>cators.) (Type: O<br/>%<br/>100<br/>100<br/>100<br/></td><td>S</td><td>eries Drainage Class:<br/>D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C<br/>Color (Moist)<br/><br/><br/>w Surface (LRR R, MLRA 149B)<br/>aCe (LRR R, MLRA 149B)<br/>Viineral (LR R, MLRA 149B)<br/>Viineral (LR R, MLRA 149B)<br/>Matrix<br/>x<br/>Irface<br/>Surface<br/>sions</td><td>Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % %</td><td>rins; Location: PL=PC</td><td>The Lining, M=Matrix)</td><td>Texture           (e.g. clay, sand, loam)   <tr td=""> <tr< td=""></tr<></tr><tr><td>SOILS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sul Profile Descri Top Depth 0 12 NRCS Hydric</td><td>2:<br/>Dogroup):<br/>Dtion (Describe to<br/>Depth<br/>11<br/>14<br/></td><td>0 the depth needed to document the ind Horizon 1 2 ndicators (check her pipedon istic an Sulfide d Layers ed Below Dark Surface Dark Surface Dark Surface Dark Surface Auck Mineral Bleyed Matrix Redox I Matrix Ifface (LR R, MLRA 149B)</td><td>icator or confirm the<br/>Color ((<br/>10YR<br/>2.5Y</td><td>absence of Indi<br/>Matrix<br/>Moist)<br/>4/1<br/>5/2<br/></td><td>cators.) (Type: C<br/>%<br/>100<br/>100<br/></td><td>econcentration,</td><td>eries Drainage Class:<br/>D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C<br/>Color (Moist)<br/></td><td>Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % %</td><td>rins; Location: PL=Pc<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/></td><td></td><td>Texture           (e.g. clay, sand, loam)           loam  &gt;       <tr tr=""> <t< td=""></t<></tr><tr><td>SOILS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sul Profile Descri Top Depth 0 12 NRCS Hydric</td><td>2:<br/>Dogroup):<br/>Depth<br/>11<br/>14<br/>14<br/></td><td>0 the depth needed to document the ind Horizon 1 2 ndicators (check he pipedon istic en Sulfide d Layers ed Below Dark Surface Dark Surface Auck Mineral Sleyed Matrix Redox i Matrix Irface (LRR R, MLRA 149B)</td><td>icator or confirm the<br/>Color (I<br/>10YR<br/>2.5Y</td><td>absence of Indi<br/>Matrix<br/>Moist)<br/>4/1<br/>5/2<br/><br/><br/>tors are<br/>2<br/>2<br/>1<br/>1</td><td>cators.) (Type: C<br/>%<br/>100<br/>100<br/></td><td>econcentration<br/></td><td>eries Drainage Class:<br/>D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C<br/>Color (Moist)<br/></td><td>Covered/Coated Sand Gra</td><td>ins; Location: PL=Pc<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Tope<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type</td><td></td><td>Texture           (e.g. clay, sand, loam)           loam  </td></tr><tr><td>SOILS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sul Profile Descri Top Depth 0 12 NRCS Hydric</td><td>2:<br/>Dgroup):<br/>Depth<br/>11<br/>14<br/>14<br/></td><td>0 the depth needed to document the ind Horizon 1 2 ndicators (check he pipedon istic en Sulfide d Layers ed Below Dark Surface Dark Surface Auck Mineral Sleyed Matrix Redox I Matrix Irface (LRR R, MLRA 149B)</td><td>Color (I<br/>10YR<br/>2.5Y</td><td>absence of Indi<br/>Matrix<br/>Moist)<br/>4/1<br/>5/2<br/><br/><br/>tors are<br/>0<br/>1<br/>1<br/>1<br/>1<br/>1<br/>1<br/>1<br/>1<br/>1<br/>1<br/>1<br/>1<br/>1</td><td>cators.) (Type: C<br/>%<br/>100<br/>100<br/></td><td>econcentration</td><td>eries Drainage Class:<br/>D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C<br/>Color (Moist)<br/><br/><br/><br/>w Surface (LRR R, MLRA 149B)<br/>ace (LRR R, MLRA 149B)<br/>Viineral (LRR K, L)<br/>Matrix<br/>x<br/>Irface<br/>Surface<br/>Surface<br/>sions</td><td>Covered/Coated Sand Gra</td><td>ins; Location: PL=Pc<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/></td><td></td><td>Texture           (e.g. clay, sand, loam)           loam  S (LRR K, L, R)</td></tr><tr><td>SOILS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sul Profile Descrip Top Depth 0 12 NRCS Hydric Restrictive Layer (If Observed)</td><td>2:<br/>Dgroup):<br/>Depth<br/>Depth<br/>11<br/>14<br/><br/><br/>Soil Field I<br/>A1- Histosol<br/>A2- Histic E<br/>A3- Black H<br/>A4- Hydroge<br/>A5- Stratifie<br/>A12 - Thick I<br/>S1- Sandy N<br/>S4- Sandy C<br/>S5- Sandy F<br/>S6- Strippec<br/>S7- Dark Su</td><td>0 the depth needed to document the ind Horizon 1 2 ndicators (check he pipedon istic en Sulfide d Layers ed Below Dark Surface Dark Surface Auck Mineral Sleyed Matrix Redox I Matrix Irface (LRR R, MLRA 149B) rock</td><td>Color (I<br/>10YR<br/>2.5Y</td><td>absence of Indi<br/>Matrix<br/>Moist)<br/>4/1<br/>5/2<br/><br/><br/>tors are<br/>0<br/>0<br/>0<br/>0<br/>0<br/>0<br/>0<br/>0<br/>0<br/>0<br/>0<br/>0<br/>0<br/>0<br/>0<br/>0<br/>0<br/>0<br/>0</td><td>cators.) (Type: C<br/>%<br/>100<br/>100<br/><br/><br/><br/><br/>Not prese<br/>S8 - Poly<br/>S9 - Thin<br/>F1 - Loan<br/>F2 - Loan<br/>F3 - Depl<br/>F3 - Depl<br/>F8 - Redo</td><td>eted Dark Sur<br/>y Gleved<br/>eted Dark Sur<br/>x Dark Sur<br/>to Dark Sur<br/>to Dark Sur</td><td>eries Drainage Class:<br/>D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C<br/>Color (Moist)<br/></td><td>Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles % %</td><td>ins: Location: PL=Pc<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/></td><td></td><td>Texture         (e.g. clay, sand, loam)         loam   S (LRR K, L, R)         IS</td></tr><tr><td>SOILS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sul Profile Descri Top Depth 0 12 NRCS Hydric Restrictive Layer (If Observed)</td><td>2:<br/>Dgroup):<br/>Dtion (Describe to<br/>Depth<br/>11<br/>14<br/><br/><br/>Soil Field In<br/>A1- Histosol<br/>A2 - Histose<br/>A3 - Black H<br/>A4 - Hydroge<br/>A3 - Black H<br/>A4 - Hydroge<br/>A5 - Stratifie<br/>A11 - Deplet<br/>A1 - Deplet<br/>A1 - Deplet<br/>A1 - Deplet<br/>S5 - Sandy R<br/>S6 - Strippec<br/>S7 - Dark St</td><td>0 the depth needed to document the ind Horizon 1 2 ndicators (check he pipedon istic en Sulfide d Layers ed Below Dark Surface Dark Surface Auck Mineral Sleyed Matrix Redox I flace (LRR R, MLRA 149B) rock al at 14"</td><td>Color (I<br/>10YR<br/>2.5Y</td><td>absence of Indi<br/>Matrix<br/>Moist)<br/>4/1<br/>5/2<br/><br/><br/>tors are<br/>0<br/>1<br/>1<br/>1<br/>Depth:14</td><td>cators.) (Type: C<br/>%<br/>100<br/>100<br/><br/><br/><br/><br/><br/><br/><br/><br/><br/><br/><br/></td><td>Seconcentration</td><td>eries Drainage Class:<br/>D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C<br/>Color (Moist)<br/></td><td>Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % %</td><td>ins: Location:
PL=Pc<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/></td><td>We Lining, M=Matrix)  Location </td><td>Texture         (e.g. clay, sand, loam)         loam   &lt;</td></tr></td></tr></td></tr> | SOILS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sul Profile Descri Top Depth 0 12 NRCS Hydric | 2:<br>Dgroup):<br>Depth<br>11<br>14<br>                        | 0 the depth needed to document the ind Horizon 1 2 ndicators (check he pipedon istic en Sulfide d Layers ed Below Dark Surface Dark Surface   | icator or confirm the<br>Color (I<br>10YR<br>2.5Y<br><br><br>ere if indica | absence of Indi<br>Matrix<br>Moist)<br>4/1<br>5/2<br><br>tors are<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0 | cators.) (Type: C<br>%<br>100<br>100<br> | =Concentration     | eries Drainage Class:<br>D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C<br>Color (Moist)<br><br><br>w Surface (LRR R, MLRA 149B)<br>ace (LRR R, MLRA 149B)<br>Wineral (LRR K, L)<br>Matrix<br>x<br>Irface<br>Surface<br> | Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles %                                     | ins: Location: PL=Pc<br>Type<br>   | The Lining, M=Matrix)  Location  Location  The Lining, M=Matrix)  The Lining and | Texture           (e.g. clay, sand, loam)           loam  (LRR K, L, R)   
  | SOILS<br>Map Unit Name<br>Taxonomy (Sul<br>Profile Descrip<br>Top<br>Depth<br>0<br>12<br><br><br>NRCS Hydric | 2:<br>Dgroup):<br>Dtion (Describe to<br>Depth<br>11<br>14<br><br>Soil Field In<br>A1- Histosol<br>A2 - Histic E<br>A3 - Black H<br>A4 - Hydrogg<br>A5 - Stratifie<br>A11 - Deplet<br>A12 - Thick I<br>S1 - Sandy M | 0 the depth needed to document the ind Horizon 1 2 ndicators (check he pipedon istic an Sulfide d Layers ed Below Dark Surface Dark Surface Auck Mineral Evend Matrix   | Color (I<br>10YR<br>2.5Y                          | absence of Indi<br>Matrix<br>Moist)<br>4/1<br>5/2<br>   | cators.) (Type: C<br>%<br>100<br>100<br><br><br><br><br><br><br><br><br><br><br><br> | Seconcentration    | eries Drainage Class:<br>D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C<br>Color (Moist)<br>  | Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles % | ins: Location: PL=Pc<br>Type<br>   |  | Texture           (e.g. clay, sand, loam)           Ioam  (LRR K, L, R)   | SOILS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sul Profile Descri Top Depth 0 12 NRCS Hydric                                  | 2:<br>Dgroup):<br>Dtion (Describe to<br>Depth<br>11<br>14<br><br><br>Soil Field In<br>A1- Histosol<br>A2 - Histose<br>A3 - Black H<br>A4 - Hydroge<br>A3 - Black H<br>A4 - Hydroge<br>A5 - Stratifie<br>A11 - Deplet<br>S1 - Sandy M<br>S4 - Sandy C | 0 the depth needed to document the ind Horizon 1 2 ndicators (check he pipedon istic en Sulfide d Layers ed Below Dark Surface Dark Surface Auck Mineral Sleyed Matrix Redoy   | icator or confirm the<br>Color (I<br>10YR<br>2.5Y<br><br><br>ere if indica | absence of Indi<br>Matrix<br>Moist)<br>4/1<br>5/2<br><br>tors are<br>1<br>2<br>1<br>1<br>1<br>1  | eators.) (Type: C<br>%<br>100<br>100<br><br><br><br><br><br><br><br><br><br><br><br>   | seconcentration<br>  | eries Drainage Class:<br>D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C<br>Color (Moist)<br><br><br>w Surface (LRR R, MLRA 149B)<br>ace (LRR R, MLRA 149B)<br>Vineral (LRR K, L)<br>Matrix<br>x<br>urface<br>Surface<br>Surface<br>Surface<br>sions | Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles % % | Ins; Location: PL=Pc<br>Type<br>Type<br>I<br>I<br>I<br>I<br>I<br>I<br>I<br>I<br>I<br>I<br>I<br>I<br>I<br>I<br>I<br>I<br>I<br>I<br>I |  | Texture           (e.g. clay, sand, loam)           Ioam  | SOILS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sul Profile Descri Top Depth 0 12 NRCS Hydric                                  | 2:<br>Dgroup):<br>Dtion (Describe to<br>Depth<br>11<br>14<br><br><br>Soil Field In<br>A1- Histosol<br>A2 - Histic E<br>A3 - Black H<br>A4 - Hydroge<br>A5 - Stratifie<br>A1 - Deplet<br>A1 - Deplet<br>S1 - Sandy R<br>S4 - Sandy C<br>S5 - Sandy R  | 0 the depth needed to document the ind Horizon 1 2 ndicators (check he pipedon istic an Sulfide d Layers ed Below Dark Surface Dark Surface Auck Mineral Sleyed Matrix Redox I Matrix                                  | ilicator or confirm the<br>Color (I<br>10YR<br>2.5Y | absence of Indi<br>Matrix<br>Voist)<br>4/1<br>5/2<br>  | cators.) (Type: O<br>%<br>100<br>100<br>100<br>  | S  | eries Drainage Class:<br>D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C<br>Color (Moist)<br><br><br>w Surface (LRR R, MLRA 149B)<br>aCe (LRR R, MLRA 149B)<br>Viineral (LR R, MLRA 149B)<br>Viineral (LR R, MLRA 149B)<br>Matrix<br>x<br>Irface<br>Surface<br>sions | Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % | rins; Location: PL=PC                    | The Lining, M=Matrix)          | Texture           (e.g. clay, sand, loam) <tr td=""> <tr< td=""></tr<></tr> <tr><td>SOILS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sul Profile Descri Top Depth 0 12 NRCS Hydric</td><td>2:<br/>Dogroup):<br/>Dtion (Describe to<br/>Depth<br/>11<br/>14<br/></td><td>0 the depth needed to document the ind Horizon 1 2 ndicators (check her pipedon istic an Sulfide d Layers ed Below Dark Surface Dark Surface Dark Surface Dark Surface Auck Mineral Bleyed Matrix Redox I Matrix Ifface (LR R, MLRA 149B)</td><td>icator or confirm the<br/>Color ((<br/>10YR<br/>2.5Y</td><td>absence of Indi<br/>Matrix<br/>Moist)<br/>4/1<br/>5/2<br/></td><td>cators.) (Type: C<br/>%<br/>100<br/>100<br/></td><td>econcentration,</td><td>eries Drainage Class:<br/>D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C<br/>Color (Moist)<br/></td><td>Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % %</td><td>rins; Location: PL=Pc<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/></td><td></td><td>Texture           (e.g. clay, sand, loam)           loam  &gt;       <tr tr=""> <t< td=""></t<></tr><tr><td>SOILS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sul Profile Descri Top Depth 0 12 NRCS
Hydric</td><td>2:<br/>Dogroup):<br/>Depth<br/>11<br/>14<br/>14<br/></td><td>0 the depth needed to document the ind Horizon 1 2 ndicators (check he pipedon istic en Sulfide d Layers ed Below Dark Surface Dark Surface Auck Mineral Sleyed Matrix Redox i Matrix Irface (LRR R, MLRA 149B)</td><td>icator or confirm the<br/>Color (I<br/>10YR<br/>2.5Y</td><td>absence of Indi<br/>Matrix<br/>Moist)<br/>4/1<br/>5/2<br/><br/><br/>tors are<br/>2<br/>2<br/>1<br/>1</td><td>cators.) (Type: C<br/>%<br/>100<br/>100<br/></td><td>econcentration<br/></td><td>eries Drainage Class:<br/>D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C<br/>Color (Moist)<br/></td><td>Covered/Coated Sand Gra</td><td>ins; Location: PL=Pc<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Tope<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type</td><td></td><td>Texture           (e.g. clay, sand, loam)           loam  </td></tr><tr><td>SOILS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sul Profile Descri Top Depth 0 12 NRCS Hydric</td><td>2:<br/>Dgroup):<br/>Depth<br/>11<br/>14<br/>14<br/></td><td>0 the depth needed to document the ind Horizon 1 2 ndicators (check he pipedon istic en Sulfide d Layers ed Below Dark Surface Dark Surface Auck Mineral Sleyed Matrix Redox I Matrix Irface (LRR R, MLRA 149B)</td><td>Color (I<br/>10YR<br/>2.5Y</td><td>absence of Indi<br/>Matrix<br/>Moist)<br/>4/1<br/>5/2<br/><br/><br/>tors are<br/>0<br/>1<br/>1<br/>1<br/>1<br/>1<br/>1<br/>1<br/>1<br/>1<br/>1<br/>1<br/>1<br/>1</td><td>cators.) (Type: C<br/>%<br/>100<br/>100<br/></td><td>econcentration</td><td>eries Drainage Class:<br/>D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C<br/>Color (Moist)<br/><br/><br/><br/>w Surface (LRR R, MLRA 149B)<br/>ace (LRR R, MLRA 149B)<br/>Viineral (LRR K, L)<br/>Matrix<br/>x<br/>Irface<br/>Surface<br/>Surface<br/>sions</td><td>Covered/Coated Sand Gra</td><td>ins; Location: PL=Pc<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/></td><td></td><td>Texture           (e.g. clay, sand, loam)           loam  S (LRR K, L, R)</td></tr><tr><td>SOILS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sul Profile Descrip Top Depth 0 12 NRCS Hydric Restrictive Layer (If Observed)</td><td>2:<br/>Dgroup):<br/>Depth<br/>Depth<br/>11<br/>14<br/><br/><br/>Soil Field I<br/>A1- Histosol<br/>A2- Histic E<br/>A3- Black H<br/>A4- Hydroge<br/>A5- Stratifie<br/>A12 - Thick I<br/>S1- Sandy N<br/>S4- Sandy C<br/>S5- Sandy F<br/>S6- Strippec<br/>S7- Dark Su</td><td>0 the depth needed to document the ind Horizon 1 2 ndicators (check he pipedon istic en Sulfide d Layers ed Below Dark Surface Dark Surface Auck Mineral Sleyed Matrix Redox I Matrix Irface (LRR R, MLRA 149B) rock</td><td>Color (I<br/>10YR<br/>2.5Y</td><td>absence of Indi<br/>Matrix<br/>Moist)<br/>4/1<br/>5/2<br/><br/><br/>tors are<br/>0<br/>0<br/>0<br/>0<br/>0<br/>0<br/>0<br/>0<br/>0<br/>0<br/>0<br/>0<br/>0<br/>0<br/>0<br/>0<br/>0<br/>0<br/>0</td><td>cators.) (Type: C<br/>%<br/>100<br/>100<br/><br/><br/><br/><br/>Not prese<br/>S8 - Poly<br/>S9 - Thin<br/>F1 - Loan<br/>F2 - Loan<br/>F3 - Depl<br/>F3 - Depl<br/>F8 - Redo</td><td>eted Dark Sur<br/>y Gleved<br/>eted Dark Sur<br/>x Dark Sur<br/>to Dark Sur<br/>to Dark Sur</td><td>eries Drainage Class:<br/>D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C<br/>Color (Moist)<br/></td><td>Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles % %</td><td>ins: Location: PL=Pc<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/></td><td></td><td>Texture         (e.g. clay, sand, loam)         loam   S (LRR K, L, R)         IS</td></tr><tr><td>SOILS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sul Profile Descri Top Depth 0 12 NRCS Hydric Restrictive Layer (If Observed)</td><td>2:<br/>Dgroup):<br/>Dtion (Describe to<br/>Depth<br/>11<br/>14<br/><br/><br/>Soil Field In<br/>A1- Histosol<br/>A2 - Histose<br/>A3 - Black H<br/>A4 - Hydroge<br/>A3 - Black H<br/>A4 - Hydroge<br/>A5 - Stratifie<br/>A11 - Deplet<br/>A1 - Deplet<br/>A1 - Deplet<br/>A1 - Deplet<br/>S5 - Sandy R<br/>S6 - Strippec<br/>S7 - Dark St</td><td>0 the depth needed to document the ind Horizon 1 2 ndicators (check he pipedon istic en Sulfide d Layers ed Below Dark Surface Dark Surface Auck Mineral Sleyed Matrix Redox I flace (LRR R, MLRA 149B) rock al at 14"</td><td>Color (I<br/>10YR<br/>2.5Y</td><td>absence of Indi<br/>Matrix<br/>Moist)<br/>4/1<br/>5/2<br/><br/><br/>tors are<br/>0<br/>1<br/>1<br/>1<br/>Depth:14</td><td>cators.) (Type: C<br/>%<br/>100<br/>100<br/><br/><br/><br/><br/><br/><br/><br/><br/><br/><br/><br/></td><td>Seconcentration</td><td>eries Drainage Class:<br/>D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C<br/>Color (Moist)<br/></td><td>Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % %</td><td>ins: Location: PL=Pc<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/></td><td>We Lining, M=Matrix)  Location </td><td>Texture         (e.g. clay, sand, loam)         loam   &lt;</td></tr></td></tr> | SOILS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sul Profile Descri Top Depth 0 12 NRCS Hydric                                 | 2:<br>Dogroup):<br>Dtion (Describe to<br>Depth<br>11<br>14<br>   | 0 the depth needed to document the ind Horizon 1 2 ndicators (check her pipedon istic an Sulfide d Layers ed Below Dark Surface Dark Surface Dark Surface Dark Surface Auck Mineral Bleyed Matrix Redox I Matrix Ifface (LR R, MLRA 149B) | icator or confirm the<br>Color ((<br>10YR<br>2.5Y | absence of Indi<br>Matrix<br>Moist)<br>4/1<br>5/2<br>   | cators.) (Type: C<br>%<br>100<br>100<br>   | econcentration, | eries Drainage Class:<br>D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C<br>Color (Moist)<br> | Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % | rins; Location: PL=Pc<br>Type<br>Type<br> |                                | Texture           (e.g. clay, sand, loam)           loam  > <tr tr=""> <t< td=""></t<></tr> <tr><td>SOILS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sul Profile Descri Top Depth 0 12 NRCS Hydric</td><td>2:<br/>Dogroup):<br/>Depth<br/>11<br/>14<br/>14<br/></td><td>0 the depth needed to document the ind Horizon 1 2 ndicators (check he pipedon istic en Sulfide d Layers ed Below Dark Surface Dark Surface Auck Mineral Sleyed Matrix Redox i Matrix Irface (LRR R, MLRA 149B)</td><td>icator or confirm the<br/>Color (I<br/>10YR<br/>2.5Y</td><td>absence of Indi<br/>Matrix<br/>Moist)<br/>4/1<br/>5/2<br/><br/><br/>tors are<br/>2<br/>2<br/>1<br/>1</td><td>cators.) (Type: C<br/>%<br/>100<br/>100<br/></td><td>econcentration<br/></td><td>eries Drainage Class:<br/>D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C<br/>Color (Moist)<br/></td><td>Covered/Coated Sand Gra</td><td>ins; Location:
PL=Pc<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Tope<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type</td><td></td><td>Texture           (e.g. clay, sand, loam)           loam  </td></tr> <tr><td>SOILS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sul Profile Descri Top Depth 0 12 NRCS Hydric</td><td>2:<br/>Dgroup):<br/>Depth<br/>11<br/>14<br/>14<br/></td><td>0 the depth needed to document the ind Horizon 1 2 ndicators (check he pipedon istic en Sulfide d Layers ed Below Dark Surface Dark Surface Auck Mineral Sleyed Matrix Redox I Matrix Irface (LRR R, MLRA 149B)</td><td>Color (I<br/>10YR<br/>2.5Y</td><td>absence of Indi<br/>Matrix<br/>Moist)<br/>4/1<br/>5/2<br/><br/><br/>tors are<br/>0<br/>1<br/>1<br/>1<br/>1<br/>1<br/>1<br/>1<br/>1<br/>1<br/>1<br/>1<br/>1<br/>1</td><td>cators.) (Type: C<br/>%<br/>100<br/>100<br/></td><td>econcentration</td><td>eries Drainage Class:<br/>D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C<br/>Color (Moist)<br/><br/><br/><br/>w Surface (LRR R, MLRA 149B)<br/>ace (LRR R, MLRA 149B)<br/>Viineral (LRR K, L)<br/>Matrix<br/>x<br/>Irface<br/>Surface<br/>Surface<br/>sions</td><td>Covered/Coated Sand Gra</td><td>ins; Location: PL=Pc<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/></td><td></td><td>Texture           (e.g. clay, sand, loam)           loam  S (LRR K, L, R)</td></tr> <tr><td>SOILS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sul Profile Descrip Top Depth 0 12 NRCS Hydric Restrictive Layer (If Observed)</td><td>2:<br/>Dgroup):<br/>Depth<br/>Depth<br/>11<br/>14<br/><br/><br/>Soil Field I<br/>A1- Histosol<br/>A2- Histic E<br/>A3- Black H<br/>A4- Hydroge<br/>A5- Stratifie<br/>A12 - Thick I<br/>S1- Sandy N<br/>S4- Sandy C<br/>S5- Sandy F<br/>S6- Strippec<br/>S7- Dark Su</td><td>0 the depth needed to document the ind Horizon 1 2 ndicators (check he pipedon istic en Sulfide d Layers ed Below Dark Surface Dark Surface Auck Mineral Sleyed Matrix Redox I Matrix Irface (LRR R, MLRA 149B) rock</td><td>Color (I<br/>10YR<br/>2.5Y</td><td>absence of Indi<br/>Matrix<br/>Moist)<br/>4/1<br/>5/2<br/><br/><br/>tors are<br/>0<br/>0<br/>0<br/>0<br/>0<br/>0<br/>0<br/>0<br/>0<br/>0<br/>0<br/>0<br/>0<br/>0<br/>0<br/>0<br/>0<br/>0<br/>0</td><td>cators.) (Type: C<br/>%<br/>100<br/>100<br/><br/><br/><br/><br/>Not prese<br/>S8 - Poly<br/>S9 - Thin<br/>F1 - Loan<br/>F2 - Loan<br/>F3 - Depl<br/>F3 - Depl<br/>F8 - Redo</td><td>eted Dark Sur<br/>y Gleved<br/>eted Dark Sur<br/>x Dark Sur<br/>to Dark Sur<br/>to Dark Sur</td><td>eries Drainage Class:<br/>D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C<br/>Color (Moist)<br/></td><td>Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles % %</td><td>ins: Location: PL=Pc<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/></td><td></td><td>Texture         (e.g. clay, sand, loam)         loam   S (LRR K, L, R)         IS</td></tr> <tr><td>SOILS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sul Profile Descri Top Depth 0 12 NRCS Hydric Restrictive Layer (If Observed)</td><td>2:<br/>Dgroup):<br/>Dtion (Describe to<br/>Depth<br/>11<br/>14<br/><br/><br/>Soil Field In<br/>A1- Histosol<br/>A2 - Histose<br/>A3 - Black H<br/>A4 - Hydroge<br/>A3 - Black H<br/>A4 - Hydroge<br/>A5 - Stratifie<br/>A11 - Deplet<br/>A1 - Deplet<br/>A1 - Deplet<br/>A1 - Deplet<br/>S5 - Sandy R<br/>S6 - Strippec<br/>S7 - Dark St</td><td>0 the depth needed to document the ind Horizon 1 2 ndicators (check he pipedon istic en Sulfide d Layers ed Below Dark Surface Dark Surface Auck Mineral Sleyed Matrix Redox I flace (LRR R, MLRA 149B) rock al at 14"</td><td>Color (I<br/>10YR<br/>2.5Y</td><td>absence of Indi<br/>Matrix<br/>Moist)<br/>4/1<br/>5/2<br/><br/><br/>tors are<br/>0<br/>1<br/>1<br/>1<br/>Depth:14</td><td>cators.) (Type: C<br/>%<br/>100<br/>100<br/><br/><br/><br/><br/><br/><br/><br/><br/><br/><br/><br/></td><td>Seconcentration</td><td>eries Drainage Class:<br/>D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C<br/>Color (Moist)<br/></td><td>Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % %</td><td>ins: Location: PL=Pc<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/></td><td>We Lining, M=Matrix)  Location </td><td>Texture         (e.g. clay, sand, loam)         loam   &lt;</td></tr> | SOILS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sul Profile Descri Top Depth 0 12 NRCS Hydric | 2:<br>Dogroup):<br>Depth<br>11<br>14<br>14<br> | 0 the depth needed to document the ind Horizon 1 2 ndicators (check he pipedon istic en Sulfide d Layers ed Below Dark Surface Dark Surface Auck Mineral Sleyed Matrix Redox i Matrix Irface (LRR R, MLRA 149B) | icator or confirm the<br>Color (I<br>10YR<br>2.5Y | absence of Indi<br>Matrix<br>Moist)<br>4/1<br>5/2<br><br><br>tors are<br>2<br>2<br>1<br>1 | cators.) (Type: C<br>%<br>100<br>100<br> | econcentration<br> | eries Drainage Class:<br>D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C<br>Color (Moist)<br> | Covered/Coated Sand Gra | ins; Location:
PL=Pc<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Tope<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type |  | Texture           (e.g. clay, sand, loam)           loam | SOILS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sul Profile Descri Top Depth 0 12 NRCS Hydric | 2:<br>Dgroup):<br>Depth<br>11<br>14<br>14<br> | 0 the depth needed to document the ind Horizon 1 2 ndicators (check he pipedon istic en Sulfide d Layers ed Below Dark Surface Dark Surface Auck Mineral Sleyed Matrix Redox I Matrix Irface (LRR R, MLRA 149B) | Color (I<br>10YR<br>2.5Y | absence of Indi<br>Matrix<br>Moist)<br>4/1<br>5/2<br><br><br>tors are<br>0<br>1<br>1<br>1<br>1<br>1<br>1<br>1<br>1<br>1<br>1<br>1<br>1<br>1 | cators.) (Type: C<br>%<br>100<br>100<br> | econcentration | eries Drainage Class:<br>D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C<br>Color (Moist)<br><br><br><br>w Surface (LRR R, MLRA 149B)<br>ace (LRR R, MLRA 149B)<br>Viineral (LRR K, L)<br>Matrix<br>x<br>Irface<br>Surface<br>Surface<br>sions | Covered/Coated Sand Gra | ins; Location: PL=Pc<br>Type<br>Type<br> |  | Texture           (e.g. clay, sand, loam)           loam  S (LRR K, L, R) | SOILS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sul Profile Descrip Top Depth 0 12 NRCS Hydric Restrictive Layer (If Observed) | 2:<br>Dgroup):<br>Depth<br>Depth<br>11<br>14<br><br><br>Soil Field I<br>A1- Histosol<br>A2- Histic E<br>A3- Black H<br>A4- Hydroge<br>A5- Stratifie<br>A12 - Thick I<br>S1- Sandy N<br>S4- Sandy C<br>S5- Sandy F<br>S6- Strippec<br>S7- Dark Su | 0 the depth needed to document the ind Horizon 1 2 ndicators (check he pipedon istic en Sulfide d Layers ed Below Dark Surface Dark Surface Auck Mineral Sleyed Matrix Redox I Matrix Irface (LRR R, MLRA 149B) rock | Color (I<br>10YR<br>2.5Y | absence of Indi<br>Matrix<br>Moist)<br>4/1<br>5/2<br><br><br>tors are<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0 | cators.) (Type: C<br>%<br>100<br>100<br><br><br><br><br>Not prese<br>S8 - Poly<br>S9 - Thin<br>F1 - Loan<br>F2 - Loan<br>F3 - Depl<br>F3 - Depl<br>F8 - Redo | eted Dark Sur<br>y Gleved<br>eted Dark Sur<br>x Dark Sur<br>to Dark Sur<br>to Dark Sur | eries Drainage Class:<br>D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C<br>Color (Moist)<br> | Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles % % | ins: Location: PL=Pc<br>Type<br>Type<br> |  | Texture         (e.g. clay, sand, loam)         loam   S (LRR K, L, R)         IS | SOILS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sul Profile Descri Top Depth 0 12 NRCS Hydric Restrictive Layer (If Observed) | 2:<br>Dgroup):<br>Dtion (Describe to<br>Depth<br>11<br>14<br><br><br>Soil Field In<br>A1- Histosol<br>A2 - Histose<br>A3 - Black H<br>A4 - Hydroge<br>A3 - Black H<br>A4 - Hydroge<br>A5 - Stratifie<br>A11 - Deplet<br>A1 - Deplet<br>A1 - Deplet<br>A1 - Deplet<br>S5 - Sandy R<br>S6 - Strippec<br>S7 - Dark St | 0 the depth needed to document the ind Horizon 1 2 ndicators (check he pipedon istic en Sulfide d Layers ed Below Dark Surface Dark Surface Auck Mineral Sleyed Matrix Redox I flace (LRR R, MLRA 149B) rock al at 14" | Color (I<br>10YR<br>2.5Y | absence of Indi<br>Matrix<br>Moist)<br>4/1<br>5/2<br><br><br>tors are<br>0<br>1<br>1<br>1<br>Depth:14 | cators.) (Type: C<br>%<br>100<br>100<br><br><br><br><br><br><br><br><br><br><br><br> | Seconcentration | eries Drainage Class:<br>D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C<br>Color (Moist)<br> | Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % | ins: Location: PL=Pc<br>Type<br>Type<br> | We Lining, M=Matrix)  Location | Texture         (e.g. clay, sand, loam)         loam   < |
|  |  |   |   |  |  |  |   |   |  |   |  
   
  |   |  |   |  |  |  |                    |  |   |  |   | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
  |  |  |   |   |   |  |                    |   |                                   |  |  |   |  |  |  |   
            |  |  |  |   |                                     |   |  |   |  |  |  |   |  |  |  |   |   |  |                                |  
  |   |  |   |   |   |  |                 |  |   |   |                                |  
   |   |  |   |   |   |  |                    |  |                         |  |  |  |   |   |   |                          |   |  |                |   |                         |  |  |   |  |  |  |                          |  |  |  |  |                                     |  |  |   |   |  |  |                          |   |  |                 |  |   |  |                                |  |
| SOILS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sul Profile Descri Top Depth 0 12 NRCS Hydric                                  | 2:<br>Dgroup):<br>Depth<br>11<br>14<br>  | 0 the depth needed to document the ind Horizon 1 2 ndicators (check he pipedon istic en Sulfide d Layers ed Below Dark Surface Dark Surface   | icator or confirm the<br>Color (I<br>10YR<br>2.5Y<br><br><br>ere if indica    | absence of Indi<br>Matrix<br>Moist)<br>4/1<br>5/2<br><br>tors are<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0                                   | cators.) (Type: C<br>%<br>100<br>100<br>   | =Concentration   | eries Drainage Class:<br>D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C<br>Color (Moist)<br><br><br>w Surface (LRR R, MLRA 149B)<br>ace (LRR R, MLRA 149B)<br>Wineral (LRR K, L)<br>Matrix<br>x<br>Irface<br>Surface<br>  | Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles %                                     | ins: Location: PL=Pc<br>Type<br>   | The Lining, M=Matrix)  Location  Location  The Lining, M=Matrix)  The Lining and | Texture           (e.g. clay, sand, loam)           loam  (LRR K, L, R)   
   
   |   |  |   |  |  |  |                    |  |   |  |   | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
   |  |  |   |   |   |  |                    |   |                                   |  |  |   |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |   |                                     |   |  |   |  |  |  |   |  |                                 
  |  |   |   |  |                                |   |   |   
  |   |   |   |  |                 |  |   |   |                                |  |   |  |   |   |   |  |                    |  |                         |  
   |  |  |   |   |   |                          |   |  |                |   |                         |  |  |   |  |  |  |                          |  |  |  |  |                                     |  |  |   |   |  |  |                          |   |  |                 |  |   |  |                                |  |
| SOILS<br>Map Unit Name<br>Taxonomy (Sul<br>Profile Descrip<br>Top<br>Depth<br>0<br>12<br><br><br>NRCS Hydric | 2:<br>Dgroup):<br>Dtion (Describe to<br>Depth<br>11<br>14<br><br>Soil Field In<br>A1- Histosol<br>A2 - Histic E<br>A3 - Black H<br>A4 - Hydrogg<br>A5 - Stratifie<br>A11 - Deplet<br>A12 - Thick I<br>S1 - Sandy M   | 0 the depth needed to document the ind Horizon 1 2 ndicators (check he pipedon istic an Sulfide d Layers ed Below Dark Surface Dark Surface Auck Mineral Evend Matrix   | Color (I<br>10YR<br>2.5Y  | absence of Indi<br>Matrix<br>Moist)<br>4/1<br>5/2<br>  | cators.) (Type: C<br>%<br>100<br>100<br><br><br><br><br><br><br><br><br><br><br><br>   | Seconcentration  | eries Drainage Class:<br>D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C<br>Color (Moist)<br>  | Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles %                                     | ins: Location: PL=Pc<br>Type<br>   |   | Texture           (e.g. clay, sand, loam)           Ioam  (LRR K, L, R)  
   
  |   |  |   |  |  |  |                    |  |   |  |   | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
  |  |  |   |   |   |  |                    |   |                                   |  |  |   |  |  |  |   
            |  |  |  |   |                                     |   |  |   |  |  |  |   |  |  |  |   |   |  |                                |  
  |   |  |   |   |   |  |                 |  |   |   |                                |  
   |   |  |   |   |   |  |                    |  |                         |  |  |  |   |   |   |                          |   |  |                |   |                         |  |  |   |  |  |  |                          |  |  |  |  |                                     |  |  |   |   |  |  |                          |   |  |                 |  |   |  |                                |  |
| SOILS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sul Profile Descri Top Depth 0 12 NRCS Hydric                                  | 2:<br>Dgroup):<br>Dtion (Describe to<br>Depth<br>11<br>14<br><br><br>Soil Field In<br>A1- Histosol<br>A2 - Histose<br>A3 - Black H<br>A4 - Hydroge<br>A3 - Black H<br>A4 - Hydroge<br>A5 - Stratifie<br>A11 - Deplet<br>S1 - Sandy M<br>S4 - Sandy C   | 0 the depth needed to document the ind Horizon 1 2 ndicators (check he pipedon istic en Sulfide d Layers ed Below Dark Surface Dark Surface Auck Mineral Sleyed Matrix Redoy  | icator or confirm the<br>Color (I<br>10YR<br>2.5Y<br><br><br>ere if indica    | absence of Indi<br>Matrix<br>Moist)<br>4/1<br>5/2<br><br>tors are<br>1<br>2<br>1<br>1<br>1<br>1  | eators.) (Type: C<br>%<br>100<br>100<br><br><br><br><br><br><br><br><br><br><br><br>   | seconcentration<br>  | eries Drainage Class:<br>D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C<br>Color (Moist)<br><br><br>w Surface (LRR R, MLRA 149B)<br>ace (LRR R, MLRA 149B)<br>Vineral (LRR K, L)<br>Matrix<br>x<br>urface<br>Surface<br>Surface<br>Surface<br>sions                 | Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles % %                                   | Ins; Location: PL=Pc<br>Type<br>Type<br>I<br>I<br>I<br>I<br>I<br>I<br>I<br>I<br>I<br>I<br>I<br>I<br>I<br>I<br>I<br>I<br>I<br>I<br>I  |   | Texture           (e.g. clay, sand, loam)           Ioam   
   
  |   |  |   |  |  |  |                    |  |   |  |   | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
  |  |  |   |   |   |  |                    |   |                                   |  |  |   |  |  |  |   
            |  |  |  |   |                                     |   |  |   |  |  |  |   |  |  |  |   |   |  |                                |  
  |   |  |   |   |   |  |                 |  |   |   |                                |  
   |   |  |   |   |   |  |                    |  |                         |  |  |  |   |   |   |                          |   |  |                |   |                         |  |  |   |  |  |  |                          |  |  |  |  |                                     |  |  |   |   |  |  |                          |   |  |                 |  |   |  |                                |  |
| SOILS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sul Profile Descri Top Depth 0 12 NRCS Hydric                                  | 2:<br>Dgroup):<br>Dtion (Describe to<br>Depth<br>11<br>14<br><br><br>Soil Field In<br>A1- Histosol<br>A2 - Histic E<br>A3 - Black H<br>A4 - Hydroge<br>A5 - Stratifie<br>A1 - Deplet<br>A1 - Deplet<br>S1 - Sandy R<br>S4 - Sandy C<br>S5 - Sandy R  | 0 the depth needed to document the ind Horizon 1 2 ndicators (check he pipedon istic an Sulfide d Layers ed Below Dark Surface Dark Surface Auck Mineral Sleyed Matrix Redox I Matrix   | ilicator or confirm the<br>Color (I<br>10YR<br>2.5Y                           | absence of Indi<br>Matrix<br>Voist)<br>4/1<br>5/2<br>  | cators.) (Type: O<br>%<br>100<br>100<br>100<br>  | S  | eries Drainage Class:<br>D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C<br>Color (Moist)<br><br><br>w Surface (LRR R, MLRA 149B)<br>aCe (LRR R, MLRA 149B)<br>Viineral (LR R, MLRA 149B)<br>Viineral (LR R, MLRA 149B)<br>Matrix<br>x<br>Irface<br>Surface<br>sions | Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % | rins; Location: PL=PC  | The Lining, M=Matrix)   | Texture           (e.g. clay, sand, loam) <tr td=""> <tr< td=""></tr<></tr> <tr><td>SOILS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sul Profile Descri Top Depth 0 12 NRCS Hydric</td><td>2:<br/>Dogroup):<br/>Dtion (Describe to<br/>Depth<br/>11<br/>14<br/></td><td>0 the depth needed to document the ind Horizon 1 2 ndicators (check her pipedon istic an Sulfide d Layers ed Below Dark Surface Dark Surface Dark Surface Dark Surface Auck Mineral Bleyed Matrix Redox I Matrix Ifface (LR R, MLRA 149B)</td><td>icator or confirm the<br/>Color ((<br/>10YR<br/>2.5Y</td><td>absence of Indi<br/>Matrix<br/>Moist)<br/>4/1<br/>5/2<br/></td><td>cators.) (Type: C<br/>%<br/>100<br/>100<br/></td><td>econcentration,</td><td>eries Drainage Class:<br/>D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C<br/>Color (Moist)<br/></td><td>Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % %</td><td>rins; Location: PL=Pc<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/></td><td></td><td>Texture           (e.g. clay, sand, loam)           loam  &gt;       <tr tr=""> <t< td=""></t<></tr><tr><td>SOILS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sul Profile Descri Top Depth 0 12 NRCS Hydric</td><td>2:<br/>Dogroup):<br/>Depth<br/>11<br/>14<br/>14<br/></td><td>0 the depth needed to document the ind Horizon 1 2 ndicators (check he pipedon istic en Sulfide d Layers ed Below Dark Surface Dark Surface Auck Mineral Sleyed Matrix Redox i Matrix Irface (LRR R, MLRA 149B)</td><td>icator or confirm the<br/>Color (I<br/>10YR<br/>2.5Y</td><td>absence of Indi<br/>Matrix<br/>Moist)<br/>4/1<br/>5/2<br/><br/><br/>tors are<br/>2<br/>2<br/>1<br/>1</td><td>cators.) (Type: C<br/>%<br/>100<br/>100<br/></td><td>econcentration<br/></td><td>eries Drainage Class:<br/>D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C<br/>Color (Moist)<br/></td><td>Covered/Coated Sand Gra</td><td>ins; Location:
PL=Pc<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Tope<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type</td><td></td><td>Texture           (e.g. clay, sand, loam)           loam  </td></tr><tr><td>SOILS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sul Profile Descri Top Depth 0 12 NRCS Hydric</td><td>2:<br/>Dgroup):<br/>Depth<br/>11<br/>14<br/>14<br/></td><td>0 the depth needed to document the ind Horizon 1 2 ndicators (check he pipedon istic en Sulfide d Layers ed Below Dark Surface Dark Surface Auck Mineral Sleyed Matrix Redox I Matrix Irface (LRR R, MLRA 149B)</td><td>Color (I<br/>10YR<br/>2.5Y</td><td>absence of Indi<br/>Matrix<br/>Moist)<br/>4/1<br/>5/2<br/><br/><br/>tors are<br/>0<br/>1<br/>1<br/>1<br/>1<br/>1<br/>1<br/>1<br/>1<br/>1<br/>1<br/>1<br/>1<br/>1</td><td>cators.) (Type: C<br/>%<br/>100<br/>100<br/></td><td>econcentration</td><td>eries Drainage Class:<br/>D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C<br/>Color (Moist)<br/><br/><br/><br/>w Surface (LRR R, MLRA 149B)<br/>ace (LRR R, MLRA 149B)<br/>Viineral (LRR K, L)<br/>Matrix<br/>x<br/>Irface<br/>Surface<br/>Surface<br/>sions</td><td>Covered/Coated Sand Gra</td><td>ins; Location: PL=Pc<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/></td><td></td><td>Texture           (e.g. clay, sand, loam)           loam  S (LRR K, L, R)</td></tr><tr><td>SOILS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sul Profile Descrip Top Depth 0 12 NRCS Hydric Restrictive Layer (If Observed)</td><td>2:<br/>Dgroup):<br/>Depth<br/>Depth<br/>11<br/>14<br/><br/><br/>Soil Field I<br/>A1- Histosol<br/>A2- Histic E<br/>A3- Black H<br/>A4- Hydroge<br/>A5- Stratifie<br/>A12 - Thick I<br/>S1- Sandy N<br/>S4- Sandy C<br/>S5- Sandy F<br/>S6- Strippec<br/>S7- Dark Su</td><td>0 the depth needed to document the ind Horizon 1 2 ndicators (check he pipedon istic en Sulfide d Layers ed Below Dark Surface Dark Surface Auck Mineral Sleyed Matrix Redox I Matrix Irface (LRR R, MLRA 149B) rock</td><td>Color (I<br/>10YR<br/>2.5Y</td><td>absence of Indi<br/>Matrix<br/>Moist)<br/>4/1<br/>5/2<br/><br/><br/>tors are<br/>0<br/>0<br/>0<br/>0<br/>0<br/>0<br/>0<br/>0<br/>0<br/>0<br/>0<br/>0<br/>0<br/>0<br/>0<br/>0<br/>0<br/>0<br/>0</td><td>cators.) (Type: C<br/>%<br/>100<br/>100<br/><br/><br/><br/><br/>Not prese<br/>S8 - Poly<br/>S9 - Thin<br/>F1 - Loan<br/>F2 - Loan<br/>F3 - Depl<br/>F3 - Depl<br/>F8 - Redo</td><td>eted Dark Sur<br/>y Gleved<br/>eted Dark Sur<br/>x Dark Sur<br/>to Dark Sur<br/>to Dark Sur</td><td>eries Drainage Class:<br/>D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C<br/>Color (Moist)<br/></td><td>Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles % %</td><td>ins: Location: PL=Pc<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/></td><td></td><td>Texture         (e.g. clay, sand, loam)         loam   S (LRR K, L, R)         IS</td></tr><tr><td>SOILS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sul Profile Descri Top Depth 0 12 NRCS Hydric Restrictive Layer (If Observed)</td><td>2:<br/>Dgroup):<br/>Dtion (Describe to<br/>Depth<br/>11<br/>14<br/><br/><br/>Soil Field In<br/>A1- Histosol<br/>A2 - Histose<br/>A3 - Black H<br/>A4 - Hydroge<br/>A3 - Black H<br/>A4 - Hydroge<br/>A5 - Stratifie<br/>A11 - Deplet<br/>A1 - Deplet<br/>A1 - Deplet<br/>A1 - Deplet<br/>S5 - Sandy R<br/>S6 - Strippec<br/>S7 - Dark St</td><td>0 the depth needed to document the ind Horizon 1 2 ndicators (check he pipedon istic en Sulfide d Layers ed Below Dark Surface Dark Surface Auck Mineral Sleyed Matrix Redox I flace (LRR R, MLRA 149B) rock al at 14"</td><td>Color (I<br/>10YR<br/>2.5Y</td><td>absence of Indi<br/>Matrix<br/>Moist)<br/>4/1<br/>5/2<br/><br/><br/>tors are<br/>0<br/>1<br/>1<br/>1<br/>Depth:14</td><td>cators.) (Type: C<br/>%<br/>100<br/>100<br/><br/><br/><br/><br/><br/><br/><br/><br/><br/><br/><br/></td><td>Seconcentration</td><td>eries Drainage Class:<br/>D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C<br/>Color (Moist)<br/></td><td>Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % %</td><td>ins: Location: PL=Pc<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/></td><td>We Lining, M=Matrix)  Location </td><td>Texture         (e.g. clay, sand, loam)         loam   &lt;</td></tr></td></tr>   
   | SOILS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sul Profile Descri Top Depth 0 12 NRCS Hydric | 2:<br>Dogroup):<br>Dtion (Describe to<br>Depth<br>11<br>14<br> | 0 the depth needed to document the ind Horizon 1 2 ndicators (check her pipedon istic an Sulfide d Layers ed Below Dark Surface Dark Surface Dark Surface Dark Surface Auck Mineral Bleyed Matrix Redox I Matrix Ifface (LR R, MLRA 149B) | icator or confirm the<br>Color ((<br>10YR<br>2.5Y                          | absence of Indi<br>Matrix<br>Moist)<br>4/1<br>5/2<br>  | cators.) (Type: C<br>%<br>100<br>100<br> | econcentration,    | eries Drainage Class:<br>D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C<br>Color (Moist)<br>   | Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % | rins; Location: PL=Pc<br>Type<br>Type<br>  |   | Texture           (e.g. clay, sand, loam)           loam  > <tr tr=""> <t<
td=""></t<></tr> <tr><td>SOILS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sul Profile Descri Top Depth 0 12 NRCS Hydric</td><td>2:<br/>Dogroup):<br/>Depth<br/>11<br/>14<br/>14<br/></td><td>0 the depth needed to document the ind Horizon 1 2 ndicators (check he pipedon istic en Sulfide d Layers ed Below Dark Surface Dark Surface Auck Mineral Sleyed Matrix Redox i Matrix Irface (LRR R, MLRA 149B)</td><td>icator or confirm the<br/>Color (I<br/>10YR<br/>2.5Y</td><td>absence of Indi<br/>Matrix<br/>Moist)<br/>4/1<br/>5/2<br/><br/><br/>tors are<br/>2<br/>2<br/>1<br/>1</td><td>cators.) (Type: C<br/>%<br/>100<br/>100<br/></td><td>econcentration<br/></td><td>eries Drainage Class:<br/>D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C<br/>Color (Moist)<br/></td><td>Covered/Coated Sand Gra</td><td>ins; Location: PL=Pc<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Tope<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type</td><td></td><td>Texture           (e.g. clay, sand, loam)           loam  </td></tr> <tr><td>SOILS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sul Profile Descri Top Depth 0 12 NRCS Hydric</td><td>2:<br/>Dgroup):<br/>Depth<br/>11<br/>14<br/>14<br/></td><td>0 the depth needed to document the ind Horizon 1 2 ndicators (check he pipedon istic en Sulfide d Layers ed Below Dark Surface Dark Surface Auck Mineral Sleyed Matrix Redox I Matrix Irface (LRR R, MLRA 149B)</td><td>Color (I<br/>10YR<br/>2.5Y</td><td>absence of Indi<br/>Matrix<br/>Moist)<br/>4/1<br/>5/2<br/><br/><br/>tors are<br/>0<br/>1<br/>1<br/>1<br/>1<br/>1<br/>1<br/>1<br/>1<br/>1<br/>1<br/>1<br/>1<br/>1</td><td>cators.) (Type: C<br/>%<br/>100<br/>100<br/></td><td>econcentration</td><td>eries Drainage Class:<br/>D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C<br/>Color (Moist)<br/><br/><br/><br/>w Surface (LRR R, MLRA 149B)<br/>ace (LRR R, MLRA 149B)<br/>Viineral (LRR K, L)<br/>Matrix<br/>x<br/>Irface<br/>Surface<br/>Surface<br/>sions</td><td>Covered/Coated Sand Gra</td><td>ins; Location: PL=Pc<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/></td><td></td><td>Texture           (e.g. clay, sand, loam)           loam  S (LRR K, L, R)</td></tr> <tr><td>SOILS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sul Profile Descrip Top Depth 0 12 NRCS Hydric Restrictive Layer (If Observed)</td><td>2:<br/>Dgroup):<br/>Depth<br/>Depth<br/>11<br/>14<br/><br/><br/>Soil Field I<br/>A1- Histosol<br/>A2- Histic E<br/>A3- Black H<br/>A4- Hydroge<br/>A5- Stratifie<br/>A12 - Thick I<br/>S1- Sandy N<br/>S4- Sandy C<br/>S5- Sandy F<br/>S6- Strippec<br/>S7- Dark Su</td><td>0 the depth needed to document the ind Horizon 1 2 ndicators (check he pipedon istic en Sulfide d Layers ed Below Dark Surface Dark Surface Auck Mineral Sleyed Matrix Redox I Matrix Irface (LRR R, MLRA 149B) rock</td><td>Color (I<br/>10YR<br/>2.5Y</td><td>absence of Indi<br/>Matrix<br/>Moist)<br/>4/1<br/>5/2<br/><br/><br/>tors are<br/>0<br/>0<br/>0<br/>0<br/>0<br/>0<br/>0<br/>0<br/>0<br/>0<br/>0<br/>0<br/>0<br/>0<br/>0<br/>0<br/>0<br/>0<br/>0</td><td>cators.) (Type: C<br/>%<br/>100<br/>100<br/><br/><br/><br/><br/>Not prese<br/>S8 - Poly<br/>S9 - Thin<br/>F1 - Loan<br/>F2 - Loan<br/>F3 - Depl<br/>F3 - Depl<br/>F8 - Redo</td><td>eted Dark Sur<br/>y Gleved<br/>eted Dark Sur<br/>x Dark Sur<br/>to Dark Sur<br/>to Dark Sur</td><td>eries Drainage Class:<br/>D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C<br/>Color (Moist)<br/></td><td>Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles % %</td><td>ins: Location: PL=Pc<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/></td><td></td><td>Texture         (e.g. clay, sand, loam)         loam   S (LRR K, L, R)         IS</td></tr> <tr><td>SOILS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sul Profile Descri Top Depth 0 12 NRCS Hydric Restrictive Layer (If Observed)</td><td>2:<br/>Dgroup):<br/>Dtion (Describe to<br/>Depth<br/>11<br/>14<br/><br/><br/>Soil Field In<br/>A1- Histosol<br/>A2 - Histose<br/>A3 - Black H<br/>A4 - Hydroge<br/>A3 - Black H<br/>A4 - Hydroge<br/>A5 - Stratifie<br/>A11 - Deplet<br/>A1 - Deplet<br/>A1 - Deplet<br/>A1 - Deplet<br/>S5 - Sandy R<br/>S6 - Strippec<br/>S7 - Dark St</td><td>0 the depth needed to document the ind Horizon 1 2 ndicators (check he pipedon istic en Sulfide d Layers ed Below Dark Surface Dark Surface Auck Mineral Sleyed Matrix Redox I flace (LRR R, MLRA 149B) rock al at 14"</td><td>Color (I<br/>10YR<br/>2.5Y</td><td>absence of Indi<br/>Matrix<br/>Moist)<br/>4/1<br/>5/2<br/><br/><br/>tors are<br/>0<br/>1<br/>1<br/>1<br/>Depth:14</td><td>cators.) (Type: C<br/>%<br/>100<br/>100<br/><br/><br/><br/><br/><br/><br/><br/><br/><br/><br/><br/></td><td>Seconcentration</td><td>eries Drainage Class:<br/>D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C<br/>Color (Moist)<br/></td><td>Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % %</td><td>ins: Location: PL=Pc<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/></td><td>We Lining, M=Matrix)  Location </td><td>Texture         (e.g. clay, sand, loam)         loam   &lt;</td></tr> | SOILS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sul Profile Descri Top Depth 0 12 NRCS Hydric                                  | 2:<br>Dogroup):<br>Depth<br>11<br>14<br>14<br>   | 0 the depth needed to document the ind Horizon 1 2 ndicators (check he pipedon istic en Sulfide d Layers ed Below Dark Surface Dark Surface Auck Mineral Sleyed Matrix Redox i Matrix Irface (LRR R, MLRA 149B) | icator or confirm the<br>Color (I<br>10YR<br>2.5Y | absence of Indi<br>Matrix<br>Moist)<br>4/1<br>5/2<br><br><br>tors are<br>2<br>2<br>1<br>1   | cators.) (Type: C<br>%<br>100<br>100<br>   | econcentration<br> | eries Drainage Class:<br>D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C<br>Color (Moist)<br>  | Covered/Coated Sand Gra           | ins; Location:
PL=Pc<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Tope<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type |  | Texture           (e.g. clay, sand, loam)           loam  | SOILS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sul Profile Descri Top Depth 0 12 NRCS Hydric                                  | 2:<br>Dgroup):<br>Depth<br>11<br>14<br>14<br>  | 0 the depth needed to document the ind Horizon 1 2 ndicators (check he pipedon istic en Sulfide d Layers ed Below Dark Surface Dark Surface Auck Mineral Sleyed Matrix Redox I Matrix Irface (LRR R, MLRA 149B)      | Color (I<br>10YR<br>2.5Y   | absence of Indi<br>Matrix<br>Moist)<br>4/1<br>5/2<br><br><br>tors are<br>0<br>1<br>1<br>1<br>1<br>1<br>1<br>1<br>1<br>1<br>1<br>1<br>1<br>1                          | cators.) (Type: C<br>%<br>100<br>100<br>   | econcentration   | eries Drainage Class:<br>D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C<br>Color (Moist)<br><br><br><br>w Surface (LRR R, MLRA 149B)<br>ace (LRR R, MLRA 149B)<br>Viineral (LRR K, L)<br>Matrix<br>x<br>Irface<br>Surface<br>Surface<br>sions       | Covered/Coated Sand Gra             | ins; Location: PL=Pc<br>Type<br>Type<br>  |  | Texture           (e.g. clay, sand, loam)           loam  S (LRR K, L, R)               | SOILS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sul Profile Descrip Top Depth 0 12 NRCS Hydric Restrictive Layer (If Observed) | 2:<br>Dgroup):<br>Depth<br>Depth<br>11<br>14<br><br><br>Soil Field I<br>A1- Histosol<br>A2- Histic E<br>A3- Black H<br>A4- Hydroge<br>A5- Stratifie<br>A12 - Thick I<br>S1- Sandy N<br>S4- Sandy C<br>S5- Sandy F<br>S6- Strippec<br>S7- Dark Su   | 0 the depth needed to document the ind Horizon 1 2 ndicators (check he pipedon istic en Sulfide d Layers ed Below Dark Surface Dark Surface Auck Mineral Sleyed Matrix Redox I Matrix Irface (LRR R, MLRA 149B) rock   | Color (I<br>10YR<br>2.5Y                            | absence of Indi<br>Matrix<br>Moist)<br>4/1<br>5/2<br><br><br>tors are<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0 | cators.) (Type: C<br>%<br>100<br>100<br><br><br><br><br>Not prese<br>S8 - Poly<br>S9 - Thin<br>F1 - Loan<br>F2 - Loan<br>F3 - Depl<br>F3 - Depl<br>F8 - Redo | eted Dark Sur<br>y Gleved<br>eted Dark Sur<br>x Dark Sur<br>to Dark Sur<br>to Dark Sur | eries Drainage Class:<br>D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C<br>Color (Moist)<br>  | Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles % %                                   | ins: Location: PL=Pc<br>Type<br>Type<br> |                                | Texture         (e.g. clay, sand, loam)         loam   S (LRR K, L, R)         IS   
   | SOILS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sul Profile Descri Top Depth 0 12 NRCS Hydric Restrictive Layer (If Observed) | 2:<br>Dgroup):<br>Dtion (Describe to<br>Depth<br>11<br>14<br><br><br>Soil Field In<br>A1- Histosol<br>A2 - Histose<br>A3 - Black H<br>A4 - Hydroge<br>A3 - Black H<br>A4 - Hydroge<br>A5 - Stratifie<br>A11 - Deplet<br>A1 - Deplet<br>A1 - Deplet<br>A1 - Deplet<br>S5 - Sandy R<br>S6 - Strippec<br>S7 - Dark St | 0 the depth needed to document the ind Horizon 1 2 ndicators (check he pipedon istic en Sulfide d Layers ed Below Dark Surface Dark Surface Auck Mineral Sleyed Matrix Redox I flace (LRR R, MLRA 149B) rock al at 14"                    | Color (I<br>10YR<br>2.5Y                          | absence of Indi<br>Matrix<br>Moist)<br>4/1<br>5/2<br><br><br>tors are<br>0<br>1<br>1<br>1<br>Depth:14 | cators.) (Type: C<br>%<br>100<br>100<br><br><br><br><br><br><br><br><br><br><br><br> | Seconcentration | eries Drainage Class:<br>D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C<br>Color (Moist)<br> | Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % | ins: Location: PL=Pc<br>Type<br>Type<br>  | We Lining, M=Matrix)  Location | Texture         (e.g. clay, sand, loam)         loam   <  
  |   |  |   |   |   |  |                    |  |                         |  |  |  |   |   |   |                          |   |  |                |   |                         |  |  |   |  |  |  |                          |  |  |  |  |                                     |  |  |   |   |  
   |  |                          |   |  |                 |  |   |  |                                |  |
|  |  |   |   |  |  |  |   |   |  |   |  
   
  |   |  |   |  |  |  |                    |  |   |  |   | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
  |  |  |   |   |   |  |                    |   |                                   |  |  |   |  |  |  |   
            |  |  |  |   |                                     |   |  |   |  |  |  |   |  |  |  |   |   |  |                                |  
  |   |  |   |   |   |  |                 |  |   |   |                                |  
   |   |  |   |   |   |  |                    |  |                         |  |  |  |   |   |   |                          |   |  |                |   |                         |  |  |   |  |  |  |                          |  |  |  |  |                                     |  |  |   |   |  |  |                          |   |  |                 |  |   |  |                                |  |
| SOILS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sul Profile Descri Top Depth 0 12 NRCS Hydric                                  | 2:<br>Dogroup):<br>Dtion (Describe to<br>Depth<br>11<br>14<br>   | 0 the depth needed to document the ind Horizon 1 2 ndicators (check her pipedon istic an Sulfide d Layers ed Below Dark Surface Dark Surface Dark Surface Dark Surface Auck Mineral Bleyed Matrix Redox I Matrix Ifface (LR R, MLRA 149B) | icator or confirm the<br>Color ((<br>10YR<br>2.5Y                             | absence of Indi<br>Matrix<br>Moist)<br>4/1<br>5/2<br>  | cators.) (Type: C<br>%<br>100<br>100<br>   | econcentration,  | eries Drainage Class:<br>D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C<br>Color (Moist)<br>  | Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % | rins; Location: PL=Pc<br>Type<br>Type<br>  |   | Texture           (e.g. clay, sand, loam)           loam  > <tr tr=""> <t< td=""></t<></tr> <tr><td>SOILS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sul Profile Descri Top Depth 0 12 NRCS Hydric</td><td>2:<br/>Dogroup):<br/>Depth<br/>11<br/>14<br/>14<br/></td><td>0 the depth needed to document the ind Horizon 1 2 ndicators (check he pipedon istic en Sulfide d Layers ed Below Dark Surface Dark Surface Auck Mineral Sleyed Matrix Redox i Matrix Irface (LRR R, MLRA 149B)</td><td>icator or confirm the<br/>Color (I<br/>10YR<br/>2.5Y</td><td>absence of Indi<br/>Matrix<br/>Moist)<br/>4/1<br/>5/2<br/><br/><br/>tors are<br/>2<br/>2<br/>1<br/>1</td><td>cators.) (Type: C<br/>%<br/>100<br/>100<br/></td><td>econcentration<br/></td><td>eries Drainage Class:<br/>D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C<br/>Color (Moist)<br/></td><td>Covered/Coated Sand Gra</td><td>ins; Location: PL=Pc<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Tope<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/>Type</td><td></td><td>Texture           (e.g. clay, sand, loam)           loam  </td></tr> <tr><td>SOILS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sul Profile Descri Top Depth 0 12 NRCS Hydric</td><td>2:<br/>Dgroup):<br/>Depth<br/>11<br/>14<br/>14<br/></td><td>0 the depth needed to document the ind Horizon 1 2 ndicators (check he pipedon istic en Sulfide d Layers ed Below Dark
Surface Dark Surface Auck Mineral Sleyed Matrix Redox I Matrix Irface (LRR R, MLRA 149B)</td><td>Color (I<br/>10YR<br/>2.5Y</td><td>absence of Indi<br/>Matrix<br/>Moist)<br/>4/1<br/>5/2<br/><br/><br/>tors are<br/>0<br/>1<br/>1<br/>1<br/>1<br/>1<br/>1<br/>1<br/>1<br/>1<br/>1<br/>1<br/>1<br/>1</td><td>cators.) (Type: C<br/>%<br/>100<br/>100<br/></td><td>econcentration</td><td>eries Drainage Class:<br/>D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C<br/>Color (Moist)<br/><br/><br/><br/>w Surface (LRR R, MLRA 149B)<br/>ace (LRR R, MLRA 149B)<br/>Viineral (LRR K, L)<br/>Matrix<br/>x<br/>Irface<br/>Surface<br/>Surface<br/>sions</td><td>Covered/Coated Sand Gra</td><td>ins; Location: PL=Pc<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/></td><td></td><td>Texture           (e.g. clay, sand, loam)           loam  S (LRR K, L, R)</td></tr> <tr><td>SOILS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sul Profile Descrip Top Depth 0 12 NRCS Hydric Restrictive Layer (If Observed)</td><td>2:<br/>Dgroup):<br/>Depth<br/>Depth<br/>11<br/>14<br/><br/><br/>Soil Field I<br/>A1- Histosol<br/>A2- Histic E<br/>A3- Black H<br/>A4- Hydroge<br/>A5- Stratifie<br/>A12 - Thick I<br/>S1- Sandy N<br/>S4- Sandy C<br/>S5- Sandy F<br/>S6- Strippec<br/>S7- Dark Su</td><td>0 the depth needed to document the ind Horizon 1 2 ndicators (check he pipedon istic en Sulfide d Layers ed Below Dark Surface Dark Surface Auck Mineral Sleyed Matrix Redox I Matrix Irface (LRR R, MLRA 149B) rock</td><td>Color (I<br/>10YR<br/>2.5Y</td><td>absence of Indi<br/>Matrix<br/>Moist)<br/>4/1<br/>5/2<br/><br/><br/>tors are<br/>0<br/>0<br/>0<br/>0<br/>0<br/>0<br/>0<br/>0<br/>0<br/>0<br/>0<br/>0<br/>0<br/>0<br/>0<br/>0<br/>0<br/>0<br/>0</td><td>cators.) (Type: C<br/>%<br/>100<br/>100<br/><br/><br/><br/><br/>Not prese<br/>S8 - Poly<br/>S9 - Thin<br/>F1 - Loan<br/>F2 - Loan<br/>F3 - Depl<br/>F3 - Depl<br/>F8 - Redo</td><td>eted Dark Sur<br/>y Gleved<br/>eted Dark Sur<br/>x Dark Sur<br/>to Dark Sur<br/>to Dark Sur</td><td>eries Drainage Class:<br/>D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C<br/>Color (Moist)<br/></td><td>Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles % %</td><td>ins: Location: PL=Pc<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/></td><td></td><td>Texture         (e.g. clay, sand, loam)         loam   S (LRR K, L, R)         IS</td></tr> <tr><td>SOILS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sul Profile Descri Top Depth 0 12 NRCS Hydric Restrictive Layer (If Observed)</td><td>2:<br/>Dgroup):<br/>Dtion (Describe to<br/>Depth<br/>11<br/>14<br/><br/><br/>Soil Field In<br/>A1- Histosol<br/>A2 - Histose<br/>A3 - Black H<br/>A4 - Hydroge<br/>A3 - Black H<br/>A4 - Hydroge<br/>A5 - Stratifie<br/>A11 - Deplet<br/>A1 - Deplet<br/>A1 - Deplet<br/>A1 - Deplet<br/>S5 - Sandy R<br/>S6 - Strippec<br/>S7 - Dark St</td><td>0 the depth needed to document the ind Horizon 1 2 ndicators (check he pipedon istic en Sulfide d Layers ed Below Dark Surface Dark Surface Auck Mineral Sleyed Matrix Redox I flace (LRR R, MLRA 149B) rock al at 14"</td><td>Color (I<br/>10YR<br/>2.5Y</td><td>absence of Indi<br/>Matrix<br/>Moist)<br/>4/1<br/>5/2<br/><br/><br/>tors are<br/>0<br/>1<br/>1<br/>1<br/>Depth:14</td><td>cators.) (Type: C<br/>%<br/>100<br/>100<br/><br/><br/><br/><br/><br/><br/><br/><br/><br/><br/><br/></td><td>Seconcentration</td><td>eries Drainage Class:<br/>D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C<br/>Color (Moist)<br/></td><td>Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % %</td><td>ins: Location: PL=Pc<br/>Type<br/>Type<br/></td><td>We Lining, M=Matrix)  Location </td><td>Texture         (e.g. clay, sand, loam)         loam   &lt;</td></tr>  
   | SOILS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sul Profile Descri Top Depth 0 12 NRCS Hydric | 2:<br>Dogroup):<br>Depth<br>11<br>14<br>14<br>                 | 0 the depth needed to document the ind Horizon 1 2 ndicators (check he pipedon istic en Sulfide d Layers ed Below Dark Surface Dark Surface Auck Mineral Sleyed Matrix Redox i Matrix Irface (LRR R, MLRA 149B)                           | icator or confirm the<br>Color (I<br>10YR<br>2.5Y                          | absence of Indi<br>Matrix<br>Moist)<br>4/1<br>5/2<br><br><br>tors are<br>2<br>2<br>1<br>1  | cators.) (Type: C<br>%<br>100<br>100<br> | econcentration<br> | eries Drainage Class:<br>D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C<br>Color (Moist)<br>   | Covered/Coated Sand Gra   | ins; Location: PL=Pc<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Tope<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type |   | Texture           (e.g. clay, sand, loam)           loam   
   | SOILS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sul Profile Descri Top Depth 0 12 NRCS Hydric                                  | 2:<br>Dgroup):<br>Depth<br>11<br>14<br>14<br>  | 0 the depth needed to document the ind Horizon 1 2 ndicators (check he pipedon istic en Sulfide d Layers ed Below Dark Surface Dark Surface Auck Mineral Sleyed Matrix Redox I Matrix Irface (LRR R, MLRA 149B) | Color (I<br>10YR<br>2.5Y                          | absence of Indi<br>Matrix<br>Moist)<br>4/1<br>5/2<br><br><br>tors are<br>0<br>1<br>1<br>1<br>1<br>1<br>1<br>1<br>1<br>1<br>1<br>1<br>1<br>1 | cators.) (Type: C<br>%<br>100<br>100<br>   | econcentration     | eries Drainage Class:<br>D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C<br>Color (Moist)<br><br><br><br>w Surface (LRR R, MLRA 149B)<br>ace (LRR R, MLRA 149B)<br>Viineral (LRR K, L)<br>Matrix<br>x<br>Irface<br>Surface<br>Surface<br>sions | Covered/Coated Sand Gra           | ins; Location: PL=Pc<br>Type<br>Type<br>   |  | Texture           (e.g. clay, sand, loam)           loam  S (LRR K, L, R) | SOILS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sul Profile Descrip Top Depth 0 12 NRCS Hydric Restrictive Layer (If Observed) | 2:<br>Dgroup):<br>Depth<br>Depth<br>11<br>14<br><br><br>Soil Field I<br>A1- Histosol<br>A2- Histic E<br>A3- Black H<br>A4- Hydroge<br>A5- Stratifie<br>A12 - Thick I<br>S1- Sandy N<br>S4- Sandy C<br>S5- Sandy F<br>S6- Strippec<br>S7- Dark Su     | 0 the depth needed to document the ind Horizon 1 2 ndicators (check he pipedon istic en Sulfide d Layers ed Below Dark Surface Dark Surface Auck Mineral Sleyed Matrix Redox I Matrix Irface (LRR R, MLRA 149B) rock | Color (I<br>10YR<br>2.5Y                                     
             | absence of Indi<br>Matrix<br>Moist)<br>4/1<br>5/2<br><br><br>tors are<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0 | cators.) (Type: C<br>%<br>100<br>100<br><br><br><br><br>Not prese<br>S8 - Poly<br>S9 - Thin<br>F1 - Loan<br>F2 - Loan<br>F3 - Depl<br>F3 - Depl<br>F8 - Redo | eted Dark Sur<br>y Gleved<br>eted Dark Sur<br>x Dark Sur<br>to Dark Sur<br>to Dark Sur | eries Drainage Class:<br>D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C<br>Color (Moist)<br>  | Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles % % | ins: Location: PL=Pc<br>Type<br>Type<br>  |  | Texture         (e.g. clay, sand, loam)         loam   S (LRR K, L, R)         IS | SOILS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sul Profile Descri Top Depth 0 12 NRCS Hydric Restrictive Layer (If Observed)  | 2:<br>Dgroup):<br>Dtion (Describe to<br>Depth<br>11<br>14<br><br><br>Soil Field In<br>A1- Histosol<br>A2 - Histose<br>A3 - Black H<br>A4 - Hydroge<br>A3 - Black H<br>A4 - Hydroge<br>A5 - Stratifie<br>A11 - Deplet<br>A1 - Deplet<br>A1 - Deplet<br>A1 - Deplet<br>S5 - Sandy R<br>S6 - Strippec<br>S7 - Dark St | 0 the depth needed to document the ind Horizon 1 2 ndicators (check he pipedon istic en Sulfide d Layers ed Below Dark Surface Dark Surface Auck Mineral Sleyed Matrix Redox I flace (LRR R, MLRA 149B) rock al at 14" | Color (I<br>10YR<br>2.5Y                            | absence of Indi<br>Matrix<br>Moist)<br>4/1<br>5/2<br><br><br>tors are<br>0<br>1<br>1<br>1<br>Depth:14  | cators.) (Type: C<br>%<br>100<br>100<br><br><br><br><br><br><br><br><br><br><br><br>   | Seconcentration  | eries Drainage Class:<br>D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C<br>Color (Moist)<br>  | Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % | ins: Location: PL=Pc<br>Type<br>Type<br> | We Lining, M=Matrix)  Location | Texture         (e.g. clay, sand, loam)         loam   <  
   |   |  |   |   |   |  |                 |  |   |   |                                | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
  |   |  |   |   |   |  |                    |  |                         |  |  |  |   |   |   |                          |   |  |                |   |                         |  |  |   |  |  |  |                          |  |  |  |  |                                     |  |  |   |   |  |  |                          |   |  |                 |  |   |  |                                |  |
|  |  |   |   |  |  |  |   |   |  |   |  
   
  |   |  |   |  |  |  |                    |  |   |  |   | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
  |  |  |   |   |   |  |                    |   |                                   |  |  |   |  |  |  |   
            |  |  |  |   |                                     |   |  |   |  |  |  |   |  |  |  |   |   |  |                                |  
  |   |  |   |   |   |  |                 |  |   |   |                                |  
   |   |  |   |   |   |  |                    |  |                         |  |  |  |   |   |   |                          |   |  |                |   |                         |  |  |   |  |  |  |                          |  |  |  |  |                                     |  |  |   |   |  |  |                          |   |  |                 |  |   |  |                                |  |
| SOILS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sul Profile Descri Top Depth 0 12 NRCS Hydric                                  | 2:<br>Dogroup):<br>Depth<br>11<br>14<br>14<br>   | 0 the depth needed to document the ind Horizon 1 2 ndicators (check he pipedon istic en Sulfide d Layers ed Below Dark Surface Dark Surface Auck Mineral Sleyed Matrix Redox i Matrix Irface (LRR R, MLRA 149B)                           | icator or confirm the<br>Color (I<br>10YR<br>2.5Y                             | absence of Indi<br>Matrix<br>Moist)<br>4/1<br>5/2<br><br><br>tors are<br>2<br>2<br>1<br>1  | cators.) (Type: C<br>%<br>100<br>100<br>   | econcentration<br>   | eries Drainage Class:<br>D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C<br>Color (Moist)<br>  | Covered/Coated Sand Gra   | ins; Location: PL=Pc<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Tope<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type<br>Type |   | Texture           (e.g. clay, sand, loam)           loam   
   
  |   |  |   |  |  |  |                    |  |   |  |   | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
  |  |  |   |   |   |  |                    |   |                                   |  |  |   |  |  |  |   
            |  |  |  |   |                                     |   |  |   |  |  |  |   |  |  |  |   |   |  |                                |  
  |   |  |   |   |   |  |                 |  |   |   |                                |  
   |   |  |   |   |   |  |                    |  |                         |  |  |  |   |   |   |                          |   |  |                |   |                         |  |  |   |  |  |  |                          |  |  |  |  |                                     |  |  |   |   |  |  |                          |   |  |                 |  |   |  |                                |  |
| SOILS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sul Profile Descri Top Depth 0 12 NRCS Hydric                                  | 2:<br>Dgroup):<br>Depth<br>11<br>14<br>14<br>  | 0 the depth needed to document the ind Horizon 1 2 ndicators (check he pipedon istic en Sulfide d Layers ed Below Dark Surface Dark Surface Auck Mineral Sleyed Matrix Redox I Matrix Irface (LRR R, MLRA 149B)                           | Color (I<br>10YR<br>2.5Y  | absence of Indi<br>Matrix<br>Moist)<br>4/1<br>5/2<br><br><br>tors are<br>0<br>1<br>1<br>1<br>1<br>1<br>1<br>1<br>1<br>1<br>1<br>1<br>1<br>1                          | cators.) (Type: C<br>%<br>100<br>100<br>   | econcentration   | eries Drainage Class:<br>D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C<br>Color (Moist)<br><br><br><br>w Surface (LRR R, MLRA 149B)<br>ace (LRR R, MLRA 149B)<br>Viineral (LRR K, L)<br>Matrix<br>x<br>Irface<br>Surface<br>Surface<br>sions                       | Covered/Coated Sand Gra   | ins; Location: PL=Pc<br>Type<br>Type<br>   |   | Texture           (e.g. clay, sand, loam)           loam  S (LRR K, L, R)  
   
  |   |  |   |  |  |  |                    |  |   |  |   | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
  |  |  |   |   |   |  |                    |   |                                   |  |  |   |  |  |  |   
            |  |  |  |   |                                     |   |  |   |  |  |  |   |  |  |  |   |   |  |                                |  
  |   |  |   |   |   |  |                 |  |   |   |                                |  
   |   |  |   |   |   |  |                    |  |                         |  |  |  |   |   |   |                          |   |  |                |   |                         |  |  |   |  |  |  |                          |  |  |  |  |                                     |  |  |   |   |  |  |                          |   |  |                 |  |   |  |                                |  |
| SOILS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sul Profile Descrip Top Depth 0 12 NRCS Hydric Restrictive Layer (If Observed) | 2:<br>Dgroup):<br>Depth<br>Depth<br>11<br>14<br><br><br>Soil Field I<br>A1- Histosol<br>A2- Histic E<br>A3- Black H<br>A4- Hydroge<br>A5- Stratifie<br>A12 - Thick I<br>S1- Sandy N<br>S4- Sandy C<br>S5- Sandy F<br>S6- Strippec<br>S7- Dark Su   | 0 the depth needed to document the ind Horizon 1 2 ndicators (check he pipedon istic en Sulfide d Layers ed Below Dark Surface Dark Surface Auck Mineral Sleyed Matrix Redox I Matrix Irface (LRR R, MLRA 149B) rock                      | Color (I<br>10YR<br>2.5Y  | absence of Indi<br>Matrix<br>Moist)<br>4/1<br>5/2<br><br><br>tors are<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0<br>0 | cators.) (Type: C<br>%<br>100<br>100<br><br><br><br><br>Not prese<br>S8 - Poly<br>S9 - Thin<br>F1 - Loan<br>F2 - Loan<br>F3 - Depl<br>F3 - Depl<br>F8 - Redo | eted Dark Sur<br>y Gleved<br>eted Dark Sur<br>x Dark Sur<br>to Dark Sur<br>to Dark Sur | eries Drainage Class:<br>D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C<br>Color (Moist)<br>  | Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles % %                                   | ins: Location: PL=Pc<br>Type<br>Type<br>   |   | Texture         (e.g. clay, sand, loam)         loam   S (LRR K, L, R)         IS  
   
  |   |  |   |  |  |  |                    |  |   |  |   | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
  |  |  |   |   |   |  |                    |   |                                   |  |  |   |  |  |  |   
            |  |  |  |   |                                     |   |  |   |  |  |  |   |  |  |  |   |   |  |                                |  
  |   |  |   |   |   |  |                 |  |   |   |                                |  
   |   |  |   |   |   |  |                    |  |                         |  |  |  |   |   |   |                          |   |  |                |   |                         |  |  |   |  |  |  |                          |  |  |  |  |                                     |  |  |   |   |  |  |                          |   |  |                 |  |   |  |                                |  |
| SOILS Map Unit Name Taxonomy (Sul Profile Descri Top Depth 0 12 NRCS Hydric Restrictive Layer (If Observed)  | 2:<br>Dgroup):<br>Dtion (Describe to<br>Depth<br>11<br>14<br><br><br>Soil Field In<br>A1- Histosol<br>A2 - Histose<br>A3 - Black H<br>A4 - Hydroge<br>A3 - Black H<br>A4 - Hydroge<br>A5 - Stratifie<br>A11 - Deplet<br>A1 - Deplet<br>A1 - Deplet<br>A1 - Deplet<br>S5 - Sandy R<br>S6 - Strippec<br>S7 - Dark St | 0 the depth needed to document the ind Horizon 1 2 ndicators (check he pipedon istic en Sulfide d Layers ed Below Dark Surface Dark Surface Auck Mineral Sleyed Matrix Redox I flace (LRR R, MLRA 149B) rock al at 14"                    | Color (I<br>10YR<br>2.5Y  | absence of Indi<br>Matrix<br>Moist)<br>4/1<br>5/2<br><br><br>tors are<br>0<br>1<br>1<br>1<br>Depth:14  | cators.) (Type: C<br>%<br>100<br>100<br><br><br><br><br><br><br><br><br><br><br><br>   | Seconcentration  | eries Drainage Class:<br>D=Depletion, RM=Reduced Matrix, CS=C<br>Color (Moist)<br>  | Covered/Coated Sand Gra Mottles % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % % | ins: Location: PL=Pc<br>Type<br>Type<br>   | We Lining, M=Matrix)  Location  | Texture         (e.g. clay, sand, loam)         loam   <   
   
  |   |  |   |  |  |  |                    |  |   |  |   | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | |
  |  |  |   |   |   |  |                    |   |                                   |  |  |   |  |  |  |   
            |  |  |  |   |                                     |   |  |   |  |  |  |   |  |  |  |   |   |  |                                |  
  |   |  |   |   |   |  |                 |  |   |   |                                |  
   |   |  |   |   |   |  |                    |  |                         |  |  |  |   |   |   |                          |   |  |                |   |                         |  |  |   |  |  |  |                          |  |  |  |  |                                     |  |  |   |   |  |  |                          |   |  |                 |  |   |  |                                |  |



# WETLAND DETERMINATION DATA FORM

Northeast and Northcentral Region

Project/Site:	Readfield Delineation					Wetland ID: 01GPE Sample Point Netland
VEGETATION	(Species identified in all upperca	ase are non-native	species.)			
Tree Stratum (Pl	ot size: 10 meter radius)					Deminence Teet Werkeheet
1	<u>Species Name</u>		<u>% Cover</u>	Dominant	Ind.Status	Dominance lest worksneet
1. 2	Fraxilius nigra		10	IN	FACVV	Number of Dominant Species that are ODL $EACIAL$ or $EAC:$ (A)
2.						Number of Dominant Species that are OBL, FACW, of FAC:(A)
3.						Total Number of Destinget Creating Across All Charles (D)
4.						Total Number of Dominant Species Across All Strata: []
5.						Descent of Descinent Operation That Are ODL, EAONAL or EAO, 100,000 (A/D)
<u>р</u> .						Percent of Dominant Species That Are OBL, FACW, or FAC: 100.0% (A/B)
/.						During langes Index Werkshoot
<u>ð.</u>						Tatal % Orwards
9.						Total % Cover of: Multiply by:
10.		Tatal Osuan				OBL spp. 5 x 1 = 5
		Total Cover =	10			FACW spp. $20$ X $2 = 40$
						FAC spp. 7 $X 3 = 21$
Sapling/Shrub Str	atum (Plot size: 5 meter radius)				540	FACU spp. 10 $X 4 = 40$
1.	Pinus strobus		2	IN N	FAC	$UPL spp. \_ 0 x b = \_ 0$
2.	Rubus Idaeus		10	N	FACU	
3.						l otal <u>42</u> (A) <u>106</u> (B)
4.						
5.						Prevalence Index = $B/A = 2.524$
6.						
7.						
8.						Hydrophytic Vegetation Indicators:
9.						Yes No Rapid Test for Hydrophytic Vegetation
10.						☑ Yes □ No Dominance Test is > 50%
		Total Cover =	12			yes □ No Prevalence Index is ≤ 3.0 *
						Yes I No Morphological Adaptations (Explain) *
Herb Stratum (Plo	ot size: 2 meter radius)					☐ Yes ☑ No Problem Hydrophytic Vegetation (Explain) *
1.	Onoclea sensibilis		10	Y	FACW	* Indicators of hydric soil and wetland hydrology must be
2.	Solidago rugosa		5	N	FAC	present, unless disturbed or problematic.
3.	Osmunda spectabilis		2	N	OBL	
4.	Typha latifolia		3	N	OBL	Definitions of Vegetation Strata:
5.						
6						<b>Tree</b> - Woody plants 3 in. (7.6cm) or more in diameter at breast
7.						height (DBH), regardless of height.
8.						
9.						Sapling/Shrub - Woody plants less than 3 in. DBH and greater than 3.28 ft. tall.
10.						
11.						
12.						Herb - All herbaceous (non-woody) plants, regardless of size, and woody plants less than 3.28 ft tall
13.						
14.						
15.						Woody Vines - All woody vines greater than 3.28 ft. in height.
		Total Cover =	20			
Woody Vine Strat	um (Plot size: 10 meter radius)					
1.						
2.						
3.						Hydrophytic Vegetation Present 🗵 Yes 🔲 No
4.						
5.						
		Total Cover =	0			
Remarks:						

Additional Remarks:

# ATTACHMENT H: FINANCIAL SUPPORT LETTER





July 21, 2023

To Whom It May Concern:

My Name is Cailin McMurdo-Minnich, and I am a Vice President, Commercial Lender at Mascoma Bank. I am also Norwich Solar Technology's (NST) chief representative for our bank.

NST has been doing business with Mascoma for over 4 years. They are an outstanding client with a strong operating history and credit profile.

Mascoma currently extends NST a \$4,000,000 line of credit, a \$500,000 guidance line of credit, and has partnered with NST on financing several solar projects worth over \$5,060,000 in aggregate.

Please feel free to reach out to me anytime with questions.

Sincerely,

Cailin McMurdo-Minnich VP, Commercial Loan Officer Mascoma Bank 180 Battery St Suite 120 Burlington, VT 05401

# ATTACHMENT I: SOUND ASSESSMENT





dBA @ Dist

#### **INVERTER AND TRANSFORMER NOISE ANALYSIS** Readfield Main Solar LLC Readfield, Maine

The table shows the noise level of each	component at a 3, 200,	and 600-foot distance:

Component	Capacity	Noise Level (dBA) @ 3.3ft	dBA @ 200ft	dBA @ 600ft
Inverter 001	100 kW	65	29.3	19.8
Inverter 002	100 kW	65	29.3	19.8
Inverter 003	100 kW	65	29.3	19.8
Inverter 004	100 kW	65	29.3	19.8
Inverter 005	100 kW	65	29.3	19.8
Inverter 006	100 kW	65	29.3	19.8
Inverter 007	125 kW	65	29.3	19.8
Inverter 008	125 kW	65	29.3	19.8
Inverter 009	125 kW	65	29.3	19.8
Transformer 001	1000 kVa	64	28.3	18.8
Transformer 002	30 kVa	45	9.3	0.0

	Total Impact (dBA)	32.8
Transformer 002	425	2.8
Transformer 001	425	21.8
Inverter 009	415	23.0
Inverter 008	415	23.0
Inverter 007	415	23.0
Inverter 006	420	22.9
Inverter 005	420	22.9
Inverter 004	420	22.9
Inverter 003	420	22.9
Inverter 002	420	22.9
Inverter 001	420	22.9

Dist to Boundary (ft)

Commercial	Industrial	Residential	dB Level
Threshold For Hearing			0
Good Recording Studio		Breathing	10
		Rustling Leaves	15
		Whisper, Mosquito	20
Library		Living / Dining Room	30
Refrigerator Hum		Kitchen / Bathroom	40
Quiet Office	Power Lawn Mower	Home Office	50
		Birds at 10'	55
Conversational Speech			60
Piano Practice		Electric Shaver	60
Business Office		Piano Practice	65
Noisy Restaurant	Inplant Office	Street Traffic	70
Chamber Music		Barking Dog	75
Classroom		Alarm Clock	75
		Television / Dishwasher	75

Delevent	oquations
Relevant	equations:

Component

FT-M conversion:	1 foot = 0.3048 meter
Sound level of individua	l components:
	R2 = R1-20*LOG(D)
	Where:
	R2 = sound level at user-specified distance
	R1 = sound level at one meter distance
	D = user-specified distance, in meters
Combined sound level:	
	$RN = 10*LOG(\Sigma(10^{R2}/10))$
	Where:
	RN = sound level of combined components
	R2 = sound level at user-specified distance

[1] Ambient sound level for Readfield, Maine from USGS CONUS Summer Day map L50 dB(A) https://www.nps.gov/subjects/sound/upload/CONUS\_Natural\_L50dBA\_SummerDay\_Legend.png

[2] Noise level CPS 100kW/125kW inverter online datasheet https://www.chintpowersystems.com/wp-content/uploads/2022/08/CPS-SCH100-125KTL-DO-US-600-Datasheet-August-10-2022.pdf

[3] Transformer noise level from National Electrical Manufacturers Association (NEMA) Standard ST-20 for sound level based on transformer kVA (701-1000 kVa <> 64 dBA)

[4] Transformer noise level from National Electrical Manufacturers Association (NEMA) Standard ST-20 for sound level based on transformer kVA (10-50 kVa <> 45 dBA)

[5] Decibel chart from NetWell Noise Control and Soundproofing http://www.controlnoise.com/decibel-chart

Prepared 8/1/2023

ATTACHMENT J: NRCS SOIL RESOURCE REPORT





United States Department of Agriculture



Natural Resources Conservation Service A product of the National Cooperative Soil Survey, a joint effort of the United States Department of Agriculture and other Federal agencies, State agencies including the Agricultural Experiment Stations, and local participants

# Custom Soil Resource Report for Kennebec County, Maine



# Preface

Soil surveys contain information that affects land use planning in survey areas. They highlight soil limitations that affect various land uses and provide information about the properties of the soils in the survey areas. Soil surveys are designed for many different users, including farmers, ranchers, foresters, agronomists, urban planners, community officials, engineers, developers, builders, and home buyers. Also, conservationists, teachers, students, and specialists in recreation, waste disposal, and pollution control can use the surveys to help them understand, protect, or enhance the environment.

Various land use regulations of Federal, State, and local governments may impose special restrictions on land use or land treatment. Soil surveys identify soil properties that are used in making various land use or land treatment decisions. The information is intended to help the land users identify and reduce the effects of soil limitations on various land uses. The landowner or user is responsible for identifying and complying with existing laws and regulations.

Although soil survey information can be used for general farm, local, and wider area planning, onsite investigation is needed to supplement this information in some cases. Examples include soil quality assessments (http://www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/portal/nrcs/main/soils/health/) and certain conservation and engineering applications. For more detailed information, contact your local USDA Service Center (https://offices.sc.egov.usda.gov/locator/app?agency=nrcs) or your NRCS State Soil Scientist (http://www.nrcs.usda.gov/wps/portal/nrcs/detail/soils/contactus/? cid=nrcs142p2\_053951).

Great differences in soil properties can occur within short distances. Some soils are seasonally wet or subject to flooding. Some are too unstable to be used as a foundation for buildings or roads. Clayey or wet soils are poorly suited to use as septic tank absorption fields. A high water table makes a soil poorly suited to basements or underground installations.

The National Cooperative Soil Survey is a joint effort of the United States Department of Agriculture and other Federal agencies, State agencies including the Agricultural Experiment Stations, and local agencies. The Natural Resources Conservation Service (NRCS) has leadership for the Federal part of the National Cooperative Soil Survey.

Information about soils is updated periodically. Updated information is available through the NRCS Web Soil Survey, the site for official soil survey information.

The U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA) prohibits discrimination in all its programs and activities on the basis of race, color, national origin, age, disability, and where applicable, sex, marital status, familial status, parental status, religion, sexual orientation, genetic information, political beliefs, reprisal, or because all or a part of an individual's income is derived from any public assistance program. (Not all prohibited bases apply to all programs.) Persons with disabilities who require

alternative means for communication of program information (Braille, large print, audiotape, etc.) should contact USDA's TARGET Center at (202) 720-2600 (voice and TDD). To file a complaint of discrimination, write to USDA, Director, Office of Civil Rights, 1400 Independence Avenue, S.W., Washington, D.C. 20250-9410 or call (800) 795-3272 (voice) or (202) 720-6382 (TDD). USDA is an equal opportunity provider and employer.

# Contents

Preface	2
Soil Map	5
Soil Map	6
Legend	7
Map Unit Legend	8
Map Unit Descriptions	8
Kennebec County, Maine	10
HrB-Lyman-Tunbridge complex, 0 to 8 percent slopes, rocky	10
HrC-Lyman-Tunbridge complex, 8 to 15 percent slopes, rocky	11
PdC2—Paxton-Charlton fine sandy loams, 8 to 15 percent slopes,	
eroded	13
RcA—Ridgebury fine sandy loam	15

# Soil Map

The soil map section includes the soil map for the defined area of interest, a list of soil map units on the map and extent of each map unit, and cartographic symbols displayed on the map. Also presented are various metadata about data used to produce the map, and a description of each soil map unit.



#### Custom Soil Resource Report

#### MAP LEGEND **MAP INFORMATION** The soil surveys that comprise your AOI were mapped at Area of Interest (AOI) Spoil Area 8 1:20,000. Area of Interest (AOI) Stony Spot â Soils Very Stony Spot 00 Warning: Soil Map may not be valid at this scale. Soil Map Unit Polygons Ŷ Wet Spot Soil Map Unit Lines -Enlargement of maps beyond the scale of mapping can cause Other $\triangle$ inisunderstanding of the detail of mapping and accuracy of soil line placement. The maps do not show the small areas of Soil Map Unit Points .-Special Line Features Special Point Features contrasting soils that could have been shown at a more detailed Water Features scale. Blowout (0) Streams and Canals Borrow Pit Transportation Please rely on the bar scale on each map sheet for map Clay Spot × +++ Rails measurements. Closed Depression 0 ~ Interstate Highways Source of Map: Natural Resources Conservation Service Gravel Pit X US Routes Web Soil Survey URL: ~ Coordinate System: Web Mercator (EPSG:3857) Gravelly Spot ... Major Roads Ø Landfill Local Roads Maps from the Web Soil Survey are based on the Web Mercator projection, which preserves direction and shape but distorts A Lava F**l**ow Background distance and area. A projection that preserves area, such as the Marsh or swamp Aerial Photography 业 Carlos and Albers equal-area conic projection, should be used if more accurate calculations of distance or area are required. 氽 Mine or Quarry Miscellaneous Water 0 This product is generated from the USDA-NRCS certified data as of the version date(s) listed below. 0 Perennial Water Rock Outcrop 11 Soil Survey Area: Kennebec County, Maine Survey Area Data: Version 21, Aug 30, 2022 + Saline Spot Sandy Spot °.\*\* Soil map units are labeled (as space allows) for map scales 1:50,000 or larger. Severely Eroded Spot -Sinkhole ô Date(s) aerial images were photographed: Jul 11, 2021-Oct 29, 2021 Slide or Slip ò ø Sodic Spot The orthophoto or other base map on which the soil lines were compiled and digitized probably differs from the background imagery displayed on these maps. As a result, some minor shifting of map unit boundaries may be evident.

#### 7

Map Unit Symbol	Map Unit Name	Acres in AOI	Percent of AOI	
HrB	Lyman-Tunbridge complex, 0 to 8 percent slopes, rocky	11.2	30.7%	
HrC	Lyman-Tunbridge complex, 8 to 15 percent slopes, rocky	17.2	47.3%	
PdC2	Paxton-Charlton fine sandy loams, 8 to 15 percent slopes, eroded	8.0	22.0%	
RcA	Ridgebury fine sandy loam	0.0	0.0%	
Totals for Area of Interest	,	36.4	100.0%	

# **Map Unit Legend**

# Map Unit Descriptions

The map units delineated on the detailed soil maps in a soil survey represent the soils or miscellaneous areas in the survey area. The map unit descriptions, along with the maps, can be used to determine the composition and properties of a unit.

A map unit delineation on a soil map represents an area dominated by one or more major kinds of soil or miscellaneous areas. A map unit is identified and named according to the taxonomic classification of the dominant soils. Within a taxonomic class there are precisely defined limits for the properties of the soils. On the landscape, however, the soils are natural phenomena, and they have the characteristic variability of all natural phenomena. Thus, the range of some observed properties may extend beyond the limits defined for a taxonomic class. Areas of soils of a single taxonomic class rarely, if ever, can be mapped without including areas of other taxonomic classes. Consequently, every map unit is made up of the soils or miscellaneous areas for which it is named and some minor components that belong to taxonomic classes other than those of the major soils.

Most minor soils have properties similar to those of the dominant soil or soils in the map unit, and thus they do not affect use and management. These are called noncontrasting, or similar, components. They may or may not be mentioned in a particular map unit description. Other minor components, however, have properties and behavioral characteristics divergent enough to affect use or to require different management. These are called contrasting, or dissimilar, components. They generally are in small areas and could not be mapped separately because of the scale used. Some small areas of strongly contrasting soils or miscellaneous areas are identified by a special symbol on the maps. If included in the database for a given area, the contrasting minor components are identified in the map unit descriptions along with some characteristics of each. A few areas of minor components may not have been observed, and consequently they are not mentioned in the descriptions, especially where the pattern was so complex that it was impractical to make enough observations to identify all the soils and miscellaneous areas on the landscape.

The presence of minor components in a map unit in no way diminishes the usefulness or accuracy of the data. The objective of mapping is not to delineate pure taxonomic classes but rather to separate the landscape into landforms or landform segments that have similar use and management requirements. The delineation of such segments on the map provides sufficient information for the development of resource plans. If intensive use of small areas is planned, however, onsite investigation is needed to define and locate the soils and miscellaneous areas.

An identifying symbol precedes the map unit name in the map unit descriptions. Each description includes general facts about the unit and gives important soil properties and qualities.

Soils that have profiles that are almost alike make up a *soil series*. Except for differences in texture of the surface layer, all the soils of a series have major horizons that are similar in composition, thickness, and arrangement.

Soils of one series can differ in texture of the surface layer, slope, stoniness, salinity, degree of erosion, and other characteristics that affect their use. On the basis of such differences, a soil series is divided into *soil phases*. Most of the areas shown on the detailed soil maps are phases of soil series. The name of a soil phase commonly indicates a feature that affects use or management. For example, Alpha silt loam, 0 to 2 percent slopes, is a phase of the Alpha series.

Some map units are made up of two or more major soils or miscellaneous areas. These map units are complexes, associations, or undifferentiated groups.

A *complex* consists of two or more soils or miscellaneous areas in such an intricate pattern or in such small areas that they cannot be shown separately on the maps. The pattern and proportion of the soils or miscellaneous areas are somewhat similar in all areas. Alpha-Beta complex, 0 to 6 percent slopes, is an example.

An association is made up of two or more geographically associated soils or miscellaneous areas that are shown as one unit on the maps. Because of present or anticipated uses of the map units in the survey area, it was not considered practical or necessary to map the soils or miscellaneous areas separately. The pattern and relative proportion of the soils or miscellaneous areas are somewhat similar. Alpha-Beta association, 0 to 2 percent slopes, is an example.

An *undifferentiated group* is made up of two or more soils or miscellaneous areas that could be mapped individually but are mapped as one unit because similar interpretations can be made for use and management. The pattern and proportion of the soils or miscellaneous areas in a mapped area are not uniform. An area can be made up of only one of the major soils or miscellaneous areas, or it can be made up of all of them. Alpha and Beta soils, 0 to 2 percent slopes, is an example.

Some surveys include *miscellaneous areas*. Such areas have little or no soil material and support little or no vegetation. Rock outcrop is an example.

# Kennebec County, Maine

### HrB—Lyman-Tunbridge complex, 0 to 8 percent slopes, rocky

#### **Map Unit Setting**

National map unit symbol: 2x1cx Elevation: 0 to 520 feet Mean annual precipitation: 36 to 65 inches Mean annual air temperature: 36 to 52 degrees F Frost-free period: 90 to 160 days Farmland classification: Farmland of statewide importance

#### **Map Unit Composition**

*Lyman and similar soils:* 50 percent *Tunbridge and similar soils:* 30 percent *Estimates are based on observations, descriptions, and transects of the mapunit.* 

### **Description of Lyman**

#### Setting

Landform: Hills, ridges Landform position (two-dimensional): Summit, shoulder, backslope Landform position (three-dimensional): Nose slope, crest Down-slope shape: Convex Across-slope shape: Convex Parent material: Loamy supraglacial till derived from granite and gnei

*Parent material:* Loamy supraglacial till derived from granite and gneiss and/or loamy supraglacial till derived from phyllite and/or loamy supraglacial till derived from mica schist

#### **Typical profile**

Oe - 0 to 1 inches: moderately decomposed plant material

A - 1 to 3 inches: loam

E - 3 to 5 inches: fine sandy loam

Bhs - 5 to 7 inches: loam

Bs1 - 7 to 11 inches: loam

Bs2 - 11 to 18 inches: channery loam

R - 18 to 79 inches: bedrock

#### **Properties and qualities**

Slope: 0 to 8 percent
Surface area covered with cobbles, stones or boulders: 1.5 percent
Depth to restrictive feature: 11 to 24 inches to lithic bedrock
Drainage class: Somewhat excessively drained
Capacity of the most limiting layer to transmit water (Ksat): Very low to high (0.00 to 14.03 in/hr)
Depth to water table: More than 80 inches
Frequency of flooding: None
Frequency of ponding: None
Available water supply, 0 to 60 inches: Low (about 3.2 inches)

#### Interpretive groups

Land capability classification (irrigated): None specified Land capability classification (nonirrigated): 6s Hydrologic Soil Group: D Ecological site: F144BY702ME - Shallow and Moderately-deep Till Hydric soil rating: No

#### **Description of Tunbridge**

#### Setting

Landform: Hills, ridges

Landform position (two-dimensional): Summit, shoulder, backslope Landform position (three-dimensional): Side slope, crest Down-slope shape: Linear Across-slope shape: Convex Parent material: Loamy supraglacial till derived from granite and gneiss and/or loamy supraglacial till derived from phyllite and/or loamy supraglacial till

derived from mica schist

#### **Typical profile**

*Oe - 0 to 3 inches:* moderately decomposed plant material *Oa - 3 to 5 inches:* highly decomposed plant material *E - 5 to 8 inches:* fine sandy loam *Bhs - 8 to 11 inches:* fine sandy loam *Bs - 11 to 26 inches:* fine sandy loam *BC - 26 to 28 inches:* fine sandy loam *R - 28 to 79 inches:* bedrock

#### **Properties and qualities**

Slope: 3 to 8 percent
Surface area covered with cobbles, stones or boulders: 1.5 percent
Depth to restrictive feature: 21 to 41 inches to lithic bedrock
Drainage class: Well drained
Capacity of the most limiting layer to transmit water (Ksat): Very low to high (0.00 to 14.03 in/hr)
Depth to water table: More than 80 inches
Frequency of flooding: None
Frequency of ponding: None
Available water supply, 0 to 60 inches: Low (about 5.6 inches)

#### Interpretive groups

Land capability classification (irrigated): None specified Land capability classification (nonirrigated): 6s Hydrologic Soil Group: C Ecological site: F144BY702ME - Shallow and Moderately-deep Till Hydric soil rating: No

## HrC—Lyman-Tunbridge complex, 8 to 15 percent slopes, rocky

#### **Map Unit Setting**

National map unit symbol: 2x1cy Elevation: 0 to 520 feet Mean annual precipitation: 36 to 65 inches Mean annual air temperature: 36 to 52 degrees F Frost-free period: 90 to 160 days Farmland classification: Not prime farmland

#### **Map Unit Composition**

*Lyman and similar soils:* 45 percent *Tunbridge and similar soils:* 40 percent *Estimates are based on observations, descriptions, and transects of the mapunit.* 

#### **Description of Lyman**

#### Setting

Landform: Hills, ridges Landform position (two-dimensional): Summit, shoulder, backslope Landform position (three-dimensional): Nose slope, crest Down-slope shape: Convex Across-slope shape: Convex Parent material: Loamy supraglacial till derived from granite and gneiss and/or loamy supraglacial till derived from phyllite and/or loamy supraglacial till derived from mica schist

#### **Typical profile**

Oe - 0 to 1 inches: moderately decomposed plant material

A - 1 to 3 inches: loam

E - 3 to 5 inches: fine sandy loam

Bhs - 5 to 7 inches: loam

Bs1 - 7 to 11 inches: loam

Bs2 - 11 to 18 inches: channery loam

*R* - 18 to 79 inches: bedrock

#### **Properties and qualities**

Slope: 8 to 15 percent
Surface area covered with cobbles, stones or boulders: 1.5 percent
Depth to restrictive feature: 11 to 24 inches to lithic bedrock
Drainage class: Somewhat excessively drained
Capacity of the most limiting layer to transmit water (Ksat): Very low to high (0.00 to 14.03 in/hr)
Depth to water table: More than 80 inches
Frequency of flooding: None
Frequency of ponding: None
Available water supply, 0 to 60 inches: Low (about 3.2 inches)

#### Interpretive groups

Land capability classification (irrigated): None specified Land capability classification (nonirrigated): 6s Hydrologic Soil Group: D Ecological site: F144BY702ME - Shallow and Moderately-deep Till Hydric soil rating: No

#### **Description of Tunbridge**

#### Setting

Landform: Hills, ridges Landform position (two-dimensional): Summit, shoulder, backslope Landform position (three-dimensional): Side slope, crest Down-slope shape: Linear Across-slope shape: Convex Parent material: Loamy supraglacial till derived from granite and gneiss and/or loamy supraglacial till derived from phyllite and/or loamy supraglacial till derived from mica schist

#### **Typical profile**

*Oe - 0 to 3 inches:* moderately decomposed plant material *Oa - 3 to 5 inches:* highly decomposed plant material *E - 5 to 8 inches:* fine sandy loam *Bhs - 8 to 11 inches:* fine sandy loam *Bs - 11 to 26 inches:* fine sandy loam *BC - 26 to 28 inches:* fine sandy loam *R - 28 to 79 inches:* bedrock

#### **Properties and qualities**

Slope: 8 to 15 percent
Surface area covered with cobbles, stones or boulders: 1.5 percent
Depth to restrictive feature: 21 to 41 inches to lithic bedrock
Drainage class: Well drained
Capacity of the most limiting layer to transmit water (Ksat): Very low to high (0.00 to 14.03 in/hr)
Depth to water table: More than 80 inches
Frequency of flooding: None
Frequency of ponding: None
Available water supply, 0 to 60 inches: Low (about 5.6 inches)

#### Interpretive groups

Land capability classification (irrigated): None specified Land capability classification (nonirrigated): 6s Hydrologic Soil Group: C Ecological site: F144BY702ME - Shallow and Moderately-deep Till Hydric soil rating: No

# PdC2—Paxton-Charlton fine sandy loams, 8 to 15 percent slopes, eroded

#### **Map Unit Setting**

National map unit symbol: 9k0y Elevation: 0 to 3,500 feet Mean annual precipitation: 40 to 50 inches Mean annual air temperature: 39 to 45 degrees F Frost-free period: 100 to 160 days Farmland classification: Not prime farmland

#### **Map Unit Composition**

Paxton and similar soils: 60 percent Charlton and similar soils: 25 percent Estimates are based on observations, descriptions, and transects of the mapunit.

#### **Description of Paxton**

#### Setting

Landform: Drumlins Landform position (two-dimensional): Shoulder Landform position (three-dimensional): Side slope *Down-slope shape:* Convex *Across-slope shape:* Convex *Parent material:* Coarse-loamy lodgment till derived from mica schist

#### **Typical profile**

H1 - 0 to 8 inches: fine sandy loam

- H2 8 to 31 inches: gravelly fine sandy loam
- H3 31 to 65 inches: fine sandy loam

#### **Properties and qualities**

Slope: 8 to 15 percent
Depth to restrictive feature: 18 to 40 inches to densic material
Drainage class: Well drained
Capacity of the most limiting layer to transmit water (Ksat): Moderately low to moderately high (0.06 to 0.60 in/hr)
Depth to water table: About 24 to 42 inches
Frequency of flooding: None
Frequency of ponding: None
Available water supply, 0 to 60 inches: Low (about 4.4 inches)

#### Interpretive groups

Land capability classification (irrigated): None specified Land capability classification (nonirrigated): 3e Hydrologic Soil Group: C/D Ecological site: F144BY501ME - Loamy Slope (Northern Hardwoods) Hydric soil rating: No

#### **Description of Charlton**

#### Setting

Landform: Drumlins Landform position (three-dimensional): Side slope Down-slope shape: Convex Across-slope shape: Convex Parent material: Coarse-loamy supraglacial meltout till derived from mica schist

#### **Typical profile**

H1 - 0 to 6 inches: fine sandy loam

H2 - 6 to 20 inches: gravelly fine sandy loam

H3 - 20 to 65 inches: gravelly fine sandy loam

#### **Properties and qualities**

Slope: 8 to 15 percent
Depth to restrictive feature: More than 80 inches
Drainage class: Well drained
Capacity of the most limiting layer to transmit water (Ksat): Moderately high to high (0.60 to 6.00 in/hr)
Depth to water table: More than 80 inches
Frequency of flooding: None
Frequency of ponding: None
Available water supply, 0 to 60 inches: Moderate (about 6.2 inches)

#### Interpretive groups

Land capability classification (irrigated): None specified Land capability classification (nonirrigated): 3e Hydrologic Soil Group: B Ecological site: F144BY501ME - Loamy Slope (Northern Hardwoods) Hydric soil rating: No

## RcA—Ridgebury fine sandy loam

#### Map Unit Setting

National map unit symbol: 9k16 Elevation: 10 to 2,500 feet Mean annual precipitation: 34 to 48 inches Mean annual air temperature: 37 to 46 degrees F Frost-free period: 90 to 160 days Farmland classification: Not prime farmland

#### **Map Unit Composition**

*Ridgebury and similar soils:* 87 percent *Estimates are based on observations, descriptions, and transects of the mapunit.* 

#### **Description of Ridgebury**

#### Setting

Landform: Till plains Landform position (two-dimensional): Footslope Landform position (three-dimensional): Dip Down-slope shape: Linear Across-slope shape: Concave Parent material: Coarse-loamy lodgment till derived from mica schist

#### **Typical profile**

H1 - 0 to 8 inches: fine sandy loam
H2 - 8 to 14 inches: fine sandy loam
H3 - 14 to 65 inches: fine sandy loam

#### **Properties and qualities**

Slope: 0 to 3 percent
Depth to restrictive feature: 10 to 25 inches to densic material
Drainage class: Poorly drained
Capacity of the most limiting layer to transmit water (Ksat): Moderately low to moderately high (0.06 to 0.60 in/hr)
Depth to water table: About 0 to 12 inches
Frequency of flooding: None
Frequency of ponding: None
Available water supply, 0 to 60 inches: Very low (about 3.0 inches)

#### Interpretive groups

Land capability classification (irrigated): None specified Land capability classification (nonirrigated): 4w Hydrologic Soil Group: C/D Ecological site: F144BY305ME - Wet Loamy Flat Hydric soil rating: Yes

# ATTACHMENT K: INTERCONNECTION AGREEMENT



# Level 2 Interconnection Agreement

This Agreement is made and entered into this 16<sup>th</sup> day of June 2023, by and between Readfield Main Solar, LLC("Interconnection Customer") located on Main Street, Readfield, Maine, and Central Maine Power Company, a Maine corporation having its office and principal place of business in Augusta, Kennebec County, Maine, existing under the laws of the State of Maine, (" T & D Utility "). Interconnection Customer and T & D Utility each may be referred to as a "Party," or collectively as the "Parties."

### <u>Recitals</u>:

**Whereas,** Interconnection Customer is proposing to develop a Small Generator Facility, consisting of a 975 kW photovoltaic generator, consistent with the Interconnection Request completed by Interconnection Customer on April 27<sup>th</sup>, 2023; and

**Whereas**, Interconnection Customer desires to interconnect the Small Generator Facility with T & D Utility 's Electric Distribution System.

**Now, therefore**, in consideration of and subject to the mutual covenants contained herein, the Parties agree as follows:

### Article 1. Scope and Limitations of Agreement

- 1.1 This Agreement shall be used for all approved Level 2, Level 3, and Level 4 Interconnection Requests according to the procedures set forth in the Standard Small Generator Interconnection Rule.
- 1.2 This Agreement governs the terms and conditions under which the Small Generator Facility will interconnect to, and operate in Parallel with, T & D Utility 's Electric Distribution System.
- 1.3 This Agreement does not constitute an agreement to purchase or deliver the Interconnection Customer's power.
- 1.4 Nothing in this Agreement is intended to affect any other agreement between T & D Utility and the Interconnection Customer. However, in the event that the provisions of this agreement are in conflict with the provisions of the T & D Utility tariff, the T & D Utility tariff shall control.
- 1.5 Responsibilities of the Parties
  - 1.5.1 The Parties shall perform all obligations of this Agreement in accordance with all Applicable Laws and Regulations, and Operating Requirements.
  - 1.5.2 The Interconnection Customer shall construct, interconnect, operate and maintain its Small Generator Facility, and construct, operate, and maintain its Interconnection Equipment in accordance with the applicable manufacturer's recommended maintenance schedule, in accordance with this Agreement.
  - 1.5.3 T & D Utility shall construct, own, operate, and maintain its Electric Distribution System and Interconnection Facilities in accordance with this Agreement.

- 1.5.4 The Interconnection Customer agrees to construct its facilities or systems in accordance with applicable specifications that meet or exceed the National Electrical Code, the American National Standards Institute, IEEE, Underwriters Laboratories, and any other Operating Requirements.
- 1.5.5 Each Party shall operate, maintain, repair, and inspect, and shall be fully responsible for the facilities that it now or subsequently may own unless otherwise specified in the Exhibits to this Agreement and shall do so in a manner as to reasonably minimize the likelihood of a disturbance adversely affecting or impairing the other party
- 1.5.6 Each Party shall be responsible for the safe installation, maintenance, repair and condition of their respective lines and appurtenances on their respective sides of the Point of Common Coupling.
- 1.6 Parallel Operation Obligations Once the Small Generator Facility has been authorized to commence parallel operation, the Interconnection Customer shall abide by all written rules and procedures developed by the T & D Utility which pertain to the parallel operation of the Small Generator Facility, copies of which are provided as an Exhibit [1] to this Agreement.
- 1.7 Reactive Power

The Interconnection Customer shall design its Small Generator Facility to maintain a composite power delivery at continuous rated power output at the Point of Common Coupling at a power factor within the range of 0.95 leading to 0.95 lagging.

## Article 2. Inspection, Testing, Authorization, and Right of Access

- 2.1 Equipment Testing and Inspection The Interconnection Customer shall test and inspect its Small Generator Facility and Interconnection Facilities prior to interconnection, and in accordance with IEEE 1547 Standards.
- 2.2 Certificate of Completion

Prior to commencing parallel operation, the Interconnection Customer shall provide T & D Utility with a Certificate of Completion in the form of Attachment 6 of the Interconnection Forms and Agreements. The Certificate of Completion must either be signed by an electrical inspector with the authority to approve the interconnection or be accompanied by the electrical inspector's own form authorizing interconnection of the Small Generation Facility.

2.3 Parallel Operation Obligations

The Interconnection Customer shall abide by all permissible written rules and procedures developed by the T & D Utility which pertain to the parallel operation of the Small Generation Facility. In the event of conflicting provisions, the Interconnection Procedures shall take precedence over the T & D Utility's rule or procedure. Copies of the Utilities rules and procedures for parallel operation are either provided as an Exhibit to this Agreement or an Exhibit that provides a reference to a website where copies of the rule or procedure is maintained (Exhibit 1).

2.4 Right of Access

At reasonable hours, and upon reasonable notice, or at any time without notice in the event of an emergency or hazardous condition, Company shall have access to Customer's premises for any reasonable purpose in connection with the performance of the obligations imposed on it by this Agreement or if necessary to meet its legal obligation to provide service to its Customers.

### Article 3. Effective Date, Term, Termination, and Disconnection

3.1 Effective Date

This Agreement shall become effective upon execution by the Parties.

3.2 Term of Agreement

This Agreement shall become effective on the Effective Date and shall remain in effect perpetually, unless terminated earlier in accordance with Article 3.3 of this Agreement.

3.3 Termination

No termination shall become effective until the Parties have complied with all Applicable Laws and Regulations applicable to such termination.

- 3.3.1 The Interconnection Customer may terminate this Agreement at any time by giving T & D Utility 20 Business Days written notice.
- 3.32 Either Party may terminate this Agreement after Default pursuant to Article 6.6.
- 3.33 Upon termination of this Agreement, the Small Generator Facility will be disconnected from T & D Utility's Electric Distribution System. The termination of this Agreement shall not relieve either Party of its liabilities and obligations, owed or continuing at the time of the termination.
- 3.3.4 The provisions of this Article shall survive termination or expiration of this Agreement.
- 3.4 Temporary Disconnection

The T & D Utility may temporarily disconnect the Small Generator Facility from its Electric Distribution System for so long as reasonably necessary in the event one or more of the following conditions or events occurs:

3.4.1 Emergency Conditions

"Emergency Condition" shall mean a condition or situation: (1) that in the judgment of the Party making the claim is imminently likely to endanger life or property; or (2) that, in the case of T & D Utility, is imminently likely (as determined in a non-discriminatory manner) to cause a material adverse effect on the security of, or damage to the Electric Distribution System, T & D Utility 's Interconnection Facilities or (3) that, in the case of the Interconnection Customer, is imminently likely (as determined in a non-discriminatory manner) to cause a material adverse effect on the security of, or damage to the Electric Distribution System, T & D Utility 's Interconnection Facilities or (3) that, in the case of the Interconnection Customer, is imminently likely (as determined in a non-discriminatory manner) to cause a material adverse effect on the security of, or damage to, the Small Generator Facility or the Interconnection Equipment . Under Emergency Conditions, T & D Utility or the Interconnection Customer may immediately suspend interconnection service and temporarily disconnect the Small Generator Facility. T & D Utility shall notify the Interconnection Customer promptly when it becomes aware of an Emergency Condition that may reasonably be expected to affect the Interconnection Customer's operation of the Small Generator Facility. The

Interconnection Customer shall notify T & D Utility promptly when it becomes aware of an Emergency Condition that may reasonably be expected to affect T & D Utility's Electric Distribution System. To the extent information is known, the notification shall describe the Emergency Condition, the extent of the damage or deficiency, the expected effect on the operation of both Parties' facilities and operations, its anticipated duration, and the necessary corrective action.

- 3.4.2 Routine Maintenance, Construction, and Repair
  - T & D Utility may interrupt interconnection service or curtail the output of the Small Generator Facility and temporarily disconnect the Small Generator Facility from T & D Utility's Electric Distribution System when necessary for routine maintenance, construction, and repairs on T & D Utility's Electric Distribution System. T & D Utility shall provide the Interconnection Customer with five Business Days notice prior to such interruption. T & D Utility shall use reasonable efforts to coordinate such reduction or temporary disconnection with the Interconnection Customer.
- 3.4.3 Forced Outages

During any forced outage, T & D Utility may suspend interconnection service to effect immediate repairs on T & D Utility's Electric Distribution System. T & D Utility shall use reasonable efforts to provide the Interconnection Customer with prior notice. If prior notice is not given, T & D Utility shall, upon request, provide the Interconnection Customer written documentation after the fact explaining the circumstances of the disconnection.

3.4.4 Adverse Operating Effects

T & D Utility shall provide the Interconnection Customer with a written notice of its intention to disconnect the Small Generator Facility if, based on Good Utility Practice, the T & D Utility determines that operation of the Small Generator Facility will likely cause disruption or deterioration of service to other Customers served from the same electric system, or if operating the Small Generator Facility could cause damage to T & D Utility's Electric Distribution System. Supporting documentation used to reach the decision to disconnect shall be provided to the Interconnection Customer upon request. T & D Utility may disconnect the Small Generator Facility if, after receipt of the notice, the Interconnection Customer fails to remedy the adverse operating effect within a reasonable time which shall be at least five Business Days from the date the Interconnection Customer receives the T & D Utility's written notice supporting the decision to disconnect, unless Emergency Conditions exist in which case the provisions of Article 3.4.1 apply.

3.4.5 Modification of the Small Generator Facility

The Interconnection Customer must receive written authorization from T & D Utility before making any change to the Small Generator Facility that may have a material impact on the safety or reliability of the Electric Distribution System. Such authorization shall not be unreasonably withheld. Modifications shall be done in accordance with Good Utility Practice. If the Interconnection Customer makes such modification without T & D Utility's prior written authorization, the latter shall have the right to temporarily disconnect the Small Generator Facility. 3.4.6 Reconnection

The Parties shall cooperate with each other to restore the Small Generator Facility, Interconnection Facilities, and T & D Utility 's Electric Distribution System to their normal operating state as soon as reasonably practicable following a temporary disconnection.

# Article 4. Cost Responsibility for Interconnection Facilities and Distribution Upgrades

- 4.1 Interconnection Facilities
  - 4.1.1 The Interconnection Customer shall pay for the cost of the Interconnection Facilities itemized in the Exhibits to this Agreement. If a Facilities Study was performed, T & D Utility shall identify its Interconnection Facilities necessary to safely interconnect the Small Generator Facility with T & D Utility's Electric Distribution System, the cost of those facilities, and the time required to build and install those facilities.
  - 4.1.2 The Interconnection Customer shall be responsible for its share of all reasonable expenses, including overheads, associated with (1) owning, operating, maintaining, repairing, and replacing its Interconnection Equipment, and (2) operating, maintaining, repairing, and replacing T & D Utility's Interconnection Facilities as set forth in the Exhibits to this Agreement.
- 4.2 Distribution Upgrades T & D Utility shall design, procure, construct, install, and own any Distribution Upgrades. The actual cost of the Distribution Upgrades, including overheads, shall be directly assigned to the Interconnection Customer.

## Article 5. Billing, Payment, Milestones, and Financial Security

- 5.1 Billing and Payment Procedures and Final Accounting
  - 5.1.1 T & D Utility shall bill the Interconnection Customer for the design, engineering, construction, and procurement costs of T & D Utility provided Interconnection Facilities and Distribution Upgrades contemplated by this Agreement as set forth in the Exhibit (2) to this Agreement, on a monthly basis, or as otherwise agreed by the Parties. The Interconnection Customer shall pay each bill within thirty (30) calendar days of receipt, or as otherwise agreed to by the Parties.
  - 5.1.2 Within ninety (90) calendar days of completing the construction and installation of T & D Utility 's Interconnection Facilities and Distribution Upgrades described in the Exhibits to this Agreement, T & D Utility shall provide the Interconnection Customer with a final accounting report of any difference between (1) the actual cost incurred to complete the construction and installation and the budget estimate provided to the Interconnection Customer and a written explanation for any significant variation. (2) the Interconnection Customer's previous deposit and aggregate payments to T & D Utility for such Interconnection Facilities and Distribution Upgrades. If the Interconnection Customer's cost responsibility exceeds its previous deposit and aggregate payments, T & D Utility shall invoice the Interconnection Customer for the amount due and the Interconnection Customer shall make payment to T & D Utility within thirty (30) calendar days. If the Interconnection Customer's previous deposit and aggregate

payments exceed its cost responsibility under this Agreement, T & D Utility shall refund to the Interconnection Customer an amount equal to the difference within thirty (30) calendar days of the final accounting report.

5.2 Interconnection Customer Deposit

At least twenty (20) Business Days prior to the commencement of the design, procurement, installation, or construction of a discrete portion of T & D Utility 's Interconnection Facilities and Distribution Upgrades, the Interconnection Customer shall provide T & D Utility with a deposit equal to 50 percent of the cost estimated for its Interconnection Facilities prior to its beginning design of such facilities.

# Article 6. Assignment, Liability, Indemnity, Force Majeure, Consequential Damages, and Default

6.1 Assignment

This Agreement may be assigned by either Party upon fifteen (15) Business Days prior written notice, and with the opportunity to object by the other Party. When required, consent to assignment shall not be unreasonably withheld; provided that:

- 6.1.1 Either Party may assign this Agreement without the consent of the other Party to any affiliate of the assigning Party with an equal or greater credit rating and with the legal authority and operational ability to satisfy the obligations of the assigning Party under this Agreement;
- 6.1.2 The Interconnection Customer shall have the right to assign this Agreement, without the consent of T & D Utility, for collateral security purposes to aid in providing financing for the Small Generator Facility;
- 6.1.3 Any attempted assignment that violates this Article is void and ineffective. Assignment shall not relieve a Party of its obligations, nor shall a Party's obligations be enlarged, in whole or in part, by reason thereof. An assignee is responsible for meeting the same obligations as the Interconnection Customer.
- 6.2 Limitation of Liability

Each Party's liability to the other Party for any loss, cost, claim, injury, liability, or expense, including reasonable attorney's fees, relating to or arising from any act or omission in its performance of this Agreement, shall be limited to the amount of direct damage actually incurred. In no event shall either Party be liable to the other Party for any indirect, special, consequential, or punitive damages, except as authorized by this Agreement.

- 6.3 Indemnity
  - 6.3.1 This provision protects each Party from liability incurred to third Parties as a result of carrying out the provisions of this Agreement. Liability under this provision is exempt from the general limitations on liability found in Article 6.2.
  - 6.3.2 The Parties shall at all times indemnify, defend, and hold the other Party harmless from, any and all damages, losses, claims, including claims and actions relating to injury to or death of any person or damage to property, demand, suits, recoveries, costs and expenses, court costs, attorney fees, and all other obligations by or to third Parties, arising out of or resulting from the indemnified Party's action or failure to meet its obligations under this Agreement on behalf of the indemnifying Party, except in cases of gross
negligence or intentional wrongdoing by the indemnified Party.

- 6.3.3 If an indemnified person is entitled to indemnification under this Article as a result of a claim by a third party, and the indemnifying Party fails, after notice and reasonable opportunity to proceed under this Article, to assume the defense of such claim, such indemnified person may at the expense of the indemnifying Party contest, settle or consent to the entry of any judgment with respect to, or pay in full, such claim.
- 6.3.4 If an indemnifying party is obligated to indemnify and hold any indemnified person harmless under this Article, the amount owing to the indemnified person shall be the amount of such indemnified person's actual loss, net of any insurance or other recovery.
- 6.3.5 Promptly after receipt by an indemnified person of any claim or notice of the commencement of any action or administrative or legal proceeding or investigation as to which the indemnity provided for in this Article may apply, the indemnified person shall notify the indemnifying party of such fact. Any failure of or delay in such notification shall not affect a Party's indemnification obligation unless such failure or delay is materially prejudicial to the indemnifying party.
- 6.4 Consequential Damages

Neither Party shall be liable under any provision of this Agreement for any losses, damages, costs or expenses for any special, indirect, incidental, consequential, or punitive damages, including but not limited to loss of profit or revenue, loss of the use of equipment, cost of capital, cost of temporary equipment or services, whether based in whole or in part in contract, in tort, including negligence, strict liability, or any other theory of liability; provided, however, that damages for which a Party may be liable to the other Party under another agreement will not be considered to be special, indirect, incidental, or consequential damages hereunder.

- 6.5 Force Majeure
  - 6.5.1 As used in this Article, a Force Majeure Event shall mean "any act of God, labor disturbance, act of the public enemy, war, acts of terrorism, insurrection, riot, fire, storm or flood, explosion, breakage or accident to machinery or equipment, any order, regulation or restriction imposed by governmental, military or lawfully established civilian authorities, or any other cause beyond a Party's control. A Force Majeure Event does not include an act of negligence or intentional wrongdoing."
  - 6.5.2 If a Force Majeure Event prevents a Party from fulfilling any obligations under this Agreement, the Party affected by the Force Majeure Event (Affected Party) shall promptly notify the other Party of the existence of the Force Majeure Event. The notification must specify in reasonable detail the circumstances of the Force Majeure Event, its expected duration, and the steps that the Affected Party is taking to mitigate the effects of the event on its performance, and if the initial notification was verbal, it should be promptly followed up with a written notification. The Affected Party shall keep the other Party informed on a continuing basis of developments relating to the Force Majeure Event until the event ends. The Affected Party will be entitled to suspend or modify its performance of obligations under this Agreement (other than the obligation to make payments) only to the extent that the effect of the Force Majeure Event cannot be reasonably mitigated. The Affected Party will use reasonable efforts to resume its

performance as soon as possible.

- 6.6 Default
  - 6.6.1 No Default shall exist where such failure to discharge an obligation (other than the payment of money) is the result of a Force Majeure Event as defined in this Agreement, or the result of an act or omission of the other Party. Upon a Default, the non-defaulting Party shall give written notice of such Default to the defaulting Party. Except as provided in Article 6.6.2, the defaulting Party shall have 60 calendar days from receipt of the Default notice within which to cure such Default; provided however, if such Default is not capable of cure within 60 calendar days, the defaulting Party shall commence such cure within 20 calendar days after notice and continuously and diligently complete such cure within six months from receipt of the Default notice; and, if cured within such time, the Default specified in such notice shall cease to exist.
  - 6.6.2 If a Default is not cured as provided for in this Article, or if a Default is not capable of being cured within the period provided for herein, the non-defaulting Party shall have the right to terminate this Agreement by written notice at any time until cure occurs, and be relieved of any further obligation hereunder and, whether or not that Party terminates this Agreement, to recover from the defaulting Party all amounts due hereunder, plus all other damages and remedies to which it is entitled at law or in equity. The provisions of this Article will survive termination of this Agreement.

## Article 7. Insurance

The Interconnection Customer may be required by the T & D Utility to carry liability insurance for its interconnection subject to the restrictions and limitations found in Maine Public Utility Commission Rule Ch. 324 §12(F). To the extent T & D Utility requires liability insurance, its requirements for the Interconnecting Customer and any required documentation of coverage shall be included herewith under Exhibit (2).

## Article 8. Dispute Resolution (see provisions in the Maine Public Utility Commission's Standard Small Generator Interconnection Rules)

## Article 9. Miscellaneous

- 9.1 Governing Law, Regulatory Authority, and Rules The validity, interpretation and enforcement of this Agreement and each of its provisions shall be governed by the laws of the State of Maine, without regard to its conflicts of law principles. This Agreement is subject to all Applicable Laws and Regulations. Each Party expressly reserves the right to seek changes in, appeal, or otherwise contest any laws, orders, or regulations of a Governmental Authority.
- 9.2 Amendment

The Parties may amend this Agreement by a written instrument duly executed by both Parties.

9.3 No Third-Party Beneficiaries

This Agreement is not intended to and does not create rights, remedies, or benefits of any character whatsoever in favor of any persons, corporations, associations, or entities other than the Parties, and the obligations herein assumed are solely for the use and benefit of the Parties, their successors in interest and where permitted, their assigns.

## 9.4 Waiver

- 9.4.1 The failure of a Party to this Agreement to insist, on any occasion, upon strict performance of any provision of this Agreement will not be considered a waiver of any obligation, right, or duty of, or imposed upon, such Party.
- 9.4.2 Any waiver at any time by either Party of its rights with respect to this Agreement shall not be deemed a continuing waiver or a waiver with respect to any other failure to comply with any other obligation, right, duty of this Agreement. Termination or default of this Agreement for any reason by Interconnection Customer shall not constitute a waiver of the Interconnection Customer's legal rights to obtain an interconnection from T & D Utility. Any waiver of this Agreement shall, if requested, be provided in writing.

#### 9.5 Entire Agreement

This Agreement, including all Exhibits, constitutes the entire Agreement between the Parties with reference to the subject matter hereof, and supersedes all prior and contemporaneous understandings or agreements, oral or written, between the Parties with respect to the subject matter of this Agreement. There are no other agreements, representations, warranties, or covenants which constitute any part of the consideration for, or any condition to, either Party's compliance with its obligations under this Agreement.

#### 9.6 Multiple Counterparts

This Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts, each of which is deemed an original, but all constitute one and the same instrument.

#### 9.7 No Partnership

This Agreement shall not be interpreted or construed to create an association, joint venture, agency relationship, or partnership between the Parties or to impose any partnership obligation or partnership liability upon either Party. Neither Party shall have any right, power or authority to enter into any agreement or undertaking for, or act on behalf of, or to act as or be an agent or representative of, or to otherwise bind, the other Party.

#### 9.8 Severability

If any provision or portion of this Agreement shall for any reason be held or adjudged to be invalid or illegal or unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction or other Governmental Authority, (1) such portion or provision shall be deemed separate and independent, (2) the Parties shall negotiate in good faith to restore insofar as practicable the benefits to each Party that were affected by such ruling, and (3) the remainder of this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect.

#### 9.9 Environmental Releases

Each Party shall notify the other Party, first orally and then in writing, of the release any hazardous substances, any asbestos or lead abatement activities, or any type of remediation activities related to the Small Generator Facility or the Interconnection Facilities, each of which may reasonably be expected to affect the other Party. The notifying Party shall (1) provide the notice as soon as practicable, provided such Party makes a good faith effort to provide the notice no later than 24 hours after such Party becomes aware of the occurrence, and (2) promptly furnish to the other Party copies of any publicly available reports filed with any governmental authorities addressing such events.

## 9.10 Subcontractors

Nothing in this Agreement shall prevent a Party from utilizing the services of any subcontractor as it deems appropriate to perform its obligations under this Agreement; provided, however, that each Party shall require its subcontractors to comply with all applicable terms and conditions of this Agreement in providing such services and each Party shall remain primarily liable to the other Party for the performance of such subcontractor.

- 9.10.1 The creation of any subcontract relationship shall not relieve the hiring Party of any of its obligations under this Agreement. The hiring Party shall be fully responsible to the other Party for the acts or omissions of any subcontractor the hiring Party hires as if no subcontract had been made; provided, however, that in no event shall T & D Utility be liable for the actions or inactions of the Interconnection Customer or its subcontractors with respect to obligations of the Interconnection Customer under this Agreement. Any applicable obligation imposed by this Agreement upon the hiring Party shall be equally binding upon, and shall be construed as having application to, any subcontractor of such Party.
- 9.10.2 The obligations under this Article will not be limited in any way by any limitation of subcontractor's insurance.

## Article 10. Notices

#### 10.1 General

Unless otherwise provided in this Agreement, any written notice, demand, or request required or authorized in connection with this Agreement ("Notice") shall be deemed properly given if delivered in person, delivered by recognized national currier service, or sent by first class mail, postage prepaid, to the person specified below:

#### If to Interconnection Customer:

Readfield Main Solar, LLC 14 Maine Street, Suite 305C-1, Box 49 Brunswick, ME 04011 802-281-3213

## If to T & D Utility:

Central Maine Power Company Attention: Nathan Pelletier, Manager 83 Edison Drive Augusta, ME 04336 Phone: 207-621-4732 Fax: 207-621-4778

With Copy to:

Legal Department Central Maine Power Company 83 Edison Drive Augusta, ME 04336 Phone: 207-621-6546 Fax: 207-621-6538 10.2.1 Billing and Payment

Billings and payments shall be sent to the addresses set out below:

## If to Interconnection Customer:

Readfield Main Solar, LLC 14 Maine Street, Suite 305C-1, Box 49 Brunswick, ME 04011 802-281-3213

## If to T & D Utility:

Central Maine Power Company Attention: Nathan Pelletier, Manager 83 Edison Drive Augusta, ME 04336 Phone: 207-621-4732 Fax: 207-347-4148

## 10.3 Designated Operating Representative

The Parties may also designate operating representatives to conduct the communications which may be necessary or convenient for the administration of this Agreement. This person will also serve as the point of contact with respect to operations and maintenance of the Party's facilities.

#### If to Interconnection Customer:

Readfield Main Solar, LLC 14 Maine Street, Suite 305C-1, Box 49 Brunswick, ME 04011 802-281-3213

## If to T & D Utility:

Central Maine Power Company Attention: Nathan Pelletier, Manager 83 Edison Drive Augusta, ME 04336 Phone: 207-621-4732 Fax: 207-621-4778

## Article 11. Signatures

**IN WITNESS WHEREOF**, the Parties have caused this Agreement to be executed by their respective duly authorized representatives.

For the Transmission Provider: Central Maine Power Company

Name: Condrea Vantuling	_ Date: <u>7/14/2023</u>
Andrea Vanluling	
Title: Vice President – Treasurer & Controller	D 7/1 //2022
Name:	Date: 7/14/2023
Keith Radonis	
Title: Director – Interconnection Services	
For the Interconnection Customer: Readfield Main Solar, LLC	
Name: Date Troy McBride	: 7/13/2023
Title: Authorized Representative	

Exhibits

- Transmission & Distribution Interconnection Requirements for Generation
   Insurance Requirements

## Exhibit 1

**Transmission & Distribution Interconnection Requirements for Generation:** The customer is required to be interconnected per CMP's Transmission & Distribution Interconnection Requirements for Generation (also known as the "Blue Book") which is updated annually and can be found on CMP's website.

#### Exhibit 2 Insurance Requirements

Insurance Requirement: The customer is responsible for having insurance for their interconnection. Please see below requirements of insurance and provide an updated insurance certificate annually.

- For non-inverter-based Generating Facilities:
  - Generating Capacity greater than 5 MW: \$3,000,000
  - Generating Capacity greater than 2 MW up to and including 5 MW: \$2,000,000
  - Generating Capacity greater than 500 kW up to and including 2 MW: \$1,000,000
  - Generating Capacity greater than 50 kW up to and including 500 kW: \$500,000
  - Generating Capacity less than or equal to 50 kW: no insurance required
- For inverter-based Generating Facilities:
  - Generating Capacity greater than 5 MW: \$2,000,000
  - Generating Capacity greater than 2 MW up to and including 5 MW: \$1,000,000
  - Generating Capacity less than or equal to1 MW: no insurance required

## ATTACHMENT L: EQUIPMENT SPECIFICATION SHEETS



# TALMAX TALES

## **144 LAYOUT** MONOCRYSTALLINE MODULE

385-415W POWER OUTPUT RANGE

**20.7%** MAXIMUM EFFICIENCY

0~+5W POSITIVE POWER TOLERANCE

Founded in 1997, Trina Solar is the world's leading total solution provider for solar energy. With local presence around the globe, Trina Solar is able to provide exceptional service to each customer in each market and deliver our innovative, reliable products with the backing of Trina as a strong, bankable brand. Trina Solar now distributes its PV products to over 100 countries all over the world. We are committed to building strategic, mutually beneficial collaborations with installers, developers, distributors and other partners in driving smart energy together.

#### Comprehensive Products and System Certificates

IEC61215/IEC61730/IEC61701/IEC62716/UL61730 ISO 9001: Quality Management System ISO 14001: Environmental Management System ISO14064: Greenhouse Gases Emissions Verification ISO45001: Occupation Health and Safety Management System





PRODUCTS TSM-DE15H(**II**) POWER RANGE 385-415W



# \$

## **High power**

- Up to 415W front power and 20.7% module efficiency with half-cut technology bringing more BOS savings
- Lower resistance of half-cut ensure high power

## High reliability

- Ensured PID resistance through cell process and module material control
- Resistant to salt, acid and ammonia
- Mechanical performance: Up to 5400 Pa positive load and 2400 Pa negative load



## **High energy generation**

- Excellent IAM and low light performance validated by 3rd party with cell process and module material optimization
- Better anti-shading performance and lower operating temperature





#### DIMENSIONS OF PV MODULE(mm)





954 Back View Silicon Sealant Silicon Sealant Laminate

ninate

35 24.5 A-A B-B

I-V CURVES OF PV MODULE(405W)



#### P-V CURVES OF PV MODULE(405W)



Trinasolar

#### **ELECTRICAL DATA (STC)**

Peak Power Watts-PMAX (Wp)*	390	395	400	405	410	415	420
Power Tolerance-P <sub>MAX</sub> (W)				0~+5			
Maximum Power Voltage-V <sub>MPP</sub> (V)	40.5	40.8	41.1	41.4	41.7	42.0	42.3
Maximum Power Current-I <sub>MPP</sub> (A)	9.64	9.69	9.74	9.79	9.84	9.89	9.93
Open Circuit Voltage-Voc (V)	49.7	50.1	50.4	50.8	51.2	51.5	51.9
Short Circuit Current-Isc (A)	10.08	10.13	10.18	10.23	10.29	10.34	10.39
Module Efficiency η <sub>m</sub> (%)	19.4	19.7	19.9	20.2	20.4	20.7	20.7

STC: Irradiance 1000W/m², Cell Temperature 25°C, Air Mass AM1.5. \*Measurement tolerance: ±3%.

#### ELECTRICAL DATA (NOCT)

Maximum Power-P <sub>MAX</sub> (Wp)	294	298	302	306	309	313	317
Maximum Power Voltage-V <sub>MPP</sub> (V)	38.4	38.7	39.0	39.3	39.5	39.8	40.1
Maximum Power Current-Impp (A)	7.66	7.70	7.74	7.78	7.82	7.87	7.90
Open Circuit Voltage-Voc (V)	46.8	47.2	47.4	47.8	48.2	48.5	48.8
Short Circuit Current-Isc (A)	8.12	8.16	8.20	8.24	8.29	8.33	8.37

NOCT: Irradiance at 800W/m<sup>2</sup>, Ambient Temperature 20°C, Wind Speed 1m/s.

MECHANICAL DATA	
Solar Cells	Monocrystalline
Cell Orientation	144 cells (6 × 24)
Module Dimensions	2015 × 996 × 35 mm (79.33 × 39.21 × 1.38 inches)
Weight	22.0 kg ( 48.5 lb)
Glass	3.2 mm (0.13 inches), High Transmission, AR Coated Heat Strengthened Glass
EncapsulantMaterial	EVA/POE
Backsheet	White
Frame	35 mm (1.38 inches) Anodized Aluminium Alloy
J-Box	IP 68 rated
Cables	Photovoltaic Technology Cable 4.0mm² (0.006 inches²), Portrait: N 280mm/P 280mm(11.02/11.02inches) Landscape: N 1400 mm /P 1400 mm (55.12/55.12 inches)
Connector	MC4 EVO2 / TS4*

\*Please refer to regional datasheet for specified connector.

#### **TEMPERATURE RATINGS**

NOCT (Nominal Operating Cell Temperature)	43°C(±2°C)
Temperature Coefficient of PMAX	- 0.34%/°C
Temperature Coefficient of Voc	- 0.25%/°C
Temperature Coefficient of Isc	0.04%/°C

(Do not connect Fuse in Combiner Box with two or more strings in parallel connection)

#### WARRANTY

12 year Product Workmanship Warranty

#### 25 year Power Warranty

(Please refer to product warranty for details)

#### PACKAGING CONFIGURATION

Modules per box: 31 pieces

MAXIMUM RATINGS

**Operational Temperature** 

Maximum System Voltage

Max Series Fuse Rating

Modules per 40' container: 682 pieces

-40~+85°C

1500V DC (IEC)

1500V DC (UL)

20A

CAUTION: READ SAFETY AND INSTALLATION INSTRUCTIONS BEFORE USING THE PRODUCT.

© 2022 Trina Solar Limited. All rights reserved. Specifications included in this datasheet are subject to change without notice. Version number: TSM\_DE15H(II)\_NA\_EN\_2022\_A www.trinasolar.com

## **144 LAYOUT MODULE**



## 100/125kW, 1500Vdc String Inverters for North America



#### CPS SCH100/125KTL-DO/US-600

The 100 & 125kW high power CPS three-phase string inverters are designed for ground mount applications. The units are high performance, advanced and reliable inverters designed specifically for the North American environment and grid. High efficiency at 99.1% peak and 98.5% CEC, wide operating voltages, broad temperature ranges and a NEMA Type 4X enclosure enable this inverter platform to operate at high performance across many applications. The CPS 100/125kW products ship with the Standard or Centralized Wire-box, each fully integrated and separable with AC and DC disconnect switches. The Standard Wire-box includes touch safe fusing for up to 20 strings. The CPS FlexOM Gateway enables communication, controls and remote product upgrades.

#### **Key Features**

- NFPA 70 and NEC compliant
- Touch safe DC Fuse holders adds convenience and safety
- CPS FlexOM Gateway enables remote firmware upgrades
- Integrated AC & DC disconnect switches
- 1 MPPT with 20 fused inputs for maximum flexibility
- Copper and Aluminum compatible AC connections

- NEMA Type 4X outdoor rated enclosure
- Advanced Smart-Grid features (CA Rule 21 certified)
- kVA headroom yields 100kW @ 0.9PF and 125kW @ 0.95PF
- Generous 1.87 (100kW) and 1.5 (125kW) DC/AC inverter load ratios
- Separable wire-box design for fast service
- Standard 5-year warranty with extensions to 20 years



100/125KTL Standard Wire-box



© CHINT POWER SYSTEMS AMERICA 2022/8-MKT NA



100/125KTL Centralized Wire-box



Model Name		CPS SCH125KTI -DO/US-600			
DC Input					
Max PV power	187 5kW	r			
Max DC input voltage	1500V				
Operating DC input voltage range	860-1450	/dc			
Start-up DC input voltage / nower	900V / 250	W			
Number of MPP trackers	900v / 250W				
MPPT voltage range <sup>1</sup>	870-1300	/dc			
Max BV input current (kc x 1 25)	2754				
Max. PV Input current (isc x 1.23)	27 JA				
Number of DC inputs	1 input circuit, 1-2 terminations per pole, non-fused with Centralized Wire-box				
DC disconnection type	Load-rated DC	switch			
DC surge protection	Type II MOV (with indicator/remote signal	ing), Up=2.5kV, In=20kA (8/20uS)			
AC Output					
Rated AC output power	100kW	125kW			
Max. AC output power <sup>2</sup>	100kVA (111kVA @ PF>0.9)	125kVA (132kVA @ PF>0.95)			
Rated output voltage	600Vac				
Output voltage range <sup>3</sup>	528-660V	ac			
Grid connection type <sup>4</sup>	3Φ/PE/N (neutra	l optional)			
Max. AC output current @ 600Vac	96.2 / 106.8A	120.3 / 127.0A			
Rated output frequency	60Hz				
Output frequency range <sup>3</sup>	57-63Hz				
Power factor	>0.99 (±0.8 adjustable)	>0.99 (±0.8 adjustable)			
Current THD	<3%	· ·			
Max. fault current contribution (1-cycle RMS)	41.47A				
Max. OCPD rating	200A				
AC disconnection type	Load-rated AC	switch			
AC surge protection	Type II MOV (with indicator/remote signal	ina), Up=2.5kV, In=20kA (8/20uS)			
System	.,,,				
Topology	Transformer	less			
Max efficiency	99.1%				
CEC efficiency	98.5%				
Stand-by / night consumption	< <u>-</u> -4W				
Environment	<b>N</b>				
Enclosure protection degree	NEMA Type	48			
	Variable speed se	The second secon			
		rating from +108°E (+42°C)			
Non-onerating temperature range	$-40^{\circ}$ F to $+158^{\circ}$ F $/-40^{\circ}$ C to $+70^{\circ}$ C maximum				
	-40 F t0 +158 F / -40 C t0 +70 C maximum				
Operating numbers	U-100%				
Available water	8202ft / 2500m (no derating)				
Audible noise	<65dBA@1m ar	nd 25°C			
Display and Communication					
User interface and display	LED indicators, W	IFI + APP			
Inverter monitoring	Modbus RS4	485			
Site-level monitoring	CPS FlexOM Gateway (1)	per 32 inverters)			
Modbus data mapping	SunSpec / C	PS			
Remote diagnostics / firmware upgrade functions	Standard / (with Flex0	OM Gateway)			
Mechanical					
Dimensions (W x H x D)	45.28 x 24.25 x 9.84in (1150 x 616 x 25 39.37 x 24.25 x 9.84in (1000 x 616 x 250	50mm) with Standard Wire-box 0mm) with Centralized Wire-box			
Weight	Inverter: 121lbs (55kg); Wire-box: 55lbs 33lbs (15kg) with Centr	(25kg) with Standard Wire-box alized Wire-box			
Mounting / installation angle	15 - 90 degrees from horizontal (vertical or angled)				
AC termination	M10 stud type terminal [3Φ] (wire range:1/0AWG - 500kcmil CU/AL, lugs not supplied) Screw clamp terminal block [N] (#12 - 1/0AWG CU/AL)				
DC termination	Screw clamp fuse holder (wire range: #12 - #6AWG CU) with Standard Wire-box Busbar, M10 bolts (wire range: #1AWG - 500kcmil CU/AL [1 termination per pole], #1AWG - 300kcmil CU/AL [2 terminations per pole], lugs not supplied) with Centralized Wire-box				
Fused string inputs	20A fuses provided (fuse values up to 30A acceptable)				
Safety					
Certifications and standards	UL 1741-SA/SB Ed. 3, CSA-C22.2 NO.107.1	-01, IEEE 1547-2018, FCC PART15			
Selectable grid standard	IEEE 1547a-2014, IEEE 1547-2018 <sup>7</sup> , CA Rule 21, ISO-NE				
Smart-grid features	Volt-RideThru, Freq-RideThru, Ramp-Rate, Specified-PF, Volt-VAR, Freq-Watt, Volt-Watt				
Warranty					
Standard <sup>6</sup>	5 vears				

10, 15 and 20 years

Extended terms

 Extended terms
 10, 15 and 20 years

 1) See user manual for further information regarding MPPT voltage range when operating at non-unity PF.
 2) "Max.AC apparent power" rating valid within MPPT voltage range and temperature range of -30°C to +40°C (-22°Fto +104°F) for 100kW PF>0.9 and 125kW PF>0.95.

 3) The "output voltage range" and "output frequency range "may differ according to the specific grid standard.
 4) Wye neutral-grounded; Delta may not be corner-grounded.

 5) See user manual for further requirements regarding non-operating conditions.
 6) 5-year warranty effective for units purchased after October 1st, 2019.

 7) Firmware version 12.0 or later required.
 10, 15 and 20 years



# Fixed-Tilt Ground Mount Solution | GM-2

When EPCs and project developers across the USA need dependable, low-maintenance ground mount racking, they turn to RBI Solar. As a single-source provider, we take responsibility for the Design, Engineering, Manufacturing, and Installation of PV mounting solutions. When you choose RBI Solar for your next ground mount, you're choosing peace of mind that your project is in the hands of the most trusted solar racking team in the industry.

## Why choose RBI Solar?

- Professional Engineers licensed in all 50 states
- Quick response & efficient communication
- National installation capabilities
- Our in-house team members are an extension of your staff
- 85+ years manufacturing experience

- Complete turn-key process, reduction in your vendor coordination
- Company owned post driving equipment
- National project management capabilites with roaming site service personnel
- More time to focus on your business





GM-2 Solution Features	
Foundation and racking design	Site wind speeds 170+ mph and ground snow loads 90+ psf
Signed and sealed drawings	Available in all 50 states
Proprietary on-site testing	Pull testing & corrosion testing - no geotechnical report required
Pre-assembled parts	Reduction in installation time
Variable slope	Accommodates slopes up to 30% (with topographic site map)
20-yr standard warranty	Proven rack reliability and bankability
G115 minimum galvanized coating	Exceeds ASTM and UL standards for 30% extended life
Driven posts	Cost-effective cee channel or I-beam post options available
Up to 24' long post driving	Ability to address challenging soils or elevate array structure
Module configurations	Portrait, landscape (all module types)
Raised purlins	Integrated bonding and grounding to UL 2703
Corrosion class	System available for all corrosion classes
Wire management and electrical	Integrated wire management solution and inverter mounting

Contact us at info@rbisolar.com or (513) 242-2051

DESIGN • ENGINEERING • MANUFACTURING • INSTALLATION

6715 Steger Drive, Cincinnati, OH 45237 | 513-242-2051 | info@rbisolar.com | www.rbisolar.com



## ATTACHMENT M: OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE PLAN





## **1.0 INTRODUCTION AND CONTACTS**

The purpose of this Operations and Maintenance Plan is to present the operation and maintenance procedures associated with the Readfield Main Street Solar Project (Project). Readfield Main Street Solar, LLC (Applicant), is managed by Norwich Technologies (Norwich). Runtime Solar (https://runtimesolar.com/), a division of Norwich, will operate and maintain the Project. Owner contact and Project site information is as follows:

Owner Contact: Martha Staskus, Norwich Technologies, Inc. on behalf of Readfield Main Street Solar, LLC Phone: (802) 359-7416 Email: staskus@norwichsolar.com Address: 14 Maine Street, Suite 305C-1, Box 49, Brunswick, ME 04011

Runtime Solar Contact: Dan Kinney <u>Phone</u>: (802) 299-6669 <u>Email</u>: kinney@runtimesolar.com

Site Name: Readfield Main Street Solar Project Site Address: Main Street, Readfield, ME 04355

## 1.1 **PROJECT INFORMATION**

The Project is a ground-mounted solar facility comprised of photovoltaic modules (solar panels) installed on a fixed-tilt racking system supported by driven posts or ground screws. The expected operating life of the Project is 25 years. The Project is located on the south side of Main Street (Route 17) in Readfield, Maine (Tax Map 143, Lot 14). Sunny Acres, LLC, the land holding entity for Norwich, has signed a Purchase and Sale Agreement with the current landowner of the Project parcel. The Applicant has entered into a lease option agreement with Sunny Acres, LLC.

## 2.0 OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE

Throughout the life of the Project, the solar array operations and Project equipment performance will be monitored remotely, dispatching personnel as needed. Norwich Technologies' Runtime Solar operations and maintenance personnel manage a tiered system of possible obstacles that allows maintenance to identify and respond to the highest priority concerns in a timely manner. Regular maintenance adheres to the guidelines set forth in the permit conditions, often once a year or as needed.

## 2.1 SITE ACCESS

The Project will be accessed via the gravel driveway originating from Main Street. The Project will be encompassed by a perimeter fence with a gate installed near the end of the driveway. The gate will be secured with Knox Box locks (or similar locking mechanisms) to provide access for operations, maintenance, and in the event of an emergency. Safe access to the Project by way of the driveway will be



maintained with grading as needed, to maintain a crown and prevent the creation of berms or ruts that may channelize flow. Side slopes will be inspected for rill erosion due to concentrated flows, and eroded slopes will be repaired and reseeded, as necessary.

## 2.2 STORMWATER MANAGEMENT FEATURES

The following stormwater management features will be inspected and maintained along with routine array inspections and after severe storms. Inspections will include the following.

- Vegetation:
  - Re-seed and mulch area where cover is less than 90%; rework, seed, and mulch areas that have spotty plant germination and are sparsely vegetated or where soil erosion is evident.
- Vegetated Buffers:
  - Inspect buffers for evidence of erosion or concentrated flows; repair, seed, and mulch eroded areas; mow meadow buffer no more than twice per growing season.

The following stormwater management features will be inspected and maintained a minimum of once annually. Inspections will include the following, as applicable.

- Vegetated Buffers:
  - Inspect buffers for evidence of erosion or concentrated flows; repair, seed, and mulch eroded areas; mow meadow buffers no more than twice per growing season.

## 3.0 VEGETATION MANAGEMENT

Project vegetation management shall consist of the following steps to maintain the Project site.

- Ground cover within the fenced area shall be mowed annually, as necessary to maintain safe access and maintenance conditions. Additional mowing may be necessary and will be completed as needed.
- Vegetation growth will be maintained under and around the solar installation at levels needed to reduce the risk of ignition from the electrical system while minimizing mowing, to the extent practicable.
- Commercial herbicides, pesticides, fungicides, and insecticides will not be used for any purpose.
- The site shall be inspected a minimum of once per year for evidence of erosion and riling. Such conditions shall be corrected and revegetated.
- Native, pollinator-friendly seed mixtures will be used for revegetation purposes, to the extent practicable, to promote beneficial flora and fauna.
- Shade management of trees or other vegetation that is having an impact on the performance of the Project will be trimmed as needed. Vegetation growth (saplings, bushes, large weeds, etc.) within the fenced area of the Project will be removed.

## ATTACHMENT N: EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT PLAN





## 1.0 PURPOSE AND PROJECT INFORMATION

The purpose of the Emergency Management Plan (EMP) is to familiarize the local fire response to the solar equipment and system operation and assist responders to feel confident and operate safely when responding to an emergency event. This EMP provides a high-level system description and identifies actions and procedures to safely and effectively respond in the unlikely event of an emergency. The actions and procedures identified in the EMP are tailored to the types of emergencies that may occur at a solar energy generation facility.

This EMP supports the local fire department in preparation and planning for the unlikely event of a fire or extreme weather emergency. It should be noted that a regular Operation and Maintenance (O&M) program is applied during operations to assist in preventing system fires due to equipment failure or extreme conditions.

## 1.1 **PROJECT DESCRIPTION**

Readfield Main Street Solar, LLC, managed by Norwich Solar (Norwich), will operate and maintain the Readfield Main Street Solar Project (Project). The Project is a solar energy generation facility located on the south side of Main Street in Readfield, Maine (Tax Map 143/Lot 14). The Project's primary components include photovoltaic (PV) modules mounted on a fixed tilt racking system and solar inverters. Other Project components include electrical cables, conduit, electrical cabinets, a transformer, and metering equipment.

## 1.2 PROJECT ACCESS

The Project access from Main Street provides emergency vehicles and equipment access to the solar array, including the electrical equipment. Access to all areas of the Project is provided via access aisles between individual rows of the PV panels. Access aisles provide spacing sufficient for emergency responders to all areas of the Project site via walking or 4x4 vehicles and emergency equipped pickups.

## **1.3 PROJECT SITE SECURITY**

A perimeter fence with an access gate will be installed around the Project in compliance with the National Electrical Code. The gate will be secured with a Knox Box lock (or similar locking mechanism) to provide public safety and allow emergency services access. The Readfield Fire Department will have access to the Project and isolation switch by accessing the on-site Knox Box. An information sign approximately 2 feet by 2 feet will be mounted on the gate at the Project entrance. The sign will contain contact information for the Project. Additional signage may be installed on the exterior of the Project fencing as required for safety and security purposes. The fence will have an approximately 6-inch gap between the bottom of the fence and the ground to allow for smaller wildlife passage.

## 1.4 PROJECT TEAM CONTACTS

In the event of an emergency, Norwich should be notified. The Project team will consist of:

## **Emergency Management Plan**





Primary O&M Contact	Dan Kinney	(802) 281-3213	kinney@norwichsolar.com
Secondary O&M Contact	Charlie Van Winkle	(802) 281-3213	vanwinkle@norwichsolar.com
Tertiary O&M Contact	Martha Staskus	(802) 281 3213	permitting@norwichsolar.com

## **1.5 EMERGENCY RESPONSE JURISDICTIONS**

The Project site is within the jurisdictional boundary of the Town of Readfield and Kennebec County. In the event of an emergency, **dial 9-1-1**, and the following departments should be notified:

Department	Address	Contact
Readfield Fire Department	1154 Main Street Readfield, ME 04355	Chief: Lee Mank (207) 458-9495
Readfield Maintenance Department	8 Old Kents Hill Road Readfield, ME 04355	(207) 685-4939 (207) 931-7681 (207) 931-7682
Kennebec County Sheriff's Department	73 Winthrop Street Augusta, ME 04330	(207) 623-3614
Augusta Communications Center	45 Commerce Drive Augusta, ME 04330	(207) 624-7076
Maine State Police	198 Maine Avenue Bangor, ME 04401	24-hour Regional Communications Center: (207) 624-7076
Central Maine Power	83 Edison Drive Augusta, ME 04336	800-696-1000 (to report an electricity emergency)





## 2.0 EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT

The emergency management actions below include information regarding spill prevention, fire response and prevention, medical emergencies, and high damage weather events. A general Solar Operations Emergency Checklist is provided in Appendix A.

## 2.1 SPILL PREVENTION

Prior to construction, personnel will be instructed on the O&M of construction equipment to prevent the accidental discharge or spill of fuel, oil, and lubricants. Personnel will also be made aware of the pollution control laws, rules, and regulations applicable to their work. An Emergency Assembly Area will be established and all those coming onsite notified of its location.

During construction, periodic spill prevention refresher briefings with the construction crew will be conducted. These briefings will highlight precautionary measures, potential sources of spills, such as equipment failure or malfunction; review of standard operating procedures in case of a spill, including applicable notification requirements; and equipment, materials and supplies available for clean-up.

## 2.2 FIRE RESPONSE AND PREVENTION PLAN

## 2.2.1 Fire Response

In the event of a fire emergency, all personnel will shut down their respective activities and proceed to the Emergency Assembly Area location. Project operations personnel will remain on site if conditions allow to safely shutdown operations as required. No personnel shall leave without first being accounted for by supervisors at the Emergency Assembly Area. No personnel will re-enter the area until given permission to do so. In the event of a small stage fire at the Project site, the following steps shall be initiated.

#### 1. Immediate response for all Fires – Dial 911

a. Upon detection of any fire, regardless of size, the initial observer, whether on site or remotely detecting, shall immediately dial 911 for emergency response. If the initial observer is on site, the call should be made from a safe location.

#### 2. Contact O&M Provider and Project Owner

a. Contact the local utility and notify them of the emergency conditions. Depending on the nature of the emergency, the utility can isolate the PV system from the local distribution system by opening the recloser located on a utility pole at the Project.

Contact the O&M provider and/or project owner and notify them of the emergency conditions. Depending on the nature of the emergency conditions, they may isolate the PV system from the local distribution system by opening the project recloser located inside the Project fence.

If a fire is in the incipient stage and the personnel has been properly trained, the personnel can respond using available fire response equipment.



## 2.2.2 Fire Prevention

The Project will be regularly inspected and maintained to reduce the risk of faults or malfunctions that could result in ignition of a fire. Additionally, Project operations will be monitored remotely for faults or malfunctions. If faults or malfunctions occur, most will be resolved remotely. Technicians will respond to alarms, faults, or malfunctions that cannot be resolved remotely.

To reduce the chance of ignition of vegetative material under and around the Project and the chances of fire spreading within the Project site, the Project site will be largely free of heavy combustible vegetation, such as trees or shrubs, with only a ground cover of maintained native vegetation adjacent and beneath the solar array area. Scheduled mowing of the ground cover will prevent heavy combustible vegetation from growing and prevent vegetative fuel loading over life of the Project.

All personnel engaged in activities on the Project shall make themselves aware of the Daily Fire Danger Report as published by the Maine Forestry Service or other appropriate service prior to conducting activities on the Project site. Personnel shall factor in the fire danger level into their planned activities and take appropriate precautions.

## 2.2.3 Conditions Associated with PV Arrays

PV systems convert light into electricity. The unique PV system characteristic is that even when isolated from the utility distribution system, the solar array is still generating electricity and capable of producing up to 1,500 volts. When there is solar irradiance or other non-sunlight sources of light (e.g., mobile lighting systems or moonlight) falling on the PV panels, the panels are generating electricity and can pose a risk of electric shock to a first responder. Below is a summary of hazards associated with firefighting activities in PV systems:

- Shock hazard due to the presence of water and PV power during suppression activities;
- Outdoor related electrical enclosures may not resist water intrusion from the high-pressure stream of a fire hose;
- PV panels damaged in the fire may not resist water intrusion;
- Damaged conductors may not resist water intrusion;
- Shock hazard due to direct contact with energized components; and
- No means of complete electrical disconnect.

## 2.2.4 Fire Department Preparedness

Prior to energization, the Project team will provide further site-specific information to all emergency response departments, as requested. This will include a plan depicting the locations of all disconnects, gates, and an overview of how the system operates. A training will be offered on-site to any personnel who would like to attend.

## 2.3 MEDICAL EMERGENCY

Dial 911 for emergency response. Off-site emergency response officials will make the determination for required support. Identify the person making the request, the nature of the emergency, and location of the emergency.



## 2.4 HIGH DAMAGE WEATHER EVENT

Depending on the available forecasting, prior to a weather event with high probability for damaging impacts on the Project, the O&M Contractor will place response staff on alert. Personnel should not be on the Project site during a potentially high damage weather event. Following a high damage weather event, the O&M Contractor will verify the functionality of the Project and make any required repairs in a timely fashion, dependent on the nature of the repair required, to avoid any hazardous malfunction of the Project.



## APPENDIX A SOLAR OPERATIONS EMERGENCY CHECKLIST

Stage	Objective	Responsibility	Status
1	Identify the type of incident and response needed. Call 9-1-1		
2	Confirm all personnel are present at the Emergency Assembly Area		
3	If there are more than three personnel onsite, assign one person to meet emergency responders and guide them to the incident.		
4	Remain onsite as long as it is safe and remain in contact with the 9-1-1 dispatcher serving as a communication liaison.		
5	Log head count and attempt to contact any personnel that have not reported in.		
6	Evacuate site if Emergency Assembly Area is not safe. Inform the 9-1-1 dispatcher that personnel will be evacuating the solar site.		

## ATTACHMENT O: DECOMMISSIONING PLAN





DATE: 08/03/22	PREPARED BY: Ian Jewkes
PROJECT: Readfield Main Street Solar	Krebs and Lansing Consulting Engineers, Inc.
Main Street	164 Main Street, Colchester, Vermont
Readfield, Maine	802-878-0375

**Project Summary:** Readfield Main Street Solar, LLC (Applicant) proposes to construct and operate a 0.975 megawatt (MW) alternating current (AC) solar array ("Project"). The Project will occupy 17.51 acres of an existing lot that is approximately 71.93 acres. The parcel is identified as Map 143 Lot 014, and is located on the south side of Main Street in Readfield, ME. The Project will include a gravel access drive, fence array area, underground electric collection line, equipment pads, transformer, inverters, solar panels mounted on a fixed tilt rack support system, and clearing for shade management. William C. Hewett owns the property. The Project will include approximately 21,172 square-feet of gravel access drive, 4,200 solar panels, approximately 2,623 feet of security fence, underground electric conduit, inverters, equipment pads with transformer, and miscellaneous electrical equipment. Please note, solar equipment availability and specifications are continually evolving. The exact quantities stated are the best estimates available using equipment that can be purchased at this time. The exact quantity of equipment purchased may vary to accommodate the actual solar power equipment for sale at the time of construction. The anticipated work start date is the fall of 2023.

**Farmland:** As defined by the *Act to Ensure Decommissioning of Solar Energy Developments* (35-A M.R.S §§ 3491 through 3496, "the Act"), there are 1.44 acres of Farmland area on the Project site (see Attachment B).

**Decommissioning Triggers:** In accordance with the Act, decommissioning of the Project will occur at the end of its useful life. That is, at the termination of the lease agreement, at the end of the project operation, or when the facility ceases to generate electricity for a continuous period of twelve months in the absence of an explicit approval by the State of Maine to delay project decommissioning due to a showing that the project will become operational again; whichever is earlier.

Lease Term: The lease period is twenty five (25) years with up to two five (5) year extensions.

**Average/Anticipated Lifespan of Panels**: The industry average solar panel life span and warranty periods range between 25 and 30 years. Panels (and other components) may be replaced or upgraded during the operation period of the project with adherence to local and state permit requirements.



#### **DECOMMISSIONING WORK PLAN**

Decommissioning responsibilities will include removal of all solar project equipment and improvements from the project site in accordance with the Act and this plan. All refuse and recycled materials will be disposed of at an off-site waste facility conforming to state and federal regulations by licensed waste haulers. The following shall be required for Decommissioning planning and implementation:

**Design and Permitting:** Prior to implementation of the Decommissioning efforts, a final (updated) decommissioning plan will be designed by a Professional Engineer experienced in solar project design and decommissioning ("Decommissioning Engineer"). This phase of decommissioning will include acquisition of any required permits necessary for decommissioning activities.

**Removal of Components:** Physical removal of all components of the Project will occur to a depth of 24 inches or bedrock, whichever is less.

**Restoration of Grades:** Grades must be restored to post-construction (pre-decommissioning) conditions and disturbed areas to be stabilized with native seed mix at a minimum seeding rate of 15-20 lb per acre.

**Erosion Control:** In accordance with the engineered decommissioning plan, all sediment and erosion control measures employed during the decommissioning work will be consistent with prior approvals and further regulatory requirements in effect at the time of decommissioning.

All sediment and erosion controls will be installed prior to initiation of decommissioning work.

Erosion control measures must remain in place and be maintained until the site is stabilized.

The Decommissioning Engineer shall inspect the site, taking in to account the site stability, and potential erosion/sedimentation to occur during Decommissioning and provide a plan of erosion controls. The Decommissioning Engineer may refer to the attached plan set (see Attachment A) and the Project's Stormwater Permit by Rule for Erosion and Sediment Control plans. However, it is reasonable to assume that erosion control needs, technologies, and requirements may be different at the time of the decommissioning than at the time of Project permitting.

Access Drive: The Project's gravel access drive will remain in place following decommissioning to provide an entrance for future logging activities.

**Retaining Specific Project Components:** At the time of decommissioning, if the landowner would like to retain specific project components that were not previously approved in the decommissioning plan, the landowner or developer must submit an application for the continued beneficial use of the components.

# KREBS & LANSING



**Decommissioning Activities:** The following shall constitute the decommissioning activities as designed and approved by the Decommissioning Engineer and the final decommissioning plan:

- 1. INSTALLATION OF EROSION CONTROLS;
- 2. UNINSTALL & DISCONNECT SOLAR PANELS AND RACKING;
- 3. DEMOLITION AND REMOVAL OF CONCRETE FOUNDATIONS (IF REQUIRED DURING INSTALLATION);
- 4. REMOVAL OF ELECTRICAL COLLECTION SYSTEM (ABOVE AND BELOW GROUND TO A DEPTH AS DESCRIBED ABOVE);
- 5. REMOVAL OF SOLAR PANELS RACKING SUPPORT SYSTEM;
- 6. REMOVAL OF FENCING AND GATES;
- 7. REMOVAL OF ALL INVERTERS, COMBINERS, AND OTHER ELECTRICAL EQUIPMENT AND TRANSFORMER;
- 8. REMOVAL OF EQUIPMENT PADS;
- 9. RE-GRADING OF DISTURBED PORTIONS OF THE SITE (AS NECESSARY);
- 10. SEEDING OF SOILS DISTURBED DURING THE DECOMMISSIONING PROCESS UTILIZING A NATIVE SEED MIX AT A MINIMUM SEEDING RATE OF 15 – 20 LB PER ACRE; AND,
- 11. TRANSPORTATION OFF THE SITE OF ALL MATERIALS FOR RESALE, RECYCLING OR DISPOSAL, AS APPROPRIATE. (DISPOSAL OF ALL SOLID WASTE AND RECYCLABLE MATERIALS FROM THE SITE MUST PROCEED IN ACCORDANCE WITH LOCAL, STATE, AND FEDERAL WASTE DISPOSAL REGULATIONS IN EFFECT AT THE TIME OF DECOMMISSIONING.)





#### **DECOMMISSIONING COST ESTIMATES**

The total cost of decommissioning the Project is estimated to be \$48,840 (Table 1).

The cost was estimated using information published by the New York State Energy Research and Development Authority (NYSERDA) and adjusted for Maine labor wages and site-specific factors.

#### **TABLE 1. Cost Estimates**

TASK	COST <sup>*</sup>
Remove Solar Modules	\$1,370
Remove Racking Wiring	\$1,370
Dismantle Racks	\$6,890
Remove Electrical Equipment	\$1,030
Remove Concrete Pads	\$ 710
Remove Racks	\$4,350
Remove Cables	\$3,080
Remove Racking Ground Mount Support System	\$6,570
Remove Fence	\$2,350
Grading	\$1,900
Temporary Erosion Control***	\$2,580
Seed Disturbed Areas with Native Seed Mix at Seeding Rate of 15-20 lb per Acre	\$ 420
Truck to Recycling Center	\$1,260
Additional for Component Removal to a Depth of 48" per Maine Statute 36 MRS §	\$ 980
1102(4) for "Farmland" areas (approx. 8% of project)	Ş 980
Solar Module Disposal (\$1.90 Per Module) **	\$7,980
Engineering / Consulting**	\$3,000
Contractor Mobilization**	\$1,500
Contractor Demobilization**	\$1,500
TOTAL	\$48,840

\* NYSERDA decommissioning solar panel systems method adjusted for regional labor costs and storage facility

\*\*Adjustments to conform to Maine 35-a M.R.S. §§ 3491, module disposal fee based on state of Maine 2019 average tipping fee of \$76/ton, 50 lbs per module and 4,200 solar modules (assuming modules are not recycled) plus 25 tons of miscellaneous refuse that cannot be recycled

\*\*\*temporary erosion control cost is integrated into the NYSERDA method. A separate line item has been created for clarity





#### FINANCIAL ASSURANCE AND SITE RESTORATION FUNDING

The total estimated decommissioning cost will be fully funded by Readfield Main Street Solar, LLC before construction commences. These funds may be in the form of a performance bond, surety bond, irrevocable letter of credit, or other acceptable form of financial assurance (Financial Assurance).

Readfield Main Street Solar, LLC, or its successor, will update the decommissioning cost estimate fifteen years after approval of the decommissioning plan, and no less frequently than every five years thereafter. Financial assurance updates must be submitted to the permitting entity by December 31 of the required year.

The Financial Assurance will remain in place until the decommissioning work has been completed.

**State of Maine Decommissioning Bond Requirements:** If a bond is required, the Project shall comply with the following State of Maine bond requirements.

- The Obligee should be, "State of Maine, Department of Environmental Protection." A municipality may be the Obligee, provided the bond amount is sufficient to cover decommissioning in accordance with the Department-approved plan and the municipally-approved decommissioning plan covered by the bond is consistent with the Department-approved decommissioning plan. However, where a municipality has its own decommissioning requirement and the developer desires to secure only a single bond, it is preferrable for both the municipality and State of Maine, Department of Environmental Protection to be co-Obligees.
- 2. The amount listed on the financial assurance should match the amount in the cost estimate.
- 3. The bond should reference the Solar Energy Decommissioning Law (35-A M.R.S. §§ 3491-3496), the Department order approving the decommissioning plan (including the licensing number, if possible), and the approved decommissioning plan.
- 4. The bond should acknowledge the Obligor's obligation to decommission the solar energy development and restore the site upon discontinuance of service consistent with the approved decommissioning plan.
- 5. The bond should provide that the Obligee can make a claim on the bond upon learning 1) that the facility has been abandoned or 2) that the Obligor has violated its obligation to decommission the solar energy development pursuant to the Order. If the bond specifies the number of days from a triggering event that the Department has to make a claim on the bond, that number of days should be at least 60 and, with respect to a violation of the decommissioning obligation (#2 above), this time period should not begin until the Obligor has failed to take corrective action in response to a corresponding notice of violation issued by the Obligee.
- 6. Bonds may be renewed annually.

# KREBS & LANSING





August 3, 2023

## **ATTACHMENTS**

- A Project Plan Set
- B Farmland Map
- C Location Map
- D Proof of Legal Name: Department of the Secretary of State Certificate of Existence
- E Financial Assurance



# ATTACHMENT A PROJECT PLAN SET

#### READFIELD MAIN STREET READFIELD MAIN STREET SOLAR, LLC SOLAR, LLC Main Street Readfield, Maine **CIVIL SITE PLANS** PROPOSED PHOTOVOLTAIC POWER Stantec **GENERATION FACILITY** KREBS & READFIELD, MAINE horizons orgineoring MAIN STREET Ch4 Engineering: Kreba and Lansing Consulting Engineers, Inc. 164 Main Street, Suite 201 Chalaster, Vierneet, 2014 SHEET INDEX SITE SHEET SET COVER Environmental: Stantec 30 Park Drive Topsham, Maine 04000 1 of 1 BOUNDARY, TOPOGRAPHIC, AND EXISTING CONDITIONS PLAN Norwick Solar 14 Notes Street, Suite 305C-1, Box 49 Brunevick, Maine 04011 C-1.0 SITE PLAN Surveying: Horizone Engineering, Inc. 1040 Pertiand Road Saco, Maine 04072 C-1.1 DRAINAGE PLAN



C-2.0 STANDARD DETAILS C-2.1 ESC DETAILS C-2.2 ESC DETAILS










### ATTACHMENT B

FARMLAND MAP



# ATTACHMENT C LOCATION MAP



## ATTACHMENT D

CERTIFICATE OF EXISTENCE

## **State of Maine**



### **Department of the Secretary of State**

*I, the Secretary of State of Maine, certify* that according to the provisions of the Constitution and Laws of the State of Maine, the Department of the Secretary of State is the legal custodian of the Great Seal of the State of Maine which is hereunto affixed and of the reports of formation, amendment and cancellation of articles of organization of limited liability companies and annual reports filed by the same.

*I further certify* that READFIELD MAIN STREET SOLAR, LLC is a duly formed limited liability company under the laws of the State of Maine and that the date of formation is September 28, 2021.

I further certify that on:

September 28, CERTIFICATE OF FORMATION was filed.

2021

No further amendments have been filed to date.

*I further certify* that said limited liability company has filed annual reports due to this Department, and that no action is now pending by or on behalf of the State of Maine to forfeit the articles of organization and that according to the records in the Department of the Secretary of State, said limited liability company is a legally existing limited liability company in good standing under the laws of the State of Maine at the present time.



*In testimony whereof,* I have caused the Great Seal of the State of Maine to be hereunto affixed. Given under my hand at Augusta, Maine, this twenty-eighth day of July 2023.

Shenna Bellows

Shenna Bellows Secretary of State

#### ATTACHMENT E

FINANCIAL ASSURANCE



July 21, 2023

To Whom It May Concern:

My Name is Cailin McMurdo-Minnich, and I am a Vice President, Commercial Lender at Mascoma Bank. I am also Norwich Solar Technology's (NST) chief representative for our bank.

NST has been doing business with Mascoma for over 4 years. They are an outstanding client with a strong operating history and credit profile.

Mascoma currently extends NST a \$4,000,000 line of credit, a \$500,000 guidance line of credit, and has partnered with NST on financing several solar projects worth over \$5,060,000 in aggregate.

Please feel free to reach out to me anytime with questions.

Sincerely,

Cailin McMurdo-Minnich VP, Commercial Loan Officer Mascoma Bank 180 Battery St Suite 120 Burlington, VT 05401

#### ATTACHMENT P: AGENT AUTHORIZATION





August 3, 2023

Attention: Kara Moody & Adam Gravel Stantec Consulting Services Inc. 30 Park Drive Topsham, ME 04086

#### **Reference: Agent Authorization**

Dear Kara and Adam,

The intent of this letter is to authorize Stantec Consulting Services Inc. to act as Norwich Technologies' agent in submitting municipal, state, and federal permit applications and answering questions associated with the Norwich Technologies proposed solar project, known as Readfield Main Street Solar in Readfield, Maine. The proposed project is located off Main Street (State Route 17 in Readfield).

Regards,

Martha Staskus Chief Development Officer Norwich Technologies, Inc